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                                     PART I 
                         THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
Item 1. Business. 
 
Note Regarding Forward Looking Information 
 
         Certain statements contained in this Annual Report constitute "forward- 
looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and 
Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Such forward-looking statements involve known 
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual 
results, levels of activity, performance or achievements of the Company (as 
defined below), or industry results, to be materially different from any future 
results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by 
such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others, the 
following: general economic and business conditions; the ability of the Company 
to implement its business and acquisition strategy; the ability to effectively 
integrate its acquisitions; the ability of the Company to obtain financing for 
general corporate purposes; competition; availability of key personnel; and 
changes in, or the failure to comply with government regulations. As a result of 
the foregoing and other factors, no assurance can be given as to the future 
results, levels of activity and achievements and neither the Company nor any 
person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of these 
statements. 
 
General 
 
         The Hain Celestial Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its 
subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") manufacture, market, distribute and 
sell natural, specialty, organic and snack food products under brand names which 
are sold as "better-for-you" products. The Company is a leader in many of the 
top natural food categories, with such well-known natural food brands as 
Celestial Seasonings(R) teas, Hain Pure Foods(R), Westbrae(R), Westsoy(R), 
Arrowhead Mills(R), Health Valley(R), Breadshop's(R), Casbah(R), Garden of 
Eatin'(R), Terra Chips(R), Gastons(R), Yves Veggie Cuisine(R), DeBoles(R), 
Earth's Best(R), and Nile Spice(R). The Company's principal specialty product 
lines include Hollywood(R) cooking oils, Estee(R) sugar-free products, Weight 
Watchers(R) dry products, Kineret(R) kosher foods, Boston Better Snacks(R), and 
Alba Foods(R). The Hain Celestial Group's website can be found at 
www.hain-celestial.com. 
 
         The Company's products are sold primarily to specialty and natural food 
distributors and are marketed nationally to supermarkets, natural food stores, 
and other retail classes of trade including: mass-market stores, food service 
channels and club stores. During fiscal 2001, approximately 51% of the Company's 
revenues were manufactured within its own facilities. The remaining 49% of the 
Company's revenues were derived from products which are produced by independent 
food manufacturers ("co-packers") using proprietary specifications controlled by 
the Company. 
 
         On May 30, 2000, the Company, previously known as The Hain Food Group, 
Inc. ("Hain"), completed a merger (the "Merger") with Celestial Seasonings, Inc. 
("Celestial") by issuing 10.3 million shares of Hain common stock in exchange 
for all of the outstanding common stock of Celestial. Each share of Celestial 
common stock was exchanged for 1.265 shares of Hain common stock. Hain 
subsequently changed its name to The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. Celestial, the 
common stock of which was previously publicly traded, is the market leader in 
speciality teas. 
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         The Merger was accounted for as a pooling-of-interests and, 
accordingly, all prior period consolidated financial statements of Hain have 
been restated to include the results of operations, financial position and cash 
flows of Celestial. 
 
         Since its formation, the Company has completed a number of acquisitions 
of companies and brands. In the last three years, the Company has acquired the 
following companies and brands: 
 
         On July 1, 1998, the Company acquired the following businesses and 
brands from The Shansby Group and other investors: 
 
         Arrowhead Mills, Inc., a natural food company. 
 
         DeBoles Nutritional Foods, Inc., a natural pasta products company. 
 
         Dana Alexander, Inc. the maker of Terra Chips natural vegetable chips. 
 
         Garden of Eatin', Inc., a natural snack products company. 
 
         On May 18, 1999, the Company acquired Natural Nutrition Group, Inc. and 
its subsidiaries ("NNG"). NNG is a manufacturer and marketer of premium natural 
and organic food products primarily under its Health Valley, Breadshop's and 
Sahara Natural brands. 
 
         In September 1999, the Company purchased the trademarks of Earth's Best 
natural baby food products from H.J. Heinz Company ("Heinz"). Prior thereto, 
Earth's Best products were sold by the Company to natural food stores pursuant 
to a license from Heinz acquired in May 1998, and further to United States 
retail grocery and natural food stores under an April 1999 expansion of the 
licensing agreement. In addition, the Company entered into a global strategic 
alliance with Heinz related to the production and distribution of natural 
products domestically and internationally. In connection with the alliance and 
the Company's acquisition of the Earth's Best trademarks, the Company issued to 
a subsidiary of Heinz approximately 3.5 million shares of its common stock. The 
Company and the Heinz subsidiary also entered into an Investors Agreement under 
which the Heinz subsidiary agreed to limit its holdings to 19.5% of the 
Company's common stock for an 18 month period that ended March 27, 2001. See 
Note 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further 
information regarding this transaction. 
 
         On January 18, 2001, the Company acquired Fruit Chips B.V., a 
Netherlands based company, which manufactures, distributes and markets low fat 
fruit, vegetable and potato chips. 
 
         On June 8, 2001, the Company acquired Yves Veggie Cuisine, Inc. and its 
subsidiaries ("Yves"), a Vancouver, British Columbia based company. Yves is a 
manufacturer, distributor and marketer of premium soy protein meat alternative 
products. 
 
         The Company's brand names are well recognized in the various market 
categories they serve. The Company has acquired numerous brands over the past 
seven years (besides those mentioned above) and will seek future growth through 
internal expansion, as well as the acquisition of complementary brands. 
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         The Company's overall mission is to be a leading marketer and seller of 
natural, organic, beverage and speciality food products by integrating all of 
its brands under one management team and employing a uniform marketing, sales 
and distribution program. The Company's business strategy is to capitalize on 
the brand equity and the distribution previously achieved by each of the 
Company's acquired product lines and to enhance revenues by strategic 
introductions of new product lines that complement existing products. This 
strategy has been established through the acquisitions referred to above and the 
introduction of a number of new products that complement existing product lines. 
The Company believes that by integrating its various brand groups, it will 
achieve economies of scale and enhanced market penetration. The Company 
considers the acquisition of natural, organic and speciality food companies and 
product lines as an integral part of its business strategy. To that end, the 
Company from time to time reviews and conducts preliminary discussions with 
acquisition candidates. 
 
         As of June 30, 2001, the Company employed a total of 1,178 full-time 
employees. Of these employees, 115 were in sales, 684 in production and the 
remaining 379 were management and administrative. Certain employees at the 
Health Valley facility were previously represented by the Bakery, Confectionary 
and Tobacco Workers' Union (the "Union"). As previously disclosed, earlier in 
the fiscal year, a potential labor action ensued between the Company and these 
employees. However, in December 2000, the Health Valley employees decertified 
the Union and currently there are no employees subject to a collective 
bargaining agreement. 
 
Product Overview 
 
Natural and Organic Food Products 
 
         The Company's Hain, Westbrae, Westsoy, Little Bear, Bearitos, Arrowhead 
Mills, Terra Chips, DeBoles, Garden of Eatin', Health Valley, Sahara Natural, 
Breadshop's, Nile Spice, Earth's Best, Harry's Premium Snacks and Farm Foods 
businesses market and distribute a full line of natural food products. The 
Company is a leader in many of the top natural food categories. Natural foods 
are defined as foods which are minimally processed, largely or completely free 
of artificial ingredients, preservatives, and other non-naturally occurring 
chemicals, and are as near to their whole natural state as possible. Many of the 
Company's products are also made with "organic" ingredients which are grown 
without dependence upon artificial pesticides, chemicals or fertilizers. 
 
Tea and Beverage Products 
 
   The Company's tea products contain no artificial preservatives, are made from 
high-quality, natural ingredients and are generally offered in 20 and 40 count 
packages sold in grocery, natural foods and other retail stores. The Company 
develops high-quality, flavorful, natural products with attractive, colorful and 
thought-provoking packaging. The Company's products include Sleepytime(R), Lemon 
Zinger(R), Peppermint, Chamomile, Mandarin Orange Spice(R), Wild Cherry 
Blackberry, Cinnamon Apple Spice, Red Zinger(R), Raspberry Zinger(R), Tension 
Tamer(R), Country Peach Passion(R) and Wild Berry Zinger(R) herb teas, a line of 
green teas, a line of wellness teas, a line of organic teas, and a line of 
specialty black teas. 
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Snack Food Products 
 
         The Company manufactures, markets and sells a variety of potato and 
vegetable chips, organic tortilla style chips, pretzels, popcorn and potato 
chips under the Terra Chips, Gastons, Garden of Eatin', Little Bear, Boston 
Popcorn and Harry's Original names. 
 
Meat Alternative Products 
 
         The Company manufactures, distributes and markets a full line of soy 
protein meat alternative products under the Yves brand name including such well 
known products as The Good Dog(R) and The Good Slice(R), among others. Meat 
alternative products provide consumers with a meat alternative product that 
contains health benefits of soy but are void of the health concerns associated 
with traditional meat products. 
 
Medically-Directed and Weight Management Products 
 
         The Company's Estee and Featherweight businesses market and distribute 
a full line of sugar-free, fructose sweetened and low sodium products targeted 
towards diabetic and health conscious consumers and persons on medically- 
restricted diets. Under a license agreement, the Company manufactures, markets 
and sells Weight Watchers weight-loss and portion control dry grocery products. 
 
Specialty Cooking Oil Products 
 
         The Company's Hollywood Foods business markets a line of specialty 
cooking oils that are enhanced with Vitamin E to maintain freshness and quality. 
The Hollywood product line also includes carrot juice, mayonnaise and margarine. 
Hollywood products are primarily sold directly to supermarkets and other mass 
market merchandisers. 
 
Kosher Food Products 
 
         The Company's Kineret business markets and distributes a line of frozen 
and dry kosher food products. Kosher foods are products that are prepared in a 
manner consistent with Kosher dietary laws. 
 
Products 
 
         The Company's natural and organic food product lines consist of 
approximately 1,200 branded items and include non-dairy drinks (soy and rice 
milk), popcorn cakes, cookies, crackers, flour and baking mixes, hot and cold 
cereals, pasta, baby food, condiments, cooking oils, granolas, granola bars, 
cereal bars, canned and instant soups, chilis, packaged grain, nut butters and 
nutritional oils, as well as other food products. For both fiscal 2001 and 2000, 
non-dairy drinks accounted for approximately 14% of total net sales. 
 
         The Company's beverage and tea products consist of: Herb teas which are 
made from all natural ingredients and are offered in a wide variety of flavors. 
The Company's top-selling herb tea products include Sleepytime(R), Chamomile, 
Lemon Zinger(R), Peppermint, Raspberry Zinger(R), Tension Tamer(R), Wild Berry 
Zinger(R), Country Peach Passion(R), Mandarin Orange Spice(R) and Red Zinger(R); 
Green teas which includes Authentic Green Tea, Decaffeinated Green Tea, Emerald 
Gardens(R) Green Tea, Green Lemon Zinger, Honey Lemon Ginseng Green Tea and 
Misty Jasmine(TM) Green Tea; Wellness teas, which includes Sleepytime EXTRA, 
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Tension Tamer EXTRA, Detox A.M.(TM), Diet Partner, Echinacea, Echinacea Complete 
Care(TM), GingerEase(TM), GinkgoSharp(TM), Ginseng Energy(TM), LaxaTea(TM) and 
Mood Mender(TM) and Specialty Black Teas which are made exclusively from natural 
ingredients. Black tea products include Earl Grey, English Breakfast, Fast 
Lane(R), Vanilla Maple, Ceylon Apricot Ginger and Black Raspberry. For both 
fiscal 2001 and 2000, tea beverages accounted for approximately 24% of total net 
sales. 
 
         Yves meat alternative products consists of approximately 25 items 
including meat alternative choices among veggie burgers, veggie wieners, veggie 
slices, veggie entrees and veggie ground round. 
 
         Terra Chips natural food products consist of approximately 60 items 
comprised of varieties of potato chips, potato sticks (known as Frites(R)), 
sweet potato chips and other vegetable chips. 
 
         Garden of Eatin' natural food products substantially consist of a 
variety of organic tortilla chip products. 
 
         Boston Popcorn and Harry's products consist of approximately 40 
varieties of popcorn, potato chips, tortilla chips and other snack food items. 
 
         The Company's principal Hollywood products are safflower, canola, and 
peanut oils, and carrot juice. Hollywood cooking oils are enhanced with Vitamin 
E. 
 
         The Estee line of products consists of sugar-free and fructose 
sweetened food products. 
 
         Kineret offers a line of kosher frozen food products under the Kineret 
and Kosherific labels. The Kineret products include fish products, potato 
pancakes, blintzes, challah bread, pastry dough, and assorted other food 
products. Recently, the Company introduced a line of dry grocery products for 
Passover. 
 
         The Company continuously evaluates its existing products for taste, 
nutritional value and cost and makes improvements where possible. The Company 
will discontinue products or stock keeping units when sales of those items do 
not warrant further production. 
 
New Product Initiatives Through Research and Development 
 
         The Company considers research and development of new products to be a 
significant part of its overall philosophy and is committed to developing 
high-quality products. A team of professional product developers works with a 
sensory technologist to test product prototypes with consumers. The research and 
development department incorporates product ideas from all areas of the Company 
in order to formulate new products. In addition to developing new products, the 
research and development department routinely reformulates and revises existing 
products. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, amounts 
spent for Company-sponsored research and development activities were 
approximately $1.5 million each year. 
 
Sales and Distribution 
 
         The Company's products are sold in all 50 states and in approximately 
50 countries. Certain of the Company's product lines have seasonality 
fluctuations (e.g. the Company's hot tea products, baking and cereal products 
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and soup sales are stronger in cold months while its snack food product lines 
are stronger in the warmer months). Quarterly fluctuations in our sales volume 
and operating results are due to a number of factors relating to our business, 
including the timing of trade promotions, advertising and consumer promotions 
and other factors, such as seasonality, inclement weather and unanticipated 
increases in labor, commodity, energy, insurance or other operating costs. The 
impact on sales volume and operating results due to the timing and extent of 
these factors can significantly impact our business. 
 
         A majority of the products marketed by the Company are sold through 
independent food distributors. Over half of these sales orders are received from 
third-party food brokers. Over the past few years, the Company has been 
increasing its direct sales force for sales into natural food stores and 
reducing its reliance on food brokers. Food brokers act as agents for the 
Company within designated territories, usually on a non-exclusive basis, and 
receive commissions. Food distributors purchase products from the Company for 
resale to retailers. Because food distributors take title to the products upon 
purchase, product pricing decisions on sales of the Company's products by the 
distributors are generally made in their sole discretion, although the Company 
may participate in product pricing during promotional periods. 
 
         The Company's customer base consists principally of mass-market 
merchandisers, natural food distributors, supermarkets, drug store chains, club 
stores and grocery wholesalers. In the last year, growth of natural and organic 
foods has shifted from the natural food channel to the grocery channels as 
mainstream grocery distributors and retailers provide these products to meet 
consumer demand and awareness. Two of the Company's distributors, United Natural 
Foods and Tree of Life, accounted for approximately 18% and 17%, respectively, 
of net sales for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 and 17% and 18%, 
respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2000 and 18% each during the year 
ended June 30, 1999. Net sales to export customers account for approximately 
less than 5% of total net sales for each of the three years ended June 30, 2001. 
 
Marketing 
 
         The Company uses a mix of trade and consumer promotions, as well as 
advertising, to market its products. The Company uses trade advertising and 
promotion, including placement fees, cooperative advertising and feature 
advertising in distribution catalogs. The Company also utilizes advertising and 
sales promotion expenditures via national and regional consumer promotion 
through television and magazine advertising, couponing and other trial use 
programs. During the past two quarters of fiscal 2001 and in the coming fiscal 
year, the Company expects to invest in consumer spending and to enhance brand 
equity while closely monitoring its trade spending. These consumer spending 
categories include, but are not limited to, consumer advertising using radio and 
print, coupons, direct mailing programs, and other forms of promotions. There is 
no guarantee that these promotional investments in consumer spending will be 
successful, and as the Company attempts to monitor its trade spending and 
increase consumer awareness, there may be a period of higher costs. 
 
Manufacturing Facilities 
 
         The Company manages and operates five manufacturing facilities located 
throughout the United States.  These facilities are located and produce the 
following product lines:  Celestial Seasonings(R), in Boulder, Colorado, 
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produces specialty teas, Terra Chips(R), in Brooklyn, New York, produces 
vegetable chips; Arrowhead Mills(R), in Hereford, Texas, produces hot and cold 
cereals, baked goods and meal cups; Deboles(R) pasta, in Shreveport, Louisiana, 
produces organic pasta; and Health Valley(R) in Irwindale, California, produces 
hot and cold cereals, baked goods, granola, granola bars, dry soups and other 
products under the Health Valley(R), Breadshop(R) and Casbah(R) labels. Outside 
the United States, we have one manufacturing facility in The Netherlands (that 
we acquired in January 2001 as part of the Fruit Chips B.V. acquisition) that 
produces snack foods and one manufacturing facility in Vancouver, British 
Columbia (that we acquired in connection with our acquisition of Yves Veggie 
Cuisine, Inc.) that produces soy-based meat alternative products. 
 
         The facilities in Brooklyn, New York and Irwindale, California are 
under operating leases through 2001 and 2004, respectively. We own the 
manufacturing facilities in Boulder, Colorado, Hereford, Texas, Shreveport, 
Louisiana, The Netherlands and Vancouver, British Columbia. For the years ended 
June 30, 2001 and 2000, approximately 51% and 55%, respectively, of our revenue 
was derived from products manufactured at our currently owned manufacturing 
facilities. 
 
         An interruption in or the loss of operations at one or more of these 
facilities or failure to maintain our labor force at one or more of these 
facilities could delay or postpone production of our products, which could have 
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial 
condition until we could secure an alternate source of supply. 
 
         We believe we have sufficient capacity in all of our facilities except 
for the Brooklyn, New York facility, which is currently at capacity. Since the 
fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the demand for Terra Chips products has exceeded 
the production capacity of our Brooklyn, New York facility. We are pursuing 
additional sources of supply to alleviate these ongoing capacity restraints, 
including the addition of a new co-packer that began producing our products in 
October 2000, the expected opening of a new Moonachie, New Jersey production 
facility in the fall of 2001 and the production of certain Terra products at our 
Netherlands facility. There can be no assurance that any such alternate source 
of supply will meet expected demand. 
 
         Furthermore, there can be no assurance that the current power situation 
in California, or similar situations which may arise in other states, would not 
adversely affect our business. Also, any work stoppage or disruption at that 
facility or any of our other facilities could materially harm our business. 
 
Suppliers of Ingredients and Packaging 
 
         The Company's natural and organic ingredients and packaging are 
obtained from various sources of suppliers, located principally in the United 
States. However, certain of our packaging and products are sourced from the Far 
East. 
 
         The Company's tea ingredients are purchased from numerous foreign and 
domestic manufacturers, importers and growers, with the majority of those 
purchases occurring outside of the United States. 
 
         The Company maintains long-term relationships with most of its 
suppliers. Purchase arrangements with ingredient suppliers are generally made 
annually and in U.S. currency. Purchases are made through purchase orders or 
contracts, and price, delivery terms and product specifications vary. 
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         The Company's organic and botanical purchasers visit major suppliers 
around the world annually to procure ingredients and to assure quality by 
observing production methods and providing product specifications. The Company 
performs laboratory analysis on incoming ingredient shipments for the purpose of 
assuring that they meet the Company's quality standards and those of the U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") and/or in accordance with the California 
Organic Foods Act of 1990. 
 
         The Company's ability to ensure a continuing supply of ingredients at 
competitive prices depends on many factors beyond its control, such as foreign 
political situations, embargoes, changes in national and world economic 
conditions, currency fluctuations, forecasting adequate need of seasonal raw 
material ingredients and unfavorable climatic conditions. The Company takes 
steps intended to lessen the risk of an interruption of botanical supplies, 
including identification of alternative sources and maintenance of appropriate 
inventory levels. The Company has, in the past, maintained sufficient supplies 
for its ongoing operations. 
 
Co-Packed Product Base 
 
         During fiscal 2001, approximately 49% (compared with 45% at June 30, 
2000) of the Company's revenue was derived from products manufactured at 
independent co-packers. Currently, independent food manufacturers, who are 
referred to in our industry as co-packers, manufacture many of Hain's product 
lines. These product lines include our Alba(R), Estee(R), Garden of Eatin'(R), 
Hain Pure Foods(R), Kineret(R), Little Bear Organic Foods(R), Terra Chips(R), 
Westbrae(R), and Westsoy(R) product lines. 
 
         The Company presently obtains: 
 
         -     all of our requirements for non-dairy beverages from five co- 
               packers, all of which are under contract; 
 
         -     all of our requirements for rice cakes from one co-packer; 
 
         -     all of our cooking oils from one co-packer, which is under 
               contract; 
 
         -     principally all of our tortilla chips from two suppliers, one of 
               which is under contract; 
 
         -     all of our requirements for Terra's Yukon Gold line from one 
               supplier, which is under contract; and 
 
         -     the requirements for our canned soups from one supplier, which is 
                  under contract. 
 
         In addition, Heinz manufactures the Earth's Best baby food products for 
the Company under contract. The loss of one or more co-packers, or our failure 
to retain co-packers for newly acquired products or brands, could delay or 
postpone production of our products, which could have a material adverse effect 
on our business, results of operations and financial condition until such time 
as an alternate source could be secured, which may be on less favorable terms. 
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Trademarks 
 
         The Company's trademarks and brand names for the product lines referred 
to herein are registered in the United States and a number of foreign countries 
and the Company intends to keep these filings current and seek protection for 
new trademarks to the extent consistent with business needs. The Company also 
copyrights certain of its artwork and package designs. The Company owns the 
trademarks for the principal products, including Arrowhead Mills, Bearitos, 
Breadshop's, Casbah, Celestial Seasonings, DeBoles, Earth's Best, Estee, Garden 
of Eatin', Hain Pure Foods, Health Valley, Kineret, Little Bear Organic Foods, 
Nile Spice, Terra, Westbrae, Westsoy and Yves. The Company sells Weight Watchers 
products pursuant to licenses from Heinz. Celestial has trademarks for most of 
its best-selling brands, including Sleepytime, Lemon Zinger, Mandarin Orange 
Spice, Red Zinger, Wild Berry Zinger, Tension Tamer, Country Peach Passion, 
Raspberry Zinger and Gingko Sharp. 
 
         The Company believes that brand awareness is a significant component in 
a consumer's decision to purchase one product over another in the highly 
competitive food and beverage industry. Our failure to continue to sell our 
products under our established brand names could have a material adverse effect 
on our business, results of operations and financial condition. The Company 
believes that its trademarks and trade names are significant to the marketing 
and sale of the Company's products and that the inability to utilize certain of 
these names could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, 
results of operations and financial condition. 
 
Competition 
 
         The Company operates in highly competitive geographic and product 
markets, and some of the Company's markets are dominated by competitors with 
greater resources. The Company cannot be certain that it could successfully 
compete for sales to distributors or stores that purchase from larger, more 
established companies that have greater financial, managerial, sales and 
technical resources. In addition, the Company competes for limited retailer 
shelf space for its products. Larger competitors, such as mainstream food 
companies including General Mills, Nestle S.A., Kraft Foods, Groupe Danone, 
Kellogg Company and Sara Lee Corporation also may be able to benefit from 
economies of scale, pricing advantages or the introduction of new products that 
compete with the Company's products. Retailers also market competitive products 
under their own private labels. 
 
         The beverage market for both tea and soy beverages are large and highly 
competitive. Competitive factors in the tea industry include product quality and 
taste, brand awareness among consumers, variety of specialty tea flavors, 
interesting or unique product names, product packaging and package design, 
supermarket and grocery store shelf space, alternative distribution channels, 
reputation, price, advertising and promotion. Celestial currently competes in 
the specialty tea market segment which consists of herb tea, green tea, wellness 
tea and specialty black tea. Celestial's specialty herb tea products, like other 
specialty tea products, are priced higher than most commodity black tea 
products. 
 
         Celestial's principal competitors on a national basis in the specialty 
teas market segment are Thomas J. Lipton Company, a division of Unilever PLC, 
and R.C. Bigelow, Inc. Unilever has substantially greater financial resources 
than the Company. Additional competitors include a number of regional 
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specialty tea companies. There may be potential entrants which are not currently 
in the specialty tea market who may have substantially greater financial 
resources than the Company. Private label competition in the specialty tea 
category is currently minimal. 
 
         The soy beverage market has shown phenomenal growth over the past 
several years. A statement by the FDA endorsing the heart healthy benefits of 
soy in October 1999 spurred the growth in both the aseptic and refrigerated 
segments. Aseptic soy milk is the more mature product category of the two and in 
the past eighteen months, additional larger competitors entered the category but 
have since exited the category after unsuccessful regional launches. Westsoy has 
taken advantage of the shelf space which became available and continues to be 
the number one and fastest growing brand of aseptic soymilk in the grocery and 
natural channels. 
 
         The refrigerated market is primarily driven by one brand, Silk, which 
is owned by White Wave and holds a significant share of refrigerated soymilk 
space through its strong national distribution system. The Company's 
refrigerated Westsoy product is specifically being targeted to accounts that 
agree to partner with us in strong soy milk markets that distribute both aseptic 
and refrigerated products. 
 
         In the future the Company's competitors may introduce other products 
that compete with its products and these competitive products may have an 
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 
 
Government Regulation 
 
         The Company and its manufacturers, brokers, distributors and co-packers 
are subject to extensive regulation by federal, state and local authorities that 
affect our business. The federal agencies governing our business include the 
Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, The Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, the 
United States Department of Agriculture, or USDA and the Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration, OSHA. These agencies regulate, among other things, the 
production, sale, safety, advertising, labeling of and ingredients used in our 
products. Under various statutes these agencies prescribe the requirements and 
establish the standards for quality, purity and labeling. Among other 
requirements, the USDA, in certain circumstances must approve our products, 
including a review of the manufacturing processes and facilities used to produce 
these products before these products can be marketed in the United States. In 
addition, advertising of our business is subject to regulation by the FTC. The 
Company's activities are also regulated by state agencies as well as county and 
municipal authorities. We are also subject to the laws of the foreign 
jurisdictions in which we manufacture and sell our products. 
 
         The USDA has adopted regulations with respect to organic labeling and 
certification which became effective February 28, 2001 (with an 18-month 
compliance period for existing products). The Company is in the process of 
evaluating our level of compliance with these regulations. In addition, on 
January 19, 2001, the FDA proposed new policy guidelines regarding the labeling 
of genetically modified foods. The FDA's proposal is in a comment period. These 
rules, if adopted, could require us to modify the labeling of our products, 
which could affect the sales of our products and thus harm our business. 
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         Furthermore, new government laws and regulations may be introduced in 
the future that could result in additional compliance costs, seizures, 
confiscation, recall or monetary fines, any of which could prevent or inhibit 
the development, distribution and sale of our products. If we fail to comply 
with applicable laws and regulations, we may be subject to civil remedies, 
including fines, injunctions, recalls or seizures, as well as potential criminal 
sanctions, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results 
of operations and financial condition. 
 
         In addition, the Company manufactures and sells dietary supplements 
through our Celestial subsidiary which are subject to the Dietary Supplement 
Health and Education Act of 1994 or DSHEA, which went into effect in March 1999. 
DSHEA defines dietary supplements as a new category of food, separate from 
conventional food. DSHEA requires specific nutritional labeling requirements for 
dietary supplements and permits substantiated, truthful and non-misleading 
statements of nutritional support to be made in labeling, such as statements 
describing general well-being resulting from consumption of a dietary 
ingredient, or the role of a nutrient or dietary ingredient in affecting or 
maintaining a structure or function of the body. 
 
Independent Certification 
 
         The Company relies on independent certification agencies to certify our 
products as "organic" or "kosher," to differentiate our products in natural and 
specialty food categories. The loss of any independent certifications could 
adversely affect the Company's market position as a natural and specialty food 
company, which could have a material adverse effect on its business, results of 
operations and financial condition. 
 
         The Company complies with the requirements of independent organizations 
or certification authorities in order to label our product as certified. For 
example, we can lose our "organic" certification if a plant becomes contaminated 
with non-organic materials, or if not properly cleaned after a production run. 
In addition, all raw materials must be certified organic. Similarly, we can lose 
our "kosher" certification if a plant and raw materials do not meet the 
requirements of the appropriate kosher supervision organization, such as The 
Union of Orthodox Jewish Congregations, The Organized Kashruth Laboratories, 
"KOF-K" Kosher Supervision, Kosher Overseers Associated of America and Upper 
Midwest Kashruth. 
 
Item 2.           Properties. 
 
         The Company's corporate headquarters are located in approximately 
17,000 square feet of leased office space located at 50 Charles Lindbergh 
Boulevard, Uniondale, New York. The Company will be relocating its corporate 
headquarters in November 2001 to 58 South Service Road, Melville, New York, 
11747, occupying approximately 35,000 square feet. Its current lease will be 
terminated without penalty. This new lease runs through November 2012 with a 
current annual rental of approximately $1.3 million 
 
         The Company owns a manufacturing and office facility in Boulder, 
Colorado, built in 1990 on 42 acres of Company-owned land. The facility has 
approximately 167,000 square feet, of which 50,000 square feet is office space 
and 117,000 square feet is manufacturing space. 
 
         The Company leases 60,000 square feet of warehouse space in Boulder, 
Colorado which is used for the storage and shipment of its tea and beverage 
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products. The lease expires in 2004, and provides for a current annual rental 
of approximately $500,000. 
 
         The Company leases 375,000 square feet of warehouse space in a building 
located in Ontario, California. The lease expires June 30, 2007 with renewal 
options and provides for a minimum annual rental of approximately $1.3 million. 
This facility serves as one of the Company's West Coast distribution centers for 
principally all of the Company's product lines. 
 
         The Company leases 27,000 square feet of space in Brooklyn, New York 
through December 2001. This facility is used to manufacture and distribute its 
Terra vegetable chip products. The lease provides for minimum annual rentals of 
$225,000. In January 2001, the Company purchased a 75,000 square foot 
manufacturing facility in Moonachie, New Jersey to manufacture its Terra 
products. This facility is expected to open and become operational in the fall 
of 2001. 
 
         The Company operates a 7,000 square foot warehouse and distribution 
center located in East Hills, New York which it utilizes to distribute its 
frozen kosher food products. This lease, which provides for annual rental of 
approximately $55,000, expires in fiscal 2005. 
 
         As part of the NNG acquisition, the Company extended the then existing 
leases of Health Valley to provide 180,000 square feet of manufacturing, 
warehouse and distribution space in Irwindale, California. These leases provide 
for combined annual rentals of approximately $900,000 and expire June 2004. 
 
         The Company owns and operates two other manufacturing and distribution 
centers in Hereford, Texas and Shreveport, Louisiana for certain of its natural 
food product lines. Outside the United States, the Company owns and operates a 
90,000 square foot manufacturing facility in The Netherlands that produces snack 
food, including certain Terra products, and one 53,000 square foot manufacturing 
facility in Vancouver, British Columbia that produces soy- based meat substitute 
products. 
 
         In addition to the foregoing distribution facilities operated by the 
Company, the Company also utilizes bonded public warehouses from which it makes 
deliveries to customers. 
 
Item 3.           Legal Proceedings. 
 
         On May 5, 1995, a purported stockholder of Celestial filed a lawsuit, 
Schwartz v. Celestial Seasonings, Inc. et al., in the United States District 
Court for the District of Colorado (Civil Action Number: 95-K-1045), in 
connection with disclosures by Celestial concerning Celestial's license 
agreement with Perrier Group of America, Inc. which was terminated on January 
1, 1995. In addition to Celestial, the complaint named as defendants certain 
of Celestial's then present and former directors and officers, PaineWebber, 
Inc., Shearson/Lehman Brothers, Inc., and Vestar/Celestial Investment Limited 
Partnership. The complaint, which was pled as a class action on behalf of 
persons who acquired Celestial's common stock from July 12, 1993 through May 
18, 1994, sought money damages from Celestial and the other defendants for the 
class in the amount of their loss on their investment in Celestial's common 
stock, punitive damages, costs and expenses of the action, and such other 
relief as the court may order. 
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         On November 6, 1995, the federal district court granted a motion by 
Celestial and the other defendants to dismiss the case. On September 5, 1997, 
however, the court of appeals reversed the decision of the district court and 
returned the case to the district court for further proceedings. The case was 
certified as a class action. 
 
         On November 4, 1999, Celestial reached a settlement with the plaintiff, 
which resulted in a pre-tax charge of $1.2 million during Celestial's fourth 
quarter of its fiscal year ending 1999. The settlement was subject to a 
completion of a definitive settlement stipulation to be filed in the district 
court and court approval of the settlement. On April 25, 2000, the settlement 
was approved by the courts. The settlement has become final. The Company does 
not expect any additional shareholder lawsuits related to this matter. 
 
         From time to time, the Company is involved in litigation incidental to 
the conduct of its business. In the opinion of management, disposition of 
pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's 
business, results of operations or financial condition. 
 
Item 4            Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders. 
 
None. 
                                     PART II 
 
Item 5.           Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder 
                  Matters. 
 
         The outstanding shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of 
the Company are traded on Nasdaq's National Market System (under the ticker 
symbol HAIN). The following table sets forth the reported high and low closing 
prices for the Common Stock for each fiscal quarter from July 1, 1999 through 
September 21, 2001. 
 
 
                                                Common Stock 
                            ---------------------------------------------------- 
                                     Fiscal 2001               Fiscal 2000 
                            ---------------------------- ----------------------- 
                               High                Low         High       Low 
                            --------------  ----------  ----------- ---------- 
First Quarter                     $ 37 1/2    $ 26 5/8    $ 28 7/16   $21 3/16 
Second Quarter                    39 11/16          27      26 7/16     22 1/4 
Third Quarter                           36    27 13/16       37 1/8    21 1/16 
Fourth Quarter                    27 11/16          22     36 11/16     22 3/4 
July 1 - September 21, 2001             26      18 1/4 
 
         As of September 21, 2001, there were 398 holders of record of the 
Company's Common Stock. 
 
         The Company has not paid any dividends on its Common Stock to date. The 
Company intends to retain all future earnings for use in the development of its 
business and does not anticipate declaring or paying any dividends in the 
foreseeable future. The payment of all dividends will be at the discretion of 
the Company's Board of Directors and will depend on, among other things, future 
earnings, operations, capital requirements, contractual restrictions, including 
restrictions within the Company's Senior Revolving Credit Facility, the general 
financial condition of the Company and general business conditions. 
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Item 6.           Selected Financial Data. 
 
         The following information has been summarized from the Company's 
financial statements and should be read in conjunction with such financial 
statements and related notes thereto (in thousands, except per share amounts): 
 
 
                                                Year Ended June 30 
                          ------------------------------------------------------ 
                              2001       2000        1999      1998     1997 
                          ----------- -----------  --------- --------- --------- 
Operating results: 
Net sales                    $412,880   $ 403,543   $315,820  $206,450  $144,392 
Income (loss) before 
 extraordinary item and 
 cumulative change in 
 accounting principle          23,589    (11,403)     13,517    11,390     6,733 
Extraordinary item                  -     (1,940)          -   (1,342)         - 
Cumulative change in 
 accounting principle               -     (3,754)          -         -         - 
                          ----------- -----------  --------- --------- --------- 
Net income (loss)            $ 23,589   $(17,097)   $ 13,517  $ 10,048  $  6,733 
                          =========== ===========  ========= ========= ========= 
Basic earnings per common share: 
 
Income (loss) before 
 extraordinary item and 
 cumulative change in 
 accounting principle        $    .71   $   (.41)   $    .56   $   .55   $   .36 
Extraordinary item                  -       (.07)          -     (.06)         - 
Cumulative change in 
 accounting principle               -       (.13)          -         -         - 
                          ----------- -----------  --------- --------- --------- 
Net income (loss)            $    .71   $   (.61)   $    .56   $   .49   $   .36 
                          =========== ===========  ========= ========= ========= 
Diluted earnings per common share (a): 
 
Income (loss) before 
 extraordinary item and 
 cumulative change in 
 accounting principle        $    .68   $   (.41)   $    .51   $   .50   $   .35 
Extraordinary item                  -       (.07)          -     (.06)         - 
Cumulative change in 
  accounting principle              -       (.13)          -         -         - 
                          ----------- -----------  --------- --------- --------- 
Net income (loss)            $    .68   $   (.61)   $    .51   $   .44   $   .35 
                          =========== ===========  ========= ========= ========= 
Financial Position: 
 
Working Capital              $ 92,312   $  89,750   $ 37,983   $37,669   $15,070 
Total Assets                  461,693     416,017    362,669   170,938   107,266 
Long-term Debt                 10,718       5,622    141,138    27,311    16,829 
Stockholders' Equity          396,653     351,724    164,489   104,567    68,110 
 
(a) As a result of the net loss for the year ended June 30, 2000, diluted 
earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as the effects of 
stock options and warrants are not included as the results would be 
antidilutive. 
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Item 7.           Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
                  and Results of Operations. 
 
General 
 
         On May 30, 2000, Hain completed a merger (the "Merger") with Celestial 
by issuing 10.3 million shares of Hain common stock in exchange for all of the 
outstanding common stock of Celestial. The Merger was accounted for as a pooling 
of interests and, accordingly, all prior period financial statements of Hain 
were restated to include the results of operations, financial position and cash 
flows of Celestial. 
 
         The Company made the following acquisitions during the three years 
ended June 30, 2001: 
 
         On July 1, 1998, the Company acquired the following businesses and 
brands from The Shansby Group and other investors: Arrowhead Mills, DeBoles 
Nutritional Foods, Terra Chips, and Garden of Eatin', Inc. 
 
         On May 18, 1999, the Company acquired NNG. NNG is a manufacturer and 
marketer of premium natural and organic food products primarily under its Health 
Valley, Breadshop's and Sahara brands. 
 
         On January 18, 2001, the Company acquired Fruit Chips B.V., a 
Netherlands based company, who manufactures, distributes and markets low fat 
fruit, vegetable and potato chips. 
 
         On June 8, 2001, the Company acquired Yves Veggie Cuisine, Inc. and its 
subsidiaries ("Yves").  Yves is a manufacturer and marketer of premium soy 
protein meat alternative food products. 
 
         All of the foregoing acquisitions, excluding Celestial, ("the 
acquisitions" or "acquired businesses") have been accounted for as purchases. 
Consequently, the operations of the acquired businesses are included in the 
results of operations from their respective dates of acquisition. Each of the 
acquired businesses markets and sells natural food products unless otherwise 
noted. 
 
Results of Operations 
 
Fiscal 2001 Compared to fiscal 2000 
 
         Net sales for fiscal 2001 were $412.9 million, an increase of 2.3% over 
net sales of $403.5 million in the year ended June 30, 2000. On a year-to- year 
basis, our net sales were affected by a slowing U.S. economy, changes in the 
selling price per unit billing arrangements on certain products and, redirection 
of management focus on certain product lines (supplements, certain private label 
categories and other non-core food product categories). On a pro forma 
comparable basis, net sales increased by $23.9 million or 6.1% with the growth 
primarily coming from our Westsoy, Health Valley, Terra Chips and Garden of 
Eatin' brands. 
 
         Gross profit for 2001 increased by $2.1 million to $178.2 million 
(43.2% of net sales) as compared to $176.1 million (43.6% of net sales). The 
increase in gross profit dollars was a direct result of increased sales levels 
in 2001. The decline in gross profit percentage was predominantly due to: 
inventory write-offs of approximately $1.9 million associated with the 
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Company's decision to write-off certain nonperforming inventory SKU's as a 
result of its decision to move and consolidate warehouses and upgrade the 
Company's management information system within its distribution infrastructure; 
approximately $.5 million associated with the Company's consolidation and move 
of one of its distribution facilities into its new Ontario, California 
distribution facility that opened in September 2000; approximately $1.2 million 
of higher fuel costs associated with freight cost and approximately a $1.5 
million decrease associated with the aforementioned change in the billing 
arrangements offset by $4 million of additional writeoffs and reserves in the 
2000 period associated with the supplement line. 
 
         Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by approximately 
$15.7 million to $132.4 million (32.1% of net sales) in 2001 as compared to 
$148.1 (36.7% of net sales) in 2000. The dollar decrease is a combination of 
approximately $8 million of synergies realized resulting from the Celestial 
merger; approximately $4 million in lower trade and marketing costs (offset by 
the costs associated with realizing additional shelf space on the Terra brand); 
a $1.2 million nonrecurring charge incurred in the September 1999 period by 
Celestial and $2.5 million of lower other selling, general and administrative 
expense components. In the next fiscal year, the Company expects to invest in 
consumer spending and to enhance brand equity while closely monitoring its trade 
spending. These consumer spending categories include, but are not limited to, 
consumer advertising using radio and print, coupons, direct mailing programs, 
and other forms of promotions. There is no guarantee that these promotional 
investments in consumer spending will be successful, and as the Company attempts 
to monitor its trade spending and increase consumer awareness, there may be a 
period of higher costs. 
 
         Merger related charges amounted to $1 million for the year ended June 
30, 2001 as compared to $15.6 million during 2000. Merger related charges 
incurred in 2001 relate to certain employee costs associated with the Celestial 
Merger from May 2000. 
 
         During fiscal 2000, the Company recorded $4.9 million and $3.5 million 
of restructuring charges and an impairment of long-lived assets charge, 
respectively. There were no such charges during the year ended June 30, 2001. 
 
         Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets was both 
approximately $6.4 million during the year ended June 30, 2001 and 2000. 
 
         In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued 
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations, and 
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2001 with early adoption permitted for companies 
with fiscal years beginning after March 15, 2001, provided the first quarter 
financial statements have not been issued (the Company's first fiscal 2002 
quarter of September 30, 2001). Under the new rules, goodwill (and intangible 
assets deemed to have indefinite lives) will no longer be amortized but will be 
subject to an annual impairment test in accordance with the Statements. Other 
intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. 
 
         The Company will apply the new rules on accounting for goodwill and 
other intangible assets beginning in the first quarter of 2002. Application of 
the non-amortization provisions of the Statement is expected to result in 
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an approximate increase in net income within a range between $1.8 million to $3 
million (between $.05 to $.09 per share) per year. This initial estimate is 
subject to completion of certain purchase price valuation allocations from prior 
years acquisitions. During 2002, the Company will perform the first of the 
required impairment tests on goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as 
of July 1, 2001 and it is expected that such impairment test will not have an 
effect on the earnings and financial position of the Company. 
 
         Operating income increased to $38.4 million during June 2001 compared 
to a operating loss of $2.4 million in 2000. The increase of $40.8 million is 
due to increased gross profits, lower selling, general and administrative 
expenses and merger charges as well as no restructuring or impairment of asset 
charges that occurred in 2000. 
 
         Other income increased from $1.6 million in 2000 to $2.8 million in 
2001. The income in 2001 was primarily interest earned on higher cash balances 
as compared to 2000. The 2000 other income was a result of gains from sale of 
assets and marketable securities. 
 
         Interest and financing costs decreased from $6.7 million in 2000 to $.5 
million in 2001. The Company had minimal debt levels throughout 2001 (average 
debt to equity was below 2% for the year), as compared to 2000 whereby the 
average debt level for our then term loan facility was $57.7 million with an 
average interest rate of 8.22% 
 
         Income before income taxes, extraordinary item and cumulative change in 
accounting principle increased $48.2 million to $40.7 million in 2001 as 
compared to a pretax loss of $7.5 million in 2000. The increase is a result of 
the aforementioned increase in operating income, higher interest and other 
income and lower interest and finance costs. 
 
         During fiscal 2000, the Company recorded a $3.9 million (52%) tax 
provision on a pre-tax loss of $7.5 million as compared to a tax provision of 
$17.1 million (42%) on a pre-tax income of $40.7 million during 2001. The fiscal 
2000 tax expense, even though there was a pre-tax loss, was primarily a result 
of the add back of nondeductible merger and asset write-down charges. The tax 
rate of 42% in fiscal 2001 is higher than the statutory federal and state rates 
in effect primarily due to nondeductible goodwill amortization. 
 
Fiscal 2000 Compared to Fiscal 1999: 
 
         Net sales for fiscal 2000 were $403.5 million, an increase of 28% over 
net sales of $315.8 million. 81% of the increase was derived from net sales of 
acquired businesses or net sales resulting from licensing agreements entered 
into during the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999. The remainder of the increase was 
derived from internal growth, primarily from the non-dairy beverages of Westsoy, 
and Terra Chips. 
 
         Gross profit for 2000 increased by $29.4 million to $176.1 million 
(43.6% of net sales) as compared to $146.7 million (46.4% of net sales). The 
increase in gross profit dollars was a direct result of increased sales levels 
in 2000. The decline in gross profit percentage was due to a combination of 
changes in sales mix, additional write-offs and reserves associated with the 
previously announced decision to cease production of the 30-count supplement 
product line, as well as certain reserves related to expected returns of the 
60-count supplement product line, the write-off of 
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certain inventories, including raw materials and packaging, related to the 
Company's decision to discontinue certain items, inefficiencies within certain 
co-packers, additional freight costs incurred due to fuel surcharges assessed to 
the Company that were not passed onto customers and higher warehouse costs 
primarily a result of the transition to our new west coast consolidated 
warehouse. 
 
         Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by approximately 
$36.3 million to $148.1 million in 2000 as compared to $111.8 million in 1999. 
Such expenses, as a percentage of net sales, amounted to 36.7% in 2000 compared 
with 35.4% in 1999. The increase of 1.3% is due to: 2% of higher trade 
promotional expenses over expected amounts offset by approximately a 1% 
improvement in other selling, general and administrative component costs 
resulting from the realization of reduced administrative expenses from 
integration of certain operations of the acquired businesses within the 
Company's infrastructure. 
 
         During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company recorded charges 
of $15.6, $3.7 and $3.5 million, before taxes, related to: merger related 
charges associated with the Merger; costs for restructuring certain non-core 
businesses and the consolidation of warehouse and information systems within the 
Company's distribution and operating network; and impaired long-lived assets, 
principally goodwill and other long term assets associated with its supplement 
product line, respectively. Included in both the fiscal 2000 and 1999 periods 
within restructuring and other nonrecurring charges is a September 1999, $1.2 
million settlement agreement relating to a shareholder lawsuit (see Note 2 to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements). 
 
         The components of the $3.7 million restructuring charge are 
approximately $2.0 million of write-downs of fixed and other assets, $1.2 
million for lease exit and related incremental costs, $.2 million for severance 
and related benefits associated with the consolidation and closure of certain 
warehouses and streamlining certain business costs. 
 
         Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets increased from 
$4.8 million in 1999 to $6.3 million in fiscal 2000. The increase of $1.5 
million is attributable to goodwill and other intangibles (principally 
trademarks) in connection with the acquisitions during fiscal 1999 and 2000. 
 
         Operating income decreased from $28.9 million in 1999 to a loss of $2.4 
million in 2000. The decrease was due to the aforementioned decline in gross 
profit and increase in selling, general and administrative dollars along with 
the $22.8 million of merger, restructuring and impairment of long-lived asset 
charges, recorded during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, as well as increased 
amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets. 
 
         The Company's other income in fiscal 2000 (there was no other income in 
the comparable period) primarily resulted from gains on proceeds received from 
sale of assets ($.9 million) along with investment gains of $.7 million on 
marketable securities bought and sold during the second quarter of fiscal 2000. 
 
         Interest and finance costs increased from $6.4 million in 1999 to $6.7 
million in fiscal 2000. The increase of $.3 million was due to the debt incurred 
in connection with the fiscal 1999 acquisitions offset by the September 1999 and 
June 2000 $75 million and $44 million, respectively, repayments on this debt, as 
more fully described in Note 10 to the 
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Consolidated Financial Statements.  The infusion of equity has enabled the 
Company to achieve a debt to equity ratio of 2% at June 30, 2000. 
 
         Income before income taxes, extraordinary item and cumulative change in 
accounting principle decreased from $22.4 million in 1999 to a loss of $7.5 
million in 2000. This $30 million decrease is a result of the aforementioned 
decline in operating income offset by higher other income. 
 
         During fiscal 2000, the Company recorded a $3.9 million (52%) tax 
provision on a pre-tax loss of $7.5 million as compared to a tax provision of 
$8.9 million (40%) on a pre-tax income of $22.4 million during 1999. The fiscal 
2000 tax expense, even though there was a pre-tax loss, was primarily a result 
of the add back of nondeductible merger and asset write-down charges along with 
higher nondeductible goodwill amortization brought on by the 1999 acquisitions. 
 
Extraordinary charge 
 
         During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company recorded a $1.9 
million (net of tax benefit of $1.2 million) extraordinary charge related to the 
early extinguishment of the Company's existing credit facility and the write-off 
of the related debt financing costs. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
         In April 1998, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
issued Statement of Position 98-5, "Reporting Costs of Start-up Activities" 
("SOP 98-5"). SOP 98-5 became effective beginning on July 1, 1999, and required 
the start-up costs capitalized prior to such date to be written-off as a 
cumulative effect of an accounting change as of July 1, 1999. Any future 
start-up costs are to be expensed as incurred. Start up activities are broadly 
defined as those one time activities related to introducing a new product or 
service, conducting business in a new territory, conducting business with a new 
class of customer or commencing some new operation. In accordance with SOP 98-5, 
the Company recorded a one-time non-cash charge in the first quarter of fiscal 
2000 reflecting the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, in 
the amount of $3.8 million, net of tax benefit, representing such start-up costs 
capitalized as of the beginning of fiscal year 2000. 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
     The Company requires liquidity for working capital needs and debt service 
requirements. 
 
     The Company had working capital and a current ratio of $92.3 million and 
2.99 to 1, respectively, at June 30, 2001 as compared to $89.8 million and 2.69 
to 1, respectively, at June 30, 2000. During the years ended June 30, 2001 and 
2000, the Company's days sales outstanding and inventory turnover rate have 
remained consistent at approximately 35 days and 5.0 times, respectively. During 
the year ended June 30, 2001, the Company's cash and cash equivalents decreased 
by $11.7 million from 2000. The decrease was a result of cash provided by 
operations of $23 million (primarily a result of higher net income) and 
financing activities of $16.2 million (primarily proceeds from exercise of 
warrants and stock options) offset by cash flow used in investing activities of 
$51 million (acquisition of businesses and purchases of property, plant and 
equipment). 
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         In March 2001, the Company entered into a new $240 million Senior 
Revolving Credit Facility (the "Senior Credit Facility"). The Senior Credit 
Facility provides for a four year, $145 million revolving credit facility 
(initially this revolving facility is priced at LIBOR plus 1.00%) and a $95 
million 364-day facility (the 364-day facility is also initially priced at LIBOR 
plus 1.00%). The Senior Credit Facility is unsecured, but guaranteed by all 
current and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries of the Company. 
This Senior Credit Facility also includes customary affirmative and negative 
covenants for transactions of this nature. The Company's outstanding revolving 
credit loans under these facilities bears interest at a base rate (greater of 
the applicable prime rate or Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50% per annum) or, at the 
Company's option, the reserve adjusted LIBOR rate plus the applicable margin (as 
defined in the Senior Credit Facility). As of June 30, 2001, approximately $4.4 
million was borrowed under the revolving facility at 5.94%. 
 
         The Company believes its cash on hand of $26.6 million at June 30, 
2001, as well as cash flows from operations are sufficient to fund its working 
capital needs, anticipated capital expenditures, scheduled debt payments of $2.9 
million, other operating expenses, as well as provide liquidity to pay down the 
remaining merger related and restructuring accruals (aggregating $1.3 million) 
existing at June 30, 2001. The Company is currently investing its cash on hand 
in highly liquid short-term investments yielding approximately 4% interest. 
 
Supplementary Quarterly Financial Data: 
 
         Unaudited quarterly financial data (in thousands, except per share 
amounts) for fiscal 2001 and 2000 is summarized as follows: 
 
 
                                            Three Months Ended 
                            ------------------------------------------------- 
                           September 30, December 31,  March 31,  June 30, 
                              2000          2000        2001        2001 
                            ----------- ------------- ---------- ----------- 
Net sales                      $ 93,653      $116,025   $103,909    $ 99,293 
Gross profit                     40,408        53,728     42,780      41,321 
Merger costs                      1,032             -          -           - 
Operating income                 10,517        17,028      6,561       4,273 
Income before income taxes       11,043        17,699      7,313       4,616 
Net income                     $  6,405      $ 10,266    $ 4,241    $  2,677 
Basic earnings per 
 common share                  $    .20      $    .31    $   .13    $    .08 
Diluted earnings per 
 common share                  $    .19      $    .30    $   .12    $    .08 
 
         In August 2001, the Company announced that while fourth quarter fiscal 
2001 net sales grew 13% over the corresponding period, higher marketing and 
advertising expenditures, primarily related to the Westsoy brand, higher trade 
promotion costs (placement cost) associated with the Terra brand and higher 
production costs associated with the Terra Chip manufacturing process adversely 
impacted earnings growth in the fourth quarter. 
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                                            Three Months Ended 
                           ---------------------------------------------------- 
                            September 30,  December 31, March 31,    June 30, 
                                1999          1999        2000        2000 
                            -------------  ----------- ----------- ------------ 
Net sales                       $  87,940    $ 116,675   $ 111,916    $  87,012 
Gross profit                       33,331       56,203      54,614       31,978 
Merger costs                            -            -           -       15,633 
Restructuring and other 
 non-recurring charges              1,200            -           -        3,733 
Impairment of long- 
 lived assets                           -            -           -        3,468 
Income (loss) before 
 income taxes, 
 extraordinary item 
 and cumulative change 
 in accounting principle          (2,300)       14,639      14,541     (34,383) 
Extraordinary item                      -            -           -      (1,940) 
Cumulative change in 
 accounting principle             (3,754)            -           -            - 
Net income (loss)             $   (4,966)    $   8,501   $   8,637    $(29,269) 
Basic earnings (loss)per 
 common share before 
 extraordinary item 
 and cumulative change in 
 accounting principle         $     (.05)    $     .30    $    .30    $   (.93) 
Diluted earnings (loss) 
 per common share before 
 extraordinary item and 
 cumulative change in 
 accounting principle         $     (.05)    $     .28    $    .28    $   (.93) 
 
         During the three month period ended June 30, 2000, in addition to the 
merger costs, restructuring and other non-recurring charges and impairment of 
long-lived assets, the Company recorded an additional $2.5 million of costs 
associated with Celestial's previously announced decision to cease production of 
its 30-count supplement product line at September 30, 1999, as well as certain 
reserves related to expected returns of the Company's 60- count supplement 
sales. These decisions were primarily related to a management change along with 
prevailing market conditions affecting the supplement industry. 
 
         Shortly after the Merger was consummated on May 30, 2000, the Company 
initiated a program to reduce the amount of tea inventory in the hands of 
distributors by changing Celestial's trade practices. During the fourth quarter 
of fiscal 2000, this program reduced Celestial's revenue by an estimated 450,000 
cases, or approximately $9.6 million, resulting in lower operating profit by 
approximately $4.8 million. In addition, during the period after announcement of 
the Merger, an environment of significant uncertainty regarding integration of 
the companies existed within the Company's sales organization, as well as within 
the Company's customer base. The Company believes that this uncertainty further 
impacted revenue from non- core brands thereby reducing operating profit by 
approximately $2.3 million. The Company was also impacted by lower revenues from 
Earth's Best products 
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as a result of the lack of availability of certain ingredients. The Company 
anticipated resolving this issue by early June 2000, however, the problems were 
not fully resolved until shortly after fiscal 2000 year-end. 
 
         In addition, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company 
incurred approximately $8.3 million of trade promotional expenses over expected 
amounts. These costs were primarily due to: (1) a concerted effort to gain 
additional distribution, (2) increased deductions by customers in the face of 
our announced merger (3) a higher level of actual spending over amounts 
estimated and accrued by Celestial at March 31, 2000, and (4) the implementation 
of a new trade promotion tracking system at Celestial which has accelerated the 
availability of information and allowed the Company to better match these costs 
with related revenues. Gross profit margin was negatively impacted by 
approximately $3.1 million primarily due to: (1) a change in sales mix, (2) the 
write-off of certain inventories, including raw materials and packaging, related 
to the Company's decision to discontinue certain items, (3) inefficiencies 
within certain co-packers, (4) additional freight costs incurred due to fuel 
surcharges assessed to the Company, that were not passed onto customers and (5) 
higher warehouse costs primarily due to increased inventory levels in 
anticipation of a new distribution agreement for the Company's medically 
directed products together with the transition to the Company's new West Coast 
consolidated warehouse. 
 
         The supplementary quarterly financial data for the year ended June 30, 
2000, includes the results of operations of Hain and Celestial for each quarter 
presented. The quarter ended September 30, 1999, however, includes the results 
of operations of Celestial two times as a result of the need to change 
Celestial's year end to be the same as that of Hain. Consequently, the quarter 
ended September 30, 1999 includes the following duplicated information for 
Celestial: net sales of $19.9 million after reduction for 30- count supplement 
returns of $5.1 million; gross profit of $5.3 million after cost of sales 
charges of $4.0 million for the 30-count supplement product line; the $1.2 
million charge related to the shareholder lawsuit settlement, and net loss of 
$3.9 million. 
 
Seasonality 
 
         Our tea business consists primarily of manufacturing and marketing hot 
tea products and as a result its quarterly results of operations reflect 
seasonal trends resulting from increased demand for its hot tea products in the 
cooler months of the year. Quarterly fluctuations in our sales volume and 
operating results are due to a number of factors relating to our business, 
including the timing of trade promotions, advertising and consumer promotions 
and other factors, such as seasonality, inclement weather and unanticipated 
increases in labor, commodity, energy, insurance or other operating costs. The 
impact on sales volume and operating results, due to the timing and extent of 
these factors, can significantly impact our business. For these reasons, you 
should not rely on our quarterly operating results as indications of future 
performance. In some future periods, our operating results may fall below the 
expectations of securities analysts and investors, which could harm our 
business. 
 
Inflation 
 
         The Company does not believe that inflation had a significant impact on 
the Company's results of operations for the periods presented. 
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Item 7A.          Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. 
 
Market Risk 
 
         The principal market risks (i.e. the risk of loss arising from adverse 
changes in market rates and prices) to which the Company is exposed are: 
 
         o        interest rates on debt and cash equivalents, and 
         o        foreign exchange rates, generating translation and transaction 
                  gains and losses. 
 
Interest Rates 
 
         The Company centrally manages its debt and cash equivalents considering 
investment opportunities and risks, tax consequences and overall financing 
strategies. The Company's cash equivalents consist primarily of commercial paper 
and obligations of U.S. Government agencies. Assuming year-end 2001 variable 
debt and cash equivalent levels, a one-point change in interest rates would not 
have a material impact on net interest income. 
 
Foreign Operations 
 
         Operating in international markets involves exposure to movements in 
currency exchange rates, which are volatile at times. The economic impact of 
currency exchange rate movements on the Company is complex because such changes 
are often linked to variability in real growth, inflation, interest rates, 
governmental actions and other factors. These changes, if material, could cause 
the Company to adjust its financing and operating strategies. Consequently, 
isolating the effect of changes in currency does not incorporate these other 
important economic factors. The Company's net sales to foreign customers 
represented less than 5% of total net sales for each of the three years ended 
June 30, 2001 and its results of operations during fiscal 2001 were not 
significant to the consolidated results of operations. 
 
Item 8.           Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 
 
         The following consolidated financial statements of The Hain Celestial 
Group, Inc. and subsidiaries are included in Item 8: 
 
         Consolidated Balance Sheets - June 30, 2001 and 2000 
 
         Consolidated Statements of Operations - Years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 
         and 1999 
 
         Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 
         and 1999 
 
         Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity - Years ended June 30, 
         2001, 2000 and 1999 
 
         Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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The following consolidated financial statement schedule of The Hain Celestial 
Group, Inc. and subsidiaries is included in Item 14 (a): 
 
                  Schedule II               Valuation and qualifying accounts 
 
All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting 
regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the 
related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted. 
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Report of Independent Auditors 
 
The Stockholders and Board of Directors 
The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Hain 
Celestial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the 
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2001. Our audits 
also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 
14(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements and schedule based on our audits. We did not audit the 
financial statements and schedule of Celestial Seasonings, Inc. prior to its 
restatement for the 2000 pooling of interests described in Note 2, which 
statements reflect total revenues of $109,851,000 for the year ended September 
30, 1999. Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been 
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to data included for 
Celestial Seasonings, Inc., is based solely on the report of the other auditors. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the 
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. and 
Subsidiaries at June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
June 30, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement 
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as 
a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth 
therein. 
 
As discussed in Note 6 to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2000 the 
Company changed its method of accounting for start-up costs. 
 
                                                     /s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
 
Melville, New York 
August 31, 2001 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
To the Stockholder's and Board of Directors of Celestial Seasonings, Inc. 
 
We have audited the consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity and 
cash flows for the year ended September 30, 1999 (none of which are presented 
herein). These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Celestial 
Seasonings, Inc. for the year ended September 30, 1999, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 
 
 
Denver, Colorado 
November 3, 1999 
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THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(In thousands, except per share and share amounts) 
                                                               June 30, 
                                                      -------------------------- 
                                                            2001        2000 
                                                       ------------ ------------ 
                  ASSETS 
Current assets: 
Cash                                                       $ 26,643    $ 38,308 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful             46,404      36,120 
  accounts of $815 and $929 
Inventories                                                  49,593      48,139 
Recoverable income taxes                                      8,232       7,982 
Deferred income taxes                                         3,740       8,724 
Other current assets                                          4,168       3,611 
                                                         ----------- ----------- 
Total current assets                                        138,780     142,884 
 
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated            55,780      39,340 
  depreciation and amortization of $25,551 and $19,471 
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $18,252        219,826     188,212 
   and $13,109 
Trademarks and other intangible assets, net of               38,230      40,265 
  accumulated amortization of $6,794 and $5,594 
Other assets                                                  9,077       5,316 
                                                         ----------- ----------- 
Total assets                                              $ 461,693   $ 416,017 
                                                         =========== =========== 
       LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses                      $ 42,456    $ 43,039 
Accrued merger related charges                                1,131       9,414 
Current portion of long-term debt                             2,881         681 
                                                         ----------- ----------- 
Total current liabilities                                    46,468      53,134 
 
Long-term debt, less current portion                         10,718       5,622 
Deferred income taxes                                         7,854       5,537 
                                                         ----------- ----------- 
 
Total liabilities                                            65,040      64,293 
 
Commitments and contingencies 
 
Stockholders' equity: 
Preferred stock - $.01 par value, authorized 5,000,000            -           - 
  shares, no shares issued 
Common stock - $.01 par value, authorized 100,000,000           338         321 
  shares, issued 33,771,124 and 32,147,261 shares 
Additional paid-in capital                                  348,942     326,641 
Retained earnings                                            48,626      25,037 
Foreign currency translation adjustment                        (978)          - 
                                                         ----------- ----------- 
                                                            396,928     351,999 
Less: 100,000 shares of treasury stock, at cost                (275)       (275) 
                                                         ----------- ----------- 
Total stockholders' equity                                  396,653     351,724 
                                                         ----------- ----------- 
 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity                $ 461,693   $ 416,017 
                                                         =========== =========== 
 
See notes to consoldiated financial statements. 
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THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 
 
 
 
                                                                  Year Ended June 30 
                                                          ------------------------------------- 
                                                            2001         2000          1999 
                                                         ----------  -------------  ------------ 
 
                                                                             
Net Sales                                                $ 412,880    $  403,543     $ 315,820 
Cost of sales                                              234,643       227,417       169,141 
                                                         ---------- -------------  ------------ 
Gross profit                                               178,237       176,126       146,679 
 
Selling, general and administrative expenses               132,385       148,133       111,802 
Merger costs                                                 1,032        15,633             - 
Restructuring and other non-recurring charges                    -         4,933         1,200 
Impairment of long-lived assets                                  -         3,468             - 
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets         6,441         6,346         4,787 
                                                         ---------- -------------  ------------ 
 
Operating income (loss)                                     38,379        (2,387)       28,890 
 
Other income                                                 2,808         1,585             - 
Interest and financing costs                                  (516)       (6,701)       (6,442) 
                                                         ---------- -------------  ------------ 
 
Income (loss) before income taxes, extraordinary item       40,671        (7,503)       22,448 
  and cumulative change in accounting principle 
Provision for income taxes                                  17,082         3,900         8,931 
                                                         ---------- -------------  ------------ 
 
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and                 23,589       (11,403)       13,517 
  cumulative change in accounting principle 
 
Extraordinary item - costs in connection with early              -        (1,940)            - 
  extinguishment of debt, net of income tax benefit 
  of $1,182 in 2000 
 
Cumulative change in accounting principle, net of                -        (3,754)            - 
  income tax benefit of $2,547 
                                                         ---------- -------------  ------------ 
 
Net income (loss)                                         $ 23,589     $ (17,097)     $ 13,517 
                                                         ========== =============  ============ 
 
Basic earnings per common share: 
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and                  $ .71        $ (.41)        $ .56 
  cumulative change in accounting principle 
  Extraordinary item                                             -          (.07)            - 
  Cumulative change in accounting principle                      -          (.13)            - 
                                                         ---------- -------------  ------------ 
 
Net income (loss)                                            $ .71        $ (.61)        $ .56 
                                                         ========== =============  ============ 
 
Diluted earnings per common share: 
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and                  $ .68        $ (.41)        $ .51 
  cumulative change in accounting principle 
Extraordinary item                                               -          (.07)            - 
Cumulative change in accounting principle                        -          (.13)            - 
                                                         ---------- -------------  ------------ 
 
Net income (loss)                                            $ .68        $ (.61)        $ .51 
                                                         ========== =============  ============ 
Weigted average common shares outstanding: 
Basic                                                       33,014        27,952        24,144 
                                                         ========== =============  ============ 
Diluted                                                     34,544        27,952        26,636 
                                                         ========== =============  ============ 
                                                                                                                    . 
 
 
See notes to consoldidated financial statements. 
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THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In thousands) 
 
 
 
                                                                         Year Ended June 30, 
                                                                ------------------------------------- 
                                                                   2001          2000        1999 
                                                                ------------  -----------  ---------- 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
 
                                                                                    
Net income (loss)                                                  $ 23,589    $ (17,097)   $ 13,517 
Adjustment for change in year-end of Celestial                            -        3,933           - 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 
  provided by operating activities 
Non-cash merger related charge                                            -          175           - 
Non-cash restructuring charge                                             -        1,994           - 
Non-cash impairment of long-lived assets                                  -        3,468           - 
Extraordinary item                                                        -        1,940           - 
Cumulative change in accounting principle                                 -        3,754           - 
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment               6,287        4,986       2,530 
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets                  6,441        6,053       4,787 
Amorization of deferred financing costs                                 107          718         589 
Provision for doubtful accounts                                         393          432         313 
Deferred income taxes                                                 7,301        4,373          80 
Gain on disposal of assets                                                -         (922)         63 
Other                                                                    46           46          46 
Increase (decrease) in cash attributable to changes in 
  assets and liabilities, net of amounts applicable to 
  acquired businesses: 
Accounts receivable                                                  (6,514)       4,211      (5,033) 
Inventories                                                             848       (8,607)      8,441 
Other current assets                                                    604        2,090      (2,979) 
Other assets                                                           (746)      (2,771)     (7,014) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses                               (19,119)       3,882      (1,164) 
Recoverable taxes, net of income tax payable                          3,604       (2,094)      2,332 
                                                                ------------  -----------  ---------- 
 
Net cash provided by operating activities                            22,841       10,564      16,508 
                                                                ------------  -----------  ---------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired                    (37,184)      (4,673)    (95,270) 
Purchases of property and equipment and other                       (13,474)      (4,298)     (7,601) 
  intangible assets 
Proceeds from sale of assets                                              -        1,583         148 
                                                                ------------  -----------  ---------- 
 
Net cash used in investing activities                               (50,658)      (7,388)   (102,723) 
                                                                ------------  -----------  ---------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds (Repayments) from bank revolving credit facility, net        4,400       (5,080)     (6,270) 
Proceeds from term loan facilities                                        -            -     190,000 
Repayment of term loan facilities                                         -     (130,000)    (78,600) 
Payments on economic development revenue bonds                         (366)        (317)       (300) 
Costs in connection with bank financing                              (1,369)         (26)     (2,542) 
Proceeds from private equity offering, net of expenses                    -      160,332           - 
Proceeds from exercise of warrants and options, net of               13,685        9,354       4,490 
  related expenses 
Collections of receivables from equipment sales                           -            -         116 
Payment of debt of acquired company                                       -            -     (20,678) 
Payment of other long-term debt and other liabilities                  (217)        (278)     (1,882) 
                                                                ------------  -----------  ---------- 
 
Net cash provided by financing activities                            16,133       33,985      84,334 
                                                                ------------  -----------  ---------- 
 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents                (11,684)      37,161      (1,881) 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash                                  19            -           - 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                       38,308        1,147       3,028 
                                                                ------------  -----------  ---------- 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                           $ 26,643     $ 38,308     $ 1,147 
                                                                ============  ===========  ========== 
 
 
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC.  AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999, 2000 AND 2001 
(In thousands, except per share and share data) 
 
 
 
 
                                      Common Stock 
                                 ---------------------- Additional                                    Foreign 
                                              Amount     Paid-in    Retained     Treasury Stock     Currency           Comprehensive
                                   Shares     at $.01    Capital    Earnings    Shares    Amount   Trans. Adj.  Total  Income (Loss)
                                 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
                                                                                                    
Balance at June 30, 1998          22,161,780    $ 222    $ 79,936   $ 24,684   100,000    $ (275)             $ 104,567 
 
Issuance of shares in connection 
 with the acquisitions 
 of businesses                     1,716,111       17      39,733                                                39,750 
 
Exercise of common stock warrants, 
net of related expenses              340,930        3       1,986                                                 1,989 
 
Exercise of stock options            471,658        5       2,638                6,400      (142)                 2,501 
 
Retirement of treasury shares         (6,400)                (142)              (6,400)      142 
 
Non-cash compensation charge                                   46                                                    46 
 
Tax benefit from stock options                              2,119                                                 2,119 
 
Net income                                                            13,517                                     13,517      13,517 
                                 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
Balance at June 30, 1999          24,684,079      247     126,316     38,201   100,000      (275)               164,489 
 
Issuance of shares to Heinz, net 
of related expenses                6,090,351       61     177,642                                               177,703 
 
Conversion of promissory notes       442,538        4       9,973                                                 9,977 
 
Exercise of common stock warrants, 
 net of related expenses             345,853        3       1,922                                                 1,925 
 
Exercise of stock options            584,440        6       7,423                                                 7,429 
 
Non-cash compensation charge                                   46                                                    46 
 
Tax benefit from stock options                              3,319                                                 3,319 
 
Adjustment for change in year-end of Celestial                         3,933                                      3,933 
 
Net loss                                                             (17,097)                                   (17,097)    (17,097)
                                 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
Balance at June 30, 2000          32,147,261      321     326,641     25,037   100,000      (275)               351,724 
 
Exercise of common stock warrants, 
 net of related expenses             166,419        2         657                                                   659 
 
Exercise of stock options          1,265,465       13      12,857                                                12,870 
 
Issuance of common stock             191,979        2       5,714                                                 5,716 
 
Non-cash compensation charge                                   46                                                    46 
 
Tax benefit from stock options                              3,027                                                 3,027 
 
Net income for the period                                             23,589                                     23,589 
 
Comprehensive income: 
Net income                                                                                                                   23,589 
 
Translation adjustments                                                                               (978)        (978)       (978)
                                                                                                                        ------------
 
Total comprehensive income                                                                                                 $ 22,611 
                                 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------============
 
Balance as June 30, 2001          33,771,124    $ 338   $ 348,942   $ 48,626   100,000    $ (275)   $ (978)   $ 396,653 
                                 ======================================================================================= 
 
 
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
1.       BUSINESS: 
 
         The Hain Celestial Group, is a natural, specialty and snack food 
company. The Company is a leader in many of the top natural food categories, 
with such well-known natural food brands as Celestial Seasonings (R) teas, Hain 
Pure Foods(R), Westbrae(R), Westsoy(R), Arrowhead Mills(R), Health Valley(R), 
Breadshop's(R), Casbah(R), Garden of Eatin(R), Terra Chips(R), Yves Veggie 
Cuisine(R), DeBoles(R), Earth's Best(R), and Nile Spice(R). The Company's 
principal specialty product lines include Hollywood(R) cooking oils, Estee(R) 
sugar-free products, Weight Watchers(R) dry and refrigerated products, 
Kineret(R) kosher foods, Boston Better Snacks(R), and Alba Foods(R). 
 
         The Company and its subsidiaries operate in one business segment: the 
sale of natural, organic and other food and beverage products. During fiscal 
2001, approximately 51% (as compared to 55% in 2000) of the Company's revenues 
were derived from products which are manufactured within its own facilities with 
49% produced by various co-packers. In fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999 there were no 
co-packers who manufactured 10% or more of the Company's products. 
 
2.       Basis of Presentation 
 
         The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Hain 
Celestial Group, Inc. (formerly known as The Hain Food Group, Inc. ("Hain")) and 
all wholly-owned subsidiaries (the "Company"). In the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, all dollar amounts, except per share amounts, are in 
thousands of dollars unless otherwise indicated. 
 
         Merger: On May 30, 2000, Hain completed a merger (the "Merger") with 
Celestial Seasonings, Inc. ("Celestial") by issuing 10.3 million shares of Hain 
common stock in exchange for all of the outstanding common stock of Celestial. 
Each share of Celestial common stock was exchanged for 1.265 shares of Hain 
common stock. In addition, Hain assumed all Celestial stock options previously 
granted by Celestial. As part of the Merger, Hain changed its name to The Hain 
Celestial Group, Inc. Celestial, the common stock of which was previously 
publicly traded, is the market leader in speciality teas. 
 
         The Merger was accounted for as a pooling-of-interests and, 
accordingly, all prior period consolidated financial statements of Hain have 
been restated to include the results of operations, financial position and cash 
flows of Celestial. Information concerning common stock, employee stock plans 
and per share data has been restated on an equivalent share basis. The 
accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 
30, 1999 include Hain's June 30 fiscal year amounts combined with Celestial's 
September 30 fiscal year amounts. The consolidated financial statements as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2000 include the financial position of both Hain 
and Celestial as of such date and the results of operations and cash flows of 
Hain and Celestial for the year then ended. Consequently, Celestial's results of 
operations and cash flows for the three- month period ended September 30, 1999 
are included in both fiscal 2000 and 1999, which results in the need to 
eliminate such duplication by an adjustment to retained earnings. Since 
Celestial incurred a net loss of $3.9 million for the three month period 
duplicated, the adjustment to retained 
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earnings adds back such loss. Summary information for Celestial's three- month 
period ended September 30, 1999 is as follows: net sales - $19.9 million; loss 
before income taxes - $7.3 million; net loss - $3.9 million; cash provided by 
operating activities - $1.1 million; cash used in investing activities - $4.1 
million; and cash provided by financing activities - $3.4 million. 
 
         The reconciliations of operating results of Hain and Celestial for the 
periods previously reported prior to the combination are as follows: 
 
 
                                             Nine months ended   Year ended 
                                              March 31, 2000    June 30, 1999 
                                           ------------------------------------- 
Net sales: 
 Hain                                            $ 226,100       $ 205,900 
 Celestial                                         90,400         109,900 
                                           ------------------------------------- 
 Combined                                        $ 316,500       $ 315,800 
                                           ------------------------------------- 
Income before extraordinary item and 
 cumulative change in accounting principle: 
 Hain                                            $ 22,700        $ 11,000 
 Celestial                                         4,200           2,500 
                                           ------------------------------------- 
Combined                                         $ 26,900        $ 13,500 
                                           ------------------------------------- 
Net income: 
 Hain                                             $ 8,700        $ 11,000 
 Celestial                                         3,400           2,500 
                                           ------------------------------------- 
Combined                                         $ 12,100        $ 13,500 
                                           ------------------------------------- 
 
         There were no material adjustments required to conform the accounting 
policies of the two companies. Certain amounts of Celestial have been 
reclassified to conform to the reporting practices of Hain. 
 
3.       SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
Consolidation Policy: 
 
         The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly-owned. Material 
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
Reclassifications: 
 
         Certain reclassifications have been made to prior consolidated 
financial statements and notes thereto to conform to the current year 
presentation. 
 
Foreign Currency Translation: 
 
         Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. 
dollars at current rates, except that revenues, costs and expenses are 
translated at average current rates during each reporting period. Net exchange 
gains or losses resulting from the translation of foreign financial 
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statements and the effect of exchange rate changes on intercompany transactions 
of a long-term investment nature are accumulated and credited or charged 
directly to a separate component of shareholders' equity and other comprehensive 
income. 
 
         Use of Estimates: 
 
         The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and amounts of income and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
         Revenue Recognition: 
 
         Sales are recognized upon the shipment of finished goods to customers. 
Allowances for cash discounts are recorded in the period in which the related 
sale is recognized. 
 
Advertising Costs: 
 
         Media advertising costs, which are included in selling, general and 
administrative expenses, amounted to $5,510, $1,980 and $7,349 for fiscal 2001, 
2000 and 1999, respectively. Such costs are expensed as incurred. 
 
Income Taxes: 
 
         The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income 
taxes. Under the liability method, deferred taxes are determined based on the 
differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and 
liabilities at enacted rates in effect in the years in which the differences are 
expected to reverse. 
 
         Concentration of Credit Risk: 
 
         Substantially all of the Company's trade accounts receivable are due 
from food distributors and food retailers located throughout the United States 
and Canada. The Company performs credit evaluations of its customers and 
generally does not require collateral. Credit losses are provided for in the 
consolidated financial statements and consistently have been within management's 
expectations. During the year ended June 30, 2001, sales to two customers and 
their affiliates approximated 18% and 17%. These two customers accounted for 17% 
and 18%, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2000 and approximately 18% 
each for the year ended June 30, 1999. At June 30, 2001 and 2000, these two 
customers and their affiliates accounted for approximately 28% and 32%, 
respectively, of total accounts receivable outstanding. 
 
         Inventories: 
 
         Inventories consist principally of finished goods, raw materials and 
packaging materials, and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out 
basis) or market. Cost is determined principally on the standard cost method 
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for manufactured goods and on the average cost method for other inventories, 
each of which approximates actual cost on the first-in, first-out method. 
 
Shipping and Handling Costs: 
 
         The Company includes costs associated with shipping and handling of its 
inventory as a component of cost of goods sold in the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations 
 
         Fair Values of Financial Instruments: 
 
         At June 30, 2001, the Company had $22.8 million invested in corporate 
money market securities, including commercial paper, repurchase agreements, 
variable rate instruments and bank instruments. The Company has classified these 
securities as cash equivalents as the maturities of these instruments are less 
than three months. At June 30, 2001, the carrying value of these money market 
securities approximates their fair values. At June 30, 2000, the Company had no 
cash equivalents. 
 
         The Company believes that the interest rates set forth in the Company's 
debt instruments approximate its current borrowing rate and, accordingly, the 
carrying amounts of such debt at June 30, 2001 and 2000 approximate fair value. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment: 
 
         Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated 
or amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the estimated useful 
lives or lease life, whichever is shorter. 
 
         Buildings                                            31-35 years 
         Machinery and equipment                              5-10 years 
         Furniture and fixtures                               3-7 years 
         Leasehold improvements                               3-10 years 
 
Goodwill, Trademarks and Other Intangible Assets: 
 
         Goodwill consists of the excess of the cost of acquired businesses over 
the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired or assumed, and is being 
amortized over a period of 40 years from date of acquisition. 
 
         Other intangible assets, principally trademarks, are being amortized 
over their respective applicable lives. The Company amortizes trademarks over 
5-40 years. 
 
Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
 
         The Company accounts for impairment of long-lived assets in accordance 
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 121, "Accounting 
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed 
Of". SFAS No. 121 requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the recorded value of 
the asset may not be recoverable. The Company performs such a review at each 
balance sheet date whenever events and circumstances 
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have occurred that indicate possible impairment. The Company considers continued 
operating losses and significant and long-term changes in prevailing market 
conditions to be its primary indicators of potential impairment. In accordance 
with SFAS No. 121, the Company uses an estimate of the future undiscounted net 
cash flows of the related asset or asset grouping over the remaining life to 
measure whether the assets are recoverable. During fiscal year 2000, the Company 
wrote-off approximately $3.5 million of impaired long-lived assets. The 
write-off included $1.4 million of goodwill and $2.1 million of barter credits 
related to the Company's supplements products, which have experienced losses. 
The Company determined that the product line had become impaired and does not 
expect to recover their recorded values in the foreseeable future. 
 
         Deferred Financing Costs: 
 
         Eligible costs associated with obtaining debt financing are capitalized 
and amortized over the related lives of the applicable debt instruments, which 
approximates the effective interest method. 
 
Earnings Per Share: 
 
         The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance 
with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share" ("SFAS No. 128"). Basic earnings per 
share excludes any dilutive effects of options, warrants and convertible debt. 
Diluted earnings per share includes only the dilutive effects of common stock 
equivalents such as stock options and warrants. 
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         The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted 
earnings per share pursuant to SFAS No. 128. 
 
 
                                                 2001        2000         1999 
                                              ----------  -----------  --------- 
Numerator: 
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and 
 cumulative change in accounting 
 principle - numerator for basic and 
 diluted earnings per share                     $ 23,589   $ (11,403)   $ 13,517 
Extraordinary item                                     -      (1,940)          - 
Cumulative change in accounting principle              -      (3,754)          - 
                                              ----------  -----------  --------- 
Net income (loss)                               $ 23,589   $ (17,097)   $ 13,517 
                                              ==========  ===========  ========= 
Denominator (in thousands): 
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per 
 share - weighted average shares outstanding 
 during the period                                33,014       27,952     24,144 
Effect of dilutive securities (a): 
 
  Stock options                                    1,304            -      1,863 
  Warrants                                           226            -        629 
                                              ----------  -----------  --------- 
                                                   1,530            -      2,492 
                                              ----------  -----------  --------- 
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per 
 share - adjusted weighted average shares 
 and assumed conversions                          34,544       27,952     26,636 
                                              ==========  ===========  ========= 
Basic earnings (loss) per share: 
 Income (loss) before extraordinary item and 
 cumulative change in accounting principle      $    .71    $   (.41)   $    .56 
 Extraordinary item                                    -        (.07)          - 
 Cumulative change in accounting principle             -        (.13)          - 
                                              ----------  -----------  --------- 
 Net income (loss)                              $    .71    $   (.61)   $    .56 
                                              ==========  ===========  ========= 
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: 
 Income (loss) before extraordinary item and 
 cumulative change in accounting principle      $    .68    $   (.41)   $    .51 
 Extraordinary item                                    -        (.07)          - 
 Cumulative change in accounting principle             -        (.13)          - 
                                              ----------  -----------  --------- 
 Net income (loss)                              $    .68    $   (.61)   $    .51 
                                              ==========  ===========  ========= 
 
(a)      As of result of the net loss, the dilutive effect of options and 
         warrants (aggregating 2,300 shares) are not shown as the results would 
         be antidilutive. 
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4.  RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER NON-RECURRING CHARGES 
 
         During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company approved a plan 
to streamline and restructure certain non-core businesses and consolidate 
warehouses and information systems within the Company's distribution and 
operating network which resulted in a pre-tax charge of $3.7 million. In 
addition, in the first quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company entered into a 
settlement agreement related to a shareholder lawsuit (see Note 16) resulting in 
a one-time pre-tax charge of $1.2 million. 
 
         The components of the $3.7 million restructuring charge are as follows: 
 
 
Write-downs of property, plant and 
 equipment and other assets                    $ 1,994 
Lease exit costs                                 1,153 
Severance and related benefits                     248 
Other non-core business costs                      338 
                                         ------------- 
                                               $ 3,733 
                                         ============= 
 
         At June 30, 2000, the Company had accrued approximately $1.7 million of 
future costs associated with this restructuring charge. As of June 30, 2001, $.2 
million of future cash outlays remain associated with this accrual. 
 
         The write down of property, plant and equipment and other assets net of 
salvage value, primarily related to machinery and equipment and computer 
equipment within certain of the Company's distribution facilities, corporate 
information systems relating to an enterprise-wide program to upgrade its 
business information systems and computer hardware and software and other 
equipment and assets related to the restructuring of certain non-core business. 
 
         Lease exit costs of approximately $1.2 million relate to incremental 
costs and contractual obligations for items such as leasehold termination 
payments (net of estimated expected sub rentals) and other facility exit costs 
expected to be incurred as a direct result of this plan. 
 
         In addition, during the first quarter of fiscal 2000, Celestial decided 
to cease production of its 30-count supplements product line and focus it 
efforts on its 60-count product line. In conjunction with the discontinuance of 
the 30-count products, Celestial decided to offer a return program to its 
customers. Accordingly, Celestial reversed sales ($5.1 million) and recorded 
additional cost of sales ($4.0 million) for the estimated 30-count products 
still with customers and an estimated write-down of inventory on hand and 
expected to be returned. 
 
         In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company was required to 
provide additional amounts for sales returns and inventory write-offs (totaling 
$.9 million) related to the previously announced decision to cease production of 
the 30-count products. Moreover, the Company provided certain reserves related 
to expected returns of the Company's 60-count supplement products, totaling $1.6 
million, primarily related to the receipt of return notification from certain 
customers and prevailing market conditions affecting the supplements industry. 
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5.       RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives: 
 
         In May 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") issued Issue 00- 
14, "Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives". Under the consensus, certain 
sales incentives must be recognized as a reduction of sales, rather than as an 
expense (the Company includes such sales incentives within selling, general and 
administrative expenses). In April 2001, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue 
00-25, "Vendor Statement Characterization of Consideration from a Vendor to a 
Retailer", which expanded upon the types of consideration paid by vendors to 
retailers which are now considered sales incentives and, accordingly, should be 
classified as a reduction of sales, rather than as a component of selling, 
general and administrative expenses. This consensus is effective for fiscal 
quarters beginning after December 15, 2001 (the Company's March 2002 quarter). 
Upon application of these consensus', the Company's earnings for current and 
prior periods will not be changed, but rather a reclassification will take place 
within the Consolidated Statements of Operations for all periods presented for 
comparative purposes. The EITF changed the effective date of Issue 00-14 to 
coincide with the effective date of Issue 00-25. 
 
         Had EITF 00-14 and 00-25 been adopted at the beginning of the fiscal 
years June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company's net sales and selling, general and 
administrative expenses would have each been reduced by $72.5 million and $76.1 
million, for the respective periods. 
 
Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: 
 
         In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued 
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, "Business Combinations", 
and No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2001 with early adoption permitted for companies 
with fiscal years beginning after March 15, 2001, provided the first quarter 
financial statements have not been issued (the Company's first fiscal quarter is 
September 30, 2001 in fiscal 2002). Under the new rules, goodwill (and 
intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives) will no longer be amortized 
but will be subject to annual impairment test in accordance with the Statements. 
Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. 
 
         The Company will apply the new rules on accounting for goodwill and 
other intangible assets beginning in the first quarter of 2002. Application of 
the non-amortization provisions of the Statement is expected to result in an 
approximate increase in net income within a range between $1.8 million to $3 
million (between $.05 to $.09 per share) per year. This initial estimate is 
subject to completion of certain purchase price valuation allocations from prior 
years acquisitions. During 2002, the Company will perform the first of the 
required impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as 
of July 1, 2001 and it is expected that such impairment test will not have an 
effect on the earnings and financial position of the Company. 
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6.       CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE: 
 
         In April 1998, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
issued Statement of Position 98-5, "Reporting Costs of Start-up Activities" 
("SOP 98-5"). SOP 98-5 was adopted by the Company effective July 1, 1999, and 
requires start-up costs capitalized prior to such date be written-off as a 
cumulative effect of an accounting change as of July 1, 1999, and any future 
start-up costs to be expensed as incurred. Start-up activities are defined 
broadly as those one-time activities related to introducing a new product or 
service, conducting business in a new territory, conducting business with a new 
class of customer or commencing some new operations. In accordance with SOP 
98-5, the Company recorded a one-time non-cash charge in the first quarter of 
fiscal 2000 reflecting the cumulative effect of a change in accounting 
principle, in the amount of $3.8 million, net of tax benefit, representing 
start-up costs capitalized as of the beginning of fiscal year 2000. 
 
7.       ACQUISITIONS: 
 
         On June 8, 2001, the Company acquired privately-held Yves Veggie 
Cuisine, Inc. ("Yves") a Vancouver, British Columbia based company. Yves is a 
leading North American manufacturer, distributor and marketer of soy protein 
meat alternative products. The aggregate purchase price, including acquisition 
costs, amounted to approximately $34 million excluding the assumption of debt 
and capital leases of approximately $3 million. The purchase price was paid by 
approximately $32.5 million in cash and $1.5 million worth of common stock 
(61,500 shares). The aggregate purchase price paid over the net assets acquired 
amounted to approximately $31.5 million. The purchase price allocations have 
been made on a preliminary basis, subject to adjustment and it is expected to be 
completed in the second quarter of fiscal 2002. 
 
         On January 18, 2001 the Company acquired privately held Fruit Chips 
B.V., ("Fruit Chips") a Netherlands based company. The Company subsequently 
renamed Fruit Chips, Terra Chips B.V. Terra Chips B.V. is a manufacturer and 
distributor of low fat fruit, vegetable and potato chips selling to European 
markets. The aggregate purchase price paid, including transaction costs was 
approximately $9.8 million consisting of both cash and stock. The aggregate 
purchase price paid over the net assets acquired was approximately $6.2 million. 
 
         Unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended June 30, 
2001 and 2000 reflecting the above acquisitions as if they occurred at the 
beginning of each year would not be materially different than the actual results 
for those years. 
 
         On May 18, 1999, the Company acquired Natural Nutrition Group, Inc. 
("NNG"). NNG is a manufacturer and marketer of premium natural and organic food 
products primarily under its Health Valley, Breadshop's and Sahara brands. The 
aggregate purchase price, including acquisition costs, amounted to approximately 
$82 million. The purchase price was paid by approximately $72 million in cash 
and the issuance of $10 million in convertible promissory notes. To finance the 
cash portion of the acquisition, the Company entered into a $160 million senior 
secured loan which provided for a $30 million 
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revolving credit facility and $130 million in term loans. The aggregate purchase 
price paid in excess of net assets acquired amounted to $62.5 million. From the 
date of acquisition through June 30, 1999, NNG had net sales of approximately 
$7.5 million. 
 
         On July 1, 1998, the Company acquired the following businesses and 
brands from The Shansby Group and other investors: Arrowhead Mills (natural 
foods), DeBoles Nutritional Foods (natural pasta products), Terra Chips (natural 
vegetable chips) and Garden of Eatin', Inc. (natural snack products). The 
aggregate purchase price, including acquisition costs, for these businesses 
amounted to approximately $61.5 million. The purchase price was paid by the 
issuance of 1,716,111 shares of the Company's common stock with a market value 
of $39.75 million and approximately $21.7 million in cash. In addition, the 
Company repaid approximately $20.8 million of outstanding debt of the acquired 
businesses. The aggregate purchase price paid in excess of net assets acquired 
amounted to $74.5 million. 
 
         The above acquisitions have been accounted for as purchases and, 
therefore, operating results of the acquired businesses have been included in 
the accompanying financial statements from the dates of acquisition. Goodwill 
arising from the acquisitions is being amortized on a straight line basis over 
40 years. 
 
8.       INVENTORIES: 
 
         Inventories consist of the following: 
 
                                                            June 30 
                                                   -------------------------- 
                                                        2001        2000 
                                                   ------------  ----------- 
Finished goods                                         $ 29,933    $  28,730 
Raw materials, work-in-process and packaging             19,660       19,409 
                                                   ------------  ----------- 
                                                       $ 49,593    $  48,139 
                                                   ============  =========== 
 
9.       PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
         Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 
 
 
                                                2001              2000 
                                          ----------------- ----------------- 
Land                                               $  6,673          $  6,049 
Building                                             13,611            10,579 
Machinery & equipment                                42,861            33,890 
Assets held for sale                                      -               197 
Furniture and fixtures                                2,505             2,580 
Leasehold improvements                                6,818             5,014 
Construction in progress                              8,863               502 
                                          ----------------- ----------------- 
                                                     81,331            58,811 
Less: 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization            25,551            19,471 
                                          ----------------- ----------------- 
                                                   $ 55,780          $ 39,340 
                                          ================= ================= 
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         Included within machinery and equipment are assets held under capital 
leases with net book values at June 30, 2001 and 2000 of $3 million and $.2 
million, respectively. 
 
10.      LONG-TERM DEBT: 
 
         Long-term debt at June 30 consists of the following: 
 
 
                                                       2001          2000 
                                                   ------------- ------------- 
Senior revolving credit facilities payable to 
  banks(A)                                              $  4,400        $    - 
Convertible Promissory Notes (B)                              23            23 
Capital leases on machinery and equipment and 
 other debt instruments (C)                                2,648           847 
Economic Development Revenue Bonds due in monthly 
 installments through November 
 1, 2009, interest payable monthly at variable 
 rates (D)                                                 5,067         5,433 
Mortgage loan (E)                                          1,461             - 
                                                   ------------- ------------- 
                                                          13,599         6,303 
Current Portion                                            2,881           681 
                                                   ------------- ------------- 
                                                        $ 10,718      $  5,622 
                                                   ============= ============= 
 
(A)      Senior Revolving Credit Facilities 
 
         On May 18, 1999, in connection with the acquisition of NNG, the Company 
arranged for a $160 million senior secured loan facility ("Facility"), that 
provided for a $30 million credit facility and $130 million of term loans. The 
Facility was used to complete the acquisition of NNG, refinance then existing 
debt and provide for ongoing working capital needs. Interest rates on the 
Facility, which were computed using either the bank's base rate, as defined, or 
LIBOR, at the Company's option, ranged from 8.5% to 9.5% and averaged 8.3% 
during fiscal 2000. 
 
         In June 2000, using the proceeds received from the sale of common stock 
to Heinz (see Note 12), all amounts then outstanding under the Facility were 
prepaid and the Facility was terminated. As a result, the Company incurred an 
extraordinary charge in connection with this early extinguishment of debt of 
approximately $1.9 million (net of tax benefit of approximately $1.2 million) 
for the write-off of related unamortized deferred financing costs. 
 
         In March 2001, the Company entered into a new $240 million Senior 
Revolving Credit Facility (the "Senior Credit Facility"). The Senior Credit 
Facility provides for a four year, $145 million revolving credit facility 
(initially this revolving facility is priced at LIBOR plus 1.00%) and a $95 
million 364-day facility (the 364-day facility is also initially priced at LIBOR 
plus 1.00%). The Senior Credit Facility is unsecured, but guaranteed by all 
current and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries of the Company. 
This Senior Credit Facility also includes customary affirmative and negative 
covenants for transactions of this nature. The Company's outstanding revolving 
credit loans under these facilities bears interest at a base rate (greater of 
the applicable prime rate or Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50% per annum) or, at the 
Company's option, the reserve adjusted LIBOR rate 
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plus the applicable margin (as defined in the Senior Credit Facility). As of 
June 30, 2001, $4.4 million was borrowed under the revolving facility at 5.94%. 
 
         On November 2, 1998, Celestial entered into a three-year credit 
facility which includes a revolving credit loan of up to $15,000,000, and a 
standby letter of credit commitment in the amount of $6,100,000 (the "Letter of 
Credit Facility") to support outstanding Economic Development Revenue Bonds 
issued to finance Celestial's manufacturing facility. Borrowings under the 
credit facility carried interest at rates ranging from LIBOR plus 0.50% to the 
Federal Funds Rate plus .75%, subject to increases if the Company failed to 
achieve certain future operating results. The Letter of Credit Facility included 
annual financing fees of 0.50%, and loans resulting from a draw under the Letter 
of Credit Facility carried interest at a rate equal to the interest rate then 
applicable to the Revolving Loan. The Letter of Credit Facility expires on 
November 2, 2002. The revolving credit loan was terminated. 
 
(B)      Convertible Promissory Notes 
 
         In connection with the acquisition of NNG, the Company issued $10 
million of convertible promissory notes (the "Notes") bearing interest at 7%, 
payable quarterly commencing September 30, 1999. The Notes are convertible into 
shares of the Company's Common Stock. The number of shares of Common Stock to be 
issued upon conversion of each Note is based upon the conversion price equal to 
the average of the closing prices of the Company's Common Stock for the ten 
trading days prior to any conversion of the Note. During the year ended June 30, 
2000, holders of approximately $9.98 million in Notes have converted such Notes 
into 442,538 shares of the Company's common stock. 
 
(C) Capital Leases and Other Debt Instruments 
 
         Capital leases on machinery and equipment of $2,177 bear interest 
ranging from 7.25% to 10% and are due in monthly installments through January 
2006. 
 
         The aggregate minimum future lease payments for all capital leases at 
June 30, 2001 are as follows: 
 
 
2002                      $   626 
2003                          557 
2004                          434 
2005                          255 
2006                           42 
Thereafter                    263 
                  --------------- 
                           $ 2,177 
                  =============== 
 
         The other long-term debt primarily relates to an acquisition NNG 
consummated on January 12, 1999. Prior to the acquisition of NNG by the Company, 
an $800,000 nonconvertible promissory note bearing interest at prime (6.75% at 
June 30, 2001), was issued to the seller. This promissory note requires 
principal installments starting June 30, 1999 through December 31, 2002. 
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(D)      Economic Development Bonds 
 
         Borrowings related to Economic Development Revenue Bonds (the "Bonds") 
bear interest at a variable rate (3.02% at June 30, 2001) and are secured by a 
letter of credit. The Bonds mature December 1, 2009. The Bonds can be tendered 
monthly to the Bond trustee at face value plus accrued interest, with payment 
for tendered Bonds made from drawdowns under the letter of credit. 
 
(E)      Mortgage Loan 
 
         As part of the Yves acquisition on June 8, 2001, the Company assumed a 
mortgage loan on the land and building occupied by Yves. The mortgage loan of 
$1,461 is repayable in blended monthly installments, including principal with 
interest at 7.65% (floating at Government of Canada 5 year bond rates plus 1.5%) 
per annum; with a balloon payment of $1.4 million due April 1, 2002. The 
mortgage is secured by such land and building and a general security agreement 
over certain machinery and equipment. 
 
         Maturities of all debt instruments at June 30, 2001, are as follows: 
 
 
2002                   $ 2,881 
2003                     1,192 
2004                       992 
2005                     5,255 
2006                       742 
Thereafter               2,537 
               --------------- 
                      $ 13,599 
               =============== 
 
         Interest paid during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 
amounted to $412, $7,224 and $5,091 respectively. 
 
11.      INCOME TAXES: 
 
         The provision for income taxes for the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 
and 1999 is presented below. The table excludes the tax benefits applicable to 
the extraordinary charges and the cumulative change in accounting principle in 
2000. 
 
                                 2001              2000              1999 
                           ----------------  ---------------- ------------------ 
Current: 
Federal                           $   8,145         $   2,615          $   7,548 
State                                 1,480               389              1,303 
Foreign                                 156                 -                  - 
                           ----------------  ---------------- ------------------ 
                                      9,781             3,004              8,851 
Deferred Federal and State            7,301               896                 80 
                           ----------------  ---------------- ------------------ 
Total                             $  17,082         $   3,900          $   8,931 
                           ================  ================ ================== 
 
         Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary 
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. 
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         Components of the Company's deferred tax asset/(liability) as of June 
30 are as follows: 
 
 
                                                       2001          2000 
                                                  -------------  ------------ 
Current deferred tax assets: 
 Basis difference on inventory                         $  1,110      $  1,244 
 Allowance for doubtful accounts                            315           981 
 Net operating loss carryovers                            1,552         2,034 
 Reserves not currently deductible                          763         4,465 
                                                  -------------  ------------ 
Current deferred tax assets                               3,740         8,724 
                                                  -------------  ------------ 
Noncurrent deferred tax assets/(liabilities): 
 Difference in amortization                             (6,759)       (4,560) 
 Basis difference on property and equipment             (2,407)       (3,342) 
 Net operating loss carryovers                            1,312         2,365 
                                                  -------------  ------------ 
Noncurrent deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net       (7,854)       (5,537) 
                                                  -------------  ------------ 
                                                      $ (4,114)      $  3,187 
                                                  =============  =============== 
 
         Reconciliations of expected income taxes at the U.S. federal statutory 
rate to the Company's provision for income taxes for the years ended June 30 are 
as follows: 
 
                              2001    %      2000         %      1999        % 
                            ------- ------- --------  -------- --------- ------- 
Expected U.S. federal 
 income tax at 
 statutory rate              $14,235  35.0% $ (2,626)   35.0 %   $ 7,826   35.0% 
State income taxes, 
 net of federal benefit        1,949    4.8       569    (7.6)       617     2.7 
Goodwill amortization          1,535    3.8     1,576   (21.0)     1,016     4.5 
Merger related expenses            -      -     4,654   (62.0)         -       - 
Contributions                      -      -     (610)      8.1     (582)   (2.6) 
Other                                 (1.6)       337    (4.5)        54      .2 
                               (637) 
                           --------- ------ --------- -------- --------- ------- 
Provision for income taxes   $17,082  42.0%  $  3,900  (52.0)%  $  8,931   39.8% 
                           ========= ====== ========= ======== ========= ======= 
 
         Income taxes paid during the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 
amounted to $6,126, $4,909 and $5,442, respectively. 
 
         At June 30, 2001, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards 
("NOLS") of approximately $7,402 which were acquired in previous years. These 
NOL's begin expiring in fiscal 2010. Under U.S. income tax regulations, the 
utilization of the NOL's is subject to annual limitations as a result of the 
changes in control of the acquired entities, as well as limitations regarding 
the use of the NOL's against income other than that earned by the acquired 
business (referred to as "SRLY" limitations). Despite these restrictions, as a 
result of new regulations issued by the Internal Revenue Service effective June 
25, 1999, which had the effect of relaxing the SRLY limitations, the Company 
expects to fully utilize all of the acquired NOL's prior to expiration and, 
therefore, has not provided a valuation allowance on the related tax assets. The 
impact of the change in the tax regulations has been included in the application 
of purchase accounting for the business acquired. 
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12.      STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
 
Common Stock: 
 
         In connection with the acquisition of businesses from The Shansby Group 
and other investors, a portion of the purchase price was paid by the issuance of 
1,716,111 shares of the Company's common stock with a market value of $39.8 
million. 
 
         In September 1999, the Company entered into a global strategic alliance 
with Heinz related to the production and distribution of natural products 
domestically and internationally, and purchased from Heinz the trademarks of its 
Earth's Best baby food line of products. In connection with the alliance, the 
Company issued 2,837,343 shares (the "Investment Shares") of its common stock, 
par value $.01 per share (the "Common Stock") to a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Heinz (the "Heinz Subsidiary"), for an aggregate purchase price of $82.4 million 
under a Securities Purchase Agreement dated September 24, 1999 between the 
Company and the Heinz Subsidiary. The Company used $75 million of the proceeds 
from this to reduce its borrowings under its credit facility. The remainder of 
the proceeds were used to pay transaction costs and for general working capital 
purposes. In consideration for the trademarks, the Company paid a combination of 
$4.6 million in cash and 670,234 shares of Common Stock, valued at $17.4 
million(the "Acquisition Shares" and together with the Investment Shares, the 
"Shares"). This purchase agreement terminates a license agreement dated April 1, 
1999 between the Company and Heinz whereby the Company was granted exclusive 
sale and distribution rights of Earth's Best baby food products into the United 
States retail grocery and natural food channel. With the acquisition of these 
trademarks, the Company is able to sell, market and distribute Earth's Best 
products both domestically and internationally and have a more efficient means 
to develop new products. In connection with the issuance of the Shares, the 
Company and the Heinz Subsidiary have entered into an Investor's Agreement dated 
September 24, 1999 that sets forth certain restrictions and obligations of the 
Company and the Heinz Subsidiary and its affiliates relating to the Shares, 
including restrictions and obligations relating to (1) the appointment by the 
Company of one member to its Board of Directors nominated by the Heinz 
Subsidiary and one member jointly nominated by the Heinz Subsidiary and the 
Company, (2) an 18-month standstill period (which expired in March 2001) during 
which the Heinz Subsidiary and its affiliates may not purchase or sell shares of 
Common Stock, subject to certain exceptions, (3) a right of first offer granted 
to the Company by Heinz and its affiliates to the Company upon the sale of 
Shares by the Heinz Subsidiary and its affiliates following the standstill 
period, (4) preemptive rights granted to the Heinz Subsidiary and its affiliates 
relating to the future issuance by the Company of shares of capital stock and 
(5) confidentiality. 
 
         Included as part of the alliance was a provision that the Heinz 
Subsidiary would have the preemptive right to purchase additional equity in the 
Company to maintain its investment level at 19.5% of the outstanding stock of 
the Company. The Heinz Subsidiary investment level was diluted following the 
acquisition by the Company of Celestial Seasonings on May 30, 2000. Under the 
terms of the agreement, on June 20, 2000 the Company issued 2,582,774 shares of 
its common stock, par value $.01 per share to the Heinz Subsidiary for an 
aggregate purchase price of approximately $79.7 million. 
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The Company used approximately $44 million to prepay the remainder of its 
borrowings under its credit facility. The remainder of the funds are being used 
for working capital. 
 
         In addition, the Company and the Heinz Subsidiary have entered into a 
Registration Rights Agreement dated September 24, 1999 that provides the Heinz 
Subsidiary and its affiliates customary registration rights relating to the 
Shares, including two demand registration rights and "piggy-back" registration 
rights. 
 
         On May 30, 2000, the Company's shareholders approved an increase to the 
number of authorized shares of the Company's common stock from 40 million to 100 
million. 
 
         As part of the Yves and Fruit Chips acquisitions consummated during 
fiscal 2001, 185,330 common shares were issued to the sellers, valued at 
approximately $5.6 million in the aggregate. 
 
Preferred Stock: 
 
         The Company is authorized to issue "blank check" preferred stock (up to 
5 million shares) with such designations, rights and preferences as may be 
determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. Accordingly, the Board 
of Directors is empowered to issue, without stockholder approval, preferred 
stock with dividends, liquidation, conversion, voting, or other rights which 
could decrease the amount of earnings and assets available for distribution to 
holders of the Company's Common Stock. As at June 30, 2001 and 2000, no 
preferred stock was issued or outstanding. 
 
Warrants: 
 
         In connection with the Weight Watchers agreement, the Company issued 
warrants to Heinz on March 31, 1997, to acquire 250,000 shares of the Company's 
Common Stock at prices ranging from $7.00 to $9.00 per share. The value ascribed 
to these warrants of approximately $.3 million is being amortized over ten 
years. In April 1999, Heinz exercised these warrants and the Company issued 
250,000 shares of Common Stock resulting in proceeds of $1.9 million. In 
accordance with the terms of the then existing term loan facility, 50% of the 
proceeds was used to pay down the term loan with the remainder used for working 
capital purposes. 
 
         Since fiscal 1997, the Company issued a total of 300,000 warrants in 
connection with services rendered by third party consultants at prices ranging 
from $4.13 to $10.00 per share. 250,000 of these warrants were exercised during 
fiscal 2000, resulting in proceeds of $1.6 million. In accordance with the then 
existing term loan facility, 50% of the proceeds were used to pay down the term 
loan with the remainder used for working capital purposes. In fiscal 2001, the 
remaining 50,000 warrants were exercised via a cashless exercise resulting in 
the issuance of 35,653 shares. 
 
         In connection with the acquisition of Westbrae on October 14, 1997 and 
the related bank refinancing, the Company issued a warrant to its bank to 
acquire 114,294 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of 
$11.418. The value ascribed to this warrant of approximately $.4 million is 
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being amortized over six years. In July 1998, the bank exercised these warrants 
via a cashless exercise resulting in the issuance to the bank of 63,647 common 
shares. In addition, the Company issued warrants to Argosy Investment Corp. 
("Argosy") to acquire 100,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an 
exercise price of $12.688. The value ascribed to these warrants of approximately 
$.4 million has been included in the costs of the acquisition of Westbrae. In 
fiscal 2001, Argosy exercised 26,666 of these warrants, resulting in proceeds of 
$.3 million, which proceeds were used for working capital purposes. 
 
         In fiscal years 2001 and 2000, Argosy exercised warrants previously 
granted in 1994 to acquire 104,100 and 95,853, respectively, of the Company's 
common stock at an exercise price of $3.25. The proceeds were utilized for 
working capital purposes as the Company had already paid down its term and 
revolver loans. At June 30, 2001, 322,764 of these warrants remain available for 
exercise. 
 
13.      STOCK OPTION PLANS: 
 
Hain: 
 
         In December 1994, the Company adopted the 1994 Long-Term Incentive and 
Stock Award Plan ("Plan"), which amended and restated the Company's 1993 stock 
option plan. On December 9, 1997, the stockholders of the Company approved an 
amendment to increase the number of shares issuable under the 1994 Long Term 
Incentive and Stock Award Plan by 345,000 to 1,200,000 shares. In December 1998, 
the Plan was further amended to increase the number of shares issuable by 
1,200,000 bringing the total shares issuable under this plan to 2,400,000. In 
December 1999, the Plan was further amended to increase the number of shares 
issuable by 1,000,000 bringing the total shares issuable under this plan to 
3,400,000. In May 2000, the Plan was further amended to increase the number of 
shares issuable by 3,000,000 bringing the total shares issuable under this plan 
to 6,400,000. The Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options to 
employees, directors and consultants to purchase shares of the Company's common 
stock. All of the options granted to date under the Plan have been incentive and 
non-qualified stock options providing for exercise prices equivalent to the fair 
market price at date of grant, and expire 10 years after date of grant. Vesting 
terms are determined at the discretion of the Company. During 1999, options to 
purchase 1,175,600 shares were granted at prices from $12.125 to $21.50 per 
share. During 2000, options to purchase 372,550 shares were granted at prices 
ranging from $21.188 to $33.50 per share. During 2001, options to purchase 
1,339,100 shares were granted at prices ranging from $27.125 to $36.6875 per 
shares. At June 30, 2001, 2,332,325 options were available for grant under this 
plan. 
 
         The Company's Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") was granted 125,000 of 
the options granted in 1998, that had been conditionally granted to him at 
$4.8125 per share on the date of grant (June 30, 1997) pending approval of an 
increase in the number of shares available for grant (approved by shareholders 
on December 9, 1997). The Company will incur a straight line non-cash 
compensation charge ($46 annually) over the 10-year vesting period based on the 
excess ($.5 million) of the market value of the stock options 
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($8.50 per share) on December 9, 1997 compared to $4.8125 per share market value 
on the date of grant. 
 
         In December 1995, the Company adopted a Directors Stock Option Plan. 
The Plan provides for the granting of stock options to non-employee directors to 
purchase up to an aggregate of 300,000 shares of the Company's common stock. In 
December 1998, the Director Stock Option Plan was amended to increase the number 
of shares issuable from 300,000 to 500,000. In December 1999, the Director Stock 
Option Plan was amended to increase the number of shares issuable by 250,000, 
bringing the total shares issuable under this plan to 750,000. During 1999, 
options for an aggregate of 95,000 shares were granted at a price of $17.625 per 
share. During 2000, options for an aggregate of 103,500 shares were granted at 
prices of $23.25 and $26.063 per share. In December 2000, options for an 
aggregate of 140,000 shares were granted at prices ranging from $27.75 to 
$32.125 per shares. The remaining available shares in this Director Plan have 
been canceled and no future grants are available on this plan effective January 
2001. 
 
         In May 2000, the Company adopted a new Directors Stock Option Plan. The 
Plan provides for the granting of stock options to non-employee directors to 
purchase up to an aggregate of 750,000 shares of the Company's stock. At June 
30, 2001, no options were granted under this plan. 
 
         The Company also has a 1993 Executive Stock Option Plan pursuant to 
which it granted its CEO options to acquire 600,000 shares of the Company's 
common stock. As a result of the Company achieving certain sales thresholds, all 
of such shares are currently exercisable. The exercise price of options designed 
to qualify as incentive options is $3.58 per share and the exercise price of 
non-qualified options is $3.25 per share. During fiscal 2001, options to 
purchase 65,000 shares were exercised at June 30, 2001. The options expire in 
2003. 
 
Celestial: 
 
         In conjunction with the Merger as previously discussed, all outstanding 
Celestial options became fully vested as of May 30, 2000. All amounts have been 
restated to reflect the conversion of the Celestial stock to Hain stock at a 
ratio of 1.265:1. 
 
         During 1991, Celestial adopted an incentive and non-qualified stock 
option plan that provided for the granting of options to purchase up to 116,663 
shares of Celestial's common stock to employees. The options generally vested 
over a four year period and expired ten years from the grant date. No grants 
were made under the plan and no further grants are available under this plan. 
 
         In 1991, Celestial granted options to an executive officer to purchase 
241,944 shares of the Company's common stock in connection with capital 
contributions made by the officer and certain other agreements. Such options 
were immediately vested at the grant date, are exercisable at a weighted average 
price per share of $3.90 and expire in 2031. 
 
         During 1993, Celestial adopted an incentive and non-qualified stock 
option plan that provided for the granting of awards for up to 331,430 shares 
 
                                      -48- 
 



 
 
 
THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
of Celestial's common stock. Options granted at the time of Celestial's initial 
public offering in 1993 vested over one year and five year periods. Options 
granted subsequent to Celestial's initial public offering generally vested over 
a five-year period. Options expire ten years from the grant date. During 1995, 
Celestial approved an increase in the number of awards that may be granted to 
569,250 shares and in 1998 Celestial approved a further increase of up to 
1,581,250 shares which may be granted under the plan. Effective May 30, 2000, no 
further grants are available under this plan. 
 
         In 1993, Celestial granted options to purchase 25,300 shares of 
Celestial common stock to a director of Celestial. The options vested over a 
three-year period and expire ten years from the grant date. During fiscal 2001, 
all of these options were exercised. 
 
         In 1995, Celestial adopted a non-qualified stock option plan for non- 
employee directors. The plan provides for up to 189,750 shares of Celestial's 
common stock for issuance upon exercise of options granted to non-employee 
directors and in lieu of meeting fees paid to non-employee directors. The 
options vest over a one-year period and expire ten years from the grant date. 
During 1998, Celestial amended this plan to provide each non-employee director 
an initial grant of an option to purchase 12,650 shares and an annual grant, 
commencing in 1999, of an option to purchase 5,060 shares. In addition, 
non-employee directors may elect to receive their annual retainer in shares of 
common stock rather than cash. Effective May 30, 2000, no further grants are 
available under this plan. 
 
         In 1997, Celestial granted options to an executive officer to purchase 
417,450 shares of Celestial's common stock. The options were granted in 
connection with the officer's employment agreement, initially vested over a 
five-year period, are exercisable at $8.70 per share and expire ten years from 
the grant date. During 2001, all of these options were exercised. 
 
Employee stock purchase plan: 
 
         Under Celestial's Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "Plan") Celestial 
is authorized to issue up to 66,286 shares of common stock to its full-time 
employees, nearly all of whom are eligible to participate. Under the terms of 
the Plan, employees can choose each year to have up to 10% of their annual base 
earnings withheld to purchase Celestial's common stock. The purchase price of 
the stock is 85 percent of the lower of the market price at the beginning or end 
of each six month participation period. Approximately 30 percent of eligible 
employees have participated in the Plan in the last three years. Under the Plan, 
Celestial has sold approximately 5,300 shares for the year ended June 30, 2001 
and 10,000 shares for each of the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 
 
Accounting For Stock Issued to Employees: 
 
         The Company has elected to follow APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for 
Stock Issued to Employees" ("APB 25") and related Interpretations, in accounting 
for stock options because, as discussed below, the alternative fair value 
accounting provided for under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS No. 123"), requires use of 
option valuation models that were not developed for use in valuing employee 
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stock options. Under APB 25, when the exercise price of the Company's employee 
stock options at least equals the market price of the underlying stock on the 
date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized. 
 
         Pro-forma information regarding net income(loss) and net income(loss) 
per share is required by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as if the Company 
has accounted for its stock options under the fair value method of that 
Statement. The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant 
using a Black-Sholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average 
assumptions: risk free interest rates ranging from 4.78% to 6.77%; no dividend 
yield; volatility factors of the expected market price of the Company's Common 
Stock of approximately 93% for fiscal 2001, 90% for fiscal 2000 and 57% for 
fiscal 1999; and a weighted-average expected life of the options of five years 
at June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999. 
 
         The Black-Sholes option valuation model was developed for use in 
estimating the fair value of traded options which have no vesting restrictions 
and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the 
input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price 
volatility. Because the Company's stock options have characteristics 
significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the 
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in 
management's opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable 
single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options. 
 
         For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the 
options is amortized to expense over the options' vesting period. The Company's 
pro forma information is as follows: 
 
 
                                 2001             2000               1999 
                            --------------  -----------------  ---------------- 
Pro forma net income(loss)      $  8,515         $ (23,033)           $ 2,897 
Pro forma diluted net           $    .25         $    (.82)           $   .11 
 
         A summary of the transactions pursuant to the Company's stock option 
plans for the three years ended June 30, 2001 follows: 
 
 
 
 
                                      2001                             2000                            1999 
                        --------------------------------  ------------------------------- ------------------------------- 
                                             Weighted                         Weighted                        Weighted 
                                              Average                         Average                          Average 
                                             Exercise                         Exercise                        Exercise 
                             Options           Price          Options          Price          Options           Price 
                        -----------------  -------------  ---------------- -------------- ----------------  ------------- 
                                                                                                 
Outstanding at 
beginning of year               3,997,106        $ 12.91         4,076,088        $ 11.83        3,042,210        $  7.80 
Granted                         1,479,100          27.55           632,710          23.05        1,630,493          18.02 
Exercised                     (1,265,465)          10.16         (572,442)          15.03        (459,592)           5.56 
Terminated                        (7,883)          20.12         (139,250)          18.63        (137,023)          16.78 
                        -----------------  -------------  ---------------- -------------- ----------------  ------------- 
Outstanding at end of 
year                            4,202,858        $ 18.01         3,997,106        $ 12.91        4,076,088        $ 11.83 
                        =================  =============  ================ ============== ================  ============= 
Exercisable at end of 
year                            3,444,219        $ 16.17         3,553,964        $ 11.75        2,831,522        $  9.84 
                        =================  =============  ================ ============== ================  ============= 
Weighted average 
fair value of options 
granted during year            $    20.24                        $   15.23                       $    7.92 
                        =================  =============  ================ ============== ================  ============= 
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    The following table summarizes information for stock options outstanding at 
June 30, 2001: 
 
 
 
                    Options Outstanding                      Options Exercisable 
----------------------------------------------------------- -------------------- 
 
                                 Weighted 
                                 Average        Weighted                Weighted 
 Range of                       Remaining       Average                  Average 
 Exercise         Options      Contractual      Exercise     Options    Exercise 
  Prices        Outstanding        Life          Price     Exercisable    Price 
-------------- ------------- --------------  ------------- ------------- ------- 
 
  $2.94 - $4.83  1,031,142         9.4        $  3.85      1,031,142    $ 3.85 
   7.00 - 14.67    162,520         4.8          10.30        158,621     10.23 
  14.67 - 18.34    771,506         7.2          16.97        771,506     16.97 
  18.34 - 22.01    397,110         7.6          19.82        376,161     19.75 
  22.01 - 25.68    358,630         7.3          22.83        206,639     22.96 
  25.68 - 29.35  1,265,150         8.9          26.88        740,000     26.69 
  29.35 - 33.01    176,800         9.4          31.56        140,150     31.87 
  33.01 - 36.68     40,000         9.0          35.49         20,000     35.49 
                ------------- -----------------------  ------------- ----------- 
                    4,202,858      8.3       $ 18.01      3,444,219    $ 16.17 
                ============= =======================  ============= =========== 
 
Shares of Common Stock reserved for future issuance as of June 30, 2001 are as 
follows: 
 
 
Stock options                         7,410,183 
Warrants                                396,098 
Employee stock purchase plan              3,244 
Convertible promissory notes              4,656 
                                    ----------- 
                                      7,814,181 
                                    =========== 
 
14.      LEASES: 
 
         The Company's corporate headquarters are located in leased office space 
in Uniondale, New York, under a lease which expires in October 2003. The Company 
will be relocating its corporate headquarters in November 2001 to 58 South 
Service Road, Melville, New York, occupying approximately 35,000 square feet. 
Its now existing lease will be terminated without penalty. This new lease runs 
through November 2012 with a current annual rental of approximately $1.3 
million. In addition, the Company leases manufacturing and warehouse space under 
leases which expire through fiscal 2007. These leases provide for additional 
payments of real estate taxes and other operating expenses over a base period 
amount. 
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         The aggregate minimum future lease payments for these operating leases 
at June 30, 2001 are as follows: 
 
 
2002             $ 4,128 
2003               4,089 
2004               3,702 
2005               2,552 
2006               2,734 
Thereafter        10,871 
              ---------- 
                $ 28,076 
              ========== 
 
         Rent expense charged to operations for the years ended June 30, 2001, 
2000 and 1999 was approximately $3,442, $3,217 and $1,823, respectively. 
 
15.      DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS 
 
         The Company has a 401(k) Employee Retirement Plan ("Plan") to provide 
retirement benefits for eligible employees. All full-time employees of the 
Company and its subsidiaries who have attained the age of 21 are eligible to 
participate upon completion of 30 days of service. The subsidiaries of NNG and 
Yves Veggie Cuisine each have their own separate 401 (k)employee retirement 
plan. Employees within those subsidiaries, who meet their respective eligibility 
requirements, may participate in those plans. The Company's Celestial Seasonings 
subsidiary has a contributory thrift plan. Each year, based on the achievement 
of certain targeted operating results, the Company can contribute to the plan an 
amount equal to 1% to 2.5% of thriftable wages. In addition, the Company matches 
a portion (currently 50%) of participant contributions up to the limits provided 
under the plan. Participants may elect to make voluntary contributions to the 
Plan in amounts not exceeding federal guidelines. On an annual basis, the 
Company may, in its sole discretion, make certain matching contributions. For 
the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company made contributions to 
the Plans of $614, $464 and $603, respectively. 
 
16.      LITIGATION: 
 
   On May 5, 1995, a purported stockholder of Celestial filed a lawsuit, 
Schwartz v. Celestial Seasonings, Inc. et al., in the United States District 
Court for the District of Colorado (Civil Action Number: 95-K-1045), in 
connection with disclosures by the Company concerning the Company's license 
agreement with Perrier Group of America, Inc. which was terminated on January 
1, 1995. In addition to Celestial, the complaint named as defendants certain 
of Celestial's then present and former directors and officers, PaineWebber, 
Inc., Shearson/Lehman Brothers, Inc., and Vestar/Celestial Investment Limited 
Partnership. The complaint, which was pled as a class action on behalf of 
persons who acquired Celestial's common stock from July 12, 1993 through May 
18, 1994, sought money damages from Celestial and the other defendants for the 
class in the amount of their loss on their investment in Celestial's common 
stock, punitive damages, costs and expenses of the action, and such other 
relief as the court may order. 
 
   On November 6, 1995, the federal district court granted a motion by Celestial 
and the other defendants to dismiss the case. On September 5, 1997, 
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however, the court of appeals reversed the decision of the district court and 
returned the case to the district court for further proceedings. The case was 
certified as a class action. 
 
         On November 4, 1999, Celestial reached a settlement with the plaintiff, 
which resulted in a pre-tax charge of $1.2 million during Celestial's fourth 
quarter of its fiscal year ending 1999. The settlement was subject to completion 
of a definitive settlement stipulation to be filed in the district court and 
court approval of the settlement. On April 25, 2000, the settlement was approved 
by the courts. The settlement has become final. The Company does not expect any 
additional shareholder lawsuits related to this matter. 
 
         In April 1999, an arbitrator ruled in favor of a former financial 
advisor of Westbrae who claimed fees and expenses due in connection with the 
sale of Westbrae to the Company in October 1997. The Company paid approximately 
$1.3 million, including legal fees, as a result of the arbitrator's decision, 
which amount had been provided for in connection with the 1997 acquisition of 
Westbrae. 
 
         From time to time, the Company is involved in litigation, incidental to 
the conduct of its business. In the opinion of management, disposition of 
pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's 
business, results of operations or financial condition. 
 
Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and 
         Financial Disclosure. 
 
         There were no changes in or disagreements with accountants on 
accounting and financial disclosure. 
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                                                        PART III 
 
Item 10, "Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant", Item 11, 
"Executive Compensation", Item 12, "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial 
Owners and Management", and Item 13, "Certain Relationships and Related 
Transactions", have been omitted from this report inasmuch as the Company will 
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A 
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report a 
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company 
to be held on December 11, 2001, at which meeting the stockholders will vote 
upon election of the directors. This information under the caption "Election of 
Directors" in such Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
                                                         PART IV 
Item 14.          Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule, and Reports on 
                  Form 8-K. 
 
(a) (1)           List of Financial statements 
 
         Consolidated Balance Sheets - June 30, 2001 and 2000 
 
         Consolidated Statements of Operations - Years ended June 30, 2001, 
         2000 and 1999 
 
         Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 
         and 1999 
 
         Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity - Years ended June 30, 
         2001, 2000 and 1999 
 
         Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
   (2)            List of Financial Statement Schedule 
 
         Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (Schedule II) 
 
   (3)            List of Exhibits 
 
 
3.1           Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by 
              reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant's 
              Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Commission File No. 333-33830) 
              filed with the Commission on April 24, 2000). 
3.2           Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference 
              to Exhibit 3.2 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant's 
              Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Commission File 
              No. 333-33830) filed with the Commission on April 24, 
              2000). 
4.1           Specimen of common stock certificate (incorporated by reference 
              to Exhibit 4.1 of Amendment No.1 to the Registrant's Registration 
              Statement on Form S-4 (Commission File No. 333-33830) filed with 
              the Commission on April 24, 2000). 
4.2           1993 Executive Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to 
              Exhibit 4.2 of Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant's Registration 
              Statement on Form SB-2 (Commission File No. 33-68026) filed with 
              the Commission on October 21, 1993). 
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4.3           Amended and Restated 1994 Long Term Incentive and Stock 
              Award Plan (included as Annex F to the Joint Proxy 
              Statement/Prospectus contained in the Registrant's 
              Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Commission File 
              No. 333-33830) filed with the Commission on April 24, 
              2000). 
4.4           1996 Directors Stock Option Plan (incorporated by 
              reference to Appendix A to the Registrant's Notice of 
              Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement dated 
              November 4, 1996). 
4.5           2000 Directors Stock Option Plan (included as Annex G to 
              the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus contained in the 
              Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 
              (Commission File No. 333-33830) filed with the 
              Commission on April 24, 2000). 
10.1a         Credit Agreement dated as of March 29, 2001 by and among the 
              Registrant and Fleet National Bank, as administrative agent, 
              Suntrust Bank, as syndication agent, HSBC Bank USA, as 
              documentation agent, and the lenders party thereto, as amended. 
10.2          Investor's Agreement among the Registrant, Boulder Inc. 
              (formerly Earth's Best, Inc.) and Irwin D. Simon dated 
              September 24, 1999 (incorporated by reference to 
              Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant's Current Report on 
              Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 30, 
              1999). 
10.3          Registration Rights Agreement between the Registrant and 
              Boulder Inc. (formerly Earth's Best, Inc.), dated 
              September 24, 1999 (incorporated by reference to 
              Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant's Current Report on 
              Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 30, 
              1999). 
10.4          Form of Change in Control Agreement for Executive Officers 
              (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's 
              Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended 
              September 30, 2000 filed with the Commission on November 14, 
              2000). 
10.5          Employment Agreement for Chief Executive Officer 
              (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the 
              Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
              fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2000 filed with the 
              Commission on November 14, 2000). 
21            Subsidiaries of Registrant 
23            Consent of Independent Auditors - Ernst & Young LLP 
23.1          Consent of Independent Auditors - Deloitte & Touche LLP 
23.2          Independent Auditors Report for Financial Statement Schedule 
              - Deloitte & Touche LLP 
a - Filed herewith 
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(b)      Reports on Form 8-K 
 
         On August 20, 2001, the Company filed a report on Form 8-K disclosing 
an announcement concerning expected revenues and an earnings per share range for 
its fiscal fourth quarter ended June 30, 2001. 
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SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 
 
 
 
 
                       Column A                         Column B          Column C              Column D      Column E 
                                                                         Additions 
                                                       Balance at  Charged to Charged to other                Balance at 
                                                        beginning  costs and    accounts -      Deductions     end of 
                                                        of period   expenses    describe         describe      period 
------------------------------------------------------ ----------  ---------- ---------------  -------------- ---------- 
                                                                                                   
Year Ended June 30, 2001 Deducted from asset accounts: 
  Allowance for doubtful accounts                        $    929     $   393     $    41 (1)     $   548 (2)    $   815 
Year Ended June 30, 2000 
 Deducted from asset accounts: 
  Allowance for doubtful accounts                        $  1,287     $   432     $   100 (1)     $   890 (2)    $   929 
Year Ended June 30, 1999 
 Deducted from asset accounts: 
  Allowance for doubtful accounts                        $    859     $   313     $   316 (1)     $   201 (2)    $ 1,287 
 
 
 
 
 
(1) Allowance for doubtful accounts at dates of acquisitions of acquired 
    businesses. 
(2) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries. 
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                                                      SIGNATURES 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its 
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
By:     /s/ Irwin D. Simon 
        -------------------------------- 
        Irwin D. Simon 
        Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
Date: September 28, 2001 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report 
has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and 
in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
 
      Signature                      Title                       Date 
 
/s/ Irwin D. Simon          President, Chief          September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Irwin D. Simon              Executive Officer 
                            and Chairman of the 
                            Board of Directors 
 
/s/ Mo Siegel               Vice Chairman of the      September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Mo Siegel                   Board of Directors 
 
/s/ Gary M. Jacobs          Executive Vice President, 
----------------------- 
Gary M. Jacobs              Finance and Chief 
                            Financial Officer         September 28, 2001 
 
/s/ Andrew Heyer            Director                  September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Andrew R. Heyer 
 
/s/ Beth L. Bronner         Director                  September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Beth L. Bronner 
 
/s/ Jack Futterman          Director                  September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Jack Futterman 
 
/s/ James Gold              Director                  September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
James S. Gold 
 
/s/ Joseph Jimenez          Director                  September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Joseph Jimenez 
 
/s/ Roger Meltzer           Director                  September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Roger Meltzer 
 
/s/ Marina Hahn             Director                  September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Marina Hahn 
 
/s/ Gregg Ostrander         Director                  September 28, 2001 
----------------------- 
Gregg Ostrander 
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         CREDIT AGREEMENT dated as of March 29, 2001, by and among THE HAIN 
CELESTIAL GROUP, INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), the LENDERS which 
from time to time are parties to this Agreement (individually, a "Lender" and, 
collectively, the "Lenders"), FLEET NATIONAL BANK, a national banking 
association organized under the laws of the United States of America, as 
Administrative Agent (the "Administrative Agent), SUNTRUST BANK, a Georgia 
banking corporation, as Syndication Agent (the "Syndication Agent"), and HSBC 
BANK USA, a New York banking corporation, as Documentation Agent (the 
"Documentation Agent"). 
 
                                                     RECITALS 
 
         The Company has requested the Lenders to extend credit from time to 
time and the Lenders are willing to extend such credit to the Company, subject 
to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 
         Accordingly, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
                                    ARTICLE I 
                        DEFINITIONS AND ACCOUNTING TERMS 
 
SECTION 1.01.   Definitions.  As used herein, the following terms shall have the 
               ----------- 
following meanings: 
 
         "Acceptable Acquisition" shall mean any acquisition (whether by merger 
or otherwise) by the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company of more than 50% 
of the outstanding capital stock, membership interests, partnership interests or 
other similar ownership interests of a Person which is engaged in a line of 
business similar to the business of the Company or such Subsidiary (or 
reasonable extensions thereof) or the purchase of all or substantially all of 
the assets owned by such Person; provided that (a) with respect to such Person 
which is the subject of an acquisition, such acquisition has been (i) approved 
by the board of directors or other appropriate governing body of such Person or 
(ii) recommended for approval by such board of directors or governing body to 
the shareholders, members, partners, or other owners of such Person, as required 
under applicable law or by the certificate of incorporation and by-laws or other 
organizational documents of such Person and subsequently approved by the 
shareholders, members, partners, or other owners of such Person if such approval 
is required under applicable law or by the certificate of incorporation and 
by-laws or other organizational documents of such Person or (iii) otherwise 
agreed by all shareholders, members, partners or other owners of such Person; 
(b) no acquisition shall be an Acceptable Acquisition if a Default or Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would result after giving 
effect to such acquisition; (c) any acquisition that would result in the Company 
having a ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated EBITDA, 
determined on a pro forma basis with respect to the most recently concluded four 
fiscal quarters, of greater than 2.00:1.00, shall require the prior approval of 
the Lenders; (d) no acquisition shall be an Acceptable Acquisition if the 
business which is the subject of such acquisition has a negative EBITDA (on an 
adjusted basis) for the most recently concluded four quarters, and (e) in the 
case of a Non-Domestic Acquisition, 
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the business to be acquired shall be acquired by (i) the Company or a Domestic 
Subsidiary, (ii) a First-Tier Subsidiary of the Company or a Domestic 
Subsidiary, or (iii) a direct or indirect wholly- owned Subsidiary of a 
First-Tier Subsidiary of a Domestic Subsidiary, provided that if such First- 
Tier Subsidiary is a Non-Domestic Subsidiary, then 65% of the capital stock of 
such First-Tier Subsidiary shall have been pledged to the Administrative Agent 
for the benefit of the Lenders. For purposes of clause (d) hereof, EBITDA of any 
subject of an acquisition may be adjusted only to reflect the pro forma impact 
of the proposed acquisition and the elimination of prior non-recurring or 
unusual items. 
 
         "Adjusted Libor Loans" shall mean Loans at such time as they are made 
and/or being maintained at a rate of interest based upon Reserve Adjusted Libor. 
 
         "Administrative Agent" shall mean Fleet National Bank in its capacity 
as Administrative Agent for the Lenders under this Agreement or its successor 
Administrative Agent permitted pursuant to Section 9.08 hereof. 
 
         "Affiliate" shall mean, with respect to a specified Person, another 
Person which, directly or indirectly, controls or is controlled by or is under 
common control with such specified Person. For the purpose of this definition, 
"control" of a Person shall mean the power, direct or indirect, to direct or 
cause the direction of the management or policies of such Person whether through 
the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; provided that, in 
any event, any Person who owns directly or indirectly 10% or more of the 
securities having ordinary voting power for the election of directors or other 
governing body of a corporation or 10% or more of the partnership or other 
ownership interests of any Person (other than as a limited partner of such other 
Person) will be deemed to control such corporation or other Person. 
 
         "Agents" shall mean, collectively, the Administrative Agent, the 
Syndication Agent and the Documentation Agent, and each is individually an 
"Agent." 
 
         "Aggregate Letters of Credit Outstandings" shall mean, on the date of 
determination, the sum of (a) the aggregate maximum stated amount at such time 
which is available or available in the future to be drawn under all outstanding 
Letters of Credit and (b) the aggregate amount of all payments on account of 
drawings under Letters of Credit made by the Issuing Lender on behalf of the 
Lenders under any Letter of Credit that has not been reimbursed by the Company. 
 
         "Aggregate Outstandings" shall mean, on the date of determination, the 
sum of (a) the Aggregate Revolving Credit Facility A Outstandings and (b) the 
Aggregate Revolving Credit Facility B Outstandings. 
 
         "Aggregate Revolving Credit Facility A Outstandings" shall mean, on the 
date of determination, the sum of (a) the Aggregate Letters of Credit 
Outstandings at such time, (b) the aggregate outstanding principal amount of all 
Revolving Credit Facility A Loans at such time and (c) the aggregate outstanding 
principal amount of all Swingline Loans at such time. 
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         "Aggregate Revolving Credit Facility B Outstandings" shall mean on the 
date of determination, the aggregate outstanding principal amount of all 
Revolving Credit Facility B Loans at such time. 
 
         "Agreement" shall mean this Credit Agreement dated as of March 29, 
2001, as it may hereafter be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise 
modified from time to time. 
 
         "Annual SEC Report" means each Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by the 
Company with the SEC. 
 
         "Assignment and Acceptance Agreement" shall mean an Assignment and 
Acceptance Agreement entered into by a Lender and an assignee and accepted by 
the Administrative Agent and, so long as no Event of Default shall have occurred 
and be continuing, the Company (such acceptance by the Company not to be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed), in the form attached hereto as Exhibit F or 
any other form approved by the Administrative Agent. 
 
         "Auditors" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.03(a) hereof. 
 
         "Available Revolving Credit Commitment" shall mean, on the date of 
determination, the Total Revolving Credit Commitment, reduced by the then 
Aggregate Outstandings. 
 
         "Base Rate" shall mean, for any day, the higher of: (a) 0.50% per annum 
above the Federal Funds Rate and (b) the Prime Rate, in each case as then in 
effect. 
 
         "Base Rate Loans" shall mean Loans at such time as they are being made 
and/or maintained at a rate of interest based upon the Base Rate. 
 
         "Borrowing Date" shall mean, with respect to any Loan, the date 
specified in any notice given pursuant to Section 2.01 on which such Loan is 
requested by the Company. 
 
         "Business Day" shall mean (a) any day not a Saturday, Sunday or other 
day on which commercial banks in New York, New York are authorized or required 
by law to close, and (b) as it relates to any payment, determination, funding or 
notice to be made or given in connection with any Adjusted Libor Loan, any day 
specified in clause (a) on which trading is carried on by and between banks in 
Dollar deposits in the London interbank eurodollar market. 
 
         "Capital Lease" shall mean, with respect to any Person, as of the date 
of determination any lease the obligations of which are required to be 
capitalized on the balance sheet of such Person in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles applied on a consistent basis. 
 
         "Cash Collateral" shall mean a deposit by the Company made in 
immediately available funds to a cash collateral account at the Administrative 
Agent and the taking of all action required to 
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provide the Administrative Agent, for the ratable benefit of the Lenders, a 
first priority perfected security interest in such deposit. 
 
     "Celestial" shall mean Celestial Seasonings, Inc., a Delaware corporation. 
 
     "Celestial EDRB" means the Colorado Housing and Finance Authority  Variable 
Rate Demand/Fixed Rate Economic Development Revenue Bonds (Celestial Seasonings, 
Inc. Project) Series 1989. 
 
         "Change of Control" shall mean any event which results in (i) any 
Person, or two or more Persons acting in concert, acquiring beneficial ownership 
(within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), directly or indirectly, 
of securities of the Company (or other securities convertible into such 
securities) representing 50% or more of the combined voting power of all 
securities of the Company entitled to vote in the election of directors; or (ii) 
the individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board of Directors of 
the Company, together with those who first become directors subsequent to such 
date, provided the recommendation, election or nomination for election to the 
Board of Directors of such subsequent directors was approved by a vote of at 
least a majority of the directors then still in office who were either directors 
as of the date hereof or whose recommendation, election or nomination for 
election was previously so approved, ceasing for any reason to constitute a 
majority of the members of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
         "Chief Financial Officer" shall mean the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company or, in the event no such officership exists, the Vice President of 
Finance of the Company. 
 
         "Closing Date" shall mean March 29, 2001. 
 
         "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder, each as amended from time to time. 
 
         "Commercial Letter of Credit" shall mean any Sight Letter of Credit 
issued for the account of a Person. 
 
         "Commitment Proportion" shall mean, with respect to each Lender at the 
time of determination, the ratio, expressed as a percentage, (a) which such 
Lender's Revolving Credit Commitments bear to the Total Commitment or (b) if the 
Revolving Credit Commitments have expired or have been terminated, which such 
Lender's Loans bear to the principal balance of the Loans then outstanding, at 
such time. 
 
         "Commitments" shall mean, collectively, the Revolving Credit 
Commitments and the Swingline Commitments. 
 
         "Company" shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto. 
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         "Consolidated EBITDA" shall mean, for the Company and its Subsidiaries 
for any period, the Consolidated Net Income (Net Loss) of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries for such period, plus the sum, without duplication, of (a) 
Consolidated Interest Expense, (b) depreciation and amortization expenses or 
charges, (c) all income taxes to any government or governmental instrumentality 
expensed on the Company's or its Subsidiaries' books (whether paid or accrued), 
(d) reasonable and customary acquisition or merger charges, non-cash and 
non-recurring restructuring charges and non- cash and non-recurring impairment 
of assets write-offs (provided that the portion of the sum of the items referred 
to in this clause (d) that exceeds 25% of Consolidated EBITDA shall not be 
included for purposes of this definition), and (e) cumulative non-cash change in 
accounting effects or non- cash extraordinary items as determined in accordance 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles minus the sum of (a) all 
extraordinary or unusual gains, and (b) all interest income, determined on a 
consolidated basis for the Company and its Subsidiaries in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applied on a consistent basis. All of 
the foregoing categories shall be calculated with respect to the Company and its 
Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis and shall be calculated (without 
duplication) over the four fiscal quarters immediately preceding the date of 
calculation thereof. 
 
         "Consolidated Interest Expense" shall mean, on the date of 
determination, the sum of all interest expense on Indebtedness of the Company 
and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, determined in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applied on a consistent basis. 
Consolidated Interest Expense shall be calculated with respect to the Company 
and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis and shall be calculated (without 
duplication) over the four fiscal quarters immediately preceding the date of 
calculation thereof. 
 
         "Consolidated Maintenance Capital Expenditures" shall mean, on the date 
of determination, the sum of expenditures by the Company and its Subsidiaries, 
on a consolidated basis, by the expenditure of cash or the incurrence of 
Indebtedness, with respect to the replacement, repair, maintenance and upkeep of 
any fixed or capital assets (to the extent capitalized on the financial 
statements of the Company), in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles applied on a consistent basis. Consolidated Maintenance Capital 
Expenditures shall be calculated (without duplication) over the four fiscal 
quarters immediately preceding the date of calculation thereof. 
 
         "Consolidated Net Income (Net Loss)" shall mean, for any period, the 
net income (or net loss) of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated 
basis for such period determined in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles applied on a consistent basis; provided that there shall 
be excluded therefrom the income (or deficit) of any Person (other than a 
Subsidiary that would be included in the consolidated financial statements of 
the Company and its Subsidiaries in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles) in which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has an 
ownership interest (e.g. a joint venture), except to the extent that any such 
income has been actually received by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in 
the form of dividends or similar distributions. 
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         "Consolidated Tangible Assets" shall mean, on the date of 
determination, total assets less goodwill and other intangible assets as 
determined in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applied 
on a consistent basis. 
 
         "Consolidated Tangible Net Worth" shall mean, on the date of 
determination (a) the total Consolidated Tangible Assets of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries less (b) the total consolidated liabilities of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries. For purposes of calculating compliance with the covenant set forth 
in Section 7.13(c) hereof only, goodwill and other intangible assets associated 
with an Acceptable Acquisition shall be treated as a tangible asset following 
the closing of such Acceptable Acquisition. 
 
         "Consolidated Total Funded Debt" shall mean, on the date of 
determination, the sum of all Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries, 
on a consolidated basis, for borrowed money including the current portion 
thereof and including obligations with respect to Capital Leases, determined in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applied on a consistent 
basis. 
 
         "Current SEC Report" means the most recently filed Annual SEC Report or 
Quarterly SEC Report. 
 
         "Default" shall mean any condition or event which upon notice, lapse of 
time or both would constitute an Event of Default. 
 
         "Dividends" shall mean, for any period, the sum of all dividends and 
distributions made by the Company determined in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles applied on a consistent basis. 
 
         "Dollar" and the symbol "$" shall mean lawful currency of the United 
States of America. 
 
         "Documentation Agent" shall mean HSBC Bank USA in its capacity as 
Documentation Agent for the Lenders under this Agreement or its successor 
Documentation Agent permitted pursuant to Section 9.08 hereof. 
 
         "Domestic Subsidiary" shall mean any Subsidiary of the Company 
organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America. 
 
         "Dutch Pledge Agreement" means that certain Deed of Pledge governed 
under the laws of the Netherlands, establishing a first priority right of pledge 
by the Company of 65% of the capital stock or other equity interests of Hain 
Europe or any Deed of Pledge executed following the date of this Agreement in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 7.08 hereof with respect to 65% of the 
capital stock or other equity interests in any future Non-Domestic First-Tier 
Subsidiary of either the Company or a Domestic Subsidiary which becomes the 
parent of Hain Europe, in each case, 
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substantially in the form of Exhibit I-3 hereto to be executed by the Company, 
or a Domestic Subsidiary, as applicable, in favor of the Administrative Agent as 
agent for the Lenders. 
 
         "EBITDA" shall mean, for any Person for any period, Net Income (Net 
Loss) of such Person for such period, plus the sum, without duplication, of (a) 
Interest Expense, (b) depreciation and amortization expenses or charges, and (c) 
all income taxes to any government or governmental instrumentality expensed on 
such Person's books (whether paid or accrued) minus the sum of (a) all 
extraordinary or unusual gains, and (b) all interest income, determined in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applied on a consistent 
basis; provided that, if such Person has Subsidiaries, all of the foregoing 
categories shall be determined for such Person and its Subsidiaries on a 
consolidated basis in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, 
applied on a consistent basis. All of the foregoing categories shall be 
calculated with respect to such Person and shall be calculated (without 
duplication) over the four fiscal quarters immediately preceding the date of 
calculation thereof. 
 
         "Eligible Investments" shall mean (a) direct obligations of the United 
States of America or any governmental agency thereof which are fully guaranteed 
by the United States of America, provided that such obligations mature within 
one year from the date of acquisition thereof; or (b) Dollar denominated 
certificates of time deposit maturing within one year issued by any bank 
organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any state thereof 
and having aggregate capital and surplus in excess of $1,000,000,000; or (c) 
money market mutual funds having assets in excess of $2,500,000,000; or (d) 
commercial paper rated not less than P-1 or A-1 or their equivalent by Moody's 
Investors Service, Inc. or Standard & Poor's Ratings Group, respectively; or (e) 
tax exempt securities of a U.S. issuer rated A or better by Standard and Poor's 
Ratings Group or rated A-2 or better by Moody's Investors Service, Inc.; or (f) 
common stock issued by any corporation under the federal laws of the United 
States of America or any state thereof which stock is traded on any U.S. 
national securities exchange or quoted on NASDAQ, provided that, (i) at the time 
of purchase such common stock has a minimum share price of at least $5.00 per 
share, (ii) if any Loans are outstanding at the time of purchase, such 
corporation is engaged in a similar line of business as the Company and its 
Subsidiaries, and (iii) the aggregate of all such purchases, determined in each 
instance at the time of purchase, of the common stock held by the Company and 
its Subsidiaries shall not exceed $20,000,000. 
 
         "Environmental Law" shall mean any applicable law, ordinance, rule, 
regulation, or policy having the force of law of any Governmental Authority 
relating to pollution or protection of the environment or to the use, handling, 
transportation, treatment, storage, disposal, release or discharge of Hazardous 
Materials, including, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. Sections 
9601, et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as amended (49 
U.S.C. Sections 1801, et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Sections 6901, et seq.) and the rules and regulations 
promulgated pursuant thereto. 
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         "ERISA" shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 
as amended from time to time. 
 
         "ERISA Affiliate" shall mean each person (as defined in Section 3(9) of 
ERISA) which together with the Company or any Affiliate of the Company would be 
deemed to be a member of the same "controlled group" within the meaning of 
Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code. 
 
         "Eurocurrency Reserve Requirement" shall mean a fraction (expressed as 
a decimal), the numerator of which is the number one and the denominator of 
which is the number one minus the aggregate (without duplication) of the rates 
(expressed as a decimal) of reserve requirements in effect on such day 
(including, without limitation, basic, supplemental, marginal and emergency 
reserves, under any regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System or any other governmental authority having jurisdiction with respect 
thereto) as from time to time in effect, dealing with reserve requirements 
prescribed for eurocurrency funding (currently referred to as "eurocurrency 
liabilities" in Regulation D) maintained by any Lender. 
 
         "Event of Default" shall have the meaning set forth in Article VIII. 
 
         "Excluded Subsidiary" shall mean any Subsidiary of the Company which as 
of the last day of the then most recent fiscal quarter ended has total assets of 
less than $10,000 and total revenues for the then immediately preceding four 
fiscal quarters of less than $10,000. 
 
         "Existing Indebtedness" shall mean the Indebtedness of the Company on 
the Closing Date arising pursuant to (i) that certain credit agreement by and 
between the Company and Fleet National Bank, dated as of July 20, 2000, (ii) 
that certain credit agreement dated November 2, 1998, as amended, among the 
Company, Celestial and KeyBank relating to the Celestial EDRB and (iii) the IBJ 
Standby Letter of Credit. 
 
         "Existing Letters of Credit" shall mean, collectively, the letters of 
credit issued by Fleet National Bank for the account of the Company or any 
Guarantor prior to the date hereof as set forth on Schedule VI and the KeyBank 
Letter of Credit. 
 
         "Federal Funds Rate" shall mean, for any day, the weighted average of 
the rates on overnight Federal funds transactions with members of the Federal 
Reserve System arranged by Federal fund brokers, as published on the next 
succeeding Business Day by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or, if such 
rate is not so published for any day which is a Business Day, the average of the 
quotations for the day of such transactions received by the Administrative Agent 
from three Federal fund brokers of recognized standing selected by the 
Administrative Agent. 
 
         "First-Tier Subsidiary" shall mean any Subsidiary of any Person which 
Subsidiary is directly owned by such Person . 
 
     "Fruit  Chips" means Fruit Chips B.V., a  corporation  organized  under the 
laws of The Netherlands. 
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         "Fruit Chips Spanish Joint Venture" means that certain preliminary 
joint venture agreement dated November 16, 2000 between Galletas Siro, S.A. 
("Galletas") and Fruit Chips relating to the manufacturing and marketing of 
vacuum-fried potatoes and vegetables in Europe whereby Galletas and Fruit Chips 
shall each make a 50% investment in a company to be formed by Fruit Chips or a 
wholly-owned Subsidiary of Fruit Chips and Galletas in accordance with the terms 
of such joint venture agreement. 
 
         "Generally Accepted Accounting Principles" shall mean those generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, as in effect 
from time to time. 
 
         "Governmental Authority" shall mean any nation or government, any 
state, province, city or municipal entity or other political subdivision 
thereof, and any governmental, executive, legislative, judicial, administrative 
or regulatory agency, department, authority, instrumentality, commission, board 
or similar body, whether federal, state, provincial, territorial, local or 
foreign. 
 
     "Guarantors" shall mean, collectively,  Celestial, Arrowhead Mills, Inc., a 
Delaware  corporation,  Kineret  Foods  Corporation,  a  New  York  corporation, 
Westbrae  Natural,  Inc., a Delaware  corporation,  Hain Pure Food Co.,  Inc., a 
California  corporation,  Natural Nutrition Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation, 
Little Bear Organic  Foods,  Inc., a California  corporation,  Westbrae  Natural 
Foods,  Inc.,  a  California  corporation,  Health  Valley  Company,  a Delaware 
corporation,  AMI  Operating,  Inc., a Texas  corporation,  DeBoles  Nutritional 
Foods,  Inc.,  a  New  York  corporation,  Dana  Alexander,  Inc.,  a  New  York 
corporation,  Mountain  Chai  Company,  a Colorado  corporation,  and each other 
Domestic Subsidiary of the Company who, from time to time hereafter, is required 
to execute a Guaranty in accordance with Section 6.12 hereof; provided that such 
Domestic Subsidiary's status as a Guarantor shall be effective as of the date of 
such execution. 
 
         "Guaranty" shall mean the Guaranty in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit E to be executed and delivered by each Guarantor on the Closing Date and 
thereafter by any Domestic Subsidiaries of the Company required to deliver a 
Guaranty pursuant to Section 6.12 hereof, as the same may hereafter be amended, 
restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time. 
 
         "Hain Europe" means Hain Celestial Europe B.V., a corporation 
incorporated under the laws of The Netherlands, with its registered office at 
Amsterdam, The Netherlands, and a wholly-owned Non-Domestic Subsidiary of the 
Company. 
 
         "Hazardous Materials" shall mean any explosives, radioactive materials, 
or other materials, wastes, substances, or chemicals regulated as toxic or 
hazardous or as a pollutant, contaminant or waste under any applicable 
Environmental Law. 
 
         "Hedging Agreement" shall mean any interest rate swap, collar, cap, 
floor or forward rate agreement or other agreement between the Company and the 
Administrative Agent regarding the hedging of interest rate risk exposure 
executed in connection with hedging the interest rate exposure of the Company 
and any confirming letter executed pursuant to such agreement, all as amended, 
supplemented, restated or otherwise modified from time to time. 
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         "IBJ Standby Letter of Credit" means that certain standby letter of 
credit issued by IBJ Whitehall Bank & Trust ("IBJW") under a credit agreement 
dated May 18, 1999, as amended, among the Company, IBJW and the other parties 
thereto relating to the Celestial EDRB. 
 
         "Indebtedness" shall mean, without duplication, as to any Person or 
Persons, (a) indebtedness for borrowed money; (b) indebtedness for the deferred 
purchase price of property or services; (c) indebtedness evidenced by bonds, 
debentures, notes or other similar instruments; (d) obligations and liabilities 
secured by a Lien upon property owned by such Person, whether or not owing by 
such Person and even though such Person has not assumed or become liable for the 
payment thereof; (e) obligations or liabilities created or arising under any 
conditional sales contract or other title retention agreement with respect to 
property used and/or acquired by such Person; (f) the capitalized portion of 
obligations of such Person as lessee under Capital Leases; (g) net liabilities 
of such Person under Hedging Agreements and foreign currency exchange 
agreements, as calculated in accordance with accepted practice; (h) all 
obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such Person as an account party or 
applicant in respect of letters of credit created for the account or upon the 
application of such Person; (i) all obligations of such Person, contingent or 
otherwise, to purchase, redeem, retire or otherwise acquire for value any equity 
interest in any Person; (j) obligations and liabilities of the types described 
in clause (a) through (i) above, directly or indirectly, guaranteed by such 
Person; and (k) all liabilities which would be reflected on a balance sheet of 
such Person, prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles. 
 
         "Intellectual Property" shall mean all of the trademarks (whether or 
not registered) and trademark registrations and applications, patent and patent 
applications, copyrights and copyright applications, service marks, service mark 
registrations and applications, trade dress, and trade and product names owned 
or licensed by the Company and its Subsidiaries. 
 
         "Interest Expense" shall mean, on the date of determination, the sum of 
all interest expense on Indebtedness of any Person, determined in accordance 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applied on a consistent basis. 
Interest Expense shall be calculated with respect to such Person (without 
duplication) over the four fiscal quarters immediately preceding the date of 
calculation thereof. 
 
         "Interest Payment Date" shall mean (a) as to any Base Rate Loan, the 
last day of each calendar month during the term hereof; (b) as to any Adjusted 
Libor Loan, the last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto; and (c) as 
to any Loan, on the date such Loan is paid in full or in part; provided, 
however, that if any Interest Period for an Adjusted Libor Loan exceeds three 
months, the date that falls three months after the beginning of such Interest 
Period shall also be an Interest Payment Date. 
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         "Interest Period" shall mean with respect to any Adjusted Libor Loan: 
 
         (a) initially, the period commencing on the date such Adjusted Libor 
Loan is made and ending one, two, three or six months thereafter, as selected by 
the Company in its notice of borrowing or in its notice of conversion from a 
Base Rate Loan, in each case, in accordance with the terms of Articles II and 
III hereof; and 
 
         (b) thereafter, each period commencing on the last day of the next 
preceding Interest Period applicable to such Adjusted Libor Loan and ending one, 
two, three or six months thereafter, as selected by the Company by irrevocable 
written notice to the Administrative Agent not later than 11:00 a.m. New York, 
New York time three Business Days prior to the last day of the then current 
Interest Period with respect to such Adjusted Libor Loan and the Administrative 
Agent shall promptly notify each of the Lenders of such notice; provided, 
however, that all of the foregoing provisions relating to Interest Periods are 
subject to the following: 
 
                           (i) if any Interest Period would otherwise end on a 
                  day which is not a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be 
                  extended to the next succeeding Business Day unless the result 
                  of such extension would be to carry such Interest Period into 
                  another calendar month in which event such Interest Period 
                  shall end on the immediately preceding Business Day; 
 
                           (ii) if the Company shall fail to give notice as 
                  provided in clause (b) above, the Company shall be deemed to 
                  have requested conversion of the affected Adjusted Libor Loan 
                  to a Base Rate Loan on the last day of the then current 
                  Interest Period with respect thereto; 
 
                           (iii) any Interest Period that begins on the last 
                  Business Day of a calendar month (or on a day for which there 
                  is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month at 
                  the end of such Interest Period) shall end on the last 
                  Business Day of a calendar month; 
 
     (iv) no more than six (6) Interest Periods may exist at any one time; and 
 
                           (v) the Company shall select Interest Periods so as 
                  not to require a payment or prepayment of any Adjusted Libor 
                  Loan during an Interest Period for such Adjusted Libor Loan. 
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         "Interest Rate Margin" shall mean (a) with respect to each Adjusted 
Libor Loan, the percentage set forth below under the heading "LIBOR Margin" 
opposite the applicable ratio and (b) with respect to each Base Rate Loan, the 
percentage set forth below under the heading "Base Rate Margin" opposite the 
applicable ratio. 
 
 
Consolidated Total  Funded Debt           LIBOR Margin      Base Rate Margin 
to Consolidated EBITDA                  (360 Day Basis)      (360 Day Basis) 
-----------------------------------     ---------------     ---------------- 
 
Greater than or equal to 2.50:1.00           1.875%               .875% 
Greater than or equal to 2.00:1.00 
and less than 2.50:1.00                      1.625%               .625% 
Greater than or equal to 1.50:1.00 
and less than 2.00:1.00                      1.375%               .375% 
Greater than or equal to 1.00:1.00 
and less than 1.50:1.00                      1.125%               .125% 
 
Less than 1.00:1.00                           1.00%               -0-% 
 
If the Aggregate Outstandings hereunder exceed thirty-three percent (33%) of the 
Total Commitments hereunder at any time, then for so long as the Aggregate 
Outstandings exceed such amount the Interest Rate Margins set forth above shall 
be increased by 12.5 basis points. 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period commencing on the Closing Date 
and ending on the tenth Business Day following the date of delivery of the 
financial statements to the Administrative Agent for the fiscal quarter ended 
March 31, 2001 (a) the Interest Rate Margin with respect to each Adjusted Libor 
Loan shall be 1.00% per annum, and (b) the Interest Rate Margin with respect to 
each Base Rate Loan shall be 0.00% per annum. The Interest Rate Margin will be 
set or reset quarterly with respect to each Loan on the date which is ten 
Business Days following the date of receipt by the Administrative Agent of the 
financial statements referred to in Section 6.03(a) or Section 6.03(b) hereof, 
as applicable, together with a certificate of the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company certifying the ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated 
EBITDA and setting forth the calculation thereof in detail; provided, however, 
if any such financial statement and certificate are not received by the 
Administrative Agent within the time period required pursuant to Section 6.03(a) 
or Section 6.03(b) hereof, as the case may be, the Interest Rate Margin will be 
set or reset, unless the rate of interest specified in Section 3.01(c) hereof is 
in effect solely due to the failure of the Company to comply with Section 
6.03(a) or 6.03(b) hereof, to a rate determined based on a ratio of Consolidated 
Total Funded Debt to Consolidated EBITDA of greater than or equal to 2.50:1.00 
from the date such financial statement and certificate were due until the date 
which is ten Business Days following the receipt by the Administrative Agent of 
such financial statement and certificate, and provided, further, that the 
Lenders shall not in any way be deemed to have waived any Default or Event of 
Default, including, without limitation, an Event of Default resulting from 
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the failure of the Company to comply with Section 7.13 of this Agreement, or any 
rights or remedies hereunder or under any other Loan Document in connection with 
the foregoing proviso. During the occurrence and continuance of an Event of 
Default, no downward adjustment, and only upward adjustments, shall be made to 
the Interest Rate Margin. 
 
         "IP Subsidiary" means any direct or indirect wholly-owned Non-Domestic 
Subsidiary formed in accordance with Section 6.12 hereof for the purpose of 
owning certain Intellectual Property. 
 
         "Issuing Lender" shall mean the Administrative Agent, in its capacity 
as the issuer of Letters of Credit hereunder or its successor Issuing Lender 
permitted pursuant to Section 2.03(e) hereof, except that, with respect to the 
KeyBank Letter of Credit, the Issuing Lender shall mean KeyBank, in its capacity 
as the issuer of the KeyBank Letter of Credit. 
 
         "KeyBank" shall mean KeyBank National Association, a national banking 
association. 
 
         "KeyBank Letter of Credit" shall mean that certain letter of credit 
issued by KeyBank under a credit agreement dated November 2, 1998, as amended, 
among the Company, Celestial and KeyBank relating to the Celestial EDRB which, 
as of December 31, 2000, had an outstanding balance of $5,817,124.24, together 
with any replacement Letter of Credit issued by KeyBank for the KeyBank Letter 
of Credit. 
 
         "KeyBank Payment Office" shall mean KeyBank's office located at 
International Division, 700 Fifth Avenue, mailcode WA-31-10-5360, 53rd Floor, 
Seattle, Washington 98104 or such other office as KeyBank may designate from 
time to time in writing. 
 
         "Lead Arranger" shall mean Fleet Securities, Inc. 
 
         "Lenders" shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto and 
shall include the Swingline Lender and the Issuing Lender. 
 
         "Lending Office" shall mean, for each Lender, the office specified 
under such Lender's name on the signature pages hereof with respect to each Type 
of Loan, or such other office as such Lender may designate in writing from time 
to time to the Company and the Administrative Agent with respect to such Type of 
Loan. 
 
         "Letter of Credit" shall mean any letter of credit issued by the 
Issuing Lender for the account of the Company pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 
         "Lien" shall mean any mortgage, pledge, security interest, 
hypothecation, assignment, deposit arrangement, encumbrance, or preference, 
priority or other security agreement or preferential arrangement of any kind or 
nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, any conditional sale or other 
title retention agreement, any Capital Lease and any financing lease having 
substantially the same economic effect as any of the foregoing). 
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         "Loans" shall mean, collectively, the Revolving Credit Loans and the 
Swingline Loans. 
 
         "Loan Documents" shall mean, collectively, this Agreement, the Notes, 
the Guaranties, the Pledge Agreements, any Hedging Agreement (but only to the 
extent that such Hedging Agreements relate to the Company's hedging of interest 
rate exposure under this Agreement) and each other agreement executed in 
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, as each of the 
same may hereafter be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from 
time to time. 
 
         "Material Adverse Effect" shall mean a material adverse effect upon (a) 
the business, operations, property or condition (financial or otherwise) of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, or (b) the ability of the Company 
or any Guarantor to perform any of its obligations under any Loan Document to 
which it is a party. 
 
         "Net Direct Contributions" shall mean, with respect to each brand, 
gross revenues less direct cost of sales and direct advertising and promotional 
costs. 
 
         "Net Income (Net Loss)" shall mean, for any period, the net income (or 
net loss) of any Person for such period determined in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles applied on a consistent basis; provided that 
there shall be excluded therefrom the income (or deficit) of any other Person 
(other than a Subsidiary) in which such Person or any Subsidiary of such Person 
has an ownership interest, except to the extent that any such income has been 
actually received by such Person or such Subsidiary in the form of dividends or 
similar distributions 
 
          "Non-Domestic Acquisition" shall mean the acquisition by the Company 
or any Subsidiary of the Company of more than 50% of the capital stock, 
membership interests, partnership interests or other similar ownership interests 
of a Person not organized under the laws of the United States or any state 
thereof or the purchase of all or substantially all of the assets owned by such 
Person. 
 
         "Non-Domestic Subsidiary" shall mean any Subsidiary of the Company not 
organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America. 
 
         "Non-Excluded Taxes" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.10 
hereof. 
 
         "Notes" shall mean, collectively, the Revolving Credit Notes and the 
Swingline Note. 
 
         "Obligations" shall mean all obligations, liabilities and indebtedness 
of the Company and any of its Subsidiaries to the Lenders, the Issuing Lender 
and the Administrative Agent, whether now existing or hereafter created, 
absolute or contingent, direct or indirect, due or not, whether created directly 
or acquired by assignment or otherwise, arising under this Agreement, the Notes 
or any other Loan Document including, without limitation, all obligations, 
liabilities and indebtedness of the Company with respect to the principal of and 
interest on the Loans (including any interest that accrues after the filing of 
any petition in bankruptcy or the commencement of any insolvency, reorganization 
or like proceeding relating to the Company, whether or not a claim for 
post-filing or 
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post-petition interest is allowed in such proceeding), reimbursement of Letters 
of Credit, obligations under any Hedging Agreement, and all fees, costs, 
expenses and indemnity obligations of the Company and any of its Subsidiaries 
hereunder or under any other Loan Document (including all fees and expenses of 
the Administrative Agent and any Lender incurred pursuant to this Agreement or 
any other Loan Document). 
 
         "Participant" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10.05 hereof. 
 
         "Payment Office" shall mean the Administrative Agent's office located 
at 300 Broad Hollow Road, Melville, New York 11747 or such other office as the 
Administrative Agent may designate from time to time in writing. 
 
         "PBGC" shall mean the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation established 
pursuant to Section 4002 of ERISA, or any successor thereto. 
 
         "Permitted Liens" shall mean the Liens specified in clauses (a) through 
(j) of Section 7.02 hereof. 
 
         "Person" shall mean any natural person, corporation, limited liability 
company, limited liability partnership, business trust, joint venture, 
association, company, partnership, unincorporated trade or business enterprise 
or Governmental Authority. 
 
         "Plan" shall mean any multi-employer or single-employer plan defined in 
Section 4001 of ERISA, which covers, or at any time during the five calendar 
years preceding the date of this Agreement covered, employees of the Company, 
any Guarantor or an ERISA Affiliate on account of such employees' employment by 
the Company, any Guarantor or an ERISA Affiliate. 
 
         "Pledge Agreement" shall mean (a) with respect to the Company, any 
Pledge Agreement entered into in accordance with Section 6.12 hereof relating to 
the capital stock or other equity interests of a Non-Domestic Subsidiary which 
is a First-Tier Subsidiary of the Company substantially in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit I-1, (b) with respect to each Domestic Subsidiary, as 
applicable, any Pledge Agreement entered into in accordance with Section 6.12 
hereof relating to the capital stock or other equity interests of a Non-Domestic 
Subsidiary which is a First-Tier Subsidiary of a Domestic Subsidiary of the 
Company substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I-2, and (c) with 
respect to Hain Europe, the Dutch Pledge Agreement substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit I-3, and (with respect to subclause (c) only) to be 
executed and delivered on the Closing Date pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof, as 
each of the same may hereafter be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise 
modified from time to time. 
 
         "Prime Rate" shall mean the variable per annum rate of interest 
announced by the Person which is the Administrative Agent from time to time as 
its prime rate. Each change in the Prime Rate shall be effective on the date 
such change is announced to become effective without notice or demand of any 
kind. The Prime Rate is a reference rate and does not necessarily represent the 
lowest 
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or best rate of interest being charged by the Person which is the Administrative 
Agent to any customer. 
 
         "Purchasing Lender" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 
10.05(c) hereof. 
 
         "Quarterly SEC Report" means each quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed 
by the Company with the SEC. 
 
         "Regulation D" shall mean Regulation D of the Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to 
time. 
 
         "Reportable Event" shall mean an event described in Section 4043(c) of 
ERISA with respect to a Plan as to which the 30 day notice requirement has not 
been waived by the PBGC. 
 
         "Required Lenders" shall mean Lenders owed at least fifty-one percent 
(51%) of the sum of the aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Revolving 
Credit Loans or, if no Revolving Credit Loans are outstanding, Lenders having at 
least fifty-one percent (51%) of the Total Commitments. 
 
         "Reserve Adjusted Libor" shall mean, with respect to the Interest 
Period pertaining to an Adjusted Libor Loan, a rate per annum equal to the 
product (rounded upwards to the next higher 1/16 of one percent) of (a) the 
annual rate of interest at which Dollar deposits of an amount equal to the 
amount of the portion of the Adjusted Libor Loan allocable to the entity which 
is the Administrative Agent and for a period of time equal to the Interest 
Period applicable thereto which appears on the Telerate Page 3750 as of 11:00 
a.m. (London time) on the day that is two Business Days prior to the 
commencement of such Interest Period, multiplied by (b) the Eurocurrency Reserve 
Requirement. 
 
         If the rate described in clause (a) above does not appear on the 
Telerate System on any applicable interest determination date, then the rate 
described in clause (a) shall be the rate (rounded upward, if necessary, to the 
nearest one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point) determined on the basis of 
the offered rates for deposits in Dollars for a period of time comparable to 
such applicable Interest Period which are offered by four major banks selected 
by the Administrative Agent in the London interbank market at approximately 
11:00 a.m. (London time) on the day that is two Business Days prior to the 
commencement of such Interest Period. The principal London office of each of the 
four major London banks will be requested to provide a quotation of its Dollar 
deposit offered rate. If at least two such quotations are provided, the rate 
described in clause (a) for that date will be the arithmetic mean of the 
quotations. If fewer than two quotations are provided as requested, the rate 
described in clause (a) for that date will be determined on the basis of the 
rates quoted for loans in U.S. dollars to leading European banks for a period of 
time comparable to such Interest Period offered by major banks in New York City 
at approximately 11:00 a.m. New York City time, on the day that is two Business 
Days prior to the commencement of such Interest Period. In the event that the 
Administrative Agent is unable to obtain any such quotation as provided above, 
it will be deemed that Reserve Adjusted Libor for an Adjusted Libor Loan cannot 
be determined. 
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         "Revolving Credit Commitments" shall mean, collectively, the Revolving 
Credit Facility A Commitments and the Revolving Credit Facility B Commitments. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility A" shall mean the Revolving Credit Facility 
to be made available to the Company pursuant to Section 2.01 hereof. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment" shall mean, with respect to 
each Lender, the obligation of such Lender to make Revolving Credit Facility A 
Loans to the Company and to acquire participations in Letters of Credit in an 
aggregate amount not to exceed the amount set forth opposite such Lender's name 
on the signature pages hereof under the caption Revolving Credit Facility A 
Commitment, as such amounts may be adjusted in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Period" shall mean the period 
from and including the Closing Date to, but not including, the Revolving Credit 
Facility A Commitment Termination Date or such earlier date as the Revolving 
Credit Facility A Commitments shall terminate as provided herein. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date" shall mean 
March 29, 2005. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility A Loans" shall have the meaning set forth in 
Section 2.01(a) hereof. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility A Notes" shall have the meaning set forth in 
Section 2.02 hereof. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility B" shall mean the Revolving Credit Facility 
to be made available to the Company pursuant to Section 2.05 hereof. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment" shall mean, with respect to 
each Lender, the obligation of such Lender to make Revolving Credit Facility B 
Loans to the Company in an aggregate amount not to exceed the amount set forth 
opposite such Lender's name on the signature pages hereof under the caption 
Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment, as such amounts may be adjusted in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment Period" shall mean the period 
from and including the Closing Date to, but not including, the Revolving Credit 
Facility B Commitment Termination Date or such earlier date as the Revolving 
Credit Facility B Commitments shall terminate as provided herein. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment Termination Date" shall mean 
March 28, 2002. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility B Loans" shall have the meaning set forth in 
Section 2.05(a) hereof. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Facility B Notes" shall have the meaning set forth in 
Section 2.06 hereof. 
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         "Revolving Credit Loans" shall mean, collectively, the Revolving Credit 
Facility A Loans and the Revolving Credit Facility B Loans. 
 
         "Revolving Credit Notes" shall mean, collectively, the Revolving Credit 
Facility A Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility B Notes. 
 
         "SEC" shall mean the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
         "SEC Reports" shall mean the most recent Annual SEC Report filed by the 
Company with the SEC and each Quarterly SEC Report filed by the Company with the 
SEC thereafter. 
 
         "Second-Tier Subsidiary" shall mean any Subsidiary of any Person which 
Subsidiary is directly owned by a First-Tier Subsidiary of such Person. 
 
         "Sight Letter of Credit" shall mean a Letter of Credit wherein a draft 
is drawn at sight (i.e. drawn payable upon presentment). 
 
         "Solvent" shall mean with respect to any Person as of the date of 
determination thereof that (a) the amount of the "present fair saleable value" 
of the assets of such Person will, as of such date, exceed the amount of all 
"liabilities of such Person, contingent or otherwise," as of such date, as such 
quoted terms are determined in accordance with applicable federal and state laws 
governing determinations of the insolvency of debtors, (b) the present fair 
saleable value of the assets of such Person will, as of such date, be greater 
than the amount that will be required on its debts as such debts become absolute 
and matured, (c) such Person will not have, as of such date, an unreasonably 
small amount of capital with which to conduct its business, and (d) such Person 
will be able to pay its debts as they mature in each case after giving effect to 
any right of indemnification and contribution of such Person from or to any 
Affiliate. 
 
         "Standby LC Disbursement" shall mean a payment made by the Issuing 
Lender pursuant to a Standby Letter of Credit. 
 
         "Standby LC Exposure" shall mean, at any time, the sum of (a) the 
aggregate undrawn amount of all outstanding Standby Letters of Credit at such 
time, plus (b) the aggregate amount of all Standby LC Disbursements that have 
not yet been reimbursed by or on behalf of the Company at such time. 
 
         "Standby LC Margin" shall mean the percentage set forth below opposite 
the applicable ratio: 
 
 
Consolidated Total Funded                               Standby LC Margin 
Debt to Consolidated EBITDA                              (360 Day Basis) 
----------------------------                            ---------------- 
 
Greater than or equal to 2.50:1.00                               1.875% 
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Greater than or equal to 2.00:1.00 and less 
than 2.50:1.00                                                  1.625% 
Greater than or equal to 1.50:1.00 and less 
than 2.00:1.00                                                  1.375% 
Greater than or equal to 1.00:1.00 and less 
than 1.50:1.00                                                  1.125% 
Less than 1.00:1.00                                             1.00% 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period commencing on the Closing Date 
and ending on the tenth Business Day following the date of delivery of the 
financial statements to the Administrative Agent for the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2001, the Standby LC Margin shall be 1.00% per annum. The Standby LC Margin 
will be set or reset quarterly on the date which is ten Business Days following 
the date of receipt by the Administrative Agent of the financial statements 
referred to in Section 6.03(a) or Section 6.03(b) hereof, as applicable, 
together with a certificate of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company 
certifying the ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated EBITDA 
and setting forth the calculation thereof in detail; provided, however, if any 
such financial statement and certificate are not received by the Administrative 
Agent within the time period required pursuant to Section 6.03(a) or Section 
6.03(b) hereof, as the case may be, the Standby LC Margin will be set or reset, 
unless the rate of interest specified in Section 3.01(c) hereof is in effect 
solely due to the failure of the Company to comply with Section 6.03(a) or 
6.03(b) hereof, based on a ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to 
Consolidated EBITDA of greater than or equal to 2.50:1.00 from the date such 
financial statement and certificate were due until the date which is ten 
Business Days following the receipt by the Administrative Agent of such 
financial statement and certificate, and provided, further, that the Lenders 
shall not in any way be deemed to have waived any Default or Event of Default, 
including, without limitation, an Event of Default resulting from the failure of 
the Company to comply with Section 7.13 of this Agreement, or any rights or 
remedies hereunder or under any other Loan Document in connection with the 
foregoing proviso. During the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default, 
no downward adjustment, and only upward adjustments, shall be made to the 
Standby LC Margin. 
 
         "Standby Letter of Credit" shall mean any letter of credit issued to 
support an obligation of a Person and which may be drawn on only upon the 
failure of such Person to perform such obligation or other contingency. 
 
         "Subordinated Debt" or "Subordinated Indebtedness" shall mean all debt 
which is subordinated in right of payment to the prior final payment in full of 
the obligations of the Company and/or of its Subsidiaries to the Lenders 
hereunder and under any other Loan Document, provided that the terms of such 
subordination are satisfactory to and approved in writing by the Required 
Lenders. 
 
         "Subsidiaries" shall mean with respect to any Person, any corporation, 
association or other business entity more than 50% of the voting stock or other 
ownership interests (including, without 
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limitation, membership interests in a limited liability company) of which is, at 
the time, owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or one or 
more of its Subsidiaries or a combination thereof. 
 
         "Swingline Commitment" shall mean the obligation of the Swingline 
Lender to make Swingline Loans to the Company in an amount not to exceed 
$5,000,000 at any time outstanding. 
 
         "Swingline Lender" shall mean the Administrative Agent, in its capacity 
as lender of Swingline Loans. 
 
         "Swingline Loan" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.04 
hereof. 
 
         "Swingline Note" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.04(e) 
hereof. 
 
         "Syndication Agent" shall mean SunTrust Bank in its capacity as 
Syndication Agent under this Agreement or its successor Syndication Agent 
permitted pursuant to Section 9.08 hereof. 
 
         "Telerate Page 3750" shall mean the display designated as "Page 3750" 
on the Associated Press-Dow Jones Telerate Service (or such other page as may 
replace Page 3750 on the Associated Press-Dow Jones Telerate Service or such 
other service as may be nominated by the British Bankers' Association as the 
information vendor for the purpose of displaying British Bankers' Association 
interest settlement rates for Dollar deposits). Each Reserve Adjusted Libor rate 
based on the rate displayed on Telerate Page 3750 shall be subject to 
corrections, if any, made in such rate and displayed by the Associated Press-Dow 
Jones Telerate Service within one hour of the time when such rate is first 
displayed by such service. 
 
         "Total Commitment" shall mean, at any time, the aggregate of the 
Revolving Credit Commitments in effect at such time which, initially, shall be 
$240,000,000. 
 
         "Total Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment" shall mean, at any time, 
the aggregate of the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitments in effect at such 
time, which, initially shall be $145,000,000. 
 
         "Total Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment" shall mean, at any time, 
the aggregate of the Revolving Credit Facility B Commitments in effect at such 
time, which, initially shall be $95,000,000. 
 
         "Type" shall mean as to any Loan its status as a Base Rate Loan or an 
Adjusted Libor Loan. 
 
         "UCP" shall mean the International Chamber of Commerce Uniform Customs 
and Practice for Documentary Credits, 1993 Revision, ICC Publication No. 500 or 
any successor publication thereof. 
 
     "Unfunded Current  Liability" of any Plan shall mean the amount, if any, by 
which the present 
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value of the accrued benefits under such Plan as of the close of its most recent 
plan year exceeds the fair market value of the assets allocable thereto, 
determined in accordance with Section 412 of the Code. 
 
         "Unused Fee Rate" shall mean the percentage set forth below opposite 
the applicable ratio: 
 
                                          Revolving Credit     Revolving Credit 
                                             Facility A          Facility B 
Consolidated Total  Funded Debt             Unused Fee Rate     Unused Fee Rate 
 to Consolidated EBITDA                     (360 Day Basis)     (360 Day Basis) 
 ----------------------------------        -----------------   ---------------- 
 
Greater than or equal to 2.50:1.00            .375%               .325% 
Greater than or equal to 2.00:1.00 
and less than 2.50:100                        .35%                .30% 
Greater than or equal to 1.50:1.00 
and less than 2.00:1.00                       .30%                .25% 
Greater than or equal to 1.00:1.00 
and less than 1.50:1.00                       .25%                .20% 
Less than 1.00:1.00                           .20%                .175% 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period commencing on the Closing Date 
and ending on the tenth Business Day following the date of delivery of the 
financial statements to the Administrative Agent for the nine month period ended 
March 31, 2001, the Unused Fee Rate shall be .20% per annum with respect to 
Revolving Credit Facility A and .175% per annum with respect to Revolving Credit 
Facility B. The Unused Fee Rate will be set or reset quarterly on the date which 
is ten Business Days following the date of receipt by the Administrative Agent 
of the financial statements referred to in Section 6.03(a) or Section 6.03(b) 
hereof, as applicable, together with a certificate of the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company certifying the ratio of Consolidated Total Funded Debt to 
Consolidated EBITDA and setting forth the calculation thereof in detail; 
provided, however, if any such financial statement and certificate are not 
received by the Administrative Agent within the time period required pursuant to 
Section 6.03(a) or Section 6.03(b) hereof, as the case may be, the Unused Fee 
Rate will be set or reset to a rate, unless the rate of interest specified in 
Section 3.01(c) hereof is in effect solely due to the failure of the Company to 
comply with Section 6.03(a) or 6.03(b) hereof, determined based on a ratio of 
Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated EBITDA of greater than or equal 
to 2.50:1.00 from the date such financial statement and certificate were due 
until the date which is ten Business Days following the receipt by the 
Administrative Agent of such financial statement and certificate, and provided, 
further, that the Lenders shall not in any way be deemed to have waived any 
Default or Event of Default, including, without limitation, an Event of Default 
resulting from the failure of the Company to comply with Section 7.13 of this 
Agreement, or any rights or remedies hereunder or under any other Loan Document 
in connection with the foregoing proviso. During the occurrence and continuance 
of an Event of Default, no downward adjustment, and only upward adjustments, 
shall be made to the Unused Fee Rate. 
 
                                                        21 
 



 
 
 
 
         SECTION 1.02. Terms Generally. The definitions of terms herein shall 
apply equally to the singular and plural forms of the terms defined. Whenever 
the context may require, pronouns stated in the masculine, feminine or neuter 
gender shall include the masculine, feminine and the neuter. Except as otherwise 
herein specifically provided, each accounting term used herein shall have the 
meaning given to it under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The term 
"including" shall not be limited or exclusive, unless specifically indicated to 
the contrary. The word "will" shall be construed to have the same meaning in 
effect as the word "shall". The words "herein", "hereof" and "hereunder" and 
other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole, including the 
exhibits and schedules hereto and any amendments thereof, all of which are by 
this reference incorporated into this Agreement. 
 
 
                                                    ARTICLE II 
                                                       LOANS 
 
         SECTION 2.01. Revolving Credit Facility A Loans - 4 Year Facility. (a) 
Subject to the terms and conditions, and relying upon the representations and 
warranties, set forth herein, each Lender severally agrees to make loans 
(individually a "Revolving Credit Facility A Loan" and, collectively, the 
"Revolving Credit Facility A Loans") to the Company from time to time during the 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Period up to, but not exceeding, at any 
one time outstanding the amount of its Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment; 
provided, however, that no Revolving Credit Facility A Loan shall be made if, 
after giving effect to such Revolving Credit Facility A Loan, the Aggregate 
Revolving Credit Facility A Outstandings would exceed the Total Revolving Credit 
Facility A Commitment in effect at such time or if the Aggregate Outstandings 
would exceed the Total Commitment. During the Revolving Credit Facility A 
Commitment Period, the Company may from time to time borrow, repay and reborrow 
Revolving Credit Facility A Loans on or after the date hereof and prior to the 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date, subject to the terms, 
provisions and limitations set forth herein. The Revolving Credit Facility A 
Loans may be (i) Adjusted Libor Loans, (ii) Base Rate Loans or (iii) a 
combination thereof. 
 
         (b) The Company shall give the Administrative Agent irrevocable written 
notice (or telephonic notice promptly confirmed in writing) not later than 11:00 
a.m. New York, New York time, three Business Days prior to the date of each 
proposed Adjusted Libor Loan under this Section 2.01 or prior to 11:00 a.m. New 
York, New York time on the date of each proposed Base Rate Loan under this 
Section 2.01. Such notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify (i) the amount 
and Type of the proposed borrowing, (ii) the initial Interest Period if an 
Adjusted Libor Loan, and (iii) the proposed Borrowing Date. Upon receipt of such 
notice from the Company, the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each 
Lender thereof. Except for borrowings which utilize the full remaining amount of 
the Total Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment, each borrowing of a Base Rate 
Loan (other than a Swingline Loan) shall be in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 or, if greater, whole multiples of $100,000 in excess thereof. Each 
borrowing of an Adjusted Libor Loan shall be in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 or whole multiples of $500,000 in excess thereof. Funding of all 
Revolving Credit Facility A Loans shall be made in accordance with Section 3.12 
of this Agreement. 
 
                                                        22 
 



 
 
 
 
 
         (c) The Company shall have the right, upon not less than five (5) 
Business Days' prior written notice to the Administrative Agent, to terminate 
the Total Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment or from time to time to 
permanently reduce the amount of the Total Revolving Credit Facility A 
Commitment; provided, however, that no such termination or reduction shall be 
permitted if, after giving effect thereto and to any payments of the Revolving 
Credit Facility A Loans and the Swingline Loans made on the effective date 
thereof, the Aggregate Revolving Credit Facility A Outstandings would exceed the 
Total Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment as then reduced; provided, further, 
that any such termination or reduction requiring prepayment of any Adjusted 
Libor Loan shall be made only on the last day of the Interest Period with 
respect thereto or on the date of payment in full of all amounts owing pursuant 
to Section 3.08 hereof as a result of such termination or reduction. The 
Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender of each notice from the 
Company to terminate or permanently reduce the amount of the Total Revolving 
Credit Facility A Commitment pursuant to this Section 2.01(c). Any such 
reduction shall be in the amount of at least $5,000,000 or whole multiples of 
$1,000,000 in excess thereof, and shall reduce permanently the amount of the 
Total Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment then in effect. 
 
         (d) The several agreements of the Lenders to make Revolving Credit 
Facility A Loans pursuant to this Section 2.01 shall automatically terminate on 
the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date. Upon such 
termination, the Company shall immediately repay in full the principal amount of 
the Revolving Credit Facility A Loans then outstanding, together with all 
accrued interest thereon and all other amounts due and payable hereunder. 
 
         SECTION 2.02. Revolving Credit Facility A Note. The Revolving Credit 
Facility A Loans made by each Lender shall be evidenced by a promissory note of 
the Company (individually, a "Revolving Credit Facility A Note" and, 
collectively, the "Revolving Credit Facility A Notes"), substantially in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, each appropriately completed, duly executed 
and delivered on behalf of the Company and payable to the order of such Lender 
in a principal amount equal to the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment of 
such Lender. Each Revolving Credit Facility A Note shall (a) be dated the 
Closing Date, (b) be stated to mature on the Revolving Credit Facility A 
Commitment Termination Date, and (c) bear interest from the date of the first 
Revolving Credit Facility A Loan until paid in full on the unpaid principal 
amount thereof from time to time outstanding as provided in Section 3.01 hereof. 
Each Lender is authorized to record the date, Type and amount of each Revolving 
Credit Facility A Loan and the date and amount of each payment or prepayment of 
principal of each Revolving Credit Facility A Loan in such Lender's records or 
on the grid schedule annexed to such Lender's Revolving Credit Facility A Note; 
provided, however, that the failure of a Lender to set forth each such Revolving 
Credit Facility A Loan, payment and other information shall not in any manner 
affect the obligation of the Company to repay each Revolving Credit Facility A 
Loan made by such Lender in accordance with the terms of its Revolving Credit 
Facility A Note and this Agreement. The Revolving Credit Facility A Note, the 
grid schedule and the books and records of each Lender shall constitute 
presumptive evidence of the information so recorded absent demonstrable error. 
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         SECTION 2.03. Letters of Credit. (a) Generally. Subject to the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement, upon the written request of the 
Company in accordance herewith, the Issuing Lender shall issue Letters of Credit 
at any time during the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Period with pro 
rata participation by all of the Lenders in accordance with their respective 
Commitment Proportions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at no time shall the 
Aggregate Letters of Credit Outstandings exceed $25,000,000, and no Letter of 
Credit shall be issued if, after giving effect to the same, the Aggregate 
Revolving Credit Facility A Outstandings would exceed the Total Revolving Credit 
Facility A Commitment in effect at such time or if the Aggregate Outstandings 
would exceed the Total Commitment. Each request for issuance of a Letter of 
Credit shall be in writing and shall be received by the Issuing Lender by no 
later than 12:00 noon, New York, New York time, on the day which is at least two 
Business Days prior to the proposed date of issuance or creation. Such issuance 
or creation shall occur by no later than 5:00 p.m. on the proposed date of 
issuance (assuming proper prior notice as aforesaid). Subject to the terms and 
conditions contained herein, the expiry date, and the amount and beneficiary of 
the Letters of Credit will be as designated by the Company. The Issuing Lender 
shall promptly notify the Administrative Agent and the Lenders of the creation 
of any Letter of Credit and of the amounts of all Letters of Credit issued 
hereunder and of any extension, reduction, termination or amendment of any 
Letter of Credit. Each Letter of Credit issued by the Issuing Lender hereunder 
shall identify: (i) the dates of issuance and expiry of such Letter of Credit, 
(ii) the amount of such Letter of Credit (which shall be a sum certain), (iii) 
the beneficiary of such Letter of Credit, and (iv) the drafts and other 
documents necessary to be presented to the Issuing Lender upon drawing 
thereunder. In no event shall any Letter of Credit expire (or by its terms be 
required to be renewed to a date) after the Revolving Credit Facility A 
Commitment Termination Date. The Company agrees to execute and deliver to the 
Issuing Lender such further documents and instruments in connection with any 
Letter of Credit issued hereunder (including, without limitation, applications 
therefor) as the Issuing Lender in accordance with its customary practices may 
reasonably request. The Issuing Lender will not be required to issue a Letter of 
Credit hereunder with an expiration date (1) more than three hundred sixty (360) 
days from the date of issuance of such Letter of Credit, or (2) on or after the 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Letters of Credit issued hereunder may include automatic extensions 
provided that the extensions shall be for periods not to exceed three hundred 
sixty (360) days and provided further that the expiration date of any such 
Letter of Credit shall not occur on or after the Revolving Credit Facility A 
Commitment Termination Date. 
 
         (b) Drawings Under Letters of Credit. The Company hereby absolutely and 
unconditionally promises to pay the Issuing Lender not later than 12:00 noon 
(New York, New York time) the amount of each drawing under a Letter of Credit if 
the Company receives notice of such drawing prior to 10:00 a.m., New York, New 
York time, on the date of such drawing, or if such notice has not been received 
by the Company prior to such time on such date, then not later than 12:00 noon, 
New York, New York time, on the Business Day immediately following the day that 
the Company receives such notice; provided, however, (i) if any drawing was in 
an amount not less than $1,000,000, the Company may, subject to the conditions 
to borrowing set forth herein, request in accordance with Section 2.01 hereof 
that such payment be financed with a Revolving Credit Facility A Loan which is a 
Base Rate Loan in an equivalent amount, and, to the extent so financed, 
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the Company's obligation to make such payment shall be discharged and replaced 
by such a Base Rate Loan and (ii) if such drawing or payment was in an amount 
less than $1,000,000, the Company may, subject to the conditions to borrowing 
set forth herein, request in accordance with Section 2.04 hereof that such 
payment be financed with a Swingline Loan in an equivalent amount and, to the 
extent so financed, the Company's obligation to make such payment shall be 
discharged and replaced by such Swingline Loan. Such request shall be made by 
the Company on the date of receipt of notice from the Issuing Lender of a 
drawing under a Letter of Credit as applicable. The Issuing Lender shall notify 
the Administrative Agent and each Lender of such request in accordance with 
Section 2.01 hereof. If the Company fails to make such payment when due, the 
Issuing Lender shall notify each Lender of the amount of the drawing under the 
applicable Letter of Credit. Each Lender agrees that on the first Business Day 
after receipt of such notice, it will immediately make available by no later 
than 12:00 noon, New York, New York time, to the Issuing Lender at its office 
located at the Payment Office, or, with respect to the KeyBank Letter of Credit, 
at the KeyBank Payment Office, in immediately available funds, its Commitment 
Proportion of such drawing, provided (i) each Lender's obligation shall be 
reduced by its Commitment Proportion of any reimbursement by the Company in 
respect of any such drawing pursuant to this Section 2.03 and (ii) no Lender 
shall be required to make payments to the Issuing Lender with respect to a 
drawing or payment which the Company reimbursed with the proceeds of a Revolving 
Credit Facility A Loan, as contemplated above, if such Lender fully funded its 
Commitment Proportion of such Revolving Credit Facility A Loan in accordance 
with Section 3.12 hereof. Any payment made by a Lender pursuant to this Section 
2.03(b) to reimburse the Issuing Lender for any drawing under a Letter of Credit 
(other than a Base Rate Loan or a Swingline Loan as contemplated above) shall 
not constitute a Revolving Credit Facility A Loan or a Swingline Loan and shall 
not relieve the Company of its obligation to reimburse the Issuing Lender for 
such drawing or payment. Each drawing under a Letter of Credit which is not paid 
on the date such drawing is made shall accrue interest, for each day from and 
including the date of such drawing to but excluding the date that the Company 
reimburses the Issuing Lender in full for such drawing at the rate per annum 
then applicable to Revolving Credit Facility A Loans which are Base Rate Loans; 
provided, however, that if the Company fails to reimburse such drawing when due 
pursuant to this paragraph (b), then the Company shall pay to the Issuing Lender 
interest on the amount of such drawing at the rate per annum set forth in 
Section 3.01(c) hereof. Interest accruing pursuant to the preceding sentence 
shall be for the account of the Issuing Lender, except that interest accrued on 
and after the date of payment by any Lender pursuant to this Section 2.03(b) to 
reimburse the Issuing Lender shall be for the account of such Lender to the 
extent of such payment. The Issuing Lender shall promptly notify the 
Administrative Agent (which shall notify each Lender) of each drawing under a 
Letter of Credit. 
 
         (c)      Letter of Credit Obligations Absolute. 
 
                           (i) The obligation of the Company to reimburse the 
                  Issuing Lender as provided hereunder in respect of drawings 
                  under Letters of Credit shall rank pari passu with the 
                  obligation of the Company to repay the Revolving Credit Loans 
                  hereunder, and shall be absolute and unconditional under any 
                  and all circumstances subject to subsection (ii) below. 
                  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 
                  obligation of the Company to reimburse the Issuing Lender in 
                  respect of drawings 
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                  under Letters of Credit shall not be subject to any defense 
                  based on the non- application or misapplication by the 
                  beneficiary of the proceeds of any such drawing or the 
                  legality, validity, regularity or enforceability of the 
                  Letters of Credit or any related document, even though such 
                  document shall in fact prove to be invalid, fraudulent or 
                  forged, or any dispute between or among the Company, the 
                  beneficiary of any Letter of Credit, or any financial 
                  institution or other party to which any Letter of Credit may 
                  be transferred. The Issuing Lender may accept or pay any draft 
                  presented to it under any Letter of Credit regardless of when 
                  drawn or made and whether or not negotiated, if such draft, 
                  accompanying certificate or documents and any transmittal 
                  advice are presented or negotiated on or before the expiry 
                  date of such Letter of Credit or any renewal or extension 
                  thereof then in effect, and is in substantial compliance with 
                  the terms and conditions of such Letter of Credit. 
                  Furthermore, neither the Issuing Lender nor any of its 
                  correspondents nor any Lender shall be responsible, as to any 
                  document presented under a Letter of Credit which appears to 
                  be regular on its face, and appears on its face to be in 
                  substantial compliance with the terms of such Letter of 
                  Credit, for the validity or sufficiency of any signature or 
                  endorsement, for delay in giving any notice or failure of any 
                  instrument to bear adequate reference to any Letter of Credit, 
                  or for failure of any Person to note the amount of any draft 
                  on the reverse of any Letter of Credit. The Issuing Lender 
                  shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to decline to 
                  accept any documents and to decline to making payment under 
                  any Letter of Credit if the documents presented are not in 
                  strict compliance with the terms of such Letter of Credit. 
 
                           (ii) Any action, inaction or omission on the part of 
                  the Issuing Lender or any of its correspondents under or in 
                  connection with any Letter of Credit or the related 
                  instruments, documents or property, if in good faith and in 
                  conformity with such laws, regulations or customs as are 
                  applicable, shall be binding upon the Company and shall not 
                  place the Issuing Lender or any of its correspondents or any 
                  Lender under any liability to the Company in the absence of 
                  (x) gross negligence or willful misconduct by the Issuing 
                  Lender or its correspondents or (y) the failure by the Issuing 
                  Lender to pay under a Letter of Credit after presentation of a 
                  draft and documents strictly complying with such Letter of 
                  Credit unless the Issuing Lender is prohibited from making 
                  such payment pursuant to a court order. The Issuing Lender's 
                  rights, powers, privileges and immunities specified in or 
                  arising under this Agreement are in addition to any heretofore 
                  or at any time hereafter otherwise created or arising, whether 
                  by statute or rule of law or contract. All Letters of Credit 
                  issued hereunder will, except to the extent otherwise 
                  expressly provided hereunder, be governed by the UCP to the 
                  extent applicable and not inconsistent with the laws of the 
                  State of New York. 
 
     (d)  Obligations  of Lenders in Respect of Letters of Credit.  Each  Lender 
acknowledges that each Letter of Credit issued by the Issuing Lender pursuant to 
this Agreement is issued on behalf of and with the ratable  participation of all 
of the Lenders (i.e., in accordance with their respective 
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Commitment Proportions), and each Lender agrees to make the payments required by 
subsection (b) above and agrees to be responsible for its pro rata share of all 
liabilities incurred by the Issuing Lender with respect to each Letter of Credit 
issued, established, opened or extended by the Issuing Lender pursuant to this 
Agreement for the account of the Company hereunder. Each Lender agrees with the 
Issuing Lender and the other Lenders that its obligation to make the payments 
required by subsection (b) above shall not be affected in any way by any 
circumstances (other than the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the 
Issuing Lender) occurring before or after the making of any payment by the 
Issuing Lender pursuant to any Letter of Credit, including, without limitation: 
(i) any modification or amendment of, or any consent, waiver, release or 
forbearance with respect to, any of the terms of this Agreement or any other 
instrument or document referred to herein; (ii) the existence of any Default or 
Event of Default; or (iii) any change of any kind whatsoever in the financial 
position or credit worthiness of the Company. 
 
         (e) Replacement of the Issuing Lender. The Issuing Lender may be 
replaced at any time by written agreement among the Company, the Administrative 
Agent, the replaced Issuing Lender and the successor Issuing Lender. The 
Administrative Agent shall notify the Lenders of any such replacement of the 
Issuing Lender. At the time any such replacement shall become effective, the 
Company shall pay all unpaid fees accrued for the account of the replaced 
Issuing Lender pursuant to Section 3.04 hereof. From and after the effective 
date of any such replacement, (i) the successor Issuing Lender shall have all 
the rights and obligations of the Issuing Lender under this Agreement with 
respect to Letters of Credit to be issued thereafter, and (ii) references herein 
to the term "Issuing Lender" shall be deemed to refer to such successor or to 
any previous Issuing Lender, or to such successor and all previous Issuing 
Lenders, as the context shall require. After the replacement of an Issuing 
Lender hereunder, the replaced Issuing Lender shall remain a party hereto and 
shall continue to have all the rights and obligations of an Issuing Lender under 
this Agreement with respect to Letters of Credit issued prior to such 
replacement, but shall not be required to issue additional Letters of Credit. 
 
         (f) Existing Letters of Credit. The Company and the Lenders agree that, 
from and after the Closing Date, subject to the satisfaction of the conditions 
precedent to the initial Loans hereunder as set forth in Article V, the Existing 
Letters of Credit shall be Letters of Credit for all purposes of this Agreement, 
including, without limitation, for purposes of Section 3.04(b) hereof. 
 
         SECTION 2.04. Swingline Loans. (a) Subject to the terms and conditions, 
and relying upon the representations and warranties, set forth herein, the 
Swingline Lender agrees to make loans (individually a "Swingline Loan" and, 
collectively, the "Swingline Loans") to the Company from time to time during the 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Period up to, but not exceeding, at any 
one time outstanding the Swingline Commitment; provided, however, that no 
Swingline Loan shall be made if, after giving effect to such Swingline Loan, the 
Aggregate Revolving Credit Facility A Outstandings would exceed the Total 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment in effect at such time or if the 
Aggregate Outstandings would exceed the Total Commitment; and provided further 
that the proceeds from Swingline Loans shall not be used to repay outstanding 
Revolving Credit Loans. During the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment 
Period, the Company may from time to time borrow, repay and reborrow Swingline 
Loans on or after the date hereof and prior to the 
 
                                                        27 
 



 
 
 
 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date, subject to the terms, 
provisions and limitations set forth herein. The Swingline Loans shall be Base 
Rate Loans. 
 
         (b) The Company shall give the Administrative Agent irrevocable written 
notice (or telephonic notice promptly confirmed in writing) not later than 2:00 
p.m. New York, New York time on the date of each proposed Swingline Loan under 
this Section 2.04. Such notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify (i) the 
amount of the proposed borrowing, and (ii) the proposed Borrowing Date. Upon 
receipt of such notice from the Company, the Administrative Agent shall promptly 
notify the Swingline Lender and each Lender thereof. Each borrowing of a 
Swingline Loan shall be in an amount not less than $100,000 or, if greater, 
whole multiples of $100,000 in excess thereof. The Swingline Lender shall make 
each Swingline Loan available to the Company by means of a credit to the 
operating account of the Company with the Swingline Lender (or, in the case of a 
Swingline Loan made to finance or reimburse a Letter of Credit drawing in 
accordance with Section 2.03(b) hereof, by remittance to the Issuing Bank) by 
4:00 p.m. New York, New York time, on the requested date of such Swingline Loan. 
 
         (c) So long as no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is 
continuing, the Company may repay Swingline Loans with the proceeds of a 
Revolving Credit Facility A Loan. The Swingline Lender may, at any time, require 
the Lenders to acquire participations (in the form of Revolving Credit Facility 
A Loans, which shall initially be Base Rate Loans) with respect to all or a 
portion of the Swingline Loans outstanding. If (i) the Company desires to repay 
such Swingline Loan with the proceeds of a Revolving Credit Facility A Loan or 
(ii) the Swingline Lender desires to have the Lenders acquire participations (in 
the form of Revolving Credit Facility A Loans, which shall initially be Base 
Rate Loans), the Swingline Lender shall, by written notice given to the 
Administrative Agent not later than 10:00 a.m. New York, New York time on any 
Business Day, require the Lenders to acquire participations (in the form of 
Revolving Credit Facility A Loans, which shall initially be Base Rate Loans) on 
such Business Day with respect to all or a portion of the Swingline Loans 
outstanding. Such notice shall specify the aggregate amount of Swingline Loans 
which will become such Revolving Credit Facility A Loans. Promptly upon receipt 
of such notice, the Administrative Agent will give notice thereof to each 
Lender, specifying in such notice such Lender's Commitment Proportion of such 
Swingline Loan or Loans. Each Lender hereby absolutely and unconditionally 
agrees, upon receipt of notice as provided above, to pay to the Administrative 
Agent, for the account of the Swingline Lender, such Lender's Commitment 
Proportion of such Swingline Loan or Loans. Each Lender acknowledges and agrees 
that its obligation to acquire a participation in Swingline Loans pursuant to 
this paragraph is absolute and unconditional and shall not be affected by any 
circumstance whatsoever, including the occurrence and continuance of a Default 
or Event of Default or reduction or termination of the Commitments, and that 
each such payment shall be made without any offset, abatement, withholding or 
reduction whatsoever. Each Lender shall comply with its obligation under this 
paragraph by wire transfer of immediately available funds, in the same manner as 
provided in Section 3.12 with respect to Loans made by such Lender, and the 
Administrative Agent shall promptly pay to the Swingline Lender the amounts so 
received by it from the Lenders. The Administrative Agent shall notify the 
Company of any participation in any Swingline Loan acquired pursuant to this 
paragraph, and thereafter payments in respect of such Swingline Loan shall be 
made to the Administrative Agent and not to the Swingline 
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Lender. Any amounts received by the Swingline Lender from the Company (or other 
party on behalf of the Company) in respect of a Swingline Loan after receipt by 
the Swingline Lender of the proceeds of a sale of a participation therein shall 
be promptly remitted to the Administrative Agent; any such amounts received by 
the Administrative Agent shall be promptly remitted by the Administrative Agent 
to the Lenders that shall have made their payments pursuant to this paragraph 
and to the Swingline Lender, as their interests may appear. The purchase of a 
participation in a Swingline Loan pursuant to this paragraph (c) shall not 
relieve the Company of any default in the payment thereof. 
 
         (d) The agreement of the Swingline Lender to make Swingline Loans 
pursuant to this Section 2.04 shall automatically terminate on the Revolving 
Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date. Upon such termination, the 
Company shall immediately repay the Swingline Lender or the Administrative 
Agent, as applicable, in full the principal amount of the Swingline Loans then 
outstanding, together with all accrued interest thereon and all other amounts 
due and payable hereunder. 
 
         (e) The Swingline Loans made by the Swingline Lender shall be evidenced 
by a promissory note of the Company (the "Swingline Note"), substantially in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit C, appropriately completed, duly executed and 
delivered on behalf of the Company and payable to the order of the Swingline 
Lender in a principal amount equal to the Swingline Commitment. The Swingline 
Note shall (a) be dated the Closing Date, (b) be stated to mature on the 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date, and (c) bear interest 
from the date thereof until paid in full on the unpaid principal amount thereof 
from time to time outstanding as provided in Section 3.01 hereof. The Swingline 
Lender is authorized to record the date and amount of each Swingline Loan and 
the date and amount of each payment or prepayment of principal of each Swingline 
Loan in the Swingline Lender's records or on the grid schedule annexed to the 
Swingline Note; provided, however, that the failure of the Swingline Lender to 
set forth each such Swingline Loan, payment and other information shall not in 
any manner affect the obligation of the Company to repay each Swingline Loan 
made by the Swingline Lender in accordance with the terms of the Swingline Note 
and this Agreement. The Swingline Note, the grid schedule and the books and 
records of the Swingline Lender shall constitute presumptive evidence of the 
information so recorded absent demonstrable error. 
 
         SECTION 2.05. Revolving Credit Facility B Loans - 364 Day Facility. (a) 
Subject to the terms and conditions, and relying upon the representations and 
warranties, set forth herein, each Lender severally agrees to make loans 
(individually a "Revolving Credit Facility B Loan" and, collectively, the 
"Revolving Credit Facility B Loans") to the Company from time to time during the 
Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment Period up to, but not exceeding, at any 
one time outstanding the amount of its Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment; 
provided, however, that no Revolving Credit Facility B Loan shall be made if, 
after giving effect to such Revolving Credit Facility B Loan, the Aggregate 
Revolving Credit Facility B Outstandings would exceed the Total Revolving Credit 
Facility B Commitment in effect at such time or if the Aggregate Outstandings 
would exceed the Total Commitment. During the Revolving Credit Facility B 
Commitment Period, the Company may from time to time borrow, repay and reborrow 
Revolving Credit Facility B Loans 
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on or after the date hereof and prior to the Revolving Credit Facility B 
Commitment Termination Date, subject to the terms, provisions and limitations 
set forth herein. The Revolving Credit Facility B Loans may be (i) Adjusted 
Libor Loans, (ii) Base Rate Loans or (iii) a combination thereof. 
         (b) The Company shall give the Administrative Agent irrevocable written 
notice (or telephonic notice promptly confirmed in writing) not later than 11:00 
a.m. New York, New York time, three Business Days prior to the date of each 
proposed Adjusted Libor Loan under this Section 2.05 or prior to 11:00 a.m. New 
York, New York time on the date of each proposed Base Rate Loan under this 
Section 2.05. Such notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify (i) the amount 
and Type of the proposed borrowing, (ii) the initial Interest Period if an 
Adjusted Libor Loan, and (iii) the proposed Borrowing Date. Upon receipt of such 
notice from the Company, the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each 
Lender thereof. Except for borrowings which utilize the full remaining amount of 
the Total Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment, each borrowing of a Base Rate 
Loan (other than a Swingline Loan) shall be in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 or, if greater, whole multiples of $1,000,000 in excess thereof. Each 
borrowing of an Adjusted Libor Loan shall be in an amount not less than 
$2,000,000 or whole multiples of $1,000,000 in excess thereof. Funding of all 
Revolving Credit Facility B Loans shall be made in accordance with Section 3.12 
of this Agreement. 
 
         (c) The Company shall have the right, upon not less than five (5) 
Business Days' prior written notice to the Administrative Agent, to terminate 
the Total Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment or from time to time to 
permanently reduce the amount of the Total Revolving Credit Facility B 
Commitment; provided, however, that no such termination or reduction shall be 
permitted if, after giving effect thereto and to any payments of the Revolving 
Credit Facility B Loans made on the effective date thereof, the Aggregate 
Revolving Credit Facility B Outstandings would exceed the Total Revolving Credit 
Facility B Commitment as then reduced; provided, further, that any such 
termination or reduction requiring prepayment of any Adjusted Libor Loan shall 
be made only on the last day of the Interest Period with respect thereto or on 
the date of payment in full of all amounts owing pursuant to Section 3.08 hereof 
as a result of such termination or reduction. The Administrative Agent shall 
promptly notify each Lender of each notice from the Company to terminate or 
permanently reduce the amount of the Total Revolving Credit Facility B 
Commitment pursuant to this Section 2.05(c). Any such reduction shall be in the 
amount of at least $5,000,000 or whole multiples of $1,000,000 in excess 
thereof, and shall reduce permanently the amount of the Total Revolving Credit 
Facility B Commitment then in effect. 
 
         (d) The several agreement of the Lenders to make Revolving Credit 
Facility B Loans pursuant to this Section 2.05 shall automatically terminate on 
the Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment Termination Date. Upon such 
termination, the Company shall immediately repay in full the principal amount of 
the Revolving Credit Facility B Loans then outstanding, together with all 
accrued interest thereon and all other amounts due and payable hereunder. 
 
         SECTION 2.06. Revolving Credit Facility B Note. The Revolving Credit 
Facility B Loans made by each Lender shall be evidenced by a promissory note of 
the Company (individually, a "Revolving Credit Facility B Note" and, 
collectively, the "Revolving Credit Facility B Notes"), substantially in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit B, each appropriately completed, duly 
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executed and delivered on behalf of the Company and payable to the order of such 
Lender in a principal amount equal to the Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment 
of such Lender. Each Revolving Credit Facility B Note shall (a) be dated the 
Closing Date, (b) be stated to mature on the Revolving Credit Facility B 
Commitment Termination Date, and (c) bear interest from the date of the first 
Revolving Credit Facility B Loan until paid in full on the unpaid principal 
amount thereof from time to time outstanding as provided in Section 3.01 hereof. 
Each Lender is authorized to record the date, Type and amount of each Revolving 
Credit Facility B Loan and the date and amount of each payment or prepayment of 
principal of each Revolving Credit Facility B Loan in such Lender's records or 
on the grid schedule annexed to such Lender's Revolving Credit Facility B Note; 
provided, however, that the failure of a Lender to set forth each such Revolving 
Credit Facility B Loan, payment and other information shall not in any manner 
affect the obligation of the Company to repay each Revolving Credit Facility B 
Loan made by such Lender in accordance with the terms of its Revolving Credit 
Facility B Note and this Agreement. The Revolving Credit Facility B Note, the 
grid schedule and the books and records of each Lender shall constitute 
presumptive evidence of the information so recorded absent demonstrable error. 
 
 
                                   ARTICLE III 
                PROVISIONS RELATING TO ALL EXTENSIONS OF CREDIT; 
                                FEES AND PAYMENTS 
 
     SECTION 3.01. Interest Rate; Continuation and Conversion of Loans. 
 
                  (a) Each Base Rate Loan shall bear interest for the period 
from the date thereof on the unpaid principal amount thereof at a fluctuating 
rate per annum equal to the Base Rate plus the applicable Interest Rate Margin. 
 
                  (b) Each Adjusted Libor Loan shall bear interest for the 
Interest Period applicable thereto on the unpaid principal amount thereof at a 
rate per annum equal to the Reserve Adjusted Libor determined for each Interest 
Period thereof in accordance with the terms hereof plus the applicable Interest 
Rate Margin. 
 
                  (c) Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of a 
Default or an Event of Default, at the option of the Required Lenders, the rate 
of interest on all Loans and any other amounts payable under the Loan Documents 
will be increased to a rate equal to (i) 2% per annum above the rate of interest 
otherwise applicable to such Loan, in the case of payments of principal, and 
(ii) 2% per annum above the rate that would be applicable to Base Rate Loans 
from time to time, in the case of payments of any other amount. 
 
                  (d) The Company may elect from time to time to convert 
outstanding Revolving Credit Loans from Adjusted Libor Loans to Base Rate Loans 
by giving the Administrative Agent at least three (3) Business Days prior 
irrevocable written notice of such election, provided that any such conversion 
of Adjusted Libor Loans shall only be made on the last day of an Interest Period 
with respect thereto or upon the date of payment in full of any amounts owing 
pursuant to Section 3.08 
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hereof as a result of such conversion. Upon receipt of such notice, the 
Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender thereof. The Company may 
elect from time to time to convert outstanding Revolving Credit Loans from Base 
Rate Loans to Adjusted Libor Loans by giving the Administrative Agent 
irrevocable written notice of such election not later than 11:00 a.m. New York, 
New York time three (3) Business Days prior to the date of the proposed 
conversion. Upon receipt of such notice the Administrative Agent shall promptly 
notify each Lender thereof. All or any part of outstanding Base Rate Loans 
(other than Swingline Loans) may be converted as provided herein, provided that 
each conversion shall be in the principal amount of $2,000,000 or whole 
multiples of $1,000,000 in excess thereof, and further provided that no Default 
or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing. Any conversion to or 
from Adjusted Libor Loans hereunder shall be in such amounts and be made 
pursuant to such elections so that, after giving effect thereto, the aggregate 
principal amount of all Adjusted Libor Loans having the same Interest Period 
shall not be less than $2,000,000. 
 
                  (e) Any Adjusted Libor Loan in a minimum principal amount of 
$2,000,000 may be continued as such upon the expiration of an Interest Period 
with respect thereto by compliance by the Company with the notice provisions 
contained in the definition of Interest Period; provided, that no Adjusted Libor 
Loan may be continued as such when any Default or Event of Default has occurred 
and is continuing, but shall be automatically converted to a Base Rate Loan on 
the last day of the Interest Period in effect when the Administrative Agent is 
notified, or otherwise has actual knowledge, of such Default or Event of 
Default. 
 
                  (f) If the Company shall fail to select the duration of any 
Interest Period for any Adjusted Libor Loan in accordance with the definition of 
"Interest Period" set forth in Section 1.01 hereof, the Company shall be deemed 
to have selected an Interest Period of one month. 
 
                  (g) No Revolving Credit Loan may be converted to or continued 
as an Adjusted Libor Loan with an Interest Period that extends beyond (i) the 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date, with respect to 
Revolving Credit Facility A Loans, or (ii) the Revolving Credit Facility B 
Commitment Termination Date, with respect to Revolving Credit Facility B Loans. 
 
                  (h) Anything in this Agreement or in any Note to the contrary 
notwithstanding, the obligation of the Company to make payments of interest 
shall be subject to the limitation that payments of interest shall not be 
required to be paid to a Lender to the extent that the charging or receipt 
thereof would not be permissible under the law or laws applicable to such Lender 
limiting the rates of interest that may be charged or collected by such Lender. 
In each such event payments of interest required to be paid to such Lender shall 
be calculated at the highest rate permitted by applicable law until such time as 
the rates of interest required hereunder may lawfully be charged and collected 
by such Lender. If the provisions of this Agreement or any Note would at any 
time otherwise require payment by the Company to any Lender of any amount of 
interest in excess of the maximum amount then permitted by applicable law, the 
interest payments to such Lender shall be reduced to the extent necessary so 
that such Lender shall not receive interest in excess of such maximum amount. 
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                  (i) Interest on each Loan shall be payable in arrears on each 
Interest Payment Date and shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days 
and shall be payable for the actual days elapsed. Any rate of interest on the 
Loans or other Obligations which is computed on the basis of the Base Rate shall 
change when and as the Base Rate changes in accordance with the definition 
thereof. Each determination by the Administrative Agent of an interest rate or 
fee hereunder shall, absent demonstrable error, be conclusive and binding for 
all purposes. 
 
         SECTION 3.02. Use of Proceeds. The proceeds of the Revolving Credit 
Loans shall be used (a) to pay the Existing Indebtedness, (b) to finance 
Acceptable Acquisitions and (c) for general working capital and other corporate 
purposes. The Swingline Loans shall be used by the Company for general working 
capital and other corporate purposes. Commercial Letters of Credit shall be 
issued by the Issuing Lender hereunder for the account of the Company and shall 
be issued for the purpose of providing the primary payment mechanism in 
connection with the purchase of any materials, goods or services by the Company 
or any Guarantors in the ordinary course of their respective businesses. Standby 
Letters of Credit shall be issued by the Issuing Lender for the account of the 
Company and shall be issued for purposes in connection with, and in the ordinary 
course of, the business of the Company or the Guarantors consistent with 
historical purposes of standby letters of credit issued for the account of the 
Company prior to the date hereof. 
 
         SECTION 3.03. Prepayments. (a) Voluntary. The Company may, at any time 
and from time to time, prepay the then outstanding Loans, in whole or in part, 
without premium or penalty, except as provided in Section 3.08 hereof, upon 
written notice to the Administrative Agent (or telephonic notice promptly 
confirmed in writing) not later than 11:00 a.m. New York, New York time, three 
(3) Business Days before the date of prepayment with respect to prepayments of 
Adjusted Libor Loans, or 11:00 a.m. New York, New York time on the date of 
prepayment with respect to Base Rate Loans. Each notice shall be irrevocable and 
shall specify the date and amount of prepayment and whether such prepayment is 
of Adjusted Libor Loans or Base Rate Loans or a combination thereof, and if a 
combination thereof, the amount of prepayment allocable to each. Upon receipt of 
such notice, the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender thereof. 
If such notice is given, the Company shall make such prepayment, and the amount 
specified in such notice shall be due and payable, on the date specified 
therein. Each partial prepayment pursuant to this Section 3.03 hereof shall be 
in a principal amount of (i) $1,000,000 or whole multiples of $1,000,000 in 
excess thereof with respect to Adjusted Libor Loans and (ii) $1,000,000 or whole 
multiples of $1,000,000 in excess thereof with respect to Base Rate Loans. 
 
                  (b) Mandatory. (i) To the extent that (i) the Aggregate 
Revolving Credit Facility A Outstandings exceed the Total Revolving Credit 
Facility A Commitment or (ii) the Aggregate Revolving Credit B Outstandings 
exceed the Total Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment or (iii) the Aggregate 
Outstandings exceed the Total Commitment, then the Company shall immediately 
prepay the Revolving Credit Loans to the extent necessary to cause compliance 
with each of the foregoing. To the extent that such prepayments are insufficient 
to cause such compliance, the Company shall pledge to the Administrative Agent, 
for the ratable benefit of the Lenders, Cash Collateral in an amount equal to 
the amount of such short-fall, which Cash Collateral shall secure 
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     the  reimbursement  obligations  of the Company to the Issuing  Lender with 
respect to Letters of Credit. 
 
                  (ii) The Company shall apply fifty percent (50%) of the net 
cash proceeds (after costs and expenses) realized by the Company upon any 
issuance or sale of equity interests in the Company to prepay outstanding Loans 
hereunder, provided, that such mandatory prepayment shall only be required if 
the aggregate amount of such net cash proceeds realized in connection with any 
one transaction or series of related transactions equals or exceeds $5,000,000. 
Such net proceeds shall be applied promptly upon the closing of any such 
issuance or sale of equity interests. 
 
                  All prepayments shall be applied, first, to Base Rate Loans 
outstanding and second, to Adjusted Libor Loans outstanding, in such order as 
the Administrative Agent shall determine in its sole and absolute discretion. 
All prepayments shall be accompanied by accrued interest on the principal amount 
being prepaid to the date of prepayment. 
 
         SECTION 3.04. Fees. (a) The Company agrees to pay to the Administrative 
Agent for the account of, and pro rata distribution to, each Lender a commitment 
fee equal to the sum of (i) the average daily unused portion of the Total 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment (after giving effect to any Swingline 
Loans then outstanding) from the date of this Agreement until the Revolving 
Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date multiplied by the rate set forth 
under the heading Revolving Credit Facility A Unused Fee Rate set forth in the 
definition of the term "Unused Fee Rate," plus (ii) the average daily unused 
portion of the Total Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment from the date of 
this Agreement until the Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment Termination Date 
multiplied by the rate set forth under the heading Revolving Credit Facility B 
Unused Fee Rate set forth in the definition of the term "Unused Fee Rate," as in 
effect on the date of calculation, in each case, based on a year of 360 days. 
Such fees shall be payable in arrears (i) on the last day of March, June, 
September, and December of each year commencing June 30, 2001, (ii) on the 
Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date, in the case of 
Revolving Credit Facility A, and on the Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment 
Termination Date, in the case of Revolving Credit Facility B, and (iii) on each 
date either Revolving Credit Commitment is permanently reduced in whole or in 
part. 
 
                  (b) The Company shall pay to the Administrative Agent for the 
account of, and pro rata distribution to, the Lenders a commission with respect 
to the Lenders' participation in Standby Letters of Credit equal to the Standby 
LC Margin multiplied by the average daily amount of the Standby LC Exposure 
during the period from and including the Closing Date to but excluding the later 
of (a) the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date and (b) the 
date on which such Lender ceases to have any Standby LC Exposure. Such 
commissions with respect to Standby Letters of Credit shall be payable in 
arrears on the last Business Day of March, June, September and December of each 
year, commencing June 30, 2001; provided that all such fees shall be payable on 
the date on which the Total Commitment terminates and any such fees accruing 
after the date on which the Total Commitment terminates shall be payable on 
demand. All commissions with respect to Standby Letters of Credit shall be 
computed on the basis of a year of three hundred sixty (360) days and shall be 
payable for the actual number of days elapsed. 
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                  (c) The Company shall pay to the Administrative Agent for the 
account of, and pro rata distribution to each Lender, a payment fee equal to 
0.25% of the amount paid on each Commercial Letter of Credit upon payment of 
such amount by the Issuing Lender of such Commercial Letter of Credit. 
 
                  (d) In addition, the Company shall pay to the Issuing Lender 
for its own account, upon issuance of any Letter of Credit hereunder, including 
without limitation the KeyBank Letter of Credit, a letter of credit fronting fee 
equal to the greater of (i) 1/8 of 1% of the face amount of each Letter of 
Credit issued hereunder, or (ii) $250, together with the customary fees charged 
by the Issuing Lender in its sole discretion with respect to the issuance, 
payment, acceptance, processing and administration of Letters of Credit 
(including, without limitation, amendments to Letters of Credit). 
 
         SECTION 3.05. Inability to Determine Interest Rate. In the event that 
the Administrative Agent shall have determined in good faith (which 
determination shall be conclusive and binding upon the Company, absent 
demonstrable error) that, by reason of circumstances affecting the London 
interbank market, adequate and reasonable means do not exist for ascertaining 
the Reserve Adjusted Libor applicable pursuant to Section 3.01(b) hereof for any 
requested Interest Period with respect to (a) the making of an Adjusted Libor 
Loan, (b) an Adjusted Libor Loan that will result from the requested conversion 
of a Base Rate Loan into an Adjusted Libor Loan, or (c) the continuation of an 
Adjusted Libor Loan beyond the expiration of the then current Interest Period 
with respect thereto, the Administrative Agent shall forthwith give notice by 
telephone of such determination, promptly confirmed in writing, to the Company 
and each Lender of such determination. Until the Administrative Agent notifies 
the Company that the circumstances giving rise to the suspension described 
herein no longer exist, the Company shall not have the right to request or 
continue an Adjusted Libor Loan or to convert a Base Rate Loan to an Adjusted 
Libor Loan. 
 
         SECTION 3.06. Illegality. Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, 
if any introduction of or change in any law, regulation, treaty or directive or 
in the interpretation or application thereof shall make it unlawful for any 
Lender to make or maintain Adjusted Libor Loans as contemplated by this 
Agreement, such Lender shall forthwith give notice by telephone of such 
circumstances, promptly confirmed in writing, to the Administrative Agent, which 
notice the Administrative Agent shall promptly transmit to the Company and the 
other Lenders and (a) the commitment of such Lender to make and to allow 
conversion to or continuations of Adjusted Libor Loans shall forthwith be 
cancelled for the duration of such illegality and (b) the Revolving Credit Loans 
then outstanding as Adjusted Libor Loans, if any, shall be converted 
automatically to Base Rate Loans on the next succeeding last day of each 
Interest Period applicable to such Adjusted Libor Loans or within such earlier 
period as may be required by law. The Company shall pay to such Lender, upon 
demand, any additional amounts required to be paid pursuant to Section 3.08 
hereof. 
 
     SECTION 3.07. Increased Costs. (a) In the event that any introduction of or 
change in, after the date hereof, any applicable law, regulation,  treaty, order 
or directive or in the interpretation or application thereof (including, without 
limitation, any request, guideline or policy, 
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whether or not having the force of law, of or from any central bank or other 
governmental authority, agency or instrumentality and including, without 
limitation, Regulation D), by any authority charged with the administration or 
interpretation thereof shall occur, which: 
 
                           (i) shall subject any Lender or the Issuing Lender to 
                  any tax of any kind whatsoever with respect to this Agreement, 
                  any Note, any Loan or any Letter of Credit (or participations 
                  therein) or change the basis of taxation of payments to such 
                  Lender or the Issuing Lender of principal, interest, fees or 
                  any other amount payable hereunder (other than any tax that is 
                  measured with respect to the overall net income of such Lender 
                  or the Issuing Lender or Lending Office of such Lender or the 
                  Issuing Lender and that is imposed by the United States of 
                  America, or any political subdivision or taxing authority 
                  thereof or therein, or by any jurisdiction in which such 
                  Lender's Lending Office or the Issuing Lender's lending office 
                  is located, or by any jurisdiction in which such Lender is 
                  organized, has its principal office or is managed and 
                  controlled); or 
 
                           (ii) shall impose, modify or hold applicable any 
                  reserve, special deposit, compulsory loan or similar 
                  requirement (whether or not having the force of law) against 
                  assets held by, or deposits or other liabilities in or for the 
                  account of, advances or loans by, or other credit extended by, 
                  or any other acquisition of funds by, any office of any Lender 
                  or the Issuing Lender; or 
 
     (iii) shall impose on any Lender or the Issuing Lender any other condition, 
or change therein; 
 
and the result of any of the foregoing is to increase the cost to such Lender or 
the Issuing Lender of making, renewing or maintaining or participating in 
advances or extensions of credit hereunder or to reduce any amount receivable 
hereunder, in each case by an amount which such Lender or the Issuing Lender 
deems reasonably material, then, in any such case, subject to the provisions of 
Section 3.09 hereof, the Company shall pay such Lender or the Issuing Lender, 
upon written demand, such additional amount or amounts as such Lender or the 
Issuing Lender shall have determined in good faith will compensate such Lender 
for such increased costs or reduction. 
 
                  (b) If any Lender or the Issuing Lender shall have determined 
that the adoption of, or any change in, any applicable law, rule or regulation 
regarding capital adequacy, or any change in the interpretation or 
administration thereof by any governmental authority, central bank or comparable 
agency charged with the interpretation or administration thereof, or compliance 
by any Lender or the Issuing Lender (or any lending office of any Lender or the 
Issuing Lender which funds Loans hereunder) or any Lender's or the Issuing 
Lender's holding company, with any request or directive regarding capital 
adequacy (whether or not having the force of the law) of any such authority, 
central bank or comparable agency, has or would have the effect of reducing the 
rate of return on such Lender's or the Issuing Lender's capital or on the 
capital of such Lender's or the Issuing Lender's holding company as a 
consequence of its obligations hereunder to a level below that which such Lender 
or the Issuing Lender (or such holding company) could have achieved but for 
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such adoption, change or compliance (taking into consideration such Lender's or 
the Issuing Lender's policies and the policies of such Lender's or the Issuing 
Lender's holding company with respect to capital adequacy) by an amount deemed 
by such Lender or the Issuing Lender to be material, then from time to time, the 
Company shall pay to such Lender or the Issuing Lender the additional amount or 
amounts as such Lender or the Issuing Lender shall have determined will 
compensate such Lender or the Issuing Lender or such Lender's or the Issuing 
Lender's holding company for such reduction. Such Lender's or the Issuing 
Lender's determination of such amounts shall be conclusive and binding on the 
Company absent demonstrable error. 
 
                  (c) A certificate of a Lender setting forth the amount or 
amounts payable pursuant to Sections 3.07(a) and 3.07(b) hereof shall be 
conclusive absent demonstrable error. The Company shall pay such Lender or the 
Issuing Lender the amount shown as due on any such certificate within 10 days 
after receipt thereof. 
 
                  (d) In the event any Lender or the Issuing Lender shall be 
entitled to compensation pursuant to Section 3.07(a) or Section 3.07(b) hereof, 
it shall promptly notify the Administrative Agent and the Company of the event 
by reason of which it has become so entitled; provided, however, no failure on 
the part of any Lender or the Issuing Lender to demand compensation under clause 
(a) or clause (b) above on one occasion shall constitute a waiver of its right 
to demand compensation on any other occasion. 
 
         SECTION 3.08. Indemnity. The Company agrees to indemnify each Lender 
and to hold each Lender harmless from any loss, cost or expense which such 
Lender may sustain or incur, including, without limitation, interest or fees 
payable by such Lender to lenders of funds obtained by it in order to maintain 
Adjusted Libor Loans hereunder, as a consequence of (a) default by the Company 
in payment of the principal amount of or interest on any Adjusted Libor Loan, 
(b) default by the Company to accept or make a borrowing of an Adjusted Libor 
Loan or a conversion into or continuation of an Adjusted Libor Loan after the 
Company has requested such borrowing, conversion or continuation, (c) default by 
the Company in making any prepayment of any Adjusted Libor Loan after the 
Company gives a notice in accordance with Section 3.03 hereof and/or (d) the 
making of any payment or prepayment (whether mandatory or optional) of an 
Adjusted Libor Loan or the making of any conversion of an Adjusted Libor Loan to 
a Base Rate Loan on a day which is not the last day of the applicable Interest 
Period with respect thereto. A certificate of a Lender setting forth such 
amounts shall be conclusive absent demonstrable error. The Company shall pay 
such Lender the amount shown as due on any certificate within ten (10) days 
after receipt thereof. 
 
         SECTION 3.09. Mitigation, Obligations; Replacement of Lenders. (a) Each 
Lender agrees to use reasonable efforts to designate an alternate Lending Office 
with respect to any Type of Loan affected by the events or circumstances 
described in Section 3.05, Section 3.06, Section 3.07 or Section 3.10 hereof to 
avoid or minimize the Company's liability thereunder; provided, however, that 
such efforts shall not cause the imposition on such Lender of any additional 
cost or legal, regulatory or administrative burdens deemed by such Lender, in 
its sole discretion, to be material. 
 
     (b) If any Lender is affected by the events or  circumstances  described in 
Sections 
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3.05, 3.06, 3.07 or 3.10 and requests additional compensation pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement, or if any Lender defaults in its obligation to fund 
Loans hereunder, then the Company may, at its sole expense and effort, upon 
notice to such Lender and the Administrative Agent, require such Lender to 
assign and delegate, without recourse (and in accordance with the restrictions 
set forth in Section 10.05 hereof), all its interests, rights, and obligations 
under this Agreement to an assignee that shall assume such obligations (which 
assignee may be another Lender, if such Lender accepts such assignment); 
provided, that (i) the Company shall have received the prior written consent of 
the Administrative Agent (and if a Commitment is being assigned, the Issuing 
Bank and the Swingline Lender), which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld 
or delayed, (ii) such Lender shall have received payment of an amount equal to 
the outstanding principal amount of its Loans and participation in Swingline 
Loans, accrued interest thereon, accrued fees and other amounts payable to it 
hereunder from the assignee (to the extent of the outstanding principal and 
accrued interest and fees) or the Company (in the case of all other amounts) and 
(iii) in the case of any such assignment resulting from a claim for compensation 
pursuant to Sections 3.05, 3.06 or 3.07 hereof or payments required to be made 
pursuant to Section 3.10, such assignment will result in a reduction of such 
compensation or payments. A Lender shall not be required to make any such 
assignment or delegation if, prior thereto, as a result of a waiver by such 
Lender or otherwise, the circumstances entitling the Company to require such 
assignment and delegations cease to apply. 
 
         SECTION 3.10. Taxes. (a) Except as set forth in clause (d) below or as 
required by law, all payments made by the Company under this Agreement shall be 
made free and clear of, and without reduction for or on account of, any present 
or future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, charges, fees, deductions or 
withholdings, now or hereafter imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed 
by any Governmental Authority, excluding (i) income and franchise taxes (imposed 
in lieu of income taxes) imposed on the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender 
or a Lender as a result of a present, former or future connection between the 
jurisdiction of the government or the taxing authority imposing such tax and the 
Administrative Agent, Issuing Lender or Lender or the lending office of the 
Administrative Agent, Issuing Lender or a Lender (excluding a connection arising 
solely from the Administrative Agent, Issuing Lender or a Lender having executed 
this Agreement, the Notes or the other Loan Documents) or any political 
subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, and (ii) taxes (including 
withholding taxes) imposed by reason of the failure of the Administrative Agent, 
Issuing Lender or a Lender, if organized outside of the United States, to comply 
with Section 3.10(c) hereof (or the inaccuracy at any time of the certificates, 
documents or other evidence delivered thereunder) (such non-excluded taxes being 
called "Non-Excluded Taxes"). If any Non-Excluded Taxes are required to be 
withheld from any amounts payable to the Administrative Agent, the Issuing 
Lender or any Lender hereunder, or under the Notes, the amount so payable to the 
Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender or such Lender shall be increased to 
the extent necessary to yield to the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender or 
such Lender (after payment of all Non-Excluded Taxes and free and clear of all 
liability in respect of such Non-Excluded Taxes) interest or any such other 
amounts payable hereunder at the rates or in the amounts specified in this 
Agreement and the Notes provided, however, that the Company shall not be 
required to increase any such amounts payable to any Lender with respect to any 
Non-Excluded Taxes (i) that are attributable to such Lender's failure to comply 
with the requirements of Section 3.09, (ii) that are United States withholding 
taxes imposed (or branch profits taxes imposed in lieu thereof) on amounts 
payable to such Lender at the 
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time such Lender becomes a party to this Agreement, except to the extent that 
such Lender's assignor (if any) was entitled, at the time of assignment, to 
receive additional amounts from the Company with respect to such Non-Excluded 
Taxes pursuant to this Section 3.10(a), or (iii) that are imposed as a result of 
any event occurring after such Lender becomes a Lender other than a change in 
law or regulation or the introduction of any law or regulation or a change in 
interpretation or administration of any law. Whenever any Non-Excluded Taxes are 
payable by the Company, as promptly as possible thereafter, the Company shall 
send to the Administrative Agent for its own account or for the account of the 
Issuing Lender or such Lender, as the case may be, a certified copy of an 
original official receipt showing payment thereof. If the Company fails to pay 
Non-Excluded Taxes when due to the appropriate taxing authority or fails to 
remit to the Administrative Agent the required receipts or other required 
documentary evidence, the Company shall indemnify the Administrative Agent, the 
Issuing Lender and the Lenders for any incremental taxes, interest or penalties 
that may become payable by the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender or such 
Lender as a result of any such failure together with any expenses payable by the 
Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender or such Lender in connection therewith; 
provided that the Administrative Agent, Issuing Lender or such Lender has 
provided the Company with notice thereof as required by Section 10.01, 
accompanied by a demand for payment. 
 
                  (b) If a Lender or the Administrative Agent becomes aware that 
it is entitled to claim a refund from a governmental authority in respect of any 
Non-Excluded Taxes as to which it has been indemnified by the Company or with 
respect to which the Company has paid additional amounts pursuant to this 
Section 3.10, it promptly shall notify the Company in writing of the 
availability of such refund claim and shall make a timely claim to such taxation 
authority for such refund at the Company's expense. If a Lender or the 
Administrative Agent receives a refund (including pursuant to a claim for refund 
made pursuant to the preceding sentence) or a permanent net tax benefit in 
respect of any Non-Excluded Taxes as to which it has been indemnified by the 
Company or with respect to which the Company has paid additional amounts 
pursuant to this Section 3.10, it shall within 30 days from the date of such 
receipt pay over the amount of such refund or permanent net tax benefit to the 
Company, net of all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of such Lender or the 
Administrative Agent and without interest (other than interest paid by the 
relevant taxation authority with respect to such refund); provided that the 
Company, upon the request of such Lender or the Administrative Agent, agrees to 
repay the amount paid over to the Company (plus penalties, interest or other 
reasonable charges) to such Lender or the Administrative Agent in the event such 
Lender or the Administrative Agent is required to repay such refund to such 
taxation authority or loses such net tax benefit. 
 
     (c) On or before  the date on which it  becomes a party to this  Agreement, 
each Lender that is not organized under the laws of the United States or a state 
thereof agrees that it will deliver to the Company and the Administrative  Agent 
(i) two duly completed  copies of United States  Internal  Revenue  Service Form 
W-8BEN or W-8ECI or successor applicable form, as the case may be, certifying in 
each case that such Lender is entitled to receive  payments under this Agreement 
without  deduction or withholding of any United States federal income taxes, and 
(ii) if such Lender is not a "bank"  within the meaning of Section  881(c)(3)(A) 
of the Code,  an Internal  Revenue  Service Form W-8BEN or successor  applicable 
form, and a statement in the form of Exhibit H hereto. Each 
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Lender which delivers to the Company and the Administrative Agent a Form W-8BEN 
or W-8ECI pursuant to the preceding sentence further undertakes to deliver to 
the Administrative Agent two further copies of the said statement and Form 
W-8BEN or W-8ECI, or successor applicable forms, or other manner of 
certification, as the case may be, on or before the date that any such statement 
or form expires or becomes obsolete or after the occurrence of any event 
requiring a change in the most recent statement or form previously delivered by 
it to the Administrative Agent, and such extensions or renewals thereof as may 
be requested by the Administrative Agent, certifying in the case of a Form 
W-8BEN or W-8ECI that such Lender is entitled to receive payments under this 
Agreement without deduction or withholding of any United States federal income 
taxes. Each Lender shall promptly notify the Company and the Administrative 
Agent at any time it determines that it is no longer in a position to provide 
any previously delivered above-mentioned form or statement (or successor 
thereto) to the Company and the Administrative Agent. 
 
                  (d) For any period with respect to which a Lender required to 
do so has failed to provide the Company with the appropriate form described in 
Section 3.10(c) above (other than if such failure is due to a change in law 
occurring subsequent to the date on which a form originally was required to be 
provided, or if such form otherwise is not required under Section 3.10(c) 
above), such Lender shall not be entitled to indemnification under this Section 
3.10 with respect to Non- Excluded Taxes imposed by reason of such failure; 
provided, however, that should a Lender become subject to Non-Excluded Taxes 
because of its failure to deliver a form required hereunder, the Company shall 
take such steps as such Lender reasonably shall request to assist such Lender in 
recovering such Non-Excluded Taxes. 
 
         SECTION 3.11. Pro Rata Treatment and Payments. (a) Each borrowing by 
the Company from the Lenders, each conversion of a Revolving Credit Loan 
pursuant to Section 3.01(d) hereof or continuation of a Revolving Credit Loan 
pursuant to Section 3.01(e) hereof, each payment by the Company on account of 
any fee (other than with respect to fees which are expressly payable to the 
Administrative Agent or the Issuing Lender for its own account), reimbursements 
by the Company to the Issuing Lender with respect to drawings under Letters of 
Credit pursuant to Section 2.03 hereof, and any reduction of the Commitments of 
the Lenders hereunder shall be made pro rata according to the respective 
relevant Commitment Proportions of the Lenders. Each payment (including each 
prepayment) by the Company on account of principal of and interest on each Loan 
shall be made pro rata according to the respective outstanding principal amounts 
of such Loans held by each Lender. Except as otherwise provided in Section 2.04, 
all payments by the Company on account of principal of and interest on any 
Swingline Loan shall be made to the Swingline Lender at its office specified on 
its signature page hereof in Dollars in immediately available funds. All 
payments (including prepayments) to be made by the Company on account of 
principal, interest, fees and reimbursement obligations shall be made without 
set-off or counterclaim and, with respect to payments of the Loans shall be made 
to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the Lenders (except as specified 
above), at the Payment Office of the Administrative Agent in Dollars in 
immediately available funds. The Administrative Agent shall distribute such 
payments with respect to Loans to the Lenders promptly upon receipt in like 
funds by wire transfer of each Lender's portion of such payment to such Lender 
for the account of its Lending Office. The Administrative Agent may, in its sole 
discretion, directly charge principal and interest payments due in respect of 
the Loans 
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to the Company's accounts at the Payment Office or other office of the 
Administrative Agent. The Issuing Lender may, in its sole discretion, directly 
charge reimbursement obligations with respect to Letters of Credit to the 
Company's accounts at any office of the Issuing Lender. Except as otherwise 
provided in the definition of "Interest Period", if any payment hereunder 
becomes due and payable on a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall 
be extended to the next succeeding Business Day, and, with respect to payments 
of principal, interest thereon shall be payable at the then applicable rate 
during such extension. 
 
         SECTION 3.12. Funding and Disbursement of Loans. (a) Each Lender shall 
make each Revolving Credit Loan to be made by it hereunder available to the 
Administrative Agent at the Payment Office for the account of such office and 
the Administrative Agent by 1:00 p.m. New York, New York time on the Borrowing 
Date in Dollars in immediately available funds. Unless any applicable condition 
specified in Article V has not been satisfied, the amount so received by the 
Administrative Agent will be made available to the Company at the Payment Office 
by crediting the account of the Company with such amount and in like funds as 
received by the Administrative Agent; provided, however, that if the proceeds of 
any Revolving Credit Loan or Swingline Loan or any portion thereof are to be 
used to prepay outstanding Revolving Credit Loans, Swingline Loans or Letter of 
Credit obligations, then the Administrative Agent shall apply such proceeds for 
such purpose to the extent necessary and credit the balance, if any, to the 
Company's account. 
 
         (b) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have been notified in writing 
by any Lender prior to a proposed Borrowing Date that such Lender is affected by 
the events or circumstances described in Sections 3.05, 3.06, 3.07 or 3.10 and 
that such Lender will not make the amount which would constitute its Commitment 
Proportion of the borrowing on such Borrowing Date available to the 
Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Lender has 
made such amount available to the Administrative Agent on such Borrowing Date, 
and the Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption, make 
available to the Company a corresponding amount. If such amount is not made 
available to the Administrative Agent until a date after such Borrowing Date, 
such Lender shall pay to the Administrative Agent on demand interest on such 
Lender's Commitment Proportion of such borrowing at a rate equal to the greater 
of (i) the daily average Federal Funds Rate and (ii) a rate determined by the 
Administrative Agent in accordance with banking industry rules on interbank 
compensation during such period, from and including such Borrowing Date to the 
date on which such Lender's Commitment Proportion of such borrowing shall have 
become immediately available to the Administrative Agent. A certificate of the 
Administrative Agent submitted to any Lender with respect to any amounts due 
pursuant to this Section 3.12(b) shall be conclusive absent demonstrable error. 
Nothing herein shall be deemed to relieve any Lender from its obligations to 
fulfill its commitment hereunder or to prejudice any right which the Company may 
have against any Lender as a result of any default by such Lender hereunder. 
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                                                    ARTICLE IV 
                                          REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 
         In order to induce the Lenders to enter into this Agreement and to make 
the Loans herein provided for, the Company represents and warrants to the 
Administrative Agent and each Lender that: 
 
         SECTION 4.01. Organization, Powers. The Company and each Guarantor (a) 
is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the 
laws of the jurisdiction of its formation, (b) has the corporate power and 
authority to own its properties and to carry on its business as being conducted, 
(c) is duly qualified to do business in every jurisdiction wherein the conduct 
of its business or the ownership of its properties are such as to require such 
qualification except those jurisdictions in which the failure to be so qualified 
could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, and (d) has 
the corporate power to execute, deliver and perform each of the Loan Documents 
to which it is a party, including, without limitation, the power to obtain 
extensions of credit hereunder and to execute and deliver the Notes. Each 
Subsidiary of the Company which is not a Guarantor, other than Excluded 
Subsidiaries, (a) is a corporation, limited liability company, partnership or 
other legal entity (as indicated on Schedule I hereto) duly organized or formed, 
as applicable, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the 
jurisdiction of its formation, (b) has the corporate, limited partnership, 
limited liability company or other legal power and authority to own or lease its 
properties and to carry on its business as being conducted on the Closing Date 
and, (c) is duly qualified to do business in every jurisdiction wherein the 
conduct of its business or the ownership of its properties are such as to 
require such qualification except in those jurisdictions where the failure to be 
so qualified could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
     SECTION 4.02.  Authorization  of Borrowing,  Enforceable  Obligations.  The 
----------------------------------------------------   execution,  delivery  and 
performance  by the Company of this  Agreement,  and the other Loan Documents to 
which it is a party,  the borrowings  and the other  extensions of credit to the 
Company hereunder, and the execution, delivery and performance by each Guarantor 
of the Loan  Documents to which such  Guarantor  is a party,  (a) have been duly 
authorized by all requisite corporate,  limited partnership or limited liability 
company action, (b) will not violate or require any consent (other than consents 
as have been made or obtained and which are in full force and effect)  under (i) 
any provision of law applicable to the Company or any Guarantor,  any applicable 
rule  or  regulation  of  any  Governmental  Authority,  or the  Certificate  of 
Incorporation  or By-laws of the Company or the  Certificate  of  Incorporation, 
By-Laws, or other organizational  documents, as applicable,  of any Guarantor or 
(ii) any  order of any  court or other  Governmental  Authority  binding  on the 
Company or any  Guarantor or any  indenture,  agreement or other  instrument  to 
which the Company or any  Guarantor  is a party,  or by which the Company or any 
Guarantor or any of its property is bound and (c) will not be in conflict  with, 
result in a breach of or  constitute  (with due notice  and/or  lapse of time) a 
default under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument, which conflict, 
breach or default  could  reasonably  be  expected  to have a  Material  Adverse 
Effect,  or result  in the  creation  or  imposition  of any Lien of any  nature 
whatsoever  upon any of the  property or assets of the Company or any  Guarantor 
other than as contemplated by this Agreement or the other Loan Documents. This 
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Agreement and each other Loan Document to which the Company or any Guarantor is 
a party constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company and 
each such Guarantor, as the case may be, enforceable against the Company and 
each such Guarantor, as the case may be, in accordance with its terms except to 
the extent that enforcement may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, 
reorganization, moratorium, insolvency and similar laws affecting creditors' 
rights generally or by equitable principles of general application, regardless 
of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law. 
 
         SECTION 4.03. Financial Condition. (a) The Company has heretofore 
furnished to each Lender (i) the audited consolidated balance sheet of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries and the related consolidated statements of income, 
retained earnings and cash flow of the Company and its Subsidiaries, audited by 
Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000 
and (ii) the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries and the related consolidated statements of income, retained 
earnings and cash flow of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the six month 
period ended December 31, 2000. The financial statements for the year ended June 
30, 2000, referred to in clause (i) above, were prepared in conformity with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, applied on a consistent basis, and the 
financial statements for the fiscal quarter and six month period ended December 
31, 2000, referred to in clause (ii) above, were prepared in conformity with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, applied on a consistent basis (subject 
to year-end adjustments and except for the absence of notes thereto), and, in 
each case, such financial statements fairly present the consolidated financial 
condition and consolidated results of operations of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries as of the date of such financial statements and for the periods to 
which they relate and since December 31, 2000 no Material Adverse Effect has 
occurred. The Company shall deliver to the Administrative Agent, a certificate 
of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company to that effect on the Closing 
Date. Other than obligations and liabilities arising in the ordinary course of 
business since the date of the Current SEC Report and the acquisition of Fruit 
Chips, there are no obligations or liabilities contingent or otherwise, of the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries which are not reflected or disclosed on such 
audited statements other than obligations of the Company and its Subsidiaries 
incurred in the ordinary course of business. 
 
                  (b)      The Company and each of the Guarantors is Solvent. 
 
         SECTION 4.04. Taxes. The Company and each Subsidiary of the Company has 
filed or has caused to be filed all tax returns (foreign, federal, state and 
local) required to be filed (including, without limitation, with respect to 
payroll and sales taxes) and the Company and each Subsidiary of the Company has 
paid all taxes (including, without limitation, all payroll and sales taxes), 
assessments and governmental charges and levies shown thereon to be due, 
including interest and penalties except (a) where the failure to file such tax 
returns or pay such taxes, charges or levies could not reasonably be expected to 
have a Material Adverse Effect and (b) taxes, assessments and governmental 
charges and levies being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and 
with respect to which adequate reserves in conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles consistently applied shall have been provided on the books 
of the Company and its Subsidiaries. 
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         SECTION 4.05. Title to Properties. The Company and each Subsidiary of 
the Company has good title to its respective properties and assets reflected on 
the financial statements referred to in Section 4.03 hereof, except for such 
properties and assets as have been disposed of since the date of such financial 
statements as no longer used or useful in the conduct of their respective 
businesses or as have been disposed of in the ordinary course of business, and 
all such properties and assets are free and clear of all Liens other than 
Permitted Liens. 
 
         SECTION 4.06. Litigation. (a) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.06(a), 
there are no actions, suits or proceedings (whether or not purportedly on behalf 
of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company) pending or, to the knowledge of 
the Company, threatened against or affecting the Company or any such Subsidiary 
at law or in equity or before or by any Governmental Authority, which involve 
any of the transactions contemplated herein or which could reasonably be 
expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect; and (b) neither the Company nor 
any Subsidiary of the Company is in default with respect to any judgment, writ, 
injunction, decree, rule or regulation of any Governmental Authority which could 
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
         SECTION 4.07. Agreements. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary of the 
Company is in violation of or restricted by its charter or bylaws or in breach 
or violation of any judgment, order, writ, injunction, decree or regulation 
which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Neither 
the Company nor any Subsidiary of the Company is in default in the performance, 
observance or fulfillment of any of the obligations, covenants or conditions 
contained in any agreement, indenture, loan or credit agreement or any lease or 
other agreement or instrument to which it is a party, which default could 
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
         SECTION 4.08. Compliance with ERISA. Except as set forth on Schedule 
4.08, each Plan is in compliance in all material respects with ERISA; no Plan is 
insolvent or in reorganization (as defined in Section 4241 of ERISA), no Plan 
has an Unfunded Current Liability, and no Plan has an accumulated or waived 
funding deficiency within the meaning of Section 412 of the Code; neither the 
Company, any Subsidiary of the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate has incurred any 
material liability to or on account of a Plan pursuant to Section 515, 4062, 
4063, 4064, 4201 or 4204 of ERISA or reasonably expects to incur any liability 
under any of the foregoing Sections on account of the prior termination of 
participation in or contributions to any such Plan; no proceedings have been 
instituted to terminate any Plan; no condition exists which could reasonably be 
expected to present a risk to the Company, any Subsidiary of the Company or any 
ERISA Affiliate of incurring a liability to or on account of a Plan pursuant to 
the foregoing provisions of ERISA and the Code; and no lien imposed under the 
Code or ERISA on the assets of the Company, any Subsidiary of the Company or any 
of its ERISA Affiliates exists or to the knowledge of the Company is likely to 
arise on account of any Plan. The aggregate potential tax liabilities, fines and 
penalties related to the items included on Schedule 4.08 would not have a 
Material Adverse Effect. 
 
     SECTION 4.09. Federal Reserve Regulations; Use of Proceeds. (a) Neither the 
Company nor any Subsidiary of the Company is engaged  principally in, nor has as 
one of its 
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important activities, the business of extending credit for the purpose of 
purchasing or carrying any "margin stock" (within the meaning of Regulation U of 
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States, as 
amended from time to time). 
 
         (b) No part of the proceeds of any Loan and no other extension of 
credit hereunder will be used, whether directly or indirectly, and whether 
immediately, incidentally or ultimately, (i) to purchase or to carry margin 
stock or to extend credit to others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying 
margin stock, or to refund indebtedness originally incurred for such purposes, 
or (ii) for any purpose which violates or is inconsistent with the provisions of 
Regulation T, U, or X of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. 
 
         (c) The proceeds of each Loan, and each other extension of credit 
hereunder, shall be used solely for the purposes permitted under Section 3.02 
hereof. 
 
         SECTION 4.10. Approvals. No registration with or consent or approval 
of, or other action by, any Governmental Authority or any other Person is 
required in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this 
Agreement by the Company or any Guarantor, or with the execution, delivery and 
performance of any other Loan Documents to which it is a party or, with respect 
to the Company, the borrowings and each other extension of credit hereunder 
other than registrations, consents and approvals received prior to the date 
hereof and disclosed to the Lenders and which are in full force and effect or 
such registrations, consents and approvals required pursuant to Section 5.01 
hereof. 
 
         SECTION 4.11. Subsidiaries and Affiliates. Attached hereto as Schedule 
I is a correct and complete list of each of the Company's Subsidiaries and 
Affiliates (other than individuals) as of the Closing Date showing as to each 
Subsidiary and Affiliate (other than individuals), its name, the jurisdiction of 
its incorporation or formation, its shareholders or other owners of an interest 
in each Subsidiary and Affiliate (other than individuals) and the number of 
outstanding shares or other ownership interests owned by each shareholder or 
other owner of an interest. 
 
         SECTION 4.12. Hazardous Materials. The Company and each Subsidiary are 
in compliance in all material respects with all applicable Environmental Laws 
and neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has used Hazardous Materials on, 
from, or affecting any property now owned or occupied or hereafter owned or 
occupied by the Company or any such Subsidiary in any manner which violates any 
applicable Environmental Law. No prior owner of any such property or any tenant, 
subtenant, prior tenant or prior subtenant have used Hazardous Materials on, 
from, or affecting such property in any manner which violates any applicable 
Environmental Law. 
 
     SECTION  4.13.   Investment  Company  Act.  Neither  the  Company  nor  any 
Subsidiary of the Company is an "investment  company", or a company "controlled" 
by an "investment company",  within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 
1940, as amended. 
 
     SECTION 4.14.  No Default.  No Default or Event of Default has occurred and 
is continuing. 
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         SECTION 4.15. Credit Arrangements. Schedule V is a complete and correct 
list of all material credit agreements, indentures, guaranties, Capital Leases 
and other investments, agreements and arrangements relating to borrowed money in 
effect on the Closing Date providing for or relating to extensions of credit to 
the Company or any Subsidiaries of the Company, or any of them (including 
agreements and arrangements for the issuance of letters of credit or for 
acceptance financing) in respect of which the Company or any Subsidiaries of the 
Company, or any of them, are in any manner directly or contingently obligated; 
and the maximum principal or face amounts of the credit in question, outstanding 
and which can be outstanding, are correctly stated, and all Liens of any nature 
given or agreed to be given as security therefor are correctly described or 
indicated in such Schedule. 
 
         SECTION 4.16. Permits and Licenses. The Company and each Subsidiary of 
the Company each has all permits, licenses, certifications, authorizations and 
approvals required for it lawfully to own and operate their respective 
businesses except those the failure of which to have could not reasonably be 
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
         SECTION 4.17. Compliance with Law. The Company and each Subsidiary of 
the Company are each in compliance with all laws, rules, regulations, orders and 
decrees which are applicable to the Company or any such Subsidiary, or to any of 
their respective properties, which the failure to comply with could, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect. 
 
         SECTION 4.18. Disclosure. Neither this Agreement, any other Loan 
Document, nor any other document, certificate or written statement furnished to 
the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender, or any Lender by or on behalf of 
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries for use in connection with the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement contains any untrue statement of 
material fact or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the 
statements contained herein or therein not misleading in light of the 
circumstances in which they were made. 
 
         SECTION 4.19. Labor Disputes and Acts of God. Neither the business nor 
the properties of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company is (i) engaged in 
any strike, lockout or other labor dispute or (ii) currently affected by or 
subject to any fire, explosion, accident, drought, storm, earthquake, embargo, 
act of God or other casualty (whether or not covered by insurance), which could 
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
         SECTION 4.20. Pledge Agreements. Each Pledge Agreement (which on the 
Closing Date shall be the Dutch Pledge Agreement) executed by the Company and 
each Subsidiary, as applicable, shall, pursuant to its terms and applicable law, 
constitute a valid and continuing lien on and security interest in the 
collateral referred to in such Pledge Agreement in favor of the Administrative 
Agent, for the ratable benefit of the Lenders, which shall be prior to all other 
Liens which may be perfected under the laws of any state of the United States of 
America except Permitted Liens, claims and rights of all other Persons in such 
collateral. 
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                                                     ARTICLE V 
                                               CONDITIONS OF LENDING 
 
         SECTION 5.01. Conditions to Initial Extension of Credit. The obligation 
of each Lender to make its initial Loan hereunder, and the obligation of the 
Issuing Lender to issue the initial Letter of Credit, are subject to the 
following conditions precedent: 
 
         (a) Notes. On or prior to the Closing Date, the Administrative Agent 
shall have received (i) for the account of each Lender, a Revolving Credit 
Facility A Note and a Revolving Credit Facility B Note and (ii) for the account 
of the Swingline Lender, a Swingline Note, each duly executed by the Company. 
 
         (b) Guaranties. On or prior to the Closing Date, the Administrative 
Agent shall have received, with a counterpart for each Lender, a Guaranty duly 
executed by each Guarantor. 
 
         (c) Dutch Pledge Agreement. On or prior to the Closing Date, the 
Administrative Agent shall have received the Dutch Pledge Agreement duly 
executed by the Company and Hain Europe, together with all stock certificates, 
if any, evidencing the shares pledged under the Dutch Pledge Agreement. 
 
         (d) Opinion of Counsel. On or prior to the Closing Date, the 
Administrative Agent shall have received a written opinion of (a) Cahill Gordon 
& Reindel, counsel for the Company and the Guarantors, substantially in the form 
of Exhibit G-1 attached hereto, and (b) Nauta Dutilh, Dutch counsel to Hain 
Europe, substantially in the form of Exhibit G-2 attached hereto. 
 
         (e) Supporting Documents. On or prior to the Closing Date, the 
Administrative Agent shall have received, (i) a certificate of good standing for 
the Company and each Guarantor from the secretary of state of the states of 
their organizational jurisdiction dated as of a recent date; (ii) certified 
copies of the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws or other organization 
documents, as applicable of the Company and each Guarantor; and (iii) a 
certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Company and each 
Guarantor dated the Closing Date and certifying: (x) that neither the 
Certificates of Incorporation nor the By-laws of the Company or of any Guarantor 
has been amended since the date of their certification (or if there has been any 
such amendment, attaching a certified copy thereof); (y) that attached thereto 
is a true and complete copy of resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of 
the Company and by the board of directors or other governing body or Persons of 
each Guarantor authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of each Loan 
Document to which it is a party and, with respect to the Company, the borrowings 
and other extensions of credit hereunder; and (z) the incumbency and specimen 
signature of each officer of the Company and of each officer or other authorized 
Person of each Guarantor executing each Loan Document to which the Company or 
any Guarantor is a party and any certificates or instruments furnished pursuant 
hereto or thereto, and a certification by another officer of the Company and 
each Guarantor as to the incumbency and signature of the Secretary or Assistant 
Secretary of the Company and each Guarantor. 
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         (f) Insurance. On or prior to the Closing Date, the Administrative 
Agent shall have received a certificate or certificates of insurance from an 
independent insurance broker or brokers confirming the insurance required to be 
maintained pursuant to Section 6.01 hereof. 
 
         (g) Fees and Expenses. On or prior to the Closing Date, the Lenders 
shall have received all fees that may be payable to them pursuant to this 
Agreement (including any fees payable pursuant to separate fee letters executed 
by the Company on January 8, 2001 and as of the date hereof) and reimbursement 
of expenses in accordance with Section 10.03(b) hereof. 
 
         (h) No Litigation. Except as set forth in Schedule 4.06(a), there shall 
exist no action, suit, investigation, litigation or proceeding affecting the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, 
threatened before any court, governmental agency or arbiter that could 
reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material 
Adverse Effect. 
 
         (i) Consents and Approvals. Except to the extent the failure to obtain 
any consents or approvals, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be 
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, all governmental and third party 
consents and approvals necessary in connection with the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement and the other Loan Documents shall have been 
obtained (without the imposition of any conditions that are not reasonably 
acceptable to the Required Lenders) and shall remain in effect, and no law or 
regulation shall be applicable in the reasonable judgment of the Required 
Lenders that imposes materially adverse conditions upon the transactions 
contemplated hereby. 
 
     (j) No Material Adverse Changes. There shall not have occurred any material 
adverse change in the business,  operations,  properties or condition (financial 
or otherwise) of the Company or any Guarantor, since December 31, 2000. 
 
         (k) Existing Indebtedness. The Administrative Agent shall have received 
concurrently with the extension of the initial Loans described herein evidence 
that the Existing Indebtedness has been paid in full and that the agreements 
giving rise to the Existing Indebtedness have been terminated. 
 
         (l) Financial Statements. The Lenders shall have received the audited 
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2000; together with the management prepared 
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the 
fiscal quarter and six month period ended December 31, 2000. 
 
         (m) Management Letters. To the extent any exist and have not been 
previously provided to the Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent shall 
have received a copy of the most recent management letter prepared on behalf of 
the Company by the Company's Auditors. 
 
     (n) Other  Information,  Documentation.  The  Administrative  Agent and the 
Lenders shall have received such other and further information and documentation 
as any of them may 
 
                                                        48 
 



 
 
 
 
reasonably require, including, but not limited to, any information or 
documentation relating to compliance by the Company and each Subsidiary of the 
Company with the requirements of all Environmental Laws. 
 
         (o) Completion of Proceedings. All corporate and other proceedings, and 
all documents, instruments and other legal matters in connection with the 
transactions contemplated by the Loan Documents, shall be reasonably 
satisfactory in form and substance to the Administrative Agent, the Lenders and 
their counsel. 
 
         SECTION 5.02. Conditions to Extensions of Credit. The obligation of 
each Lender to make each Loan hereunder and the obligation of the Issuing Lender 
to issue, amend, renew or extend any Letter of Credit, including, without 
limitation, the initial Loan and initial Letter of Credit, are further subject 
to the following conditions precedent: 
 
         (a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties 
by the Company and each Guarantor pursuant to this Agreement and the other Loan 
Documents to which each is a party shall be true and correct in all material 
respects on and as of the Borrowing Date or the date of issuance, amendment, 
renewal or extension of such Letter of Credit, as applicable, with the same 
effect as though such representations and warranties had been made on and as of 
such date unless such representation is as of a specific date, in which case, as 
of such date. 
 
         (b) No Default. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and 
be continuing on the Borrowing Date or on the date of issuance, amendment, 
renewal or extension of a Letter of Credit or will result after giving effect to 
the Loan requested or the requested issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of 
a Letter of Credit. 
 
         (c) Letter of Credit Documentation. With respect to the issuance, 
amendment, renewal or extension of any Letter of Credit, the Issuing Lender 
shall have received the documents and instruments requested by the Issuing 
Lender in accordance with Section 2.03(a) hereof. 
 
Each borrowing hereunder and each issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of a 
Letter of Credit shall constitute a representation and warranty of the Company 
that the statements contained in clauses (a), (b), and (c) of this Section 5.02 
are true and correct on and as of the Borrowing Date or as of the date of 
issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of a Letter of Credit, as applicable, 
as though such representation and warranty had been made on and as of such date. 
 
 
                                                    ARTICLE VI 
                                               AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS 
 
         The Company covenants and agrees with the Lenders that so long as the 
Commitments remain in effect, or any of the principal of or interest on the 
Notes or any other Obligations hereunder shall be unpaid it will, and will cause 
each of its Domestic and Non-Domestic Subsidiaries, to: 
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         SECTION 6.01. Existence, Properties, Insurance. Do or cause to be done 
all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect its 
corporate, partnership or limited liability company, as applicable, existence, 
rights and franchises and comply in all material respects with all laws 
applicable to it; at all times maintain, preserve, protect or renew all 
franchises, trade names, patents, trademarks and service marks and preserve all 
of its property, in each case, material to its business and keep the same in 
good repair, working order and condition (normal wear and tear excepted) and 
from time to time make, or cause to be made, all needful and proper repairs, 
renewals, replacements, betterments and improvements thereto so that the 
business carried on in connection therewith may be properly and advantageously 
conducted in the ordinary course at all times in the manner and custom of 
similar businesses; at all times, preserve and maintain in full force and effect 
all governmental rights, privileges, qualifications, permits, licenses and 
franchises necessary for the normal conduct of its business; and at all times 
maintain insurance covering its assets and its businesses with financially sound 
and reputable insurance companies or associations in such amounts and against 
such risks (including, without limitation, hazard, business interruption, public 
liability and product liability) as are usually carried by companies engaged in 
the same or similar business. 
 
         SECTION 6.02. Payment of Indebtedness and Taxes. (a) Pay all 
indebtedness and obligations, now existing or hereafter arising, as and when due 
and payable and (b) pay and discharge or cause to be paid and discharged 
promptly all taxes, assessments and government charges or levies imposed upon it 
or upon its income and profits, or upon any of its property, real, personal or 
mixed, or upon any part thereof, as and when due and payable, as well as all 
lawful claims for labor, materials and supplies or otherwise which, if unpaid, 
might become a lien or charge upon such properties or any part thereof; 
provided, however, that neither the Company nor any Subsidiary of the Company 
shall be required to pay and discharge or cause to be paid and discharged any 
such tax, assessment, charge, levy or claim so long as the validity thereof 
shall be contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings, and the Company or 
such Subsidiary, as the case may be, shall have set aside on its books adequate 
reserves determined in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
with respect to any such tax, assessment, charge, levy or claim so contested; 
further, provided that, subject to the foregoing proviso, the Company and each 
Subsidiary of the Company will pay or cause to be paid all such taxes, 
assessments, charges, levies or claims upon the commencement of proceedings to 
foreclose any lien which has attached as security therefor. 
 
     SECTION  6.03.  Financial   Statements,   Reports,   etc.  Furnish  to  the 
Administrative Agent (with sufficient copies for each Lender): 
 
                  (a) as soon as available and in any event within ninety (90) 
days of the end of the fiscal year of the Company, the audited consolidated 
financial statement of the Company and its Subsidiaries which shall include the 
consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries as of the end of 
such fiscal year, together with the consolidated statement of income and 
statement of cash flows for the Company and its Subsidiaries for such fiscal 
year and as of the end of and for the prior fiscal year, all prepared in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and accompanied by an 
opinion thereon of Ernst & Young LLP or other nationally recognized independent 
certified public accountants reasonably acceptable to the Lenders (the 
"Auditor") which 
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opinion shall not include a going concern explanatory paragraph, a qualification 
as to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles or like qualification or 
exception or a qualification or exception as to the scope of the audit, together 
with a report of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company setting forth with 
respect to each brand of the Company and its Subsidiaries, the gross revenue and 
Net Direct Contributions, in form and substance satisfactory to the Lenders; 
 
                  (b) as soon as available and in any event within forty-five 
(45) days after the end of each of the first, second and third fiscal quarters 
of the Company, the unaudited consolidated financial statement of the Company 
and its Subsidiaries, which shall include the unaudited consolidated balance 
sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries as of the end of each such quarter, 
together with the consolidated statement of income and statement of cash flows 
of the Company and its Subsidiaries for each such quarter and for the period 
commencing at the end of the previous fiscal year and ending with the end of 
such quarter, all in reasonable detail stating in comparative form the 
respective figures for the corresponding date and period in the previous fiscal 
year, all prepared by or under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer of 
the Company in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (subject 
to year-end adjustments and except for the absence of notes thereto), and, 
commencing with the period ending June 30, 2001 and each quarter thereafter, a 
report of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company setting forth with respect 
to each brand of the Company and its Subsidiaries, the gross revenue and Net 
Direct Contributions, in form and substance satisfactory to the Lenders; 
 
                  (c) a certificate prepared and signed by the Auditor with each 
delivery required by clause (a) and a certificate prepared and signed by the 
Chief Financial Officer with each delivery required by clause (a) and (b), 
stating whether the Auditor or Chief Financial Officer, as the case may be, 
shall have obtained knowledge of any Default or Event of Default, together with 
a certificate of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company demonstrating that 
as of the last day of the relevant fiscal year or quarter, as applicable, the 
Company was in compliance with the financial condition covenants set forth in 
Section 7.13 hereof; 
 
                  (d) at all times indicated in clause (a) above (i) a copy of 
the management letter, if any, prepared by the Auditor and (ii) copies of the 
Company's annual financial projections, on a quarterly basis with respect to the 
next succeeding fiscal year, in reasonable detail and in form and substance 
reasonably satisfactory to the Required Lenders (it being recognized by the 
Administrative Agent and the Lenders that future results included in such 
projections shall not be viewed as facts and that actual results may differ from 
projected results); 
 
                  (e) promptly after filing thereof, copies of all financial 
statements and reports that the Company sends to its shareholders, and copies of 
all regular, periodic and special financial information, proxy materials, 
reports and other information which the Company or any Guarantor shall file with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission; 
 
     (f) promptly after submission to any government or regulatory  agency,  all 
documents and  information  furnished to such  government  or regulatory  agency 
other than such 
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documents and information prepared in the normal course of business and which 
could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect; and 
 
                  (g) promptly, from time to time, such other information 
regarding the operations, business affairs and condition (financial or 
otherwise) of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company as any Lender may 
reasonably request. 
 
         SECTION 6.04.              Books and Records; Access to Premises. 
                                    ------------------------------------- 
 
                  (a) Maintain adequate records and proper books of record and 
account in which full, true and correct entries will be made in a manner to 
enable the preparation of financial statements in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles, and which shall reflect all financial 
transactions of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries and matters involving 
the assets and business of the Company and such Subsidiaries. 
 
                  (b) At any time and from time to time during normal business 
hours (and provided that no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is 
continuing upon reasonable prior notice) permit any Lender or any agents or 
representatives thereof to examine and make abstracts from the books and records 
of such information which such Lender deems is necessary or desirable 
(including, without limitation, the financial records of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries, but excluding information governed by a written confidentiality 
agreement which prohibits such access), and to visit the properties of the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries and to discuss the affairs, finances and 
accounts of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with any of their respective 
executive officers or the Company's independent accountants. 
 
         SECTION 6.05. Notice of Adverse Change. Promptly notify the 
Administrative Agent (and the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each 
Lender) in writing of (a) any change in the business or the operations of the 
Company or its Subsidiaries which could reasonably be expected to have a 
Material Adverse Effect, and (b) any information which indicates that any 
financial statements which are the subject of any representation contained in 
this Agreement, or which are furnished to the Administrative Agent or the 
Lenders pursuant to this Agreement, fail to present fairly, as of the date 
thereof and for the period covered thereby, the financial condition and results 
of operations purported to be presented therein, disclosing the nature thereof. 
 
         SECTION 6.06. Notice of Default. Promptly notify the Administrative 
Agent (and the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender) of any 
Default or Event of Default which shall have occurred or the occurrence or 
existence of any event or circumstance that in the reasonable judgment of the 
Company is likely to become a Default or Event of Default, which notice shall 
include a written statement as to such occurrence, specifying the nature thereof 
and the action (if any) which is proposed to be taken with respect thereto. 
 
     SECTION 6.07.  Notice of  Litigation.  Promptly  notify the  Administrative 
Agent (and the  Administrative  Agent shall promptly  notify each Lender) of any 
action, suit or proceeding at law 
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or in equity or by or before any governmental instrumentality or other agency 
which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
         SECTION 6.08. Notice of Default in Other Agreements. Promptly notify 
the Administrative Agent (and the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify 
each Lender) of any default in the performance, observance or fulfillment of any 
of the obligations, covenants or conditions contained in any agreement or 
instrument to which the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company is a party 
which default could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
         SECTION 6.09. Notice of ERISA Event. Promptly after the Company or any 
Guarantor knows any of the following, deliver to the Administrative Agent a 
certificate of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company setting forth details 
as to the occurrence and the action, if any, which the Company, such Guarantor 
or any ERISA Affiliate is required or proposes to take, together with any 
notices required or proposed to be given to or filed with or by the Company, 
such Guarantor, such ERISA Affiliate, the PBGC, a Plan participant or the Plan 
administrator, with respect thereto: that a Reportable Event has occurred with 
respect to a Plan, that an accumulated funding deficiency (as defined in Section 
412 of the Code) has been incurred or an application may be or has been made to 
the Secretary of the Treasury for a waiver or modification of the minimum 
funding standard (including any required installment payments) or an extension 
of any amortization period under Section 412 of the Code with respect to a Plan 
that is a Single Employer Plan (within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(15) of 
ERISA), that a Plan has been terminated, reorganized, partitioned or declared 
insolvent under Title IV of ERISA, that one or more Plans that are Single 
Employer Plans (within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(15) of ERISA) have an 
Unfunded Current Liability, that proceedings may be or have been instituted to 
terminate a Plan, that a proceeding has been instituted pursuant to Section 515 
of ERISA to collect a delinquent contribution to a Plan, or that the Company, 
any Guarantor or any ERISA Affiliate will incur any liability (including any 
contingent or secondary liability) to or on account of the termination of or 
withdrawal from a Plan under Section 4062, 4063, 4064, 4201 or 4204 of ERISA. 
Upon request of any Lender, the Company will deliver to each Lender a complete 
copy of the annual report (Form 5500) of each Plan that is a Single Employer 
Plan (within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(15) of ERISA), filed with the 
Internal Revenue Service. In addition to any certificates or notices delivered 
to each Lender pursuant to the first sentence hereof, copies of any other 
notices received by the Company or any Guarantor required to be delivered to 
each Lender hereunder shall be delivered to each Lender no later than ten days 
after the later of the date such report or notice has been filed with the 
Internal Revenue Service or the PBGC, given to Plan participants or received by 
the Company or any Guarantor. 
 
         SECTION 6.10. Notice of Environmental Law Violations. Promptly notify 
the Administrative Agent of the receipt of any notice of an action, suit, or 
proceeding before any court or governmental department, commission, board, 
bureau, agency or instrumentality, domestic or foreign, pending against the 
Company or any Subsidiary of the Company relating to any alleged violation of 
any Environmental Law which could reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect. 
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         SECTION 6.11. Compliance with Applicable Laws. Comply with the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders of any 
Governmental Authority, the breach of which could reasonably be expected to have 
a Material Adverse Effect, including, without limitation, the rules and 
regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 
 
         SECTION 6.12. Additional Subsidiaries. Give the Administrative Agent 
prompt written notice of the creation, establishment or acquisition, in any 
manner, of any Subsidiary of the Company not existing on the Closing Date or of 
the fact that a Subsidiary has ceased to be an Excluded Subsidiary. Subject to 
the last sentence of this Section 6.12, the Company or a Domestic Subsidiary of 
the Company, as appropriate, (a) shall execute a Pledge Agreement, in the form 
of Exhibit I-1 or I-2 hereto (or such other agreement as shall be required by 
the Administrative Agent), as applicable, with respect to not more than 65% of 
each class of the capital stock or other equity interest of each First-Tier 
Subsidiary of such Person which is or becomes a Non-Domestic Subsidiary and 
which is not an Excluded Subsidiary, and (b) shall cause each Subsidiary of such 
Person which is a Domestic Subsidiary and which is not an Excluded Subsidiary to 
execute a Guaranty, in the form of Exhibit E hereto, in the case of both (a) and 
(b), within ten (10) days after the creation, establishment or acquisition of 
such Subsidiary or of the date such Subsidiary ceases to be an Excluded 
Subsidiary and in connection therewith shall deliver or cause to be delivered 
such proof of corporate action, incumbency of officers, opinions of counsel and 
other documents as are consistent with those delivered as to each Subsidiary 
pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof on the Closing Date, or as the Administrative 
Agent may request, each in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative 
Agent. In no event shall the Company be required to pledge any of the assets of 
a Subsidiary that is a controlled foreign corporation, as defined in Section 
957(a) of the Code, including, but not limited to the stock of any Subsidiary 
held directly or indirectly by any such Subsidiary. 
 
         SECTION 6.13. Environmental Laws. Comply in all material respects with 
the requirements of all applicable Environmental Laws, provide to the Lenders 
all documentation in connection with such compliance that any of the Lenders may 
reasonably request, and defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Administrative 
Agent and each Lender and their respective employees, agents, officers, and 
directors, from and against any claims, demands, penalties, fines, liabilities, 
settlements, damages, costs, or expenses of whatever kind or nature, known or 
unknown, contingent or otherwise, arising out of, or in any way related to, (a) 
the presence, disposal, or release of any Hazardous Materials on any property at 
any time owned or occupied by the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, (b) 
any personal injury (including wrongful death) or property damage (real or 
personal) arising out of or related to such Hazardous Materials, (c) any lawsuit 
brought or threatened, settlement reached, or government order relating to such 
Hazardous Materials, and/or (d) any violation of applicable Environmental Laws, 
including, without limitation, reasonable attorney and consultant fees, 
investigation and laboratory fees, court costs, and litigation expenses. 
 
     SECTION 6.14. Management Letters.  Deliver to the Administrative Agent (and 
the Administrative  Agent shall promptly deliver a copy to each Lender), as soon 
as available, but in any 
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event within seven (7) Business Days of any such letter being issued, a copy of 
the management letter addressed to the Company by the Company's Auditors. 
 
 
                                                    ARTICLE VII 
                                                NEGATIVE COVENANTS 
 
         The Company covenants and agrees with the Lenders that so long as the 
Commitments remain in effect or any of the principal of or interest on any Note 
or any other Obligations hereunder shall be unpaid, it will not, and will not 
cause or permit any of its Domestic Subsidiaries or Non- Domestic Subsidiaries, 
directly or indirectly, to: 
 
     SECTION 7.01.  Indebtedness.  Incur,  create,  assume or suffer to exist or 
otherwise become liable in respect of any Indebtedness, other than: 
 
     (a) Indebtedness incurred prior to the date hereof as described in Schedule 
III attached  hereto (which is not described in Section  7.01(b) through 7.01(j) 
hereof), but not including any renewals or extensions thereof. 
 
     (b)  Indebtedness  to the Lenders  under this  Agreement,  the Notes or any 
other Loan Document; 
 
     (c)  Indebtedness  for trade  payables  incurred in the ordinary  course of 
business; provided such payables shall be paid or discharged when due; 
 
     (d)  Indebtedness  consisting of guarantees  permitted  pursuant to Section 
7.03 hereof; 
 
     (e) subject to Section 7.06 hereof,  Subordinated  Indebtedness incurred in 
connection  with Acceptable  Acquisitions  in an aggregate  amount not to exceed 
$10,000,000 at any time outstanding; provided, however, that no Default or Event 
of Default  shall have  occurred  and be  continuing  at the time of  incurrence 
thereof  or  would  occur  after  giving  effect  to  the   incurrence  of  such 
Subordinated Indebtedness; 
 
     (f) Indebtedness secured by purchase money liens as permitted under Section 
7.02(h) hereof and Indebtedness arising under Capital Leases;  provided that the 
aggregate amount of such Indebtedness incurred in any fiscal year of the Company 
shall not  exceed  $5,000,000,  and,  further,  provided  no Default or Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would occur after giving effect 
to the incurrence of such Indebtedness; 
 
     (g)  Indebtedness  with respect to Hedging  Agreements  entered into by the 
Company; 
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                  (h) Indebtedness arising under or with respect to foreign 
exchange contracts entered into by the Company for the purchase or sale of 
foreign currency arranged by any Lender for the account of the Company or the 
Guarantors, provided that such foreign exchange contracts shall be entered into 
in the ordinary course of its business with respect to its business needs and 
not for speculative purposes; 
 
                  (i) Indebtedness for taxes, assessments or other governmental 
charges or levies not yet delinquent or which are being contested in good faith 
by appropriate proceedings; provided, however, that adequate reserves with 
respect thereto are maintained on the books of the Company or any Subsidiary of 
the Company in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles; 
 
                  (j) Indebtedness owing by (i) the Company to any Guarantor or 
(ii) any Guarantor to the Company or any other Guarantor, to the extent that 
such Indebtedness is otherwise permitted pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement; 
 
                  (k) purchase money Indebtedness for borrowed money secured 
solely by mortgages on the Company's real property in an amount not to exceed 
$15,000,000 in the aggregate at any time outstanding; and 
 
                  (l) other Indebtedness not provided for in Section 7.01(a) 
through Section 7.01(k) not to exceed $5,000,000 in the aggregate at any one 
time outstanding; provided such Indebtedness shall be and remain unsecured at 
all times. 
 
     SECTION 7.02.  Liens.  Incur,  create,  make, assume or suffer to exist any 
Lien on any of their respective assets now or hereafter owned, other than: 
 
     (a) Liens  existing on the date hereof as set forth on Schedule II attached 
hereto (which are not described in Sections 7.02(b) through 7.02(i) hereof), but 
not including any renewals or extensions thereof; 
 
     (b) Liens  securing  Indebtedness  described  in  Section  7.01(i)  hereof, 
provided that no notice of lien has been filed or recorded under the Code; 
 
     (c) carriers',  warehousemens',  mechanics', suppliers' or other like Liens 
arising in the ordinary  course of business and not overdue for a period of more 
than  thirty  (30)  days or which  are  being  contested  in good  faith  and by 
appropriate  proceedings,  which  proceedings  have the effect of preventing the 
forfeiture or sale of the property subject thereto; 
 
     (d) Liens incurred or deposits to secure (i) the non-delinquent performance 
of tenders,  bids,  trade  contracts  (other than for borrowed  money),  leases, 
statutory obligations,  (ii) contingent  obligations on surety,  performance and 
appeal bonds, and (iii) other  non-delinquent  obligations of similar nature; in 
each case, incurred in the ordinary course of business; 
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     (e) any attachment, judgment or similar Lien arising in connection with any 
court  or  governmental   proceeding   provided  that  the  execution  or  other 
enforcement of such Lien is effectively stayed within thirty (30) days after the 
entry thereof; 
 
     (f) easements,  rights of way,  restrictions  and other similar  charges or 
encumbrances  incurred  in  the  ordinary  course  of  business  which,  in  the 
aggregate, do not interfere in any material respect with the occupation, use and 
enjoyment  by the Company or any  Subsidiary  of the Company of the  property or 
assets encumbered  thereby in the normal course of their respective  business or 
materially impair the value of the property subject thereto; 
 
     (g)  deposits  or pledges  required in the  ordinary  course of business in 
connection with workmen's compensation,  unemployment insurance and other social 
security laws; 
 
     (h) purchase  money Liens for fixed or capital  assets  acquired or held by 
the Company or its  Subsidiaries  in the ordinary  course of business,  securing 
Indebtedness permitted pursuant to Section 7.01(f) hereof; provided in each case 
(i) no Default or Event of Default  shall have occurred and be continuing at the 
time such Lien is created or shall occur after giving effect to such Lien,  (ii) 
such  purchase  money lien does not exceed  100% of the  purchase  price of, and 
encumbers only, the property  acquired,  and (iii) such purchase money Lien does 
not secure any  Indebtedness  other than in respect of the purchase price of the 
asset acquired; 
 
     (i) Liens in favor of banks or other depository  institutions upon property 
or assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries arising under the common law 
or pursuant to contractual rights of set off; and 
 
     (j) Liens on real property of the Company securing  Indebtedness  permitted 
by Section  7.01(k) hereof,  provided the Lien is  specifically  limited to such 
real property. 
 
         SECTION 7.03. Guaranties. Guarantee, endorse, become surety for, or 
otherwise in any way become or be responsible for the Indebtedness or 
obligations of any Person, whether by agreement to maintain working capital or 
equity capital or otherwise maintain the net worth or solvency of any Person or 
by agreement to purchase the Indebtedness of any other Person, or agreement for 
the furnishing of funds, directly or indirectly, through the purchase of goods, 
supplies or services for the purpose of discharging the Indebtedness of any 
other Person or otherwise, or enter into or be a party to any contract for the 
purchase of merchandise, materials, supplies or other property if such contract 
provides that payment for such merchandise, materials, supplies or other 
property shall be made regardless of whether delivery of such merchandise, 
supplies or other property is ever made or tendered except: 
 
                  (a) guaranties executed prior to the date hereof as described 
on Schedule IV attached hereto (which are not described in Sections 7.03(b) 
through 7.03(c) hereof), but not including any renewals or extensions thereof; 
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     (b) endorsements of negotiable instruments for collection or deposit in the 
ordinary course of business; and 
 
     (c) guaranties of any  Indebtedness  under this Agreement or any other Loan 
Document. 
 
         SECTION 7.04. Sale of Assets. Sell, lease, assign, transfer or 
otherwise dispose of their now owned or hereafter acquired respective properties 
and assets, whether or not pursuant to an order of a federal agency or 
commission, except for (a) the sale of inventory disposed of in the ordinary 
course of business, (b) the sale or other disposition of properties or assets no 
longer used or useful in the conduct of their respective businesses, (c) the 
transfer of Intellectual Property to an IP Subsidiary, (d) a transfer from the 
Company or any direct or indirect wholly-owned Guarantor to the Company or 
another direct or indirect wholly-owned Guarantor, (e) an arrangement, directly 
or indirectly, with any Person whereby it shall sell or transfer any property, 
whether real or personal, used or useful in its business, whether now owned or 
hereafter acquired, if at the time of such sale or disposition it intends to 
lease or otherwise acquire the right to use or possess (except by purchase) such 
property or like property for a substantially similar purpose, (f) the sale or 
disposition of assets in arms length transactions; provided that the aggregate 
net proceeds of any such sale pursuant to subsections (a) through (f) of this 
Section 7.04 shall not exceed $5,000,000, in the aggregate, in any fiscal year, 
or (g) the transfer permitted under Section 7.08. 
 
         SECTION 7.05. Sales of Receivables. Sell, transfer, discount or 
otherwise dispose of notes, accounts receivable or other obligations owing to 
the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, with or without recourse, except 
for collection in the ordinary course of business. 
 
         SECTION 7.06. Loans and Investments. Make or commit to make any 
advance, loan, extension of credit, or capital contribution to, or purchase or 
hold beneficially any stock or other securities, or evidence of Indebtedness of, 
purchase or acquire all or a substantial part of the assets of, make or permit 
to exist any interest whatsoever in, any other Person except for (a) the 
ownership of stock of any Subsidiary existing as of the Closing Date or acquired 
after the date hereof pursuant to an Acceptable Acquisition, provided that the 
Company has complied with its obligations under Section 6.12 hereof, (b) loans 
to directors and employees of the Company or any Guarantor in an amount not to 
exceed $5,000,000 in the aggregate at any time outstanding, (c) Eligible 
Investments, (d) loans and advances by the Company to any Subsidiary of the 
Company and loans and advances by any Subsidiary of the Company to the Company 
or any other Subsidiary of the Company, (e) trade credit to customers, provided 
that such credit is extended in the ordinary course of the business of the 
Company or such Subsidiary, (f) (i) investments in the Fruit Chips Spanish Joint 
Venture in an amount not to exceed $500,000 in the aggregate and (ii) 
investments in other joint ventures in an amount not to exceed $10,000,000 in 
the aggregate during the term of this Agreement (provided, (A) the documentation 
governing any such joint venture does not contain restrictions on distributions 
or dividends to the Company and (B) any such joint venture is engaged in the 
same line of business conducted by the Company (or the manufacturing of products 
used in such business)) and (g) Acceptable Acquisitions, provided that (i) not 
more than six (6) Acceptable Acquisitions may be closed in any 12 month period; 
(ii) not more than three (3) of such Acceptable Acquisitions during 
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any such time period each shall have an aggregate consideration (of any kind or 
description including consideration paid by delivery of promissory notes, by the 
assumption of liabilities or otherwise) in excess of $10,000,000 to be paid by 
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in connection with each such Acceptable 
Acquisition, and (iii) with respect to each such acquisition, on or before the 
fifteenth (15th) Business Day prior to the closing of such proposed acquisition, 
the Company shall have delivered to the Lenders: 
 
          (A) a preliminary or draft report of the Company's Auditor, which 
         report shall set forth the EBITDA of the subject of the proposed 
         acquisition, together with any and all adjustments thereto, provided 
         that the final version of such report of the Company's Auditor, in form 
         and substance satisfactory to the Lenders, shall be delivered to the 
         Lenders on or before the fifth (5th) Business Day prior to the closing 
         of such proposed acquisition; 
 
         (B) a preliminary or draft certificate of the Chief Financial Officer 
         demonstrating compliance with the requirements of clauses (c) and (d) 
         of the definition of "Acceptable Acquisition", each of which shall be 
         in form and substance satisfactory to the Lenders, provided that the 
         final version of the certificate of the Chief Financial Officer, in 
         form and substance satisfactory to the Lenders, shall be delivered to 
         the Lenders on or before the fifth (5th) Business Day prior to the 
         closing of such proposed acquisition; 
 
         (C) financial statements which shall include balance sheets, income 
         statements and statements of cash flows of the Person being acquired, 
         (a) in the same form and substance as those required to be delivered by 
         the Company under Sections 6.03(a) and 6.03(b) hereof, to the extent 
         such are available, or (b) if unavailable, in the form relied upon by 
         the Company in connection with such transaction, together with the due 
         diligence report prepared by the Company's Auditors, or another 
         nationally recognized accounting firm, in connection with such 
         transaction, in each case for the previous three (3) fiscal years; 
 
         (D) pro forma balance sheet and income statements of the Company and 
         its Subsidiaries (after giving effect to the proposed Acceptable 
         Acquisition) as of the then most recent fiscal quarter ended 
         demonstrating that upon consummation of such Acceptable Acquisition, 
         the Company will be in compliance with the financial covenants 
         contained in Section 7.13, such eveidence of compliance to be in form 
         and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Lenders; 
 
     (E) copies of the relevant purchase agreement and all schedules thereto; 
 
         (F) evidence satisfactory to the Lenders that the shares or other 
         interest in the Person, or the assets of the Person, which is the 
         subject of the related Acceptable Acquisition are free and clear of all 
         Liens, except those Liens permitted pursuant to Section 7.02, 
         including, without limitation, with respect to the acquisition of 
         shares or other equity interests, free of any restrictions on transfer 
         other than restrictions applicable to the sale of securities under 
         federal and state securities laws and regulations generally. 
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to a proposed acquisition having an 
aggregate consideration (of any kind or description including consideration paid 
by delivery of promissory notes, by the assumption of liabilities or otherwise) 
of less than $10,000,000 (or less than $20,000,000 with respect to acquisitions 
structured solely as stock for stock acquisitions), the requirements of clause 
(g)(iii) above need only be in form and substance satisfactory to the Required 
Lenders and the Required Lenders shall have the right, in their sole discretion, 
to waive any of the requirements of such clause. 
 
     SECTION 7.07. Nature of Business. Change or alter, in any material respect, 
the nature of its business  from the nature of the business  engaged in by it on 
the date hereof (or reasonable extension thereof). 
 
         SECTION 7.08. Transfer of Equity in Hain Europe. Transfer the Company's 
ownership interest in Hain Europe to any Person, other than a Person who is a 
direct or indirect wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Company (the "Transferee 
Subsidiary"), provided that (a) if the Transferee Subsidiary is a Non-Domestic 
Subsidiary, the Company and/or those Subsidiaries of the Company owning 
interests in the Transferee Subsidiary shall, immediately following such 
transfer, execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent a Pledge Agreement 
with respect to 65% of the capital stock or other equity interest of such 
Transferee Subsidiary; provided further, that in the event the Transferee 
Subsidiary is a limited partnership, the Administrative Agent, in its 
discretion, shall elect the allocation of the 65% interest to be pledged among 
the general partnership and limited partnership interests, or (b) if such 
Transferee Subsidiary is a Domestic Subsidiary, then such Domestic Subsidiary 
shall, immediately following such transfer, execute and deliver to the 
Administrative Agent a Dutch Pledge Agreement with respect to 65% of the capital 
stock or other equity interest of Hain Europe. Upon delivery of a Pledge 
Agreement under (a) or (b) above, the Administrative Agent shall release the 
lien granted to it pursuant to the Dutch Pledge Agreement executed on the 
Closing Date. 
 
         SECTION 7.09. Federal Reserve Regulations. Permit any Loan or the 
proceeds of any Loan or any other extension of credit hereunder to be used for 
any purpose which violates or is inconsistent with the provisions of Regulation 
T, U or X of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. 
 
         SECTION 7.10. Accounting Policies and Procedures. Permit any change in 
the accounting policies and procedures of the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries, including a change in fiscal year, provided, however, that any 
policy or procedure required to be changed by the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (or other board or committee thereof) or the SEC in order to comply with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles may be so changed. 
 
         SECTION 7.11. Hazardous Materials. Cause or permit any of its 
properties or assets to be used to generate, manufacture, refine, transport, 
treat, store, handle, dispose of, transfer, produce or process Hazardous 
Materials, except in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws or regulations, or cause or permit, as a result of any intentional or 
negligent act or omission on the part of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, 
a release of Hazardous Materials 
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onto such property or asset or onto any other property, except in compliance 
with such laws and regulations. 
 
         SECTION 7.12. Limitations on Fundamental Changes, Limitations on 
Consideration. Except for Acceptable Acquisitions, and except as permitted by 
Sections 7.04 and 7.08 hereof, merge or consolidate with, or sell, assign, lease 
or otherwise dispose of (whether in one transaction or in a series of 
transactions) all or substantially all of its assets (whether now or hereafter 
acquired) to, any Person, or, except with respect to an Acceptable Acquisition, 
acquire all of the stock or all or substantially all of the assets or the 
business of any Person or liquidate, wind up or dissolve or suffer any 
liquidation or dissolution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (a) any Subsidiary of 
the Company may merge with and into the Company or any Domestic Subsidiary of 
the Company, (b) any Non-Domestic Subsidiary of the Company may merge with and 
into another Non-Domestic Subsidiary of the Company, provided, that no 
Non-Domestic Subsidiary with respect to which the Administrative Agent has 
received a pledge of stock shall merge with and into another Non- Domestic 
Subsidiary if 65% of the shares or other ownership interests of the surviving 
Subsidiary cannot be pledged to the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the 
Lenders, and (c) the Company may merge with and into a Domestic Subsidiary of 
the Company in order to effect a change of the state of incorporation of the 
Company, provided that in each of the above (i) the Company shall notify the 
Administrative Agent not less than thirty (30) days prior to such event and (ii) 
the surviving entity shall, if applicable, assume the obligations of the merged 
entity pursuant to this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents and shall 
execute such documents and agreements as may be reasonably required by the 
Administrative Agent. 
 
         SECTION 7.13.              Financial Condition Covenants. 
 
     (a) Consolidated Total Funded Debt to Consolidated  EBITDA.  Permit, at any 
time, the ratio of Consolidated  Total Funded Debt to Consolidated  EBITDA to be 
greater than 3.00:1.00. 
 
     (b) Interest Coverage Ratio. Permit, at any time, the ratio of Consolidated 
EBITDA minus (i)  Consolidated  Maintenance  Capital  Expenditures and (ii) cash 
taxes paid to Consolidated Interest Expense to be less than 4.00:1.00. 
 
                  (c) Consolidated Tangible Net Worth. Permit, at any time, the 
Consolidated Tangible Net Worth to be less than 95% of Consolidated Tangible Net 
Worth at June 30, 2000 plus 50% of the cumulative Consolidated Net Income (but 
not less than zero) from July 1, 2000 through the end of the then most recently 
concluded fiscal quarter, provided, however, there shall be excluded from the 
determination of cumulative Consolidated Net Income the results of any fiscal 
quarter for which the Company incurred a Consolidated Net Loss. 
 
     (d) No Cumulative Quarterly Losses. Permit, at any time, a Consolidated Net 
Loss for two consecutive fiscal quarters. 
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         SECTION 7.14. Subordinated Debt. (i) Directly or indirectly prepay, 
defease, purchase, redeem, or otherwise acquire any Subordinated Debt or (ii) 
amend, supplement or otherwise modify any of the subordinated terms thereof in 
any way which would materially affect the interests of the Lenders, without the 
prior written consent of the Required Lenders. 
 
         SECTION 7.15. Dividends. Declare any dividend on, or make any payment 
on account of, or set apart assets for a sinking or other analogous fund for the 
purchase, redemption, defeasance, retirement or other acquisition of, any shares 
of any class of stock of the Company whether now or hereafter outstanding, or 
make any other distribution in respect thereof, either directly or indirectly, 
whether in cash, securities or property or in obligations of the Company or in 
any combination thereof, except dividends paid by a Guarantor to the Company and 
repurchases by the Company of its common stock on or after the Closing Date for 
an aggregate purchase price not to exceed $5,000,000. 
 
         SECTION 7.16. Transactions with Affiliates. Enter into any transaction, 
including, without limitation, the purchase, sale, or exchange of property or 
the rendering of any service, with any Affiliate, except (i) in the ordinary 
course of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of the Company's or any of 
its Subsidiaries' business (including reasonable and customary fees paid to 
officers and directors, employees or consultants of the Company or any 
Subsidiary or their respective affiliates for services rendered thereto 
consistent with past practices) and upon fair and reasonable terms no less 
favorable to the Company or such Subsidiary than they would obtain in a 
comparable arms-length transaction with a Person not an Affiliate, (ii) under 
written arrangements in existence as of the date of this Agreement and described 
on Schedule 7.16 attached hereto, (iii) transactions exclusively between or 
among the Company and any direct or indirect wholly-owned Guarantor or 
exclusively between or among such direct or indirect wholly-owned Guarantors, 
provided, such transactions are not otherwise prohibited by this Agreement, or 
(iv) transactions pursuant to Section 7.04(c) and (d) hereof. 
 
         SECTION 7.17. Negative Pledge. Enter into any agreement, arrangement or 
understanding with any Person (other than the Lenders pursuant to this Agreement 
or any of the other Loan Documents) which prohibits or limits the ability of the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries to create, incur, assume or suffer to exist 
any Lien upon its property, assets or revenues, whether now owned or hereafter 
acquired. 
 
 
                                                   ARTICLE VIII 
                                                 EVENTS OF DEFAULT 
 
     SECTION 8.01. Events of Default. In the case of the happening of any of the 
following events (each an "Event of Default"): 
 
     (a)  failure  to pay (i) the  principal  of any  Loan as and  when  due and 
payable or (ii) interest on any Loan, any reimbursement obligations with respect 
to a drawing under any Letter of 
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Credit, or any fees under this Agreement, as and when due and payable and, in 
the case of this subclause (ii) only, such failure shall continue unremedied for 
a period of three (3) Business Days; 
 
                  (b) any representation or warranty made or deemed made in this 
Agreement or any other Loan Document shall prove to be false or misleading in 
any material respect when made or given or when deemed made or given; 
 
                  (c) any report, certificate, financial statement or other 
instrument furnished in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan 
Document or the extensions of credit hereunder, shall prove to be false or 
misleading in any material respect when made or given or when deemed made or 
given; 
 
                  (d) default shall be made in the due observance or performance 
(beyond any applicable grace periods, if any) of any covenant, condition or 
agreement of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company to be performed (i) 
pursuant to Article 6 of this Agreement (other than Section 6.03 and Section 
6.04(b) thereof) and, in the case of this subclause (i) only, such default shall 
continue unremedied for a period of thirty (30) consecutive days or (ii) 
pursuant to any other provision of this Agreement or any other Loan Document; 
 
                  (e) default in the performance or compliance in respect of any 
agreement or condition relating to any Indebtedness of the Company or any 
Guarantor in excess of $7,000,000 individually or in the aggregate (other than 
the Notes), if the effect of such default is to accelerate the maturity of such 
Indebtedness or to permit the holder or obligee thereof (or a trustee on behalf 
of such holder or obligee) to cause such Indebtedness to become due prior to the 
stated maturity thereof, or, any such Indebtedness shall not be paid when due 
(beyond any applicable grace period); 
 
                  (f) the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company shall (i) 
voluntarily commence any proceeding or file any petition seeking relief under 
Title 11 of the United States Code or any other federal or state bankruptcy, 
insolvency or similar law, (ii) consent to the institution of, or fail to 
controvert in a timely and appropriate manner, any such proceeding or the filing 
of any such petition, (iii) apply for or consent to the employment of a 
receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or similar official for the Company 
or any Subsidiary of the Company or for a substantial part of its property; (iv) 
file an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it 
in such proceeding, (v) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, 
or (vi) take corporate action for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing; 
or the Company, or any Subsidiary of the Company, becomes unable or admits in 
writing its inability or fails generally to pay its debts as they become due; 
 
                  (g) an involuntary proceeding shall be commenced or an 
involuntary petition shall be filed in a court of competent jurisdiction seeking 
(i) relief in respect of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company or of a 
substantial part of their respective property, under Title 11 of the United 
States Code or any other federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law, 
(ii) the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or similar 
official for the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company or for a substantial 
part of their property, or (iii) the winding-up or 
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liquidation of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company and such proceeding 
or petition shall continue undismissed for 30 days or an order or decree 
approving or ordering any of the foregoing shall continue unstayed and in effect 
for 30 days; 
 
                  (h) one or more orders, judgments or decrees for the payment 
of money in excess of $5,000,000 in the aggregate shall be rendered against the 
Company or any Subsidiary of the Company which is not covered by insurance and 
the same shall not have been paid in accordance with such judgment, order or 
decree or settlement and either (i) an enforcement proceeding shall have been 
commenced by any creditor upon such judgment, order or decree, or (ii) there 
shall have been a period of sixty (60) days during which a stay of enforcement 
of such judgment, order or decree, by reason of pending appeal or otherwise, was 
not in effect; 
 
                  (i) any Plan shall fail to maintain the minimum funding 
standard required under Section 412 of the Code for any Plan year or part 
thereof or a waiver of such standard or extension of any amortization period is 
applied for or granted under Section 412 of the Code, any Plan is terminated by 
the Company, any Subsidiary of the Company or any ERISA Affiliate or the subject 
of termination proceedings under ERISA, any Plan shall have an Unfunded Current 
Liability, a Reportable Event shall have occurred with respect to a Plan or the 
Company, any Subsidiary of the Company, or any ERISA Affiliate shall have 
incurred a liability to or on account of a Plan under Section 515, 4062, 4063, 
4201 or 4204 of ERISA, and there shall result from any such event or events the 
imposition of a lien upon the assets of the Company or any Subsidiary of the 
Company, the granting of a security interest on such assets, or a liability to 
the PBGC or a Plan or a trustee appointed under ERISA or a penalty under Section 
4971 of the Code; 
 
                  (j) any material provision of any Loan Document shall for any 
reason cease to be in full force and effect in accordance with its terms or the 
Company or any Guarantor shall so assert in writing; or 
 
                  (k) any Guarantor shall fail to perform or observe any term or 
provision of such Guarantor's Guaranty or any representation or warranty made by 
any Guarantor in connection with such Guarantor's Guaranty shall prove to have 
been incorrect in any material respect when made or deemed made; 
 
                  (l)      a Change of Control shall have occurred. 
 
then, at any time thereafter during the continuance of any such event, the 
Administrative Agent may, and, upon the request of the Required Lenders, shall, 
by written or telephonic notice to the Company, take either or both of the 
following actions, at the same or different times, (a) terminate the Commitments 
and (b) declare (i) the Notes, both as to principal and interest, (ii) an amount 
equal to the Aggregate Letters of Credit Outstanding and (iii) all other 
Obligations, to be forthwith due and payable without presentment, demand, 
protest or other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived, 
anything contained herein or in the Notes to the contrary notwithstanding; 
provided, however, that if an event specified in Section 8.01(f) or (g) hereof 
shall have occurred, the Commitments shall automatically terminate and interest, 
principal and amounts referred to in the 
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preceding clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) shall be immediately due and payable 
without presentment, demand, protest, or other notice of any kind, all of which 
are expressly waived, anything contained herein or in the Notes to the contrary 
notwithstanding. With respect to all Letters of Credit that shall not have 
expired or presentment for honor shall not have occurred, the Company shall 
provide the Administrative Agent with Cash Collateral in an amount equal to the 
aggregate undrawn amount of such Letters of Credit. Such Cash Collateral shall 
be applied by the Administrative Agent to reimburse the Issuing Lender for 
drawings under Letters of Credit for which the Issuing Lender has not been 
reimbursed and, to the extent not so applied, shall be held for the satisfaction 
of the reimbursement obligations of the Company at such time or, if the maturity 
of the Loans has been accelerated, be applied to satisfy other Obligations, with 
any amount remaining after such satisfactions to be returned to the Company or 
paid to such other party as may legally be entitled to the same. 
 
                                                    ARTICLE IX 
                                             THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT 
 
         SECTION 9.01. Appointment, Powers and Immunities. Each Lender hereby 
irrevocably appoints and authorizes the Administrative Agent to act as its agent 
hereunder and under the other Loan Documents with such powers as are 
specifically delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms of this 
Agreement and the other Loan Documents together with such other powers as are 
reasonably incidental thereto. The Administrative Agent shall have no duties or 
responsibilities except those expressly set forth in this Agreement and the 
other Loan Documents and shall not be a trustee for any Lender, nor is the 
Administrative Agent acting in a fiduciary capacity of any kind under this 
Agreement or the other Loan Documents or in respect thereof or in respect of any 
Lender. The Administrative Agent shall not be responsible to the Lenders for any 
recitals, statements, representations or warranties contained in this Agreement 
or the other Loan Documents, in any certificate or other document referred to or 
provided for in, or received by any of them under, this Agreement or the other 
Loan Documents, or for the value, validity, effectiveness, genuineness, 
enforceability or sufficiency of this Agreement or the other Loan Documents or 
any other document referred to or provided for herein or therein or for the 
collectibility of the Loans or for the validity or effectiveness of any 
assignment, mortgage, pledge, security agreement, financing statement, document 
or instrument, or for the filing, recording, re-filing, continuing or 
re-recording of any thereof or for any failure by the Company or any Guarantor 
to perform any of its obligations hereunder or under the other Loan Documents. 
The Administrative Agent may take all actions by itself and/or it may employ 
agents and attorneys-in-fact, and shall not be responsible to any Lender, except 
as to money or the securities received by it or its authorized agents, for the 
negligence or misconduct of itself or its employees or of any such agents or 
attorneys-in-fact, if such agents or attorneys-in-fact are selected by it with 
reasonable care. Neither the Administrative Agent nor any of its directors, 
officers, employees or agents shall be liable or responsible for any action 
taken or omitted to be taken by it or them hereunder or under the other Loan 
Documents or in connection herewith or therewith, except for its or their own 
gross negligence or willful misconduct. 
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         SECTION 9.02. Reliance by Administrative Agent. The Administrative 
Agent shall be entitled to rely upon, and shall not incur any liability to any 
Lender for relying upon, any certification, notice or other communication 
(including any thereof by telephone, telex, telegram or cable) believed by it to 
be genuine and correct and to have been signed or sent by or on behalf of the 
proper Person or Persons, and upon advice and statements of legal counsel, 
independent accountants and other experts selected by the Administrative Agent. 
As to any matters not expressly provided for by this Agreement or the other Loan 
Documents, the Administrative Agent shall in all cases be fully protected in 
acting, or in refraining from acting, hereunder or under the other Loan 
Documents in accordance with instructions signed by the Required Lenders, or 
such other number of Lenders as is specified in Section 10.04 hereof, and such 
instructions of the Required Lenders or other number of Lenders as aforesaid and 
any action taken or failure to act pursuant thereto shall be binding on all of 
the Lenders. 
 
         SECTION 9.03. Events of Default. The Administrative Agent shall not be 
deemed to have knowledge of the occurrence of a Default or Event of Default 
(other than the non-payment of principal of or interest on the Loans or of fees 
to the extent the same is required to be paid to the Administrative Agent for 
the account of the Lenders) unless the Administrative Agent has received notice 
from a Lender or the Company specifying such Default or Event of Default and 
stating that such notice is a "Notice of Default". In the event that the 
Administrative Agent receives such a notice of the occurrence of a Default or 
Event of Default, the Administrative Agent shall give prompt notice thereof to 
the Lenders. The Administrative Agent shall (subject to Section 9.07 hereof) 
take such action with respect to such Default or Event of Default as shall be 
directed by the Required Lenders, except as otherwise provided in Section 10.04 
hereof; provided that unless and until the Administrative Agent shall have 
received such directions, the Administrative Agent may (but is not obligated to) 
take such action, or refrain from taking such action, with respect to such 
Default or Event of Default as it shall deem advisable in the best interest of 
the Lenders. 
 
         SECTION 9.04. Rights as a Lender. With respect to its Commitment and 
the Loans made by it, the entity which is the Administrative Agent, in its 
capacity as a Lender hereunder, shall have the same rights and powers hereunder 
as any other Lender and may exercise the same as though it were not acting as 
the Administrative Agent, and the term "Lender" or "Lenders" shall, unless the 
context otherwise indicates, include each entity which is the Administrative 
Agent in its individual capacity. The Administrative Agent and its Affiliates 
may (without having to account therefor to any Lender) accept deposits from, 
lend money to and generally engage in any kind of banking, trust or other 
business with the Company or its Affiliates, as if it were not acting as the 
Administrative Agent, and, except to the extent otherwise herein specifically 
set forth, the Administrative Agent may accept fees and other consideration from 
the Company or its Affiliates, for services in connection with this Agreement or 
any of the other Loan Documents or otherwise without having to account for the 
same to the Lenders. 
 
         SECTION 9.05. Indemnification. The Lenders shall indemnify the 
Administrative Agent (to the extent not reimbursed by the Company under Section 
10.03 hereof), ratably in accordance with the aggregate outstanding principal 
amount of the Loans made by the Lenders (or, if no Loans are at the time 
outstanding, ratably in accordance with their respective Commitments), 
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for any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, 
judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind and nature 
whatsoever which may be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the 
Administrative Agent in its capacity as the Administrative Agent in any way 
relating to or arising out of this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents 
or any other documents contemplated by or referred to herein or therein or the 
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including, without limitation, the 
costs and expenses which the Company is obligated to pay under Section 10.03 
hereof or under the applicable provisions of any other Loan Document) or the 
enforcement of any of the terms hereof or of any other Loan Document, provided 
that no Lender shall be liable for any of the foregoing to the extent they arise 
from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Administrative Agent. 
 
         SECTION 9.06. Non-Reliance on Administrative Agent and Other Lenders. 
Each Lender agrees that it has, independently and without reliance on the 
Administrative Agent or any other Lender, and based on such documents and 
information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own credit analysis of the 
Company and decision to enter into this Agreement and that it will, 
independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other 
Lender, and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate 
at the time, continue to make its own analysis and decisions in taking or not 
taking action under this Agreement or under the other Loan Documents. The 
Administrative Agent shall not be required to keep itself informed as to the 
performance or observance by the Company of this Agreement or the other Loan 
Documents or any other document referred to or provided for herein or therein or 
to inspect the properties or books of the Company. Except for notices, reports 
and other documents and information expressly required to be furnished to the 
Lenders by the Administrative Agent hereunder or under the other Loan Documents, 
or furnished to the Administrative Agent with counterparts or copies for the 
Lenders, the Administrative Agent shall not have any duty or ability to provide 
any Lender with any credit or other information concerning the affairs, 
financial condition or business of the Company, which may come into the 
possession of the Administrative Agent or any of its Affiliates. 
 
         SECTION 9.07. Failure to Act. Except for action expressly required of 
the Administrative Agent hereunder or under any other Loan Documents, the 
Administrative Agent shall in all cases be fully justified in failing or 
refusing to act hereunder or thereunder unless it shall be indemnified to its 
satisfaction by the Lenders against any and all liability (except gross 
negligence and willful misconduct) and expense which may be incurred by it by 
reason of taking or continuing to take any such action. 
 
         SECTION 9.08. Resignation of an Agent. Subject to the appointment and 
acceptance of a successor Agent as provided in this Section 9.08, the 
Syndication Agent, the Documentation Agent or the Administrative Agent may 
resign at any time by notifying the Lenders and the Company. Upon any such 
resignation, the Required Lenders shall have the right, with the approval of the 
Company provided no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and then be 
continuing, and such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or 
conditioned, to appoint a successor to such Agent. If no successor shall have 
been so appointed by the Required Lenders (with the approval of the Company) and 
shall have accepted such appointment within 30 days after the resigning Agent 
gives notice of its resignation, then the resigning Agent may, on behalf of the 
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Lenders, appoint a successor Agent which shall be a bank of similar standing 
with an office in New York, New York, or an Affiliate of any such bank. Upon the 
acceptance of its appointment as Agent hereunder by a successor, such successor 
shall succeed to and become vested with all the rights, powers, privileges and 
duties of the resigning Agent, and the resigning Agent shall be discharged from 
its duties and obligations hereunder as of such date. The fees payable by the 
Company to a successor Agent shall be the same as those payable to its 
predecessor unless otherwise agreed between the Company and such successor. 
After an Agent's resignation hereunder, the provisions of this Article and 
Section 10.03 hereof shall continue in effect for the benefit of such resigning 
Agent in respect of any actions taken or omitted to be taken by it while it was 
acting as an Agent. 
 
         SECTION 9.09. Sharing of Collateral and Payments. In the event that at 
any time any Lender shall obtain payment in respect of the Obligations, 
including any payment received by Fleet National Bank in connection with the 
enforcement of the Dutch Pledge Agreement, or receive any collateral in respect 
thereof, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, through the exercise of a right 
of banker's lien, set-off or counterclaim against the Company or otherwise, 
which results in it receiving more than its pro rata share of the aggregate 
payments with respect to all of the Obligations (other than any payment 
expressly provided hereunder to be distributed on other than a pro rata basis), 
then such Lender shall be deemed to have simultaneously purchased from the other 
Lenders a share in their Obligations so that the amount of the Obligations held 
by each of the Lenders shall be pro rata; provided, however, that if all or any 
portion of such excess payment or benefits is thereafter recovered from the 
Lender which received the proportionate over-payment, such purchase shall be 
rescinded, and the purchase price and benefits returned, to the extent of such 
recovery, but without interest. The Company agrees, to the extent it may do so 
under applicable law, that each Lender so purchasing a portion of another 
Lender's Loan or participation in any Letter of Credit may exercise all rights 
of payment (including, without limitation, rights of set-off) with respect to 
such portion as fully as if such Lender were the direct holder of such portion. 
 
 
                                                     ARTICLE X 
                                                   MISCELLANEOUS 
 
         SECTION 10.01. Notices. All notices, requests and demands to or upon 
the respective parties hereto to be effective shall be in writing (including 
telecopy), and unless otherwise expressly provided herein, shall be conclusively 
deemed to have been received by a party hereto and to be effective on the day on 
which delivered by hand to such party or one Business Day after being sent by 
overnight mail to the address set forth below, or, in the case of telecopy 
notice, when acknowledged as received, or if sent by registered or certified 
mail, three (3) Business Days after the day on which mailed in the United 
States, addressed to such party at such address: 
 
                  (a)      if to the Administrative Agent, at: 
 
                           Fleet National Bank 
                           300 Broad Hollow Road 
                           Melville, New York 11747 
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          Attention:       Relationship Manager - The Hain Celestial Corporation 
          Telecopy:        (631) 547-7815 
 
  With a copy to: 
 
           Farrell Fritz, P.C. 
           EAB Plaza, West Tower 
           Uniondale, New York 11556 
           Attention:       Robert C. Creighton, Esq. 
           Telecopy:        (516) 227-0777 
 
  (b)      if to the Company, at: 
 
           The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
           50 Charles Lindbergh Boulevard 
           Uniondale, New York 11553 
           Attention:       Gary M. Jacobs 
           Telecopy:        (516) 237-6277 
 
  With a copy to: 
 
           Cahill Gordon & Reindel 
           80 Pine Street 
           New York, New York 10005 
           Attention:       Roger Meltzer, Esq. 
           Telecopy:        (212) 269-5420 
 
     (c) if to any Lender,  to its address  set forth in the  signature  page of 
this Agreement and to the person so designated; 
 
                                                      - and - 
 
                  (d)      as to each party at such other address as such party 
                           shall have designated (i) if such party is a Lender, 
                           by written notice to the Administrative Agent and the 
                           Company, (ii) if such party is the Company, by 
                           written notice to the Administrative Agent and to 
                           each Lender, and (iii) if such party is the 
                           Administrative Agent, by written notice to the 
                           Company and each Lender, in each case, delivered in 
                           accordance with the provisions of this Section 10.01. 
 
         SECTION 10.02. Effectiveness; Survival. This Agreement shall become 
effective on the date on which all parties hereto shall have signed a 
counterpart copy hereof and shall have delivered the same to the Administrative 
Agent. All representations and warranties made herein and in the other Loan 
Documents and in the certificates delivered pursuant hereto or thereto shall 
survive the making by the Lenders of the Loans and the issuance by the Issuing 
Lender of Letters of Credit, 
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in each case, as herein contemplated and the execution and delivery to the 
Lenders of the Notes evidencing the Loans and shall continue in full force and 
effect so long as the Obligations hereunder are outstanding and unpaid and the 
Commitments are in effect. The obligations of the Company pursuant to Section 
3.07, Section 3.08, Section 3.10, Section 6.13 and Section 10.03 hereof shall, 
notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, survive termination of this 
Agreement and payment of the Obligations. 
 
         SECTION 10.03. Expenses. The Company agrees (a) to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender and each Lender 
and their respective officers, directors, employees, and affiliates (each, an 
"indemnified person") from and against any and all losses, claims, damages, 
liabilities or judgments to which any such indemnified person may be subject and 
arising out of or in connection with the Loan Documents, the financings 
contemplated hereby, the use of any proceeds of such financings or any claim, 
litigation, investigation or proceeding relating to any of the foregoing, 
whether or not any of such indemnified persons is a party thereto, and to 
reimburse each of such indemnified persons upon demand for any reasonable legal 
or other expenses incurred in connection with the investigation or defending any 
of the foregoing; provided that the foregoing indemnity will not, as to any 
indemnified person, apply to losses, claims, damages, liabilities, judgments or 
related expenses to the extent arising from the wilful misconduct or gross 
negligence of such indemnified person, (b) to pay or reimburse the 
Administrative Agent for all its out-of-pocket costs and reasonable expenses 
incurred in connection with the preparation and execution of and any amendment, 
supplement or modification to this Agreement, the Notes any other Loan 
Documents, and any other documents prepared in connection herewith or therewith, 
and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, 
including without limitation, the reasonable fees and disbursements of Farrell 
Fritz, P.C., counsel to the Administrative Agent, and (c) to pay or reimburse 
each Lender and the Administrative Agent for all their costs and expenses 
incurred in connection with the enforcement and preservation of any rights under 
this Agreement, the Notes, the other Loan Documents, and any other documents 
prepared in connection herewith or therewith, including, without limitation, the 
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel (including, without limitation, 
in-house counsel) to the Administrative Agent and to the several Lenders, 
including all such out-of-pocket expenses incurred during any work-out, 
restructuring or negotiations in respect of the Obligations. 
 
         SECTION 10.04. Amendments and Waivers. With the written consent of the 
Required Lenders, the Administrative Agent and the Company may, from time to 
time, enter into written amendments, supplements or modifications hereto for the 
purpose of adding any provisions to this Agreement or the Notes or any of the 
other Loan Documents or changing in any manner the rights of the Lenders or of 
the Company hereunder or thereunder, and with the written consent of the 
Required Lenders the Administrative Agent on behalf of the Lenders may execute 
and deliver to the Company a written instrument waiving, on such terms and 
conditions as the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders may specify in 
such instrument, any of the requirements of this Agreement or the Notes or any 
of the other Loan Documents or any Default or Event of Default; provided, 
however, that no such waiver and no such amendment, or supplement or 
modification shall (a) extend the maturity of any Note or any installment 
thereof; (b) reduce the rate or extend the time of payment of interest on any 
Note or any fees payable to the Lenders hereunder; (c) reduce the 
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principal amount of any Note or the amount of any reimbursement due in respect 
of any Letter of Credit; (d) amend, modify or waive any provision of this 
Section 10.04; (e) reduce the percentage specified in the definition of Required 
Lenders or amend or modify any other provision hereof specifying the number or 
percentage of Lenders required to waive, amend or modify any rights hereunder or 
make any determination granting consent hereunder; (f) consent to the assignment 
or transfer by the Company of any of its rights or obligations under this 
Agreement; (g) except as expressly permitted pursuant to this Agreement or any 
other Loan Document release any collateral security granted to the 
Administrative Agent, if any; (h) release any Guarantor from its Guaranty, or 
limit any Guarantor's liability with respect to its Guaranty; (i) amend the 
definition of Acceptable Acquisition; (j) amend the terms of Section 
7.06(g)(iii), or (k) permit any Letter of Credit issued hereunder to expire on 
or after the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment Termination Date, in each 
case specified in clauses (a) through (k) above without the written consent of 
all the Lenders; and provided, further, that no such waiver and no such 
amendment, supplement or modification shall (i) amend, modify, supplement or 
waive any provision of Article IX with respect to the Administrative Agent 
without the written consent of the Administrative Agent or (ii) increase the 
amount of any Lender's Commitment without the written consent of such Lender. 
Any such waiver and any such amendment, supplement or modification shall apply 
equally to each of the Lenders and shall be binding upon the Company, the 
Lenders, the Administrative Agent and all future holders of the Notes. 
 
         SECTION 10.05. Successors and Assigns; Participations. (a) This 
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, the 
Lenders, the Administrative Agent, all future holders of the Notes and their 
respective successors and assigns, except that the Company may not assign or 
transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement or any other Loan 
Document without the prior written consent of each Lender and any such 
assignment without such consent shall be null and void. 
 
         (b) Any Lender may, in the ordinary course of its commercial banking 
business and in accordance with applicable law, at any time sell to one or more 
banks or other financial institutions ("Participants") participating interests 
in any Loan owing to such Lender, any Note held by such Lender, any Commitment 
of such Lender or any other interest of such Lender hereunder. In the event of 
any such sale by a Lender of participating interests to a Participant, such 
Lender's obligations under this Agreement to the other parties under this 
Agreement shall remain unchanged, such Lender shall remain solely responsible 
for the performance thereof, such Lender shall remain the holder of any such 
Note for all purposes under this Agreement, and the Company and the 
Administrative Agent shall continue to deal solely and directly with such Lender 
in connection with such Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement. 
The Company agrees that each Participant shall be entitled to the benefits of 
Sections 3.07, 3.08 and 3.10 with respect to its participation in the 
Commitments and in the Loans and Letters of Credit outstanding from time to 
time; provided, however, that no Participant shall be entitled to receive any 
greater amount pursuant to such Sections than the transferor Lender would have 
been entitled to receive in respect of the amount of the participation 
transferred by such transferor Lender to such Participant had no such transfer 
occurred. No Participant shall have the right to consent to any amendment to, or 
waiver of, any provision of this Agreement, except the transferor Lender may 
provide in its agreement with the 
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Participant that such Lender will not, without the consent of the Participant, 
agree to any amendment or waiver described in clause (a) through clause (h) of 
Section 10.04. 
 
         (c) Subject to the last sentence of this paragraph (c) any Lender may, 
in the ordinary course of its commercial banking business and in accordance with 
applicable law, at any time sell to any Lender or any domestic banking affiliate 
thereof, and, with the consent of the Administrative Agent, and, so long as no 
Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Company 
(which in each case shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), 
to one or more additional banks or financial institutions ("Purchasing Lenders") 
all or any part of its rights and obligations under this Agreement and the Notes 
pursuant to an Assignment and Acceptance Agreement, executed by such Purchasing 
Lender, such transferor Lender and the Administrative Agent (and, in the case of 
an Assignment and Acceptance Agreement relating to a Purchasing Lender that is 
not then a Lender or a domestic banking affiliate thereof, also executed by the 
Company), and delivered to the Administrative Agent for its acceptance. Upon 
such execution, delivery and acceptance from and after the effective date 
specified in such Assignment and Acceptance Agreement, (i) the Purchasing Lender 
thereunder shall be a party hereto and, to the extent provided in such 
Assignment and Acceptance Agreement, have the rights and obligations of a Lender 
hereunder with Commitments as set forth therein and (ii) the transferor Lender 
thereunder shall, to the extent provided in such Assignment and Acceptance 
Agreement, be released from its obligations under this Agreement arising after 
such transfer (and, in the case of an Assignment and Acceptance Agreement 
covering all or the remaining portion of a transferor Lender's rights and 
obligations under this Agreement, such transferor Lender shall cease to be a 
party hereto except as to Sections 3.07, 3.08, 3.10 and 10.03 for the period 
prior to the effective date). Such Assignment and Acceptance Agreement shall be 
deemed to amend this Agreement to the extent, and only to the extent, necessary 
to reflect the addition of such Purchasing Lender and the resulting adjustment 
of Commitment Proportions arising from the purchase by such Purchasing Lender of 
all or a portion of the rights and obligations of such transferor Lender under 
or in respect of this Agreement and the Notes. On or prior to the effective date 
specified in such Assignment and Acceptance Agreement, the Company, at its own 
expense, shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent, in exchange for 
each surrendered Note, new Notes to the order of such Purchasing Lender in an 
amount equal to the Commitments assumed by it pursuant to such Assignment and 
Acceptance Agreement and, if the transferor Lender has retained any Commitment 
hereunder, a new Note to the order of the transferor Lender in an amount equal 
to such Commitment retained by it hereunder. Such new Notes shall be in a 
principal amount equal to the principal amount of such surrendered Notes, shall 
be dated the effective date specified in the Assignment and Acceptance Agreement 
and shall otherwise be in the form of the Notes replaced thereby. The Notes 
surrendered by the transferor Lender shall be returned by the Administrative 
Agent to the Company marked "cancelled". Anything in this Section 10.05 to the 
contrary notwithstanding, (i) no transfer to a Purchasing Lender shall be made 
pursuant to this paragraph (c), if (x) such transfer by any one transferor 
Lender to any one Purchasing Lender (other than a Purchasing Lender which is a 
Lender hereunder prior to such transfer) is in respect of less than $5,000,000 
of the Commitments of such transferor Lender or (y) after giving effect to such 
transfer the amount held by any transferor Lender would be less than $5,000,000 
and (ii) each transfer to a Purchasing Lender shall be made in the same pro-rata 
portion with respect to the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment and the 
Revolving Credit Facility B Commitment. 
 
                                                        72 
 



 
 
 
 
         (d) The Administrative Agent shall maintain at its address referred to 
in Section 10.01 a copy of each Assignment and Acceptance Agreement delivered to 
it and a register (the "Register") for the recordation of the names and 
addresses of the Lenders and the commitments of, and principal amount of the 
Loans owing to, each Lender from time to time. The entries in the Register shall 
be conclusive, in the absence of demonstrable error and the Company, the 
Administrative Agent and the Lenders may treat each Person whose name is 
recorded in the Register as the owner of the Loans recorded therein for all 
purposes of this Agreement. The Register shall be available for inspection by 
the Company or any Lender at any reasonable time and from time to time upon 
reasonable prior notice. 
 
         (e) Upon its receipt of an Assignment and Acceptance Agreement executed 
by a transferor Lender and a Purchasing Lender (and, in the case of a Purchasing 
Lender that is not then a Lender or an Affiliate thereof, by the Company) 
together with payment by the Purchasing Lender to the Administrative Agent of a 
registration and processing fee of $3,500 if the Purchasing Lender is not a 
Lender prior to the execution of an Assignment and Acceptance Agreement and 
$2,500 if the Purchasing Lender is a Lender prior to the execution of an 
Assignment and Acceptance Agreement, the Administrative Agent shall (i) accept 
such Assignment and Acceptance Agreement, (ii) record the information contained 
therein in the Register, and (iii) give prompt notice of such acceptance and 
recordation to the Lenders and the Company. 
 
         (f) The Company authorizes each Lender to disclose to any Participant 
or Purchasing Lender (each, a "Transferee") and any prospective Transferee any 
and all financial information in such Lender's possession concerning the Company 
and its Affiliates which has been delivered to such Lender by or on behalf of 
the Company pursuant to this Agreement or which has been delivered to such 
Lender by the Company in connection with such Lender's credit evaluation of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries prior to entering into this Agreement. 
 
         (g) If, pursuant to this Section 10.05, any interest in this Agreement, 
a participation agreement, or any Note is transferred to any transferee which is 
organized under the laws of any jurisdiction other than the United States or any 
State thereof, the transferor Lender shall cause such Transferee, concurrently 
with the effectiveness of such transfer, (i) to represent to the transferor 
Lender (for the benefit of the transferor Lender, the Administrative Agent and 
the Company) that under applicable law and treaties no taxes will be required to 
be withheld by the Administrative Agent, the Company, or the transferor Lender 
with respect to any payments to be made to such Transferee in respect of the 
Loans, (ii) to furnish to the Administrative Agent, the transferor Lender and 
the Company either U.S. Internal Revenue Service Form W-8EC1 or U.S. Internal 
Revenue Service Form W-8BEN (wherein such Transferee claims entitlement to 
complete exemption from U.S. federal withholding tax on all interest payments 
hereunder) and (iii) to agree (for the benefit of the Administrative Agent, the 
transferor Lender and the Company) to provide the Administrative Agent, the 
transferor Lender and the Company a new Form W-8EC1 or Form W-8BEN upon the 
expiration or obsolescence of any previously delivered form and comparable 
statements in accordance with applicable U.S. laws and regulations and 
amendments duly executed and completed by such Transferee, and to comply from 
time to time with all applicable U.S. laws and regulations with regard to such 
withholding tax exemption. 
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         (h) Any Lender may at any time pledge or assign or grant a security 
interest in all or any part of its rights under this Agreement and the other 
Loan Documents, including any portion of its Notes, to any of the twelve (12) 
Federal Reserve Banks organized under Section 4 of the Federal Reserve Act, 12 
U.S.C. Section 341, provided that no such assignment shall release the 
transferor Lender from its Commitments or its obligations hereunder or 
substitute any such pledgee or assignee for such Lender as a party to this 
Agreement. 
 
         SECTION 10.06. No Waiver; Cumulative Remedies. Neither any failure nor 
any delay on the part of any Lender, the Issuing Lender or the Administrative 
Agent in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder or under any Note or 
any other Loan Document shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall a single or 
partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise of any other 
right, power or privilege. The rights, remedies, powers and privileges herein 
provided or provided in the other Loan Documents are cumulative and not 
exclusive of any rights, remedies powers and privileges provided by law. 
 
         SECTION 10.07. APPLICABLE LAW. THIS AGREEMENT AND THE NOTES SHALL BE 
GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, 
WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OR CHOICE OF LAW. 
 
         SECTION 10.08. SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION; JURY WAIVER. THE COMPANY 
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF ANY FEDERAL OR STATE COURT IN 
THE STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NASSAU OR COUNTY OF SUFFOLK 
IN ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT AGAINST IT AND RELATED TO OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT OR ANY OF THE 
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY, AND TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
APPLICABLE LAW, THE COMPANY HEREBY WAIVES AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT BY WAY OF 
MOTION, AS A DEFENSE OR OTHERWISE, IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING ANY 
CLAIM THAT IT IS NOT PERSONALLY SUBJECT TO THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH FEDERAL OR 
STATE COURTS, THAT SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT 
FORUM, THAT THE VENUE OF SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING IS IMPROPER, OR THAT 
THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT OR INSTRUMENT 
REFERRED TO HEREIN OR THEREIN OR THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF THEREOF MAY NOT BE 
LITIGATED IN OR BY SUCH FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
APPLICABLE LAW, THE COMPANY AGREES NOT TO (i) SEEK AND HEREBY WAIVES THE RIGHT 
TO ANY REVIEW OF THE JUDGMENT OF ANY SUCH COURT BY ANY COURT OF ANY OTHER NATION 
OR JURISDICTION WHICH MAY BE CALLED UPON TO GRANT AN ENFORCEMENT OF SUCH 
JUDGMENT OR (ii) ASSERT ANY COUNTERCLAIM IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING 
UNLESS SUCH COUNTERCLAIM IS A COMPULSORY OR MANDATORY COUNTERCLAIM UNDER 
APPLICABLE LAWS GOVERNING CIVIL PROCEDURE. 
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THE COMPANY AGREES THAT SERVICE OF PROCESS MAY BE MADE UPON IT BY CERTIFIED OR 
REGISTERED MAIL TO THE ADDRESS FOR NOTICES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY 
METHOD AUTHORIZED BY THE LAWS OF NEW YORK. EACH PARTY HERETO KNOWINGLY, 
VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVES THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF 
ANY CLAIM BASED HEREON, ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
AGREEMENT, THE NOTES OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT CONTEMPLATED TO BE EXECUTED IN 
CONNECTION HEREWITH OR ANY COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALINGS, STATEMENTS 
(WHETHER VERBAL OR WRITTEN) OR ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY RELATING THERETO, AND AGREES 
THAT NO PARTY WILL SEEK TO CONSOLIDATE ANY SUCH ACTION WITH ANY OTHER ACTION IN 
WHICH A JURY TRIAL CANNOT BE OR HAS NOT BEEN WAIVED. EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED BY 
LAW, THE COMPANY HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO CLAIM OR RECOVER IN ANY 
LITIGATION ANY SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ANY 
DAMAGES OTHER THAN, OR IN ADDITION TO, ACTUAL DAMAGES. THE COMPANY CERTIFIES 
THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT, THE 
ISSUING LENDER OR ANY LENDER HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT THEY 
WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER. 
THIS WAIVER CONSTITUTES A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR THE LENDERS TO ENTER INTO THIS 
AGREEMENT AND TO MAKE THE LOANS AND OTHER EXTENSIONS OF CREDIT. 
 
         SECTION 10.09. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions 
contained in this Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document should be 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein and therein shall 
not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 
         SECTION 10.10. Right of Setoff. The Company and the Guarantors hereby 
grant to the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender, each Lender and each 
Affiliate of each Lender, a continuing lien, security interest and right of 
setoff as security for all liabilities and obligations to the Administrative 
Agent, the Issuing Lender and each Lender, whether now existing or hereafter 
arising, upon and against all deposits, credits, collateral and property, now or 
hereafter in the possession, custody, safekeeping or control of the 
Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender, any Lender, any Affiliate of such 
Lender or any entity under the control of FleetBoston Financial Corporation and 
its successors or assigns or in transit to any of them. At any time, without 
demand or notice (any such notice being expressly waived by the Company), the 
Administrative Agent, the Issuing Lender, each Lender and each Affiliate of each 
Lender may set off the same or any part thereof and apply the same to any 
liability or obligation of the Company or any Guarantor even though unmatured 
and regardless of the adequacy of any other collateral securing this Agreement. 
ANY AND ALL RIGHTS TO REQUIRE THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT, THE ISSUING LENDER, EACH 
LENDER OR ANY AFFILIATE OF EACH LENDER TO EXERCISE ITS RIGHTS OR REMEDIES WITH 
RESPECT TO ANY OTHER COLLATERAL WHICH SECURES THIS AGREEMENT, PRIOR TO 
EXERCISING ITS RIGHT OF SETOFF WITH 
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RESPECT TO SUCH DEPOSITS, CREDITS OR OTHER PROPERTY OF THE COMPANY OR ANY 
GUARANTOR, ARE HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVED. 
 
         SECTION 10.11. Confidentiality. The Administrative Agent and each 
Lender agrees to keep confidential all non-public information, materials and 
documents furnished by the Company to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders 
pursuant to this Agreement (the "Confidential Information"). Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, such party shall be permitted to disclose Confidential Information 
(a) to such of its officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives and 
professional advisors in any of the transactions contemplated by, or the 
administration of, this Agreement; (b) to the extent required by applicable laws 
and regulations or by any subpoena or similar legal process, or requested by any 
governmental agency or authority; (c) to the extent such Confidential 
Information (i) becomes publicly available other than as a result of a breach of 
this Section 10.11 by the disclosing party, or (ii) becomes available to such 
party on a non-confidential basis from a source other than the Company or its 
Subsidiaries which to such party's knowledge is not prohibited from disclosing 
such Confidential Information to such party by a contractual or other legal 
obligation; (d) to the extent the Company or any of its Subsidiaries shall have 
consented to such disclosure in writing; or (e) to any prospective transferee or 
participant in connection with any contemplated transfer of the Notes or any 
interest therein provided such transferee or participant agrees to treat the 
Confidential Information in a manner consistent with this Section 10.11. Nothing 
herein shall prohibit the disclosure of Confidential Information in connection 
with any litigation or where such disclosure is pursuant to applicable laws, 
regulations, court order or similar legal process; provided, however, in the 
event that such party is requested or required by law to disclose any of the 
Confidential Information, such party shall provide the Company with written 
notice, unless notice is prohibited by law, of any such request or requirement 
so that the Company may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy; 
provided that no such notification shall be required in respect of any 
disclosure to regulatory authorities having jurisdiction over such party. 
 
     SECTION 10.12.  Provisions  Regarding  Syndication  Agent and Documentation 
Agent. The Syndication Agent and the Documentation Agent shall have no duties or 
responsibilities hereunder. 
 
     SECTION 10.13.  Headings.  Section headings used herein are for convenience 
of  reference  only and are not to affect the  construction  of or be taken into 
consideration in interpreting this Agreement. 
 
         SECTION 10.14. Construction. This Agreement is the result of 
negotiations between, and has been reviewed by, each of the Company, the 
Administrative Agent, the Lenders and their respective counsel. Accordingly, 
this Agreement shall be deemed to be the product of each party hereto, and no 
ambiguity shall be construed in favor of or against either the Company, the 
Administrative Agent, or any Lender. 
 
 
                                                        76 
 



 
 
 
 
     SECTION 10.15. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more 
counterparts,  each of which shall  constitute  an  original,  but all of which, 
taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
         SECTION 10.16. Special Provision with Respect to Dutch Pledge 
Agreement. The Company, each of the Lenders and the Administrative Agent agree 
that for purposes of the Dutch Pledge Agreement only, the Company shall 
undertake (i) to pay to Fleet National Bank, acting in its own capacity and not 
as agent or trustee ("FNB"), an amount equal to the amount of all Obligations of 
the Company which are from time to time due and payable to the Agents or the 
Lenders hereunder or under any other Loan Document at the same time as such 
Obligations are or shall be due and payable, and (ii) to observe and perform 
with regard to FNB all other obligations and liabilities of the Company existing 
or arising under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents in connection 
therewith (such payment undertaking and the obligations and liabilities of the 
Company to FNB resulting therefrom, hereinafter, the "Parallel Debt"). 
 
         The Parallel Debt shall (i) constitute undertakings, obligations and 
liabilities of the Company (the "Parallel Debtor") to FNB, which, for purposes 
of enforcing the Dutch Pledge Agreement only, are separate and independent from, 
and without prejudice to, the corresponding obligations and liabilities of the 
Company to the Agents and the Lenders under this Agreement and the other Loan 
Documents, and (ii) represent FNB's own independent claims to receive payment or 
performance, as the case may be, of the Parallel Debt from the Parallel Debtor, 
provided that the total amount which may become due under the Parallel Debt 
shall not exceed the total amount which may become due under this Agreement or 
any other Loan Documents. 
 
         Notwithstanding the foregoing, provided that the foregoing payment is 
not subsequently avoided or reduced by virtue of any provisions or enactments 
relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, preference, liquidation or similar laws of 
general application: 
 
                  (a) the total amount due and payable under the Parallel Debt 
shall be decreased to the extent the Company shall have paid any amounts to the 
Administrative Agent or the Lenders or any of them to reduce the outstanding 
Obligations of the Company owing to the Agents or the Lenders under this 
Agreement or any other Loan Document; and 
 
                  (b) the total amount due and payable under this Agreement and 
the other Loan Documents shall be decreased to the extent the Parallel Debtor 
shall have paid any amounts to FNB to reduce the outstanding obligations of the 
Company under the Parallel Debt, or FNB shall have otherwise received monies in 
payment of the Parallel Debt, as if said amounts were received directly in 
payment of the outstanding Obligations of the Company under this Agreement or 
any other Loan Document. 
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         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, the Administrative Agent and the 
Lenders have caused this Agreement to be duly executed by their duly authorized 
officers, as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
                             THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
 
                             By:____________________________ 
                                   Name:  Gary M. Jacobs 
                                   Title:    Chief Financial Officer 
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Revolving Credit Facility    FLEET NATIONAL BANK, 
------------------------- 
A Commitment: $27,187,500    as Administrative Agent, 
                             as a Lender, as Swingline Lender and as 
                             an Issuing Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $17,812,500 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: Kevin M. Brown 
                             Title:   Senior Vice President 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             Fleet National Bank 
                             300 Broad Hollow Road 
                             Melville, New York 11747 
                             Attention:        Relationship Manager - 
                                               The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
                             Telephone:        (631) 547-7833 
                             Telecopy:         (631) 547-7815 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             Fleet National Bank 
                             300 Broad Hollow Road 
                             Melville, New York 11747 
                             Attention:        Relationship Manager - 
                                               The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
                             Telephone:        (631) 547-7833 
                             Telecopy:         (631) 547-7815 
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Revolving Credit Facility    SUNTRUST BANK, 
A Commitment: $21,145,833    as Syndication Agent and 
------------ 
                             as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $13,854,167 
                             By: 
                                ----------------------------------------------- 
                             Name: 
                             Title: 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             SunTrust Bank 
                             25 Park Place 
                             MC 1941 
                             Atlanta, Georgia 30302 
                             Attention:        Robert Matthews 
                             Telephone:        (404) 588-8038 
                             Telecopy:         (404) 230-1940 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             SunTrust Bank 
                             303 Peachtree Street, NE 
                             3rd Floor 
                             Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
                             Attention:        Michael Pugsley 
                             Telephone:        (404) 724-3635 
                             Telecopy:         (404) 230-5305 
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Revolving Credit Facility    HSBC BANK USA, 
A Commitment: $21,145,833    as Documentation Agent and 
------------ 
                             as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $13,854,167 
                             By: 
                                ----------------------------------------------- 
                             Name:  Gary Sarro 
                             Title:    Vice President 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             HSBC Bank USA 
                             534 Broad Hollow Road 
                             Melville, New York 11747 
                             Attention:        Gary Sarro, Vice President 
                             Telephone:        (631) 752-4367 
                             Telecopy:         (631) 752-4340 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             HSBC Bank USA 
                             534 Broad Hollow Road 
                             Melville, New York 11747 
                             Attention:        Gary Sarro, Vice President 
                             Telephone:        (631) 752-4367 
                             Telecopy:         (631) 752-4340 
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Revolving Credit Facility    FIRST PIONEER FARM CREDIT, ACA, 
------------------------- 
A Commitment: $18,125,000    as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $11,875,000 
                             By: 
                                ----------------------------------------------- 
                             Name: James M. Papai 
                             Title:   Vice President 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             First Pioneer Farm Credit, ACA 
                             174 South Road 
                             Enfield, Connecticut 06082 
                             Attention:        James D. Miller, Senior 
                                               Vice President - Finance 
                             Telephone:        (860) 741-4380 
                             Telecopy:         (860) 253-5565 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             First Pioneer Farm Credit, ACA 
                             174 South Road 
                             Enfield, Connecticut 06082 
                             Attention:        James M. Papai, Vice President 
                             Telephone:        (860) 741-4380 
                             Telecopy:         (860) 253-5565 
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Revolving Credit Facility    THE BANK OF NEW YORK, 
------------------------- 
A Commitment: $9,062,500     as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $5,937,500 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: 
                             Title: 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             The Bank of New York 
                             1401 Franklin Avenue 
                             Garden City, New York 11530 
                             Attention:        Edward P. Nallan 
                             Telephone:        (516) 294-2269 
                             Telecopy:         (516) 294-2055 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             The Bank of New York 
                             1401 Franklin Avenue 
                             Garden City, New York 11530 
                             Attention:        Edward P. Nallan 
                             Telephone:        (516) 294-2269 
                             Telecopy:         (516) 294-2055 
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Revolving Credit Facility    KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
------------------------- 
A Commitment: $15,104,167    as a Lender and as an Issuing Lender 
------------ 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $9,895,833 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: 
                             Title: 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             KeyBank National Association 
                             4910 Tiederman Road 
                             Brooklyn, Ohio 44144 
                             Attention:        Donna Gilchrist 
                             Telephone:        (216) 813-1259 
                             Telecopy:         (216) 813-7393 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             KeyBank National Association 
                             711 Westchester Avenue 
                             White Plains, New York 10604 
                             Attention:        Brendan Sachtjen, Senior 
                                               Vice President 
                             Telephone:        (914) 681-8301 
                             Telecopy:         (914) 681-8350 
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Revolving Credit Facility    EUROPEAN AMERICAN BANK, 
A Commitment: $9,062,500     as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $5,937,500 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: Peter J. McGovern 
                             Title:   Vice President 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             European American Bank 
                             335 Madison Avenue 
                             New York, New York 10017 
                             Attention:        Kristen Burke 
                             Telephone:        (212) 503-2862 
                             Telecopy:         (212) 503-2667 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             European American Bank 
                             335 Madison Avenue 
                             New York, New York 10017 
                             Attention:        Kelly Miller 
                             Telephone:        (212) 503-2920 
                             Telecopy:         (212) 503-2667 
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Revolving Credit Facility    NATIONAL CITY BANK OF OHIO, 
------------------------- 
A Commitment: $9,062,500     as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $5,937,500 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: 
                             Title: 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             National City Bank 
                             1 South Broad Street 
                             Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107 
                             Attention:        Marissa Paino / Tara Handforth 
                             Telephone:        (267) 256-4154 / (267) 256-4044 
                             Telecopy:         (267) 256-4001 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             National City Bank 
                             1 South Broad Street 
                             Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107 
                             Attention:        Marissa Paino / Tara Handforth 
                             Telephone:        (267) 256-4154 / (267) 256-4044 
                             Telecopy:         (267) 256-4001 
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Revolving Credit Facility    KBC BANK N.V., 
A Commitment: $6,041,667     as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $3,958,333 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: 
                             Title: 
 
 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: 
                             Title: 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans: 
 
                             KBC Bank N.V., New York Branch 
                             125 West 55th Street 
                             New York, New York 10019 
                             Attention:        Rose Pagan 
                             Telephone:        (212) 541-0657 
                             Telecopy:         (212) 956-5581 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             KBC Bank N.V., Grand Cayman Branch 
                             125 West 55th Street 
                             New York, New York 10019 
                             Attention:        Rose Pagan 
                             Telephone:        (212) 541-0657 
                             Telecopy:         (212) 956-5581 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             KBC Bank N.V. 
                             125 West 55th Street 
                             New York, New York 10019 
                             Attention:        Robert Surdam 
                             Telephone:        (212) 541-0704 
                             Telecopy:         (212) 541-0793 
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Revolving Credit Facility    COBANK, ACB, 
A Commitment: $6,041,667     as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $3,958,333 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: 
                             Title: 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             CoBank, ACB 
                             5500 S. Quebec Street 
                             Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 
                             Attention:        Darla Moran 
                             Telephone:        (303) 740-4033 
                             Telecopy:         (303) 740-4021 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             CoBank, ACB 
                             5500 S. Quebec Street 
                             Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 
                             Attention:        Brian Klatt, Vice President 
                             Telephone:        (303) 740-6511 
                             Telecopy:         (303) 694-5830 
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Revolving Credit Facility    BANK LEUMI USA, 
A Commitment: $3,020,833     as a Lender 
 
Revolving Credit Facility 
B Commitment: $1,979,167 
                             By: 
                                ------------------------------------------------ 
                             Name: 
                             Title: 
 
 
                             Lending Office for Base Rate Loans and for 
                             Adjusted Libor Loans: 
 
                             Bank Leumi USA 
                             579 Fifth Avenue 
                             New York, New York 10017 
                             Attention:        Joung Hee Hong 
                             Telephone:        (212) 407-4469 
                             Telecopy:         (212) 407-4317 
 
                             Address for Notices: 
 
                             Bank Leumi USA 
                             579 Fifth Avenue 
                             New York, New York 10017 
                             Attention:        Joung Hee Hong 
                             Telephone:        (212) 407-4469 
                             Telecopy:         (212) 407-4317 
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                                   SCHEDULE I 
 
 
 
 
                           Subsidiaries and Affiliates 
 
 
 
Name of Entity          State of                   Owners of Shares or Interests 
                        Incorporation              Names and Percentages 
                        or Formation               of Shares Owned 
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                                   SCHEDULE II 
 
 
 
                                 Existing Liens 
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                                  SCHEDULE III 
 
 
 
                              Existing Indebtedness 
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                                   SCHEDULE IV 
 
 
 
                               Existing Guarantees 
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                               Credit Arrangements 
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                                   SCHEDULE VI 
 
 
                           Existing Letters of Credit 
 
 
Type       Face Amount               Issuance Date              Expiration Date 
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                                SCHEDULE 4.06(a) 
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                                  SCHEDULE 4.08 
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                                  SCHEDULE 7.16 
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     EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
                        REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY A NOTE 
 
 
$________________ Nassau County, New York 
                                                               March ___, 2001 
 
                  FOR VALUE RECEIVED, THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC., a Delaware 
corporation (the "Company"), promises to pay to the order of 
[_______________________] (the "Lender"), on or before the Revolving Credit 
Facility A Commitment Termination Date, the principal amount of 
[_____________________] DOLLARS ($______________), or, if less, the unpaid 
principal amount of all Revolving Credit Facility A Loans made by the Lender to 
the Company under the Credit Agreement referred to below. 
 
                           The Company promises to pay interest on the unpaid 
principal amount hereof from the date hereof until paid 
in full at the rates and at the times which shall be determined, and to make 
principal repayments on this Note at the times which shall be determined, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreement referred to below. 
 
                  This Note is one of the "Revolving Credit Facility A Notes" 
referred to in the Credit Agreement, dated as of March 29, 2001, by and among 
the Company, Fleet National Bank, as Administrative Agent , SunTrust Bank, as 
Syndication Agent, HSBC Bank USA, as Documentation Agent, and the various 
Lenders (including the Lender) as are, or may from time to time become, parties 
thereto (as the same may be amended, restated, modified or supplemented from 
time to time, the "Credit Agreement") and is issued pursuant to and entitled to 
the benefits of the Credit Agreement to which reference is hereby made for a 
more complete statement of the terms and conditions under which the Revolving 
Credit Facility A Loans evidenced hereby were made and are to be repaid. 
Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings set 
forth in the Credit Agreement. 
 
                  Each of the Lender and any subsequent holder of this Note 
agrees, by its acceptance hereof, that before transferring this Note it shall 
record the date, Type and amount of each Revolving Credit Facility A Loan and 
the date and amount of each payment or prepayment of principal of each Revolving 
Credit Facility A Loan previously made hereunder on the grid schedule annexed to 
this Note; provided, however, that the failure of the Lender or holder to set 
forth such Revolving Credit Facility A Loans, payments and other information on 
the attached grid schedule shall not in any manner affect the obligation of the 
Company to repay the Revolving Credit Facility A Loans made by the Lender in 
accordance with the terms of this Note. 
 
                  This Note is subject to prepayment pursuant to Section 3.03 of 
the Credit Agreement. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the unpaid balance 
of the principal amount of this Note together with all accrued but unpaid 
interest thereon, may become, or may be declared to be, due and payable in the 
manner, upon the conditions and with the effect provided in the Credit 
Agreement. 
 
                  All payments of principal and interest in respect of this Note 
shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America in immediately 
available funds at the office of Fleet National Bank, as Administrative Agent 
for the Lenders under the Credit Agreement, located at 300 Broad Hollow Road, 
Melville, New York 11747 or at such other place as shall be designated in 
writing for such purpose in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement. 
 
                  No reference herein to the Credit Agreement and no provision 
of this Note or the Credit Agreement shall alter or impair the obligation of the 
Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and 
interest on this Note at the place, at the respective times, and in the currency 
herein prescribed. 
 
                  The Company and endorsers of this Note waive presentment, 
diligence, demand, protest, and notice of any kind in connection with this Note. 
 
                  THIS NOTE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND 
ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO 
PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW. 
 
                  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be 
executed and delivered by its duly authorized officer, as of the day and year 
and at the place first above written. 
 
                                            THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
                                            By:__________________________ 
                                            Name: 
                                            Title: 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                    SCHEDULE 
 
 
Date   Principal   Type                      Applicable     Amount of   Notation 
 of    Amount of    of     Interest Interest Principal      Made 
Loan   Loan        Loan    Rate              Period   Paid          By 
----   ----------- ----    ---------         -------- ------------  --------- 
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                                    EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
                        REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY B NOTE 
 
 
$________________ Nassau County, New York 
                                                                March ___, 2001 
 
                  FOR VALUE RECEIVED, THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC., a Delaware 
corporation (the "Company"), promises to pay to the order of 
[_______________________] (the "Lender"), on or before the Revolving Credit 
Facility B Commitment Termination Date, the principal amount of 
[_____________________] DOLLARS ($______________), or, if less, the unpaid 
principal amount of all Revolving Credit Facility B Loans made by the Lender to 
the Company under the Credit Agreement referred to below. 
 
                           The Company promises to pay interest on the unpaid 
principal amount hereof from the date hereof until paid 
in full at the rates and at the times which shall be determined, and to make 
principal repayments on this Note at the times which shall be determined, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreement referred to below. 
 
                  This Note is one of the "Revolving Credit Facility B Notes" 
referred to in the Credit Agreement, dated as of March 29, 2001, by and among 
the Company, Fleet National Bank, as Administrative Agent, SunTrust Bank, as 
Syndication Agent, HSBC Bank USA, as Documentation Agent, and the various 
Lenders (including the Lender) as are, or may from time to time become, parties 
thereto (as the same may be amended, restated, modified or supplemented from 
time to time, the "Credit Agreement") and is issued pursuant to and entitled to 
the benefits of the Credit Agreement to which reference is hereby made for a 
more complete statement of the terms and conditions under which the Revolving 
Credit Facility B Loans evidenced hereby were made and are to be repaid. 
Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings set 
forth in the Credit Agreement. 
 
                  Each of the Lender and any subsequent holder of this Note 
agrees, by its acceptance hereof, that before transferring this Note it shall 
record the date, Type and amount of each Revolving Credit Facility B Loan and 
the date and amount of each payment or prepayment of principal of each Revolving 
Credit Facility B Loan previously made hereunder on the grid schedule annexed to 
this Note; provided, however, that the failure of the Lender or holder to set 
forth such Revolving Credit Facility B Loans, payments and other information on 
the attached grid schedule shall not in any manner affect the obligation of the 
Company to repay the Revolving Credit Facility B Loans made by the Lender in 
accordance with the terms of this Note. 
 
                  This Note is subject to prepayment pursuant to Section 3.03 of 
the Credit Agreement. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the unpaid balance 
of the principal amount of this Note together with all accrued but unpaid 
interest thereon, may become, or may be declared to be, due and payable in the 
manner, upon the conditions and with the effect provided in the Credit 
Agreement. 
 
                  All payments of principal and interest in respect of this Note 
shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America in immediately 
available funds at the office of Fleet National Bank, as Administrative Agent 
for the Lenders under the Credit Agreement, located at 300 Broad Hollow Road, 
Melville, New York 11747 or at such other place as shall be designated in 
writing for such purpose in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement. 
 
                  No reference herein to the Credit Agreement and no provision 
of this Note or the Credit Agreement shall alter or impair the obligation of the 
Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and 
interest on this Note at the place, at the respective times, and in the currency 
herein prescribed. 
 
                  The Company and endorsers of this Note waive presentment, 
diligence, demand, protest, and notice of any kind in connection with this Note. 
 
                  THIS NOTE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND 
ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO 
PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW. 
 
                  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be 
executed and delivered by its duly authorized officer, as of the day and year 
and at the place first above written. 
 
                                            THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
                                            By:__________________________ 
                                            Name: 
                                            Title: 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                   [PG NUMBER] 
 
                                    SCHEDULE 
 
 
Date Principal   Type                      Applicable      Amount of   Notation 
 of  Amount of    of     Interest Interest Principal       Made 
Loan Loan        Loan    Rate              Period   Paid           By 
---- ----------- ----    ---------         -------- -------------  -------- 
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                                    EXHIBIT C 
 
                                 SWINGLINE NOTE 
 
$5,000,000        Nassau County, New York 
                                                       March ___, 2001 
 
                  FOR VALUE RECEIVED, THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC., a Delaware 
corporation (the "Company"), promises to pay to the order of FLEET NATIONAL BANK 
(the "Lender"), on or before the Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment 
Termination Date, the principal amount of FIVE MILLION DOLLARS ($5,000,000) or, 
if less, the unpaid principal amount of all Swingline Loans made by the Lender 
to the Company under the Credit Agreement referred to below. 
 
                           The Company promises to pay interest on the unpaid 
principal amount hereof from the date hereof until paid 
in full at the rates and at the times which shall be determined, and to make 
principal repayments on this Note at the times which shall be determined, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreement referred to below. 
 
                  This Note is the "Swingline Note" referred to in the Credit 
Agreement, dated as of March 29, 2001, by and among the Company, Fleet National 
Bank, as Administrative Agent, SunTrust Bank , as Syndication Agent, HSBC Bank 
USA, as Documentation Agent, and the various Lenders (including the Lender) as 
are, or may from time to time become, parties thereto (as the same may be 
amended, restated, modified or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit 
Agreement") and is issued pursuant to and entitled to the benefits of the Credit 
Agreement to which reference is hereby made for a more complete statement of the 
terms and conditions under which the Swingline Loans evidenced hereby were made 
and are to be repaid. Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall 
have the meanings set forth in the Credit Agreement. 
 
                  Each of the Lender and any subsequent holder of this Note 
agrees, by its acceptance hereof, that before transferring this Note it shall 
record the date, Type and amount of each Swingline Loan and the date and amount 
of each payment or prepayment of principal of each Swingline Loan previously 
made hereunder on the grid schedule annexed to this Note; provided, however, 
that the failure of the Lender or holder to set forth such Swingline Loans, 
payments and other information on the attached grid schedule shall not in any 
manner affect the obligation of the Company to repay the Swingline Loans made by 
the Lender in accordance with the terms of this Note. 
 
                  This Note is subject to prepayment pursuant to Section 3.03 of 
the Credit Agreement. 
 
                  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the unpaid balance 
of the principal amount of this Note together with all accrued but unpaid 
interest thereon, may become, or may be declared to be, due and payable in the 
manner, upon the conditions and with the effect provided in the Credit 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                  All payments of principal and interest in respect of this Note 
shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America in immediately 
available funds at the office of Fleet National Bank, located at 300 Broad 
Hollow Road, Melville, New York 11747 or at such other place as shall be 
designated in writing for such purpose in accordance with the terms of the 
Credit Agreement. 
 
                  No reference herein to the Credit Agreement and no provision 
of this Note or the Credit Agreement shall alter or impair the obligation of the 
Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and 
interest on this Note at the place, at the respective times, and in the currency 
herein prescribed. 
 
                  The Company and endorsers of this Note waive presentment, 
diligence, demand, protest, and notice of any kind in connection with this Note. 
 
                  THIS NOTE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND 
ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO 
PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW. 
 
                  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be 
executed and delivered by its duly authorized officer, as of the day and year 
and at the place first above written. 
 
                                            THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
                                            By:__________________________ 
                                            Name: 
                                            Title: 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                   [PG NUMBER] 
 
                                    SCHEDULE 
 
 
Date  Principal   Type              Applicable        Amount of        Notation 
 of   Amount of    of     Interest   Interest          Principal         Made 
Loan  Loan        Loan      Rate      Period             Paid             By 
----  ---------   ----      ----    ----------        ----------       --------- 
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                                    EXHIBIT D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                   [RESERVED] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                                    EXHIBIT E 
 
 
                                    GUARANTY 
 
         THIS GUARANTY is entered into as of the ____ day of March, 2001, by 
EACH OF THE UNDERSIGNED (each a "Guarantor" and, collectively, the "Guarantors") 
in favor of and for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, as 
defined in the Credit Agreement referred to below. 
 
                                    RECITALS 
 
         A. Pursuant to a Credit Agreement, dated as of March 29, 2001, by and 
among The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. (the "Company"), Fleet National Bank, as 
Administrative Agent, SunTrust Bank, as Syndication Agent, HSBC Bank USA, as 
Documentation Agent, and the various Lenders as are or may from time to time 
become parties thereto (as the same may be amended, modified, restated or 
supplemented from time to time, the "Credit Agreement"), the Company will 
receive Loans and other financial accommodations from the Agents and Lenders and 
will incur Obligations. 
         B. The Guarantors, being members of a group of entities affiliated with 
the Company and being engaged in related businesses will receive direct and 
indirect benefits from such Loans and other financial accommodations. 
 
         C. Each Guarantor wishes to grant the Agents and Lenders security and 
assurance in order to secure the payment and performance by the Company of all 
of its present and future Obligations, and, to that effect, to guaranty the 
Obligations as set forth herein. 
 
         Accordingly, each Guarantor hereby agrees as follows: 
 
         1.       Guaranty. 
 
                  (a) Each Guarantor, jointly and severally, absolutely, 
unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees to the Agents and the Lenders the 
full and punctual payment by the Company, when due, whether at the stated due 
date, by acceleration or otherwise, of all Obligations of the Company, howsoever 
created, arising or evidenced, voluntary or involuntary, whether direct or 
indirect, absolute or contingent now or hereafter existing or owing to the 
Agents or the Lenders under the Credit Agreement (collectively, the "Guaranteed 
Obligations"). This Guaranty is an absolute, unconditional, irrevocable and 
continuing guaranty of payment and not of collection of the Guaranteed 
Obligations and includes Guaranteed Obligations arising from successive 
transactions which shall either continue such Guaranteed Obligations or from 
time to time renew such Guaranteed Obligations after the same have been 
satisfied. This Guaranty is in no way conditioned upon any attempt to collect 
from the Company or any other Person or upon any other event or contingency, and 
shall be binding upon and enforceable against each Guarantor without regard to 
the validity or enforceability of the Credit Agreement, the Notes or any other 
Loan Document or of any term of any thereof. If for any reason the Company shall 
fail or be unable to duly and punctually pay any of the Guaranteed Obligations 
(including, without limitation, amounts that would become due but for the 
operation of the automatic stay under Section 362(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 
U.S.C. ss. 362(a)), each Guarantor will forthwith pay the same, in cash, 
immediately upon demand. 
 
                  (b) In the event the Credit Agreement, any Note or any other 
Loan Document shall be terminated as a result of the rejection thereof by any 
trustee, receiver or liquidating agent of the Company or any of its properties 
in any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, composition, 
readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similar proceeding, each Guarantor's 
obligations hereunder shall continue to the same extent as if the Credit 
Agreement, such Note or such other Loan Document had not been so rejected. 
 
                  (c) Each Guarantor shall pay all costs, expenses (including, 
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements) and damages 
incurred in connection with the enforcement of the Guaranteed Obligations of the 
Company under the Credit Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document to the 
extent that such costs, expenses and damages are not paid by the Company 
pursuant to the respective documents. 
 
                  (d) Each Guarantor further agrees that if any payment made by 
the Company or any Guarantor to the Agents or the Lenders on any Obligation or 
Guaranteed Obligation, as applicable, is rescinded, recovered from or repaid by 
the Agents or the Lenders, in whole or in part, in any bankruptcy, insolvency or 
similar proceeding instituted by or against the Company or any Guarantor, or 
otherwise, this Guaranty shall continue to be fully applicable to such 
Guaranteed Obligation to the same extent as though the payment so recovered or 
repaid had never originally been made on such Guaranteed Obligation. 
 
                  (e) If any Event of Default shall have occurred and be 
continuing, the Agents, the Lenders, and any Affiliate of any Agent or any 
Lender is hereby authorized at any time and from time to time, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any and all deposits (general or 
special, time or demand, provisional or final) at any time held and other 
indebtedness at any time owing by the Agents or the Lenders, or any Affiliate of 
an Agent or a Lender, to or for the credit or the account of any Guarantor 
against any of and all the obligations of any Guarantor now or hereafter 
existing under this Guaranty, irrespective of whether or not any Agent or any 
Lender shall have made any demand hereunder and although such obligations may be 
unmatured. The rights under this Section 1(e) are in addition to other rights 
and remedies (including other rights of set off) which the Agent and the Lenders 
may have. 



 
         2.       Guaranty Continuing, Absolute, Unlimited. 
 
                  The obligations of each Guarantor hereunder shall be 
continuing, absolute, irrevocable, unlimited and unconditional, shall not be 
subject to any counterclaim, set-off, deduction or defense based upon any claim 
any Guarantor or the Company may have against any Agent, any Lender or the 
Company or any other person, and shall remain in full force and effect without 
regard to, and, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, shall not be 
released, discharged or in any way affected by, any circumstance or condition 
(whether or not any Guarantor shall have any knowledge or notice thereof) 
whatsoever which might constitute a legal or equitable discharge or defense 
including, but not limited to, (a) any express or implied amendment, 
modification or supplement to the Credit Agreement, any Note, or any other Loan 
Document or any other agreement referred to in any thereof, or any other 
instrument applicable to the Company or to the Loans, or the Letters of Credit 
or any part thereof; (b) any failure on the part of the Company to perform or 
comply with the Credit Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document or any 
failure of any other person to perform or comply with any term of the Credit 
Agreement, any Note, or any other Loan Document or any other agreement as 
aforesaid; (c) any waiver, consent, change, extension, indulgence or other 
action or any action or inaction under or in respect of the Credit Agreement, 
any Note, or any other Loan Document or any other agreement as aforesaid, 
whether or not any Agent, any Lender, the Company or any Guarantor has notice or 
knowledge of any of the foregoing; (d) any bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, arrangement, readjustment, composition, liquidation or similar 
proceeding with respect to the Company, or its properties or its creditors, or 
any action taken by any trustee or receiver or by any court in any such 
proceeding; (e) any furnishing or acceptance of additional security or any 
release of any security; (f) any limitation on the liability or obligations of 
the Company under the Credit Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document or 
any termination, cancellation, frustration, invalidity or unenforceability, in 
whole or in part, of the Credit Agreement, any Note, this Guaranty or any other 
Loan Document or any term of any thereof; (g) any lien, charge or encumbrance on 
or affecting any Guarantor's or any of the Company's respective assets and 
properties; (h) any act, omission or breach on the part of any Agent or any 
Lender under the Credit Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document or any 
other agreement at any time existing between any Agent, any Lender and the 
Company or any law, governmental regulation or other agreement applicable to any 
Agent, any Lender or any Loan; (i) any claim as a result of any other dealings 
among any Agent, any Lender, any Guarantor or the Company; (j) the assignment of 
this Guaranty, the Credit Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document by any 
Agent or any Lender to any other Person; (k) any change in the name of any 
Agent, any Lender, the Company or any other Person referred to herein; or (l) 
the release of any other Guarantor from any of its obligations hereunder. 
 
         3.       Waiver. 
 
                  Each Guarantor unconditionally waives, to the fullest extent 
permitted by applicable law: (a) notice of any of the matters referred to in 
Section 2 hereof, except as expressly provided herein; (b) all notices which may 
be required by statute, rule of law or otherwise to preserve any rights against 
any Guarantor hereunder, including, without limitation, notice of the acceptance 
of this Guaranty, or the creation, renewal, extension, modification or accrual 
of the Guaranteed Obligations or notice of any other matters relating thereto, 
any presentment, demand, notice of dishonor, protest, nonpayment of any damages 
or other amounts payable under the Credit Agreement, any Note or any other Loan 
Documents; (c) any requirement for the enforcement, assertion or exercise of any 
right, remedy, power or privilege under or in respect of the Credit Agreement, 
any Note or any other Loan Documents, including, without limitation, diligence 
in collection or protection of or realization upon the Guaranteed Obligations or 
any part thereof or any collateral thereof; (d) any requirement of diligence; 
(e) any requirement to mitigate the damages resulting from a default by the 
Company under the Credit Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Documents; (f) 
the occurrence of every other condition precedent to which any Guarantor or the 
Company may otherwise be entitled; (g) the right to require the Agents or the 
Lenders to proceed against the Company or any other person liable on the 
Guaranteed Obligations, to proceed against or exhaust any security held by the 
Company or any other person, or to pursue any other remedy in any Agent's or any 
Lender's power whatsoever, and (h) the right to have the property of the Company 
first applied to the discharge of the Guaranteed Obligations. 
 
                  The Agents and the Lenders may, at their election, exercise 
any right or remedy they may have against the Company without affecting or 
impairing in any way the liability of any Guarantor hereunder and each Guarantor 
waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any defense arising 
out of the absence, impairment or loss of any right of reimbursement, 
contribution or subrogation or any other right or remedy of any Guarantor 
against the Company, whether resulting from such election by the Agents or the 
Lenders or otherwise. Each Guarantor waives any defense arising by reason of any 
disability or other defense of the Company or by reason of the cessation for any 
cause whatsoever of the liability, either in whole or in part, of the Company to 
the Agents and the Lenders for the Guaranteed Obligations. 
 
                  Each Guarantor assumes the responsibility for being and 
keeping informed of the financial condition of the Company and of all other 
circumstances bearing upon the risk of nonpayment of the Guaranteed Obligations 
and agrees that neither the Agents nor the Lenders shall have any duty to advise 
any Guarantor of information regarding any condition or circumstance or any 
change in such condition or circumstance. Each Guarantor acknowledges that 
neither the Agents nor the Lenders have made any representations to any 
Guarantor concerning the financial condition of the Company. 
 
         4.       Representations and Covenants of each Guarantor. 
 
                  (a) The representations and warranties contained in Article IV 
of the Credit Agreement, to the extent they relate and are applicable to a 
Guarantor, are true and correct in all material respects as of the date hereof 



and the Agents and the Lenders are entitled to rely on such representations and 
warranties to the same extent as though the same were set forth in full herein. 
 
                  (b) Each Guarantor hereby agrees to perform the covenants 
contained in Article VI and Article VII of the Credit Agreement, to the extent 
they relate and are applicable to such Guarantor, and the Agents and the Lenders 
are entitled to rely on such agreement to perform such covenants to the same 
extent as though the same were set forth in full herein. 
 
         5.       Payments. 
 
                  Each payment by each Guarantor to the Agents and the Lenders 
under this Guaranty shall be made in the time, place and manner provided for 
payments in the Credit Agreement without set-off or counterclaim to the account 
at which such payment is required to be paid by the Company under the Credit 
Agreement. 
 
         6.       Parties. 
 
                  This Guaranty shall inure to the benefit of the Agents, the 
Lenders and their respective successors, assigns or transferees, and shall be 
binding upon the Guarantors and their respective successors and assigns. No 
Guarantor may delegate any of its duties under this Guaranty without the prior 
written consent of the Agents and the Lenders and any delegation of such duties 
without such consent shall be null and void. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
         7.       Notices. 
 
                  Any notice shall be conclusively deemed to have been received 
by a party hereto and to be effective on the day on which delivered to such 
party at the address set forth below, or if sent by registered or certified 
mail, on the third Business Day after the day on which mailed in the United 
States, addressed to such party at said address (provided that the failure to 
give a copy of such notice shall not cause any such notice to be ineffective): 
 
   )      if to the Agents and/or the Lenders, 
 
          Fleet National Bank, as Administrative Agent 
          300 Broad Hollow Road 
          Melville, New York 11747 
          Attention:       Relationship Manager - The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
          Telecopy:        (631) 547-7815 
 
          With a copy to: 
 
          Farrell Fritz, P.C. 
          EAB Plaza, West Tower 
          Uniondale, New York 11556 
          Attention: Robert C. Creighton, Esq. 
          Telecopy: (516) 227-0777 
 
 
   )      if to a Guarantor, 
 
          c/o The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
          50 Charles Lindbergh Boulevard 
          Uniondale, New York 11553 
          Attention:       Gary M. Jacobs 
          Telecopy:        (516) 237-5420 
 
          With a copy to: 
 
          Cahill Gordon & Reindel 
          80 Pine Street 
          New York, New York 10005 
          Attention: Roger Meltzer, Esq. 
          Telecopy: (212) 269-5420 
 
                  (c) as to each such party at such other address as such party 
shall have designated to the other in a written notice complying as to delivery 
with the provisions of this Section 7. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
         8.       Remedies. 
                  -------- 
 
                  Each Guarantor stipulates that the remedies at law in respect 
of any default or threatened default by a Guarantor in the performance of or 
compliance with any of the terms of this Guaranty are not and will not be 
adequate, and that any of such terms may be specifically enforced by a decree 
for specific performance or by an injunction against violation of any such terms 
or otherwise. 
 
         9.       Rights to Deal with the Company. 
 
                  At any time and from time to time, without terminating, 
affecting or impairing the validity of this Guaranty or the obligations of any 
Guarantor hereunder, the Agents and the Lenders may deal with the Company in the 
same manner and as fully as if this Guaranty did not exist and shall be 
entitled, among other things, to grant the Company, without notice or demand and 
without affecting any Guarantor's liability hereunder, such extension or 
extensions of time to perform, renew, compromise, accelerate or otherwise change 
the time for payment of or otherwise change the terms of indebtedness or any 
part thereof contained in or arising under the Credit Agreement, any Note or any 
other Loan Documents, or to waive any obligation of the Company to perform, any 
act or acts as the Agents and the Lenders may deem advisable. 
 
         10.      Subrogation. 
 
                  (a) Upon any payment made or action taken by a Guarantor 
pursuant to this Guaranty, such Guarantor shall, subject to the provisions of 
Sections 10(b) and (c) hereof, be fully subrogated to all of the rights of the 
Agents and the Lenders against the Company arising out of the action or inaction 
of the Company for which such payment was made or action taken by such 
Guarantor. 
 
                  (b) Any claims of such Guarantor against the Company arising 
from payments made or actions taken by such Guarantor pursuant to the provisions 
of this Guaranty shall be in all respects subordinate to the full and complete 
or final and indefeasible payment or performance and discharge, as the case may 
be, of all amounts, obligations and liabilities, the payments or performance and 
discharge of which are guaranteed by this Guaranty, and no payment hereunder by 
a Guarantor shall give rise to any claim of such Guarantor against the Agents 
and the Lenders. 
 
                  (c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this 
Section 10, no Guarantor shall be subrogated to the rights of the Agents and the 
Lenders against the Company until all of the Obligations of the Company have 
been paid finally and indefeasibly in full, and that subrogation shall be 
suspended upon the occurrence of the events described in Section 1(d) hereof 
until the Agents and the Lenders are indefeasibly paid in full. 
 
         11.      Survival of Representations, Warranties, etc. 
 
                  All representations, warranties, covenants and agreements made 
herein, including representations and warranties deemed made herein, shall 
survive any investigation or inspection made by or on behalf of the Agents and 
the Lenders and shall continue in full force and effect until all of the 
obligations of the Guarantors under this Guaranty shall be fully performed in 
accordance with the terms hereof, and until the payment in full of the 
Guaranteed Obligations. 
 
         12. GOVERNING LAW; CONSENT TO JURISDICTION; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THIS 
GUARANTY SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE 
STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OR CHOICE OF 
LAW. EACH GUARANTOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF ANY 
FEDERAL OR STATE COURT IN THE STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF 
NASSAU OR COUNTY OF SUFFOLK IN ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT AGAINST IT 
AND RELATED TO OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS GUARANTY OR THE TRANSACTIONS 
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, AND TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, EACH 
GUARANTOR HEREBY WAIVES AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT BY WAY OF MOTION, AS A DEFENSE 
OR OTHERWISE IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING, ANY CLAIM THAT IT IS NOT 
PERSONALLY SUBJECT TO THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS, THAT 
SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM, THAT THE 
VENUE OF SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING IS IMPROPER, OR THAT THIS GUARANTY OR 
ANY DOCUMENT OR ANY INSTRUMENT REFERRED TO HEREIN OR THE SUBJECT MATTER THEREOF 
MAY NOT BE LITIGATED IN OR BY SUCH COURTS. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE 
LAW, EACH GUARANTOR AGREES (I) NOT TO SEEK AND HEREBY WAIVES THE RIGHT TO ANY 
REVIEW OF THE JUDGMENT OF ANY SUCH COURT BY ANY COURT OF ANY OTHER NATION OR 
JURISDICTION WHICH MAY BE CALLED UPON TO GRANT AN ENFORCEMENT OF SUCH JUDGMENT 
AND (II) NOT TO ASSERT ANY COUNTERCLAIM IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING 
UNLESS SUCH COUNTERCLAIM IS A MANDATORY OR COMPULSORY COUNTERCLAIM UNDER FEDERAL 
LAW OR NEW YORK STATE LAW, AS APPLICABLE. EACH GUARANTOR AGREES THAT SERVICE OF 
PROCESS MAY BE MADE UPON IT BY CERTIFIED OR REGISTERED MAIL TO THE ADDRESS FOR 
NOTICES SET FORTH IN THIS GUARANTY OR ANY METHOD AUTHORIZED BY THE LAWS OF NEW 
YORK. THE AGENTS, THE LENDERS AND EACH GUARANTOR IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ALL RIGHT TO 
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR 
RELATING TO THIS GUARANTY, THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS 
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY. EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED BY LAW, THE GUARANTORS 
HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHT THEY MAY HAVE TO CLAIM OR RECOVER IN ANY LITIGATION ANY 
SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES OTHER THAN, 
OR IN ADDITION TO, ACTUAL DAMAGES. 
 
         13.      Miscellaneous. 
 
                  (a) All capitalized terms used herein and not defined herein 



shall have the meanings specified in the Credit Agreement. 
 
                  (b) This Guaranty is the joint and several obligation of each 
Guarantor, and may be enforced against each Guarantor separately, whether or not 
enforcement of any right or remedy hereunder has been sought against any other 
Guarantor. Each Guarantor acknowledges that its obligations hereunder will not 
be released or affected by the failure of the other Guarantors to execute this 
Guaranty or by a determination that all or a part of this Guaranty with respect 
to any other Guarantor is invalid or unenforceable. 
 
                  (c) If any term of this Guaranty or any application thereof 
shall be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Guaranty and any other 
application of such term shall not be affected thereby. 
 
                  (d) Any term of this Guaranty may be amended, waived, 
discharged or terminated only by a written agreement executed by each Guarantor 
and by the Administrative Agent (acting with the consent of the Required Lenders 
or all Lenders, as applicable under the Credit Agreement). 
 
     (e) The headings in this  Guaranty  are for purposes of reference  only and 
shall not limit or define the meaning hereof. 
 
                  (f) No delay or omission by an Agent or a Lender in the 
exercise of any right under this Guaranty shall impair any such right, nor shall 
it be construed to be waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise 
of any right hereunder preclude any other or further exercise of any other 
right. 
 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Guaranty to be 
executed and delivered as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
                                         CELESTIAL SEASONINGS, INC. 
                                         ARROWHEAD MILLS, INC. 
                                         KINERET FOODS CORPORATION 
                                         WESTBRAE NATURAL, INC. 
                                         HAIN PURE FOOD CO., INC. 
                                         NATURAL NUTRITION GROUP, INC. 
                                         LITTLE BEAR ORGANIC FOODS, INC. 
                                         WESTBRAE NATURAL FOODS, INC. 
                                         HEALTH VALLEY COMPANY 
                                         AMI OPERATING, INC. 
                                         DEBOLES NUTRITIONAL FOODS, INC. 
                                         DANA ALEXANDER, INC. 
                                         MOUNTAIN CHAI COMPANY 
 
 
                                         By:_______________________________ 
                                         Name: 
                                         Title: 
 
 



 
 
 
 
         EXHIBIT F 
 
 
                       ASSIGNMENT AND ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT 
 
 
                            Dated __________________ 
 
 
         Reference is hereby made to the Credit Agreement dated as of March ___, 
2001 (as amended, restated, modified or supplemented from time to time the 
"Credit Agreement") by and among THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC., a New York 
corporation (the "Company"), the lenders signatory thereto (collectively, the 
"Lenders"), FLEET NATIONAL BANK, as Administrative Agent (in such capacity, the 
"Administrative Agent"), SUNTRUST BANK, as Syndication Agent, and HSBC BANK USA, 
as Documentation Agent. Capitalized terms used herein that are defined in the 
Credit Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective 
meanings ascribed thereto in the Credit Agreement. 
 
     ________________________________, a _________________ (the "Assignor"), and 
_________________________________,  a _________________ (the "Assignee"),  agree 
as follows: 
 
         1. The Assignor hereby sells and assigns to the Assignee, without 
recourse, and without representation or warranty except as expressly set forth 
herein, and the Assignee hereby irrevocably purchases and assumes from the 
Assignor, a ____% interest in and to all of the Assignor's rights and 
obligations under the Credit Agreement as of the Effective Date (as defined 
below) (including, without limitation, such percentage interest in each of the 
Assignor's Commitments as in effect on the Effective Date, the Loans owing to 
the Assignor on the Effective Date, the Revolving Credit Facility A Note and the 
Revolving Credit Facility B Note held by the Assignor and the participations in 
Letters of Credit held by the Assignor on the Effective Date). 
 



 
     + 2. The Assignor:  (i)  represents and warrants that as of the date hereof 
its Revolving Credit Facility A Commitment (without giving effect to assignments 
thereof that have not yet become  effective) is $___________,  and the aggregate 
outstanding  principal  amount of the Revolving Credit Facility A Loans owing to 
it  (without  giving  effect to  assignments  thereof  that have not yet  become 
effective) is  $___________;  (ii)  represents  and warrants that as of the date 
hereof its  Revolving  Credit  Facility B Commitment  (without  giving effect to 
assignments  thereof that have not yet become effective) is $_________,  and the 
aggregate  outstanding  principal  amount of Revolving  Credit  Facility B Loans 
owing to it (without giving effect to the assignments  thereof that have not yet 
become  effective) is $_________;  (iii)  represents and warrants that it is the 
legal and beneficial  owner of the interest being assigned by it hereunder,  and 
that  such  interest  is free and  clear of any  adverse  claim;  (iv)  makes no 
representation  or warranty  and assumes no  responsibility  with respect to any 
statements,  warranties or representations  made in or in connection with, or as 
to the  validity  or  enforceability  of,  the  Credit  Agreement  or any  other 
instrument or document furnished  pursuant thereto;  (v) makes no representation 
or  warranty  and  assumes  no  responsibility  with  respect  to the  financial 
condition of the Company or any direct or indirect  Subsidiary of the Company or 
the  performance  or  observance  by the  Company  or  any  direct  or  indirect 
Subsidiary  of the  Company  of their  respective  obligations  under the Credit 
Agreement or any other instrument or document  furnished pursuant thereto or the 
enforceability of any such agreement,  instrument or document; and (vi) attaches 
the Revolving  Credit  Facility A Note and the Revolving  Credit Facility B Note 
referred to in  paragraph 1 above and  requests  that the  Administrative  Agent 
exchange  such notes for a  Revolving  Credit  Facility  A Note and a  Revolving 
Credit Facility B Note each dated the Effective Date in the principal amounts of 
$________ and $________,  respectively, payable to the order of the Assignee and 
a Revolving  Credit Facility A Note and a Revolving  Credit Facility B Note each 
dated  the  Effective  Date  in  the  principal   amounts  of  $___________  and 
$___________, respectively, payable to the order of the Assignor. 
 
         3. The Assignee: (i) confirms that it has received a copy of the Credit 
Agreement, together with copies of such financial statements and such other 
documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own credit 
analysis and decision to enter into this Assignment and Acceptance; (ii) agrees 
that it will, independently and without reliance upon any Agent, the Assignor, 
or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem 
appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or 
not taking action under the Credit Agreement; (iii) appoints and authorizes the 
Administrative Agent to take such action as its agent on its behalf and to 
exercise such powers under the Credit Agreement as are delegated to the 
Administrative Agent by the terms thereof, together with such powers as are 
reasonably incidental thereto; (iv) agrees that it will perform in accordance 
with their terms all of the obligations which by the terms of the Credit 
Agreement are required to be performed by it as a Lender; and (v) specifies as 
its addresses for Base Rate Loans and Adjusted Libor Loans (and address for 
notices) the offices set forth beneath its name on the signature pages hereof. 
 
         4. The effective date for this Assignment and Acceptance shall be 
_________________ (the "Effective Date") which shall not be earlier than five 
Business Days after the acceptance and recording by the Administrative Agent of 
the executed Assignment and Acceptance. Following the execution of this 
Assignment and Acceptance, it will be delivered to the Administrative Agent for 
acceptance by the Administrative Agent and, provided that no Default or Event of 
Default has occurred and is then continuing under the Credit Agreement, the 
Borrower, and accompanied by the fee payable to the Administrative Agent as 
referred to in Section 10.05(c) of the Credit Agreement. 
 
         5. Upon such acceptances, as of the Effective Date: (i) the Assignee 
shall be a party to the Credit Agreement and, to the extent provided in this 
Assignment and Acceptance, have the rights and obligations of a Lender 
thereunder and under the other Loan Documents, and (ii) the Assignor shall, to 
the extent provided in this Assignment and Acceptance, relinquish its rights 
(except Sections 3.07, 3.08, 3.10 and 10.03 of the Credit Agreement for the 
period prior to the Effective Date) and be released from its obligations under 
the Credit Agreement. 
 
         6. Upon such acceptance, from and after the Effective Date, the 
Administrative Agent shall make all payments under the Credit Agreement and the 
Notes in respect of the interest assigned hereby (including, without limitation, 
all payments of principal, interest and commitment fees with respect thereto) to 
the Assignee. The Assignor and Assignee shall make all appropriate adjustments 
in payments under the Credit Agreement and the Notes for periods prior to the 
Effective Date directly between themselves. 
 
         7. This Assignment and Acceptance shall be governed by, and construed 
in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York without regard to its 
rules pertaining to conflicts of laws. 
 



 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Assignor and the Assignee have caused this 
Assignment and Acceptance to be executed by their officers thereunto duly 
authorized as of the date first set forth above. 
 
                               [NAME OF ASSIGNOR] 
 
 
                               By: _______________________________ 
                                    Title 
 
 
                               [NAME OF ASSIGNEE] 
 
 
                               By: _______________________________ 
                                    Title 
 
 
                               Lending Office for Base Rate Loans: 
 
                                        =========================== 
                                        --------------------------- 
 
                               Lending Office for Adjusted Libor 
Loans: 
 
                                        =========================== 
                                        --------------------------- 
             Attention: 
 
                               Address for Notices: 
                                        =========================== 
                                        --------------------------- 
Attention: 
 
                                  Telecopy No.: 
 
 
 
 
Accepted this _____ day 
of _______________, 200_ 
 
 
FLEET NATIONAL BANK, as Administrative Agent 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 
 
THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 
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                                   EXHIBIT G-1 
 
 
         [LETTERHEAD OF COUNSEL TO THE 
                           COMPANY AND THE GUARANTORS] 
 
 
 
 
                                 March ___, 2001 
 
 
Fleet National Bank, 
  as Administrative Agent and as a Lender 
300 Broad Hollow Road 
Melville, New York  11747 
 
========================== 
-------------------------- 
 
========================== 
-------------------------- 
 
========================== 
-------------------------- 
 
========================== 
-------------------------- 
 
========================== 
-------------------------- 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
     We have acted as counsel to The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. (the "Company"), 
a  Delaware  corporation,   and  to  Celestial  Seasonings,   Inc.,  a  Delaware 
corporation, Arrowhead Mills, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Kineret Foods Corp., 
a New York corporation,  Westbrae Natural,  Inc., a Delaware  corporation,  Hain 
Pure Food Co., Inc., a California corporation,  Natural Nutrition Group, Inc., a 
Delaware Corporation, Little Bear Organic Foods, Inc., a California corporation, 
Westbrae Natural Foods, Inc., a California corporation, Health Valley Company, a 
Delaware  corporation,   AMI  Operating,  Inc.  a  Texas  corporation,   DeBoles 
Nutritional  Foods,  Inc., a New York corporation,  Dana Alexander,  Inc., a New 
York   corporation,   and  Mountain   Chai  Company,   a  Colorado   corporation 
(collectively,  the  "Guarantors")  in connection with the Credit Agreement (the 
"Agreement")  dated the date hereof  among the  Company,  Fleet  National  Bank, 
("Fleet") as  Administrative  Agent,  __________________  as Syndication  Agent, 
___________________  as  Documentation  Agent  and the  Lenders  party  thereto, 
pursuant to which the Lenders have agreed to extend credit to the Company in the 
aggregate  principal amount of $250,000,000.  Capitalized  terms used herein and 
not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
         In acting as such counsel, we have examined: 
 
         (a)      a counterpart of the Agreement executed by the Company; 
 
         (b)      the Revolving Credit Facility A Notes, the Revolving Credit 
                  Facility B Notes [and the Term Loan Notes] each executed by 
                  the Company in favor of each Lender; 
 
     (c) the Swingline Note, executed by the Company in favor of Fleet; and 
 
         (d)      a counterpart of the Guaranty executed by each Guarantor. 
 
The documents referred to in items (a) through (d) above are hereinafter 
referred to collectively as the "Loan Documents". 
 
         We have assumed the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as 
originals, the conformity to the originals of all documents submitted to us as 
certified, conformed or photostatic copies and the authenticity of the originals 
of such copies. We have also examined originals, or copies certified to our 
satisfaction, of such corporate records, certificates of public officials, 
certificates of corporate officers of the Company and each Guarantor and such 
other instruments and documents as we have deemed necessary as a basis for the 
opinions hereinafter set forth. As to questions of fact, we have, to the extent 
that such facts were not independently established by us, relied upon such 
certificates. 
 
         Based upon the foregoing and subject to the qualifications set forth 
herein, we are of the opinion with respect to the Company and the Guarantors 
that, 
 
         1. The Company and the Guarantors are each a corporation validly 
existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of their 
incorporation and in good standing in each jurisdiction wherein the conduct of 
its business or any ownership of its properties requires it to be qualified to 
do business except where the failure to be so qualified could not reasonably be 
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, and each has the corporate power and 
authority to own its assets and to transact the business in which it is now 
engaged. 
 
         2. The Company and the Guarantors each have the requisite corporate 
power and authority to execute, deliver and perform the Loan Documents to which 
it is a party, each of which has been duly authorized by all necessary and 
proper corporate action. 
 
         3. The Loan Documents to which the Company or the Guarantors are a 
party constitute the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company and the 
Guarantors (to the extent they are a party thereto) enforceable against the 
Company and each Guarantor, as the case may be, in accordance with their 
respective terms subject as to enforcement by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization or similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights 
generally, and by equitable principles of general application. 
 
         4. Neither the execution and delivery by the Company and the Guarantors 
of the Loan Documents to which they are a party nor the performance by the 
Company or the Guarantors of their respective obligations under the Loan 
Documents, will (a) violate any law, rule or regulation or, to our knowledge, 
any order or decree of any court or governmental instrumentality binding upon 
the Company or any Guarantor, (b) contravene the Certificate of Incorporation or 
By-Laws of the Company or any Guarantor or result in a breach of or constitute a 
default (with due notice or lapse of time or both) under any agreements to which 
the Company or any Guarantor is bound of which we are aware, or, to our 
knowledge, result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge, or 
encumbrance upon any of the property or assets of the Company or any Guarantor, 
or (c) require the consent, license, approval or authorization of any 
governmental or public body or authority. 
 
     5. Neither the Company nor any  Guarantor is an  "investment  company" or a 
company  "controlled"  by an  "investment  company"  within  the  meaning of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940. 
 
         6. No consent or authorization of, filing with or other act by or in 
respect of any governmental authority is required to be obtained by the Company 
or any Guarantor for the valid execution, delivery and performance of the Loan 
Documents to which they are a party. 



 
         7. Assuming the proceeds of the Loans are used for the purposes set 
forth in Section 3.02 of the Credit Agreement, the making of the Loans 
contemplated therein and the application of the proceeds thereof will not 
violate the provisions of Regulation U or X of the Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. 
 
         8. To the best of our knowledge there are no actions, suits or 
proceedings against any of the Company or any Guarantor, pending or threatened 
against the Company or any Guarantor, before any court, governmental agency or 
arbitrator which challenges the validity or enforceability of any Loan Document 
or which, if adversely determined, would impair the ability of the Company or 
any Guarantor to perform their respective obligations under the Loan Documents 
to which they are a party. 
 
 
                                                     Very truly yours, 
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                                    EXHIBIT H 
 
                                     FORM OF 
                         U.S. TAX COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 
 
         Reference is made to the Credit Agreement (the "Credit Agreement"), 
dated as of March ___, 2001, among THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. (the 
"Company"), the financial institutions from time to time parties thereto (the 
"Lenders"), FLEET NATIONAL BANK, as administrative agent (in such capacity, the 
"Administrative Agent") for the Lenders, SUNTRUST BANK, as Syndication Agent, 
and HSBC BANK USA, as Documentation Agent. 
 
         The undersigned hereby certifies to the Administrative Agent and to the 
Company that: 
 
     (1) The undersigned is the beneficial  owner of the Notes registered in its 
name; 
 
     (2) The  undersigned  is not a bank  (as  such  term  is  used  in  Section 
881(c)(3)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code")); 
 
     (3) The undersigned is not a "10-percent shareholder" (as such term is used 
in Section 881(c)(3)(B) of the Code); 
 
     (4) The income from the Notes held by the  undersigned  is not  effectively 
connected with the conduct of a trade or business within the United States; 
 
     (5) The undersigned is not a controlled foreign corporation related (within 
the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Code) to the Company; 
 
         (6) The undersigned is a person other than (i) a citizen or resident of 
the United States of America, its territories and possessions (including the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and all other areas subject to its jurisdiction) 
(for purposes of this clause (6), the "United States"), (ii) a corporation, 
partnership or other entity created or organized under the laws of the United 
States or any political subdivision thereof or therein or (iii) an estate or 
trust that is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of the 
source of its income; and 
         (7)      The undersigned is not a natural person. 
 
         We have furnished you with a certificate of our non-U.S. person status 
on Internal Revenue Service Form W-8. By executing this certificate, the 
undersigned agrees that (a) if the information provided on this certificate 
changes, the undersigned shall so inform the Company in writing within thirty 
days of such change and (b) the undersigned shall furnish the Company with a 
properly completed and currently effective certificate in either the calendar 
year in which payment is to be made by the Company to the undersigned, or in 
either of the two calendar years preceding such payment. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
         Unless otherwise defined herein, terms defined in the Credit Agreement 
and used herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Credit Agreement. 
 
                                            [NAME OF LENDER] 
 
 
                                            By:____________________________ 
                                            Title:___________________________ 
 
                                            [ADDRESS] 
 
Dated:__________ __, 2001. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                                   [PG NUMBER] 
 
                                   EXHIBIT I-1 
 
 
                            COMPANY PLEDGE AGREEMENT 
 
         PLEDGE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") dated as of March _____, 2001 by and 
between THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Pledgor"), 
and FLEET NATIONAL BANK, a national banking association organized and existing 
under the laws of the United States of America, having an office at 300 Broad 
Hollow Road, Melville, New York 11747 as Administrative Agent for the ratable 
benefit of the Lenders as those terms are defined in the Credit Agreement 
referred to below (in such capacity, the "Pledgee"). 
 
                                    RECITALS 
 
         A. The Pledgor and the Pledgee, as Administrative Agent, SunTrust Bank, 
as Syndication Agent, HSBC Bank USA, as Documentation Agent, and the Lenders 
party thereto, have entered into a Credit Agreement dated as of March 29, 2001 
(as the same may be hereafter amended, modified, restated or supplemented from 
time to time, the "Credit Agreement") pursuant to which the Pledgor will receive 
Loans and other financial accommodations from the Lenders and will incur 
Obligations. 
 
         B. The Pledgor is the beneficial owner of that percentage of the issued 
and outstanding capital stock or membership or other equity interests of each 
Non-Domestic Subsidiary of the Pledgor listed on Schedule A annexed hereto (each 
a "Pledged Company" and collectively, the "Pledged Companies") as indicated on 
such Schedule A. 
 
         C. In order to induce the Lenders to extend credit to the Pledgor on 
and after the date hereof as provided in the Credit Agreement, the Pledgor 
wishes to grant to the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the Lenders security 
and assurance in order to secure the payment and performance of all Obligations, 
and to that effect to pledge to the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the 
Lenders 65% of all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Pledged 
Companies (the "Pledged Shares") and 65% of all of the issued and outstanding 
membership, partnership or other equity interests in the Pledged Companies (the 
"Pledged Rights", together with the Pledged Shares, collectively, the "Pledged 
Interests") including, without limitation, the Pledged Interests listed opposite 
the name of the Pledgor as more particularly described on Schedule A and, with 
respect to the Pledged Shares, as represented by the stock certificates 
referenced thereon. 
 
         Accordingly, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
         1. Security Interest. As security for the Obligations, including any 
and all renewals or extensions thereof, the Pledgor hereby delivers, pledges and 
assigns to the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the Lenders and creates in the 
Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the Lenders a first security interest in all 
of the Pledgor's right, title and interest in and to all of the Pledged 
Interests, together with all rights and privileges of the Pledgor with respect 
thereto, all proceeds, income and profits thereof and all property received with 
respect to the Pledged Interests in addition thereto, in exchange thereof or in 
substitution therefor (collectively, the "Collateral"). The Pledgor has 
delivered to the Pledgee, with respect to the Pledged Shares existing on the 
date hereof which are evidenced by certificates, certificates evidencing such 
Pledged Shares, together with undated stock powers or other similar instruments 
duly executed in blank by the Pledgor. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
         2. Stock Dividends, Options, or Other Adjustments. The Pledgee shall 
receive, as Collateral, any and all additional shares of stock, membership 
interests or any other property of any kind distributable on or by reason of the 
Collateral pledged hereunder, whether in the form of or by way of dividends, 
warrants, partial liquidation, conversion, prepayments or redemptions (in whole 
or in part), liquidation, or otherwise with the exceptions of cash dividends or 
other cash distributions to the extent permitted under Section 7(a) hereof. If 
any additional shares of capital stock, instruments, or other property in 
respect of the Pledged Interests against which a security interest can only be 
perfected by possession by the Pledgee, which are distributable on or by reason 
of the Collateral pledged hereunder, shall come into the possession or control 
of the Pledgor, the Pledgor shall hold or control in trust for the Pledgee and 
the Lenders and forthwith transfer and deliver the same to the Pledgee subject 
to the provisions hereof. 
 
         3. Delivery of Share Certificates; Stock Powers; Documents. The Pledgor 
agrees to deliver all share certificates, undated stock powers duly executed in 
blank, documents, agreements, financing statements, amendments thereto, 
assignments or other writings as the Pledgee may reasonably request to carry out 
the terms of this Agreement or to protect or enforce the lien and security 
interest in the Collateral hereunder granted hereby to the Pledgee for the 
ratable benefit of the Lenders and further agrees to do and cause to be done, 
upon the Pledgee's request, all things reasonably determined by the Pledgee to 
be necessary to perfect and keep in full force the lien in the Collateral 
hereunder granted hereby in favor of the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the 
Lenders, including, but not limited to, the prompt payment of all documented 
out-of-pocket fees and expenses incurred in connection with any filings made to 
perfect or continue the lien and security interest in the Collateral hereunder 
granted hereby in favor of the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the Lenders. 
The Pledgor agrees to make appropriate entries upon its books and records 
(including without limitation its stock record and transfer books) disclosing 
the lien against the Collateral hereunder granted hereby to the Pledgee for the 
ratable benefit of the Lenders. The Pledgor further agrees to promptly deliver 
to the Pledgee, or cause the corporation or other entity issuing the Collateral 
to deliver directly to the Pledgee, share certificates or other documents 
representing Collateral acquired or received after the date of this Agreement 
with an undated stock power or other similar instrument duly executed by the 
Pledgor in blank, provided that, the Pledgor shall not be required to pledge any 
portion of any Pledged Interest in any Pledged Company which when aggregated 
with all of the other Pledged Interests in such Pledged Company pledged to the 
Pledgee pursuant to this or any other Pledge Agreement would exceed 65% of the 
Pledged Interests in such Pledged Company entitled to vote (within the meaning 
of Treasury Regulation Section 1.956-2(c)(2) promulgated under the Code) (on a 
fully diluted basis) pledged to the Pledgee under this Agreement and such other 
Pledge Agreements; provided that, if, as a result of any change in the tax laws 
of the United States of America after the date of this Agreement, the pledge by 
the Pledgor of any additional Pledged Interests in excess of 65% under this 
Agreement and any other Pledge Agreement would not result in an increase in the 
aggregate net consolidated tax liabilities of the Pledgor and such Pledged 
Company, then promptly after the change in such laws, all such additional 
Pledged Interests shall be so pledged under this Agreement or such other Pledge 
Agreement, as applicable. In no event shall the Pledgor be required to pledge 
any of the assets of any Subsidiary of the Pledgor that is a controlled foreign 
corporation, as defined in Section 957(a) of the Code, including, but not 
limited to the stock of any Subsidiary of the Pledgor held directly or 
indirectly by any such Subsidiary. If at any time the Pledgee notifies the 
Pledgor that additional stock powers or other similar instruments endorsed in 
blank with respect to the Collateral are required, the Pledgor shall promptly 
execute in blank and deliver such stock powers as the Pledgee may request. 
 
         4. Power of Attorney. The Pledgor hereby constitutes and irrevocably 
appoints the Pledgee, with full power of substitution and revocation by the 
Pledgee, as Pledgor's true and lawful attorney-in-fact, to the full extent 
permitted by law, at any time or times when an Event of Default has occurred and 
is continuing, to affix to certificates and documents representing the 
Collateral the stock power or other similar instruments delivered with respect 
thereto, to transfer or cause the transfer of the Collateral, or any part 
thereof on the books of the corporation or other entity issuing the same, to the 
name of the Pledgee or the Pledgee's nominee and thereafter to exercise as to 
such Collateral all the rights, powers and remedies of an owner. The power of 
attorney granted pursuant to this Agreement and all authority hereby conferred 
are granted and conferred solely to protect the Pledgee's and the Lenders' 
interest in the Collateral and shall not impose any duty upon the Pledgee to 
exercise any power. Subject to Section 11 hereof, this power of attorney shall 
be irrevocable as one coupled with an interest. 
 
     5. Inducing Representations of the Pledgor. The Pledgor makes the following 
representations  and  warranties  to the  Pledgee;  each and all of which  shall 
survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement: 
 
                  (a) The information concerning the Pledged Companies and the 
Pledgor's beneficial ownership of the Pledged Interests thereof that is 
contained in Schedule A is correct in all material respects on the date hereof. 
 
                  (b) The Pledgor is the sole legal and beneficial owner of, and 
has good and indefeasible title to, the Pledged Interests pledged by the 
Pledgor, free and clear of all pledges, liens, security interests and other 
encumbrances and restrictions on the transfer and assignment thereof, other than 
the security interest created by this Agreement and Permitted Liens, and has the 
corporate right and authority to execute this Agreement and to pledge the 
Collateral to the Pledgee as provided for herein. 
 
                  (c) There are no outstanding options, warrants or other 



agreements to which the Pledged Companies or the Pledgor is a party with respect 
to the Pledged Interests pledged by the Pledgor. 
 
                  (d) The Pledged Shares pledged by the Pledgor have been 
validly issued, are fully paid and non-assessable and are not subject to any 
charter, by-law, statutory, contractual or other restrictions governing their 
issuance, transfer, ownership or control. 
 
                  (e) Any consent, approval or authorization of or designation 
or filing with any authority on the part of the Pledgor which is required in 
connection with the pledge and security interest granted under this Agreement 
has been obtained or effected except those consents, approvals, authorizations, 
designations or filings which the failure to receive could not reasonably be 
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
                  (f) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the 
Pledgor, and the performance by the Pledgor of its obligations hereunder, will 
not result in a violation of any mortgage, indenture, contract, instrument, 
judgment, decree, order, statute, rule or regulation to which the Pledgor is 
subject except any violation which could not reasonably be expected to have a 
Material Adverse Effect. 
 
                  (g) The Pledgor has delivered to the Pledgee all instruments 
and stock certificates, if any, representing the Pledged Shares, duly endorsed 
in blank or accompanied by an undated assignment or assignments in blank 
sufficient to transfer title thereto. There are neither any instruments or 
certificates evidencing the Pledged Rights nor registration books in which 
ownership of the Pledged Rights are recorded. 
 
     6. Obligations of the Pledgor. The Pledgor hereby covenants and agrees with 
the Pledgee as follows: 
 
                  (a) The Pledgor will not sell, transfer or convey any interest 
in, or suffer or permit any lien or encumbrance to be created upon or with 
respect to, any of the Collateral (other than as created under this Agreement 
and Permitted Liens) during the term of the pledge established hereby. 
 
                  (b) The Pledgor will, at its own expense, at any time and from 
time to time at the Pledgee's request, do, make, procure, execute and deliver 
all acts, things, writings, assurances and other documents as may be reasonably 
required by the Pledgee to further enhance, preserve, establish, demonstrate or 
enforce the Pledgee's and the Lenders' rights, interests and remedies created 
by, provided in, or emanating from, this Agreement. 
 
     7. Rights of the  Pledgor.  So long as no Event of Default has occurred and 
is continuing,  and so long as the Pledgee has not transferred the Collateral to 
its own name under Section 8 hereof: 
 
                  (a) The Pledgor shall be entitled to receive and retain any 
cash dividends and other cash distributions paid on the Collateral. 
 
                  (b) The Pledgor shall be entitled to vote or consent or grant 
waivers or ratifications with respect to the Collateral in any manner not 
inconsistent with this Agreement, the Credit Agreement or any other Loan 
Document. The Pledgor hereby grants to the Pledgee an irrevocable proxy to vote 
the Collateral, which proxy shall be effective immediately upon the occurrence 
of and during the continuance of an Event of Default or registration of the 
Collateral in the name of the Pledgee pursuant to Section 8 hereof. Upon request 
of the Pledgee, the Pledgor agrees to deliver to the Pledgee such further 
evidence of such irrevocable proxy or such further irrevocable proxy to vote the 
Collateral during the continuance of an Event of Default as the Pledgee may 
request. 
 
                  (c) The Pledgee will execute and deliver to the Pledgor all 
proxies, powers of attorney or other instruments as the Pledgor may reasonably 
request, at the Pledgor's cost, for purposes of effecting the voting rights or 
right to receive dividends and distributions set forth in clauses (a) and (b) of 
this Section 7, provided that the Pledgor shall supply such appropriate forms to 
the Pledgee. 
 
     8. Rights of the Pledgee. At any time when an Event of Default has occurred 
and is continuing, the Pledgee may in its sole discretion: 
 
                  (a) Cause the Collateral to be transferred to its name or to 
the name of its nominee or nominees and thereafter exercise as to such 
Collateral all of the rights, powers and remedies of an owner. 
 
                  (b) Collect by legal proceedings or otherwise all dividends, 
interest, principal payments, capital distributions and other sums now or 
hereafter payable on account of said Collateral, and hold the same as part of 
the Collateral, or apply the same to any of the Obligations in such manner and 
order as the Pledgee may decide in its sole discretion. 
 
                  (c) Enter into any extension, subordination, reorganization, 
deposit, merger, or consolidation agreement, or any other agreement relating to 
or affecting the Collateral, and in connection therewith deposit or surrender 
control of the Collateral thereunder, and accept other property in exchange 
therefor and hold and apply such property or money so received in accordance 
with the provisions hereof. 
 
                  (d) Discharge any taxes, liens, security interests or other 
encumbrances levied or placed on the Collateral or pay for the maintenance and 
preservation of the Collateral; the amount of such payments, plus any and all 
fees, costs and expenses of the Pledgee (including reasonable attorneys' fees 
and disbursements) in connection therewith shall, at the Pledgee's option, be 
(i) reimbursed by the Pledgor on demand, with interest thereon from the date 
paid by Pledgee at two percent (2%) per annum above the Base Rate or (ii) added 
to the Obligations secured hereby. 



 
     9. Event of Default;  Remedies.  Upon the occurrence and  continuance of an 
Event of Default: 
 
                  (a) In addition to all the rights and remedies of a secured 
party under applicable law, the Pledgee shall have the right, without demand of 
performance or other demand, advertisement or notice of any kind, except as 
specified below, to or upon Pledgor or any other Person (all and each of which 
demands, advertisements and/or notices are hereby expressly waived to the extent 
permitted by law), to proceed forthwith to collect, receive, appropriate and 
realize upon the Collateral, or any part thereof and to proceed forthwith to 
sell, assign, give an option or options to purchase, contract to sell, or 
otherwise dispose of and deliver the Collateral or any part thereof in one or 
more parcels at public or private sale or sales at any stock exchange or 
broker's board or at any of the Pledgee's offices or elsewhere at such prices 
and on such terms (including, without limitation, a requirement that any 
purchaser of all or any part of the Collateral shall be required to purchase any 
securities constituting the Collateral solely for investment and without any 
intention to make a distribution thereof) as the Pledgee in its sole and 
absolute discretion deems appropriate without any liability for any loss due to 
decrease in the market value of the Collateral during the period held, provided 
that any such sale shall be made in a commercially reasonably manner. The 
Pledgee agrees that if notice of sale shall be required by law such notification 
shall be deemed reasonable and properly given if mailed to the Pledgor, postage 
prepaid, at least ten (10) days before any such disposition, to the address 
indicated in Section 13(c) below. Any disposition of the Collateral or any part 
thereof may be for cash or on credit or for future delivery without assumption 
of any credit risk, with the right of the Pledgee and each Lender to purchase 
all or any part of the Collateral so sold at any such sale or sales, public or 
private, free of any equity or right of redemption in the Pledgor, which right 
or equity is, to the extent permitted by applicable law, hereby expressly waived 
and released by the Pledgor. 
 
                  (b) All of the Pledgee's rights and remedies, including but 
not limited to the foregoing, shall be cumulative and not exclusive and shall be 
enforceable alternatively, successively or concurrently as the Pledgee may deem 
expedient. 
 
                  (c) The Pledgee may elect to obtain (at the Pledgor's expense) 
the advice of any independent investment banking firm with respect to the method 
and manner of sale of any of the Collateral, the best price reasonably 
obtainable therefor, the consideration of cash and/or credit terms, or any other 
details concerning such sale or disposition. The Pledgee, in its sole 
discretion, may elect to sell on such credit terms which it deems reasonable. 
The sale of any of the Collateral on credit terms shall not relieve the Pledgor 
of its liability under any Loan Document until its Obligations have been paid in 
full. All payments received by the Pledgee in respect of a sale of Collateral 
shall be applied to the Obligations in the manner provided in Section 10 hereof, 
as and when such payments are received. 
 
                  (d) The Pledgor recognizes that the Pledgee may be unable to 
effect a public sale of all or a part of the Collateral by reason of certain 
prohibitions contained in any applicable securities law, but may be compelled to 
resort to one or more private sales to a restricted group of purchasers who will 
be obliged to agree, among other things, to acquire the Collateral for their own 
account, for investment and not with a view for the distribution or resale 
thereof. The Pledgor agrees that private sales so made may be at prices and on 
other terms less favorable to the seller than if the Collateral were sold at 
public sale, and that the Pledgee has no obligation to delay the sale of any 
Collateral for the period of time necessary to permit the registration of the 
Collateral for public sale under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The 
Pledgor agrees that a private sale or sales made under the foregoing 
circumstances shall be deemed to have been made in a commercially reasonable 
manner. 
 
                  (e) If any consent, approval or authorization of any state, 
municipal or other governmental department, agency or authority should be 
necessary to effectuate any sale or other disposition of the Collateral, or any 
partial disposition of the Collateral, the Pledgor will execute all such 
applications and other instruments as may be required in connection with 
securing any such consent, approval or authorization, and will otherwise use its 
best efforts to secure such sale or other disposition of the Collateral as the 
Pledgee may reasonably deem necessary pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
                  (f) Upon any sale or other disposition, the Pledgee shall have 
the right to deliver, assign and transfer to the purchaser thereof the 
Collateral so sold or disposed of. Each purchaser at any such sale or other 
disposition (including the Pledgee) shall hold the Collateral free from any 
claim or right of the Pledgor of whatever kind, including any equity or right of 
redemption of the Pledgor. The Pledgor specifically waives, to the extent 
permitted by applicable laws, all rights of redemption, stay or appraisal which 
it had or may have under any rule of law or statute now existing or hereafter 
adopted. 
 
                  (g) The Pledgee shall not be obligated to make any sale or 
other disposition, unless the terms thereof shall be satisfactory to it. The 
Pledgee may, subject to applicable laws, without notice or publication, adjourn 
any private or public sale, and, upon ten (10) days' prior notice to the 
Pledgor, hold such sale at any time or place to which the same may be so 
adjourned. In case of any sale of all or any part of the Collateral, on credit 
or future delivery, the Collateral so sold may be retained by the Pledgee until 
the selling price is paid by the purchaser thereof, but the Pledgee and the 
Lenders shall incur no liability in the case of the failure of such purchaser to 
take up and pay for the property so sold and, in case of any such failure, such 
property may again be sold as herein provided. 
 
         10.      Disposition of Proceeds. 
                  ----------------------- 



 
     (a) The  proceeds  of any  sale or  disposition  of all or any  part of the 
Collateral shall be applied by the Pledgee in the following order: 
 
                           (i) to the payment in full of the costs and expenses 
                  of such sale or sales, collections, and the protection, 
                  declaration and enforcement of any security interest granted 
                  hereunder including the reasonable compensation of the 
                  Pledgee's agents and attorneys; 
 
                           (ii)     to the payment of the Obligations; and 
 
                           (iii) to the payment to the Pledgor of any surplus 
                  then remaining from such proceeds, subject to the rights of 
                  any holder of a lien on the Collateral of which the Pledgee 
                  has actual notice. 
 
                  (b) In the event that the proceeds of any sale or other 
disposition of the Collateral are insufficient to cover the principal of, and 
premium, if any, and interest on, the Obligations secured thereby plus costs and 
expenses of the sale or other disposition, the Pledgor shall remain liable for 
any deficiency. 
 
         11. Termination. This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect 
until all of the Obligations shall have been paid in full and satisfied, and the 
Credit Agreement shall have been terminated. Subject to any sale or other 
disposition by the Pledgee of the Collateral or any part thereof pursuant to 
this Agreement, the Collateral (together with the undated stock powers or other 
similar instruments delivered by the Pledgor to the Pledgee) shall be returned 
to the Pledgor upon full payment, satisfaction and termination of all of the 
Obligations. To the extent that the sale or other disposition of the Collateral 
is specifically permitted under the Credit Agreement and provided that no Event 
of Default has occurred and is then continuing, the Pledgee shall, from time to 
time, deliver to the Pledgor upon request therefor and at the Pledgor's expense, 
releases of the Collateral and any other documents reasonably requested by the 
Pledgor evidencing the release of the security interest granted hereunder. 
 
         12. Expenses of the Pledgee. All out-of-pocket expenses (including 
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel) incurred by the Pledgee in 
connection with the perfection and continuation of the security interest granted 
hereunder and any actual or attempted sale or exchange of, or any enforcement, 
collection, compromise or settlement respecting, the Collateral, or any other 
action taken by the Pledgee hereunder whether directly or as attorney-in-fact 
pursuant to a power of attorney or other authorization herein conferred, for the 
purpose of satisfaction of the liability of the Pledgor for failure to pay the 
Obligations or as additional amounts owing by the Pledgor to cover the Pledgee's 
costs of acting against the Collateral, shall be deemed an Obligation of the 
Pledgor for all purposes of this Agreement and the Pledgee may apply the 
Collateral to payment of or reimbursement of itself for such liability. 
 
         13.      General Provisions. 
                  ------------------ 
 
                  (a) All capitalized terms used in this Pledge Agreement and 
not defined herein shall have the respective meanings assigned to them in the 
Credit Agreement. 
 
                  (b) The Pledgee and its assigns shall have no obligation in 
respect of the Collateral, except to use reasonable care in holding the 
Collateral and to hold and dispose of the same in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                  (c) All notices, requests and demands to or upon the 
respective parties hereto to be effective shall be in writing, and unless 
otherwise expressly provided herein, shall be conclusively deemed to have been 
received by a party hereto and to be effective on the day on which delivered to 
such party at the address set forth below, or if sent by registered or certified 
mail, on the third Business Day after the day on which mailed in the United 
States, addressed to such party at said address: 
 
  (i)      if to the Pledgee, at: 
 
           Fleet National Bank, as Administrative Agent 
           300 Broad Hollow Road 
           Melville, New York 11747 
           Attention:      Relationship Manager - The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
           Telecopy:        (631) 547-7815 
 
  With a copy to: 
 
           Farrell Fritz, P.C. 
           One EAB Plaza 
           Uniondale, New York 11556 
           Attention:       Robert C. Creighton, Esq. 
           Telecopy:        (516) 227-0777 
 
  (ii)     if to Pledgor, at: 
 
           The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
           50 Charles Lindbergh Boulevard 
           Uniondale, New York 11553 
           Attention:       Gary M. Jacobs 
           Telecopy:        (516) 237-6277 
 
  With a copy to: 
 
           Cahill Gordon & Reindel 
           80 Pine Street 
           New York, New York 10005 
           Attention:       Roger Meltzer, Esq. 
           Telecopy:        (212) 269-5420 
 
                  (iii) As to each party at such other address as such party 
         shall have designated to the other in a written notice complying as to 
         delivery with the provisions of this Section 13(c). 
 
                  (d) No failure on the part of the Pledgee to exercise, and no 
delay in exercising, any right, power or remedy hereunder shall operate as a 
waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise by the Pledgee of any 
right, power or remedy hereunder preclude any other or future exercise thereof, 
or the exercise of any other right, power or remedy. The remedies herein 
provided are cumulative and are not exclusive of any remedies provided by law or 
any other agreement. The representations, covenants and agreements of the 
Pledgor herein contained shall survive the date hereof. Neither this Agreement 
nor the provisions hereof can be changed, waived or terminated except by a 
written agreement signed by the Pledgor and the Pledgee (acting with the consent 
of the Required Lenders or all Lenders, as applicable under the Credit 
Agreement). This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto and their respective successors, legal representatives and 
assigns except that the Pledgor may not assign or transfer any of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of each 
Lender and any such assignment or transfer without such consent shall be null 
and void. 
 
         14. APPLICABLE LAW; CONSENT TO JURISDICTION; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THIS 
AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE 
STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OR CHOICE OF 
LAWS. THE PLEDGOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF ANY FEDERAL 
OR STATE COURT IN THE STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NASSAU OR 
COUNTY OF SUFFOLK IN ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT AGAINST IT AND 
RELATED TO OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED 
HEREBY, AND TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE PLEDGOR HEREBY WAIVES 
AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT BY WAY OF MOTION, AS A DEFENSE OR OTHERWISE IN ANY SUCH 
SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING, ANY CLAIM THAT IT IS NOT PERSONALLY SUBJECT TO THE 
JURISDICTION OF SUCH FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS, THAT SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR 
PROCEEDING IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM, THAT THE VENUE OF SUCH SUIT, 
ACTION OR PROCEEDING IS IMPROPER, OR THAT THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY DOCUMENT OR ANY 
INSTRUMENT REFERRED TO HEREIN OR THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF OR THEREOF MAY NOT BE 
LITIGATED IN OR BY SUCH FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
APPLICABLE LAW, THE PLEDGOR AGREES NOT TO (I) SEEK AND HEREBY WAIVES THE RIGHT 
TO ANY REVIEW OF THE JUDGMENT OF ANY SUCH COURT BY ANY COURT OF ANY OTHER NATION 
OR JURISDICTION WHICH MAY BE CALLED UPON TO GRANT AN ENFORCEMENT OF SUCH 
JUDGMENT AND (II) ASSERT ANY COUNTERCLAIM IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING 
UNLESS SUCH COUNTERCLAIM IS A MANDATORY OR COMPULSORY COUNTERCLAIM UNDER FEDERAL 
LAW OR NEW YORK STATE LAW, AS APPLICABLE. THE PLEDGOR AGREES THAT SERVICE OF 
PROCESS MAY BE MADE UPON IT BY CERTIFIED OR REGISTERED MAIL TO THE ADDRESS FOR 
NOTICES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY METHOD AUTHORIZED BY THE LAWS OF NEW 
YORK. THE PLEDGOR AND THE PLEDGEE EACH IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY 
JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO 
THIS AGREEMENT, THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY 
OR THEREBY. EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED BY LAW, THE PLEDGOR HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT 
MAY HAVE TO CLAIM OR RECOVER IN ANY LITIGATION ANY SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE 
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES OTHER THAN, OR IN ADDITION TO, ACTUAL 
DAMAGES. 
 



 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and delivered this 
Agreement on the date first above written. 
 
                                THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
                            By:___________________________ 
                                  Name: 
                                  Title: 
 
 
                            FLEET NATIONAL BANK, as  Administrative Agent 
 
 
                            By: ________________________ 
                                   Name: 
                                   Title: 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                                   SCHEDULE A 
 
 
1.       Pledged Company: 
         Jurisdiction of Incorporation: 
         Stock owned by Pledgor 
                  Class: 
                  Number of Shares: 
                  Stock Certificate No.: 
                  Percentage of issued and outstanding shares: 
                  Pledged Interests: 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                                   [PG NUMBER] 
 
                                   EXHIBIT I-2 
 
 
                           GUARANTOR PLEDGE AGREEMENT 
 
 
         PLEDGE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") dated as of ___________________by 
and between _____________________________, a ____________ corporation (the 
"Pledgor"), and FLEET NATIONAL BANK, a national banking association organized 
and existing under the laws of the United States of America, having an office at 
300 Broad Hollow Road, Melville, New York 11747, as Administrative Agent for the 
ratable benefit of the Lenders as those terms are defined in the Credit 
Agreement referred to below (in such capacity, the "Pledgee"). 
 
                                    RECITALS 
 
         A. The Hain Celestial Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the 
"Company"), Pledgee, as Administrative Agent, SunTrust Bank, as Syndication 
Agent, HSBC Bank USA, as Documentation Agent, and the Lenders party thereto, 
have entered into a Credit Agreement dated as of March ____, 2001 (as the same 
may be hereafter amended, modified, restated or supplemented from time to time, 
the "Credit Agreement") pursuant to which the Company will receive Loans and 
other financial accommodations from the Lenders and will incur Obligations. 
 
         B. Pursuant to a Guaranty dated as of March ____, 2001, the Pledgor has 
guaranteed the payment by the Company of all its Obligations (the obligations of 
the Pledgor under such Guaranty are hereinafter referred to as the "Guaranty 
Obligations"). 
 
         C. The Pledgor is the beneficial owner of that percentage of the issued 
and outstanding capital stock or membership or other equity interests of each 
Non-Domestic Subsidiary listed on Schedule A annexed hereto (each a "Pledged 
Company" and collectively, the "Pledged Companies") as indicated on such 
Schedule A. 
 
         D. In order to induce the Lenders to enter into the Credit Agreement 
and to extend credit to the Company on and after the date hereof as provided in 
the Credit Agreement, the Pledgor wishes to grant to the Pledgee for the ratable 
benefit of the Lenders security and assurance in order to secure the payment and 
performance of all its Guaranty Obligations, and to that effect to pledge to the 
Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the Lenders 65% of all of the issued and 
outstanding capital stock of the Pledged Companies (the "Pledged Shares") and 
65% of all of the issued and outstanding membership, partnership or other equity 
interests in the Pledged Companies (the "Pledged Rights", together with the 
Pledged Shares, collectively, the "Pledged Interests") including, without 
limitation, the Pledged Interests listed opposite the name of the Pledgor as 
more particularly described on Schedule A and, with respect to the Pledged 
Shares, as represented by the stock certificates referenced thereon. 
 
         Accordingly, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
         1. Security Interest. As security for the Guaranty Obligations, 
including any and all renewals or extensions thereof, the Pledgor hereby 
delivers, pledges and assigns to the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the 
Lenders and creates in the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the Lenders a 
first security interest in all of the Pledgor's right, title and interest in and 
to all of the Pledged Interests, together with all rights and privileges of the 
Pledgor with respect thereto, all proceeds, income and profits thereof and all 
property received with respect to the Pledged Interests in addition thereto, in 
exchange thereof or in substitution therefor (collectively, the "Collateral"). 
The Pledgor has delivered to the Pledgee, with respect to the Pledged Shares 
existing on the date hereof which are evidenced by certificates, certificates 
evidencing such Pledged Shares, together with undated stock powers or other 
similar instruments duly executed in blank by the Pledgor. 
 
         2. Stock Dividends, Options, or Other Adjustments. The Pledgee shall 
receive, as Collateral, any and all additional shares of stock, membership 
interests or other property of any kind distributable on or by reason of the 
Collateral pledged hereunder, whether in the form of or by way of dividends, 
warrants, partial liquidation, conversion, prepayments or redemptions (in whole 
or in part), liquidation, or otherwise with the exceptions of cash dividends or 
other cash distributions to the extent permitted under Section 7(a) hereof. If 
any additional shares of capital stock, instruments, or other property in 
respect of the Pledged Interests against which a security interest can only be 
perfected by possession by the Pledgee, which are distributable on or by reason 
of the Collateral pledged hereunder, shall come into the possession or control 
of the Pledgor, the Pledgor shall hold or control in trust for the Pledgee and 
the Lenders and forthwith transfer and deliver the same to the Pledgee subject 
to the provisions hereof. 
 
         3. Delivery of Share Certificates; Stock Powers; Documents. The Pledgor 
agrees to deliver all share certificates, undated stock powers duly executed in 
blank, documents, agreements, financing statements, amendments thereto, 
assignments or other writings as the Pledgee may reasonably request to carry out 
the terms of this Agreement or to protect or enforce the lien and security 
interest in the Collateral hereunder granted hereby to the Pledgee for the 
ratable benefit of the Lenders and further agrees to do and cause to be done, 
upon the Pledgee's request, all things reasonably determined by the Pledgee to 
be necessary to perfect and keep in full force the lien in the Collateral 
hereunder granted hereby in favor of the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the 
Lenders, including, but not limited to, the prompt payment of all documented 
out-of-pocket fees and expenses incurred in connection with any filings made to 
perfect or continue the lien and security interest in the Collateral hereunder 
granted hereby in favor of the Pledgee for the ratable benefit of the Lenders. 
The Pledgor agrees to make appropriate entries upon its books and records 
(including without limitation its stock record and transfer books) disclosing 
the lien against the Collateral hereunder granted hereby to the Pledgee for the 
ratable benefit of the Lenders. The Pledgor further agrees to promptly deliver 
to the Pledgee, or cause the corporation or other entity issuing the Collateral 
to deliver directly to the Pledgee, share certificates or other documents 
representing Collateral acquired or received after the date of this Agreement 
with an undated stock power or other similar instruments duly executed by the 
Pledgor in blank, provided that, the Pledgor shall not be required to pledge any 
portion of any Pledged Interest in any Pledged Company which when aggregated 
with all of the other Pledged Interests in such Pledged Company pledged to the 
Pledgee pursuant to this or any other Pledge Agreement would exceed 65% of the 
Pledged Interests in such Pledged Company entitled to vote (within the meaning 
of Treasury Regulation Section 1.956-2(c)(2) promulgated under the Code) (on a 
fully diluted basis) pledged to the Pledgee under this Agreement and such other 
Pledge Agreements; provided that, if, as a result of any change in the tax laws 
of the United States of America after the date of this Agreement, the pledge by 
the Pledgor of any additional Pledged Interests in excess of 65% under this 
Agreement and any other Pledge Agreement would not result in an increase in the 
aggregate net consolidated tax liabilities of the Pledgor and such Pledged 
Company, then promptly after the change in such laws, all such additional 
Pledged Interests shall be so pledged under this Agreement or such other Pledge 
Agreement, as applicable. In no event shall the Pledgor be required to pledge 
any of the assets of any Subsidiary of the Pledgor that is a controlled foreign 
corporation, as defined in Section 957(a) of the Code, including, but not 
limited to the stock of any Subsidiary of the Pledgor held directly or 
indirectly by any such Subsidiary. If at any time the Pledgee notifies the 
Pledgor that additional stock powers or other similar instruments endorsed in 
blank with respect to the Collateral are required, the Pledgor shall promptly 
execute in blank and deliver such stock powers as the Pledgee may request. 
 
         4. Power of Attorney. The Pledgor hereby constitutes and irrevocably 
appoints the Pledgee, with full power of substitution and revocation by the 
Pledgee, as Pledgor's true and lawful attorney-in-fact, to the full extent 
permitted by law, at any time or times when an Event of Default has occurred and 
is continuing, to affix to certificates and documents representing the 
Collateral the stock power or other similar instrument delivered with respect 
thereto, to transfer or cause the transfer of the Collateral, or any part 
thereof on the books of the corporation or other entity issuing the same, to the 
name of the Pledgee or the Pledgee's nominee and thereafter to exercise as to 
such Collateral all the rights, powers and remedies of an owner. The power of 
attorney granted pursuant to this Agreement and all authority hereby conferred 
are granted and conferred solely to protect the Pledgee's and the Lenders' 
interest in the Collateral and shall not impose any duty upon the Pledgee to 
exercise any power. Subject to Section 11 hereof, this power of attorney shall 
be irrevocable as one coupled with an interest. 
 
     5. Inducing Representations of the Pledgor. The Pledgor makes the following 
representations  and  warranties  to the  Pledgee;  each and all of which  shall 
survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement: 



 
                  (a) The information concerning the Pledged Companies and the 
Pledgor's beneficial ownership of the Pledged Interests thereof that is 
contained in Schedule A is correct in all material respects on the date hereof. 
 
                  (b) The Pledgor is the sole legal and beneficial owner of, and 
has good and indefeasible title to, the Pledged Interests pledged by the 
Pledgor, free and clear of all pledges, liens, security interests and other 
encumbrances and restrictions on the transfer and assignment thereof, other than 
the security interest created by this Agreement and Permitted Liens, and has the 
corporate right and authority to execute this Agreement and to pledge the 
Collateral to the Pledgee as provided for herein. 
 
                  (c) There are no outstanding options, warrants or other 
agreements to which the Pledged Companies or the Pledgor is a party with respect 
to the Pledged Interests pledged by the Pledgor. 
 
                  (d) The Pledged Shares pledged by the Pledgor have been 
validly issued, are fully paid and non-assessable and are not subject to any 
charter, by-law, statutory, contractual or other restrictions governing their 
issuance, transfer, ownership or control. 
 
                  (e) Any consent, approval or authorization of or designation 
or filing with any authority on the part of the Pledgor which is required in 
connection with the pledge and security interest granted under this Agreement 
has been obtained or effected except those consents, approvals, authorizations, 
designations or filings which the failure to receive could not reasonably be 
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 
                  (f) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the 
Pledgor, and the performance by the Pledgor of its obligations hereunder, will 
not result in a violation of any mortgage, indenture, contract, instrument, 
judgment, decree, order, statute, rule or regulation to which the Pledgor is 
subject except any violation which could not reasonably be expected to have a 
Material Adverse Effect. 
 
                  (g) The Pledgor has delivered to the Pledgee all instruments 
and stock certificates, if any, representing the Pledged Shares, duly endorsed 
in blank or accompanied by an undated assignment or assignments in blank 
sufficient to transfer title thereto. There are neither any instruments or 
certificates evidencing the Pledged Rights nor registration books in which 
ownership of the Pledged Rights are recorded. 
 
     6. Obligations of the Pledgor. The Pledgor hereby covenants and agrees with 
the Pledgee as follows: 
 
                  (a) The Pledgor will not sell, transfer or convey any interest 
in, or suffer or permit any lien or encumbrance to be created upon or with 
respect to, any of the Collateral (other than as created under this Agreement 
and Permitted Liens) during the term of the pledge established hereby. 
 
                  (b) The Pledgor will, at its own expense, at any time and from 
time to time at the Pledgee's request, do, make, procure, execute and deliver 
all acts, things, writings, assurances and other documents as may be reasonably 
required by the Pledgee to further enhance, preserve, establish, demonstrate or 
enforce the Pledgee's and the Lenders' rights, interests and remedies created 
by, provided in, or emanating from, this Agreement. 
 
     7. Rights of the  Pledgor.  So long as no Event of Default has occurred and 
is continuing,  and so long as the Pledgee has not transferred the Collateral to 
its own name under Section 8 hereof: 
 
                  (a) The Pledgor shall be entitled to receive and retain any 
cash dividends and other cash distributions paid on the Collateral. 
 
                  (b) The Pledgor shall be entitled to vote or consent or grant 
waivers or ratifications with respect to the Collateral in any manner not 
inconsistent with this Agreement, the Credit Agreement or any other Loan 
Document. The Pledgor hereby grants to the Pledgee an irrevocable proxy to vote 
the Collateral, which proxy shall be effective immediately upon the occurrence 
of and during the continuance of an Event of Default or registration of the 
Collateral in the name of the Pledgee pursuant to Section 8 hereof. Upon request 
of the Pledgee, the Pledgor agrees to deliver to the Pledgee such further 
evidence of such irrevocable proxy or such further irrevocable proxy to vote the 
Collateral during the continuance of an Event of Default as the Pledgee may 
request. 
 
                  (c) The Pledgee will execute and deliver to the Pledgor all 
proxies, powers of attorney or other instruments as the Pledgor may reasonably 
request, at the Pledgor's cost, for purposes of effecting the voting rights or 
right to receive dividends and distributions set forth in clauses (a) and (b) of 
this Section 7, provided that the Pledgor shall supply such appropriate forms to 
the Pledgee. 
 
     8. Rights of the Pledgee. At any time when an Event of Default has occurred 
and is continuing, the Pledgee may in its sole discretion: 
 
                  (a) Cause the Collateral to be transferred to its name or to 
the name of its nominee or nominees and thereafter exercise as to such 
Collateral all of the rights, powers and remedies of an owner. 
 
                  (b) Collect by legal proceedings or otherwise all dividends, 
interest, principal payments, capital distributions and other sums now or 
hereafter payable on account of said Collateral, and hold the same as part of 
the Collateral, or apply the same to any of the Guaranty Obligations in such 
manner and order as the Pledgee may decide in its sole discretion. 
 
                  (c) Enter into any extension, subordination, reorganization, 



deposit, merger, or consolidation agreement, or any other agreement relating to 
or affecting the Collateral, and in connection therewith deposit or surrender 
control of the Collateral thereunder, and accept other property in exchange 
therefor and hold and apply such property or money so received in accordance 
with the provisions hereof. 
 
                  (d) Discharge any taxes, liens, security interests or other 
encumbrances levied or placed on the Collateral or pay for the maintenance and 
preservation of the Collateral; the amount of such payments, plus any and all 
fees, costs and expenses of the Pledgee (including reasonable attorneys' fees 
and disbursements) in connection therewith shall, at the Pledgee's option, be 
(i) reimbursed by the Pledgor on demand, with interest thereon from the date 
paid by Pledgee at two percent (2%) per annum above the Base Rate or (ii) added 
to the Guaranty Obligations secured hereby. 
 
     9. Event of Default;  Remedies.  Upon the occurrence and  continuance of an 
Event of Default: 
 
                  (a) In addition to all the rights and remedies of a secured 
party under applicable law, the Pledgee shall have the right, without demand of 
performance or other demand, advertisement or notice of any kind, except as 
specified below, to or upon Pledgor or any other Person (all and each of which 
demands, advertisements and/or notices are hereby expressly waived to the extent 
permitted by law), to proceed forthwith to collect, receive, appropriate and 
realize upon the Collateral, or any part thereof and to proceed forthwith to 
sell, assign, give an option or options to purchase, contract to sell, or 
otherwise dispose of and deliver the Collateral or any part thereof in one or 
more parcels at public or private sale or sales at any stock exchange or 
broker's board or at any of the Pledgee's offices or elsewhere at such prices 
and on such terms (including, without limitation, a requirement that any 
purchaser of all or any part of the Collateral shall be required to purchase any 
securities constituting the Collateral solely for investment and without any 
intention to make a distribution thereof) as the Pledgee in its sole and 
absolute discretion deems appropriate without any liability for any loss due to 
decrease in the market value of the Collateral during the period held, provided 
that any such sale shall be made in a commercially reasonably manner. The 
Pledgee agrees that if notice of sale shall be required by law such notification 
shall be deemed reasonable and properly given if mailed to the Pledgor, postage 
prepaid, at least ten (10) days before any such disposition, to the address 
indicated in Section 13(c) below. Any disposition of the Collateral or any part 
thereof may be for cash or on credit or for future delivery without assumption 
of any credit risk, with the right of the Pledgee and each Lender to purchase 
all or any part of the Collateral so sold at any such sale or sales, public or 
private, free of any equity or right of redemption in the Pledgor, which right 
or equity is, to the extent permitted by applicable law, hereby expressly waived 
and released by the Pledgor. 
 
                  (b) All of the Pledgee's rights and remedies, including but 
not limited to the foregoing, shall be cumulative and not exclusive and shall be 
enforceable alternatively, successively or concurrently as the Pledgee may deem 
expedient. 
 
                  (c) The Pledgee may elect to obtain (at the Pledgor's expense) 
the advice of any independent investment banking firm with respect to the method 
and manner of sale of any of the Collateral, the best price reasonably 
obtainable therefor, the consideration of cash and/or credit terms, or any other 
details concerning such sale or disposition. The Pledgee, in its sole 
discretion, may elect to sell on such credit terms which it deems reasonable. 
The sale of any of the Collateral on credit terms shall not relieve the Pledgor 
of its liability under any Loan Document until its Guaranty Obligations have 
been paid in full. All payments received by the Pledgee in respect of a sale of 
Collateral shall be applied to the Guaranty Obligations in the manner provided 
in Section 10 hereof, as and when such payments are received. 
 
                  (d) The Pledgor recognizes that the Pledgee may be unable to 
effect a public sale of all or a part of the Collateral by reason of certain 
prohibitions contained in any applicable securities law, but may be compelled to 
resort to one or more private sales to a restricted group of purchasers who will 
be obliged to agree, among other things, to acquire the Collateral for their own 
account, for investment and not with a view for the distribution or resale 
thereof. The Pledgor agrees that private sales so made may be at prices and on 
other terms less favorable to the seller than if the Collateral were sold at 
public sale, and that the Pledgee has no obligation to delay the sale of any 
Collateral for the period of time necessary to permit the registration of the 
Collateral for public sale under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The 
Pledgor agrees that a private sale or sales made under the foregoing 
circumstances shall be deemed to have been made in a commercially reasonable 
manner. 
 
                  (e) If any consent, approval or authorization of any state, 
municipal or other governmental department, agency or authority should be 
necessary to effectuate any sale or other disposition of the Collateral, or any 
partial disposition of the Collateral, the Pledgor will execute all such 
applications and other instruments as may be required in connection with 
securing any such consent, approval or authorization, and will otherwise use its 
best efforts to secure such sale or other disposition of the Collateral as the 
Pledgee may reasonably deem necessary pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
                  (f) Upon any sale or other disposition, the Pledgee shall have 
the right to deliver, assign and transfer to the purchaser thereof the 
Collateral so sold or disposed of. Each purchaser at any such sale or other 
disposition (including the Pledgee) shall hold the Collateral free from any 
claim or right of the Pledgor of whatever kind, including any equity or right of 
redemption of the Pledgor. The Pledgor specifically waives, to the extent 
permitted by applicable laws, all rights of redemption, stay or appraisal which 
it had or may have under any rule of law or statute now existing or hereafter 
adopted. 
 



                  (g) The Pledgee shall not be obligated to make any sale or 
other disposition, unless the terms thereof shall be satisfactory to it. The 
Pledgee may, subject to applicable laws, without notice or publication, adjourn 
any private or public sale, and, upon ten (10) days' prior notice to the 
Pledgor, hold such sale at any time or place to which the same may be so 
adjourned. In case of any sale of all or any part of the Collateral, on credit 
or future delivery, the Collateral so sold may be retained by the Pledgee until 
the selling price is paid by the purchaser thereof, but the Pledgee and the 
Lenders shall incur no liability in the case of the failure of such purchaser to 
take up and pay for the property so sold and, in case of any such failure, such 
property may again be sold as herein provided. 
 
         10.      Disposition of Proceeds. 
                  ----------------------- 
 
     (a) The  proceeds  of any  sale or  disposition  of all or any  part of the 
Collateral shall be applied by the Pledgee in the following order: 
 
                           (i) to the payment in full of the costs and expenses 
                  of such sale or sales, collections, and the protection, 
                  declaration and enforcement of any security interest granted 
                  hereunder including the reasonable compensation of the 
                  Pledgee's agents and attorneys; 
 
     (ii) to the payment of the Guaranty Obligations; and 
 
                           (iii) to the payment to the Pledgor of any surplus 
                  then remaining from such proceeds, subject to the rights of 
                  any holder of a lien on the Collateral of which the Pledgee 
                  has actual notice. 
 
                  (b) In the event that the proceeds of any sale or other 
disposition of the Collateral are insufficient to cover the principal of, and 
premium, if any, and interest on, the Guaranty Obligations secured thereby plus 
costs and expenses of the sale or other disposition, the Pledgor shall remain 
liable for any deficiency. 
 
         11. Termination. This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect 
until all of the Guaranty Obligations shall have been paid in full and 
satisfied, and the Credit Agreement shall have been terminated. Subject to any 
sale or other disposition by the Pledgee of the Collateral or any part thereof 
pursuant to this Agreement, the Collateral (together with the undated stock 
powers or other similar instruments delivered by the Pledgor to the Pledgee) 
shall be returned to the Pledgor upon full payment, satisfaction and termination 
of all of the Guaranty Obligations. To the extent that the sale or other 
disposition of the Collateral is specifically permitted under the Credit 
Agreement and provided that no Event of Default has occurred and is then 
continuing, the Pledgee shall, from time to time, deliver to the Pledgor upon 
request therefor and at the Pledgor's expense, releases of the Collateral and 
any other documents reasonably requested by the Pledgor evidencing the release 
of the security interest granted hereunder. 
 
         12. Expenses of the Pledgee. All out-of-pocket expenses (including 
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel) incurred by the Pledgee in 
connection with the perfection and continuation of the security interest granted 
hereunder and any actual or attempted sale or exchange of, or any enforcement, 
collection, compromise or settlement respecting, the Collateral, or any other 
action taken by the Pledgee hereunder whether directly or as attorney-in-fact 
pursuant to a power of attorney or other authorization herein conferred, for the 
purpose of satisfaction of the liability of the Pledgor for failure to pay the 
Guaranty Obligations or as additional amounts owing by the Pledgor to cover the 
Pledgee's costs of acting against the Collateral, shall be deemed a Guaranty 
Obligation of the Pledgor for all purposes of this Agreement and the Pledgee may 
apply the Collateral to payment of or reimbursement of itself for such 
liability. 
 
         13.      General Provisions. 
                  ------------------ 
 
                  (a) All capitalized terms used in this Pledge Agreement and 
not defined herein shall have the respective meanings assigned to them in the 
Credit Agreement. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                  (b) The Pledgee and its assigns shall have no obligation in 
respect of the Collateral, except to use reasonable care in holding the 
Collateral and to hold and dispose of the same in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement. 
 
                  (c) All notices, requests and demands to or upon the 
respective parties hereto to be effective shall be in writing, and unless 
otherwise expressly provided herein, shall be conclusively deemed to have been 
received by a party hereto and to be effective on the day on which delivered to 
such party at the address set forth below, or if sent by registered or certified 
mail, on the third Business Day after the day on which mailed in the United 
States, addressed to such party at said address: 
 
       (i)      if to the Pledgee, at: 
 
                Fleet National Bank, as Administrative Agent 
                300 Broad Hollow Road 
                Melville, New York 11747 
                Attention: Relationship Manager - The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
                Telecopy:        (631) 547-7815 
 
       With a copy to: 
 
                Farrell Fritz, P.C. 
                One EAB Plaza 
                Uniondale, New York 11556 
                Attention:       Robert C. Creighton, Esq. 
                Telecopy:        (516) 227-0777 
 
       (ii)     if to Pledgor, at: 
 
                c/o The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 
                50 Charles Lindbergh Boulevard 
                Uniondale, New York 11553 
                Attention:       Gary M. Jacobs 
                Telecopy:        (516) 237-6277 
 
       With a copy to: 
 
                Cahill Gordon & Reindel 
                80 Pine Street 
                New York, New York 10005 
                Attention:       Roger Meltzer, Esq. 
                Telecopy:        (212) 269-5420 
 
 
                      (iii) As to each party at such other address as such party 
shall have designated to the other in a written 
notice complying as to delivery with the provisions of this Section 13(c). 
 
                  (d) No failure on the part of the Pledgee to exercise, and no 
delay in exercising, any right, power or remedy hereunder shall operate as a 
waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise by the Pledgee of any 
right, power or remedy hereunder preclude any other or future exercise thereof, 
or the exercise of any other right, power or remedy. The remedies herein 
provided are cumulative and are not exclusive of any remedies provided by law or 
any other agreement. The representations, covenants and agreements of the 
Pledgor herein contained shall survive the date hereof. Neither this Agreement 
nor the provisions hereof can be changed, waived or terminated except by a 
written agreement signed by the Pledgor and the Pledgee (acting with the consent 
of the Required Lenders or all Lenders, as applicable under the Credit 
Agreement). This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto and their respective successors, legal representatives and 
assigns except that the Pledgor may not assign or transfer any of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of each 
Lender and any such assignment or transfer without such consent shall be null 
and void. 
 
         14. APPLICABLE LAW; CONSENT TO JURISDICTION; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THIS 
AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE 
STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OR CHOICE OF 
LAWS. THE PLEDGOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF ANY FEDERAL 
OR STATE COURT IN THE STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NASSAU OR 
COUNTY OF SUFFOLK IN ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT AGAINST IT AND 
RELATED TO OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED 
HEREBY, AND TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE PLEDGOR HEREBY WAIVES 
AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT BY WAY OF MOTION, AS A DEFENSE OR OTHERWISE IN ANY SUCH 
SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING, ANY CLAIM THAT IT IS NOT PERSONALLY SUBJECT TO THE 
JURISDICTION OF SUCH FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS, THAT SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR 
PROCEEDING IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM, THAT THE VENUE OF SUCH SUIT, 
ACTION OR PROCEEDING IS IMPROPER, OR THAT THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY DOCUMENT OR ANY 
INSTRUMENT REFERRED TO HEREIN OR THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF OR THEREOF MAY NOT BE 
LITIGATED IN OR BY SUCH FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
APPLICABLE LAW, THE PLEDGOR AGREES NOT TO (I) SEEK AND HEREBY WAIVES THE RIGHT 
TO ANY REVIEW OF THE JUDGMENT OF ANY SUCH COURT BY ANY COURT OF ANY OTHER NATION 
OR JURISDICTION WHICH MAY BE CALLED UPON TO GRANT AN ENFORCEMENT OF SUCH 
JUDGMENT AND (II) ASSERT ANY COUNTERCLAIM IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING 
UNLESS SUCH COUNTERCLAIM IS A MANDATORY OR COMPULSORY COUNTERCLAIM UNDER FEDERAL 
LAW OR NEW YORK STATE LAW, AS APPLICABLE. THE PLEDGOR AGREES THAT SERVICE OF 
PROCESS MAY BE MADE UPON IT BY CERTIFIED OR REGISTERED MAIL TO THE ADDRESS FOR 
NOTICES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY METHOD AUTHORIZED BY THE LAWS OF NEW 
YORK. THE PLEDGOR AND THE PLEDGEE EACH IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY 
JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO 



THIS AGREEMENT, THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY 
OR THEREBY. EXCEPT AS PROHIBITED BY LAW, THE PLEDGOR HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT 
MAY HAVE TO CLAIM OR RECOVER IN ANY LITIGATION ANY SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE 
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES OTHER THAN, OR IN ADDITION TO, ACTUAL 
DAMAGES. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and delivered this 
Agreement on the date first above written. 
 
                                [PLEDGOR] 
 
 
                                By:___________________________ 
                                      Name: 
                                      Title: 
 
 
                                FLEET NATIONAL BANK, as Administrative Agent 
 
 
                                By: ________________________ 
                                       Name: 
                                       Title: 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
                                   SCHEDULE A 
 
Pledged Company: 
         Jurisdiction of Incorporation: 
         Stock owned by Pledgor 
         Class: 
         Number of Shares 
         Stock Certificate no. 
         Percentage of issued and outstanding shares: 
         Pledged Interests: 
 
Pledged Company: 
         Jurisdiction of Incorporation: 
         Stock owned by Pledgor 
                  Class 
                  Number of Shares 
                  Stock Certificate Nos. 
                  Percentage of issued and outstanding shares: 
                  Pledged Interests: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
                                            AMENDMENT dated as of June 7, 2001 
                                            (this "Amendment") to the Credit 
                                            Agreement dated as of March 29, 
                                            2001, (as amended, restated, 
                                            modified or otherwise supplemented, 
                                            from time to time, the "Credit 
                                            Agreement") by and among THE HAIN 
                                            CELESTIAL GROUP, INC., a Delaware 
                                            corporation (the "Company"), FLEET 
                                            NATIONAL BANK, a national banking 
                                            association, as Administrative Agent 
                                            and as a Lender, SUNTRUST BANK, a 
                                            Georgia banking corporation, as 
                                            Syndication Agent and as a Lender, 
                                            HSBC BANK USA, a New York banking 
                                            corporation, as Documentation Agent 
                                            and as a Lender, and the other 
                                            Lenders party thereto. 
 
WHEREAS, the Company, the Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders have 
agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of this Amendment, to amend certain 
provisions of the Credit Agreement as set forth herein; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual agreements 
herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1.       Amendment. 
 
     (a) Section 7.01(j) of the Credit  Agreement is hereby amended and restated 
in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
                  "(j) Indebtedness owing by (i) the Company to any Subsidiary 
                  or (ii) any Subsidiary to the Company or any other Subsidiary, 
                  to the extent that such Indebtedness is otherwise permitted 
                  pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement;" 
 
     (b) Section 7.01(k) of the Credit  Agreement is hereby amended and restated 
in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
                  "(k) purchase money Indebtedness for borrowed money secured 
                  solely by mortgages on the real property of the Company or any 
                  of its Subsidiaries in an amount not to exceed $15,000,000 in 
                  the aggregate at any time outstanding; and" 
 
     (c) Section 7.02(j) of the Credit  Agreement is hereby amended and restated 
in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
                  "(j) Liens on real property of the Company or any of its 
                  Subsidiaries securing Indebtedness permitted by Section 
                  7.01(k) hereof, provided the Lien is specifically limited to 
                  such real property." 
 
         (d) Section 7.03 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to add a new 
subsection (d) immediately following subsection (c) of Section 7.03, which new 
subsection (d) shall read in its entirety as follows: 
 
                  "(d) guaranties by the Company of any Indebtedness permitted 
                  pursuant to Section 7.01 of any Subsidiary of the Company or 
                  guaranties by any Subsidiary of the Company of such 
                  Indebtedness of the Company or any other Subsidiary." 
 
 
2.       Miscellaneous. 
 
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
same meanings as defined in the Credit Agreement. 
 
Except as expressly amended hereby, the Credit Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect in accordance with the original terms thereof. 
 
The amendments herein contained are limited specifically to the matters set 
forth above and do not constitute directly or by implication an amendment or 
waiver of any other provision of Credit Agreement or any default which may occur 
or may have occurred under the Credit Agreement. 
 
The Company hereby represents and warrants that (a) after giving effect to this 
Amendment, the representations and warranties by the Company and each of its 
Subsidiaries pursuant to the Credit Agreement and the Loan Documents to which 
each is a party are true and correct in all material respects as of the date 
hereof with the same effect as though such representations and warranties have 
been made on and as of such date, unless such representation is as of a specific 
date, in which case, as of such date, (b) after giving effect to this Amendment, 
no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. 
 
This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute 
but one Amendment. This Amendment shall become effective when duly executed 
counterparts hereof which, when taken together, bear the signatures of each of 
the parties hereto shall have been delivered to the Administrative Agent. 
 
This Amendment shall constitute a Loan Document. 
 
This Amendment shall governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of 
the State of New York. 
 



 
 
 
                      [the next page is the signature page] 
 
 



 
 
 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Administrative Agent, as authorized on 
   behalf of the Required Lenders, have caused this Amendment to be duly 
   executed by their duly authorized officers, all as of the day and year 
                                               first above written. 
 
 
                                       THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
                                      By:_____________________________ 
                                                   Name: 
                                                   Title: 
 
 
                                         FLEET BANK NATIONAL BANK, 
                                          as Administrative Agent 
 
 
                                      By:_____________________________ 
                                                   Name: 
                                                   Title: 
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                                     CONSENT 
 
Each of the undersigned, not parties to the Credit Agreement but each a 
Guarantor under a Guaranty dated as of March 29,2001, hereby acknowledges the 
terms of the Amendment contained herein and confirms that its Guaranty is in 
full force and effect. 
 
 
                             CELESTIAL SEASONINGS, INC. 
                             ARROWHEAD MILLS, INC. 
                             KINERT FOODS CORPORATION 
                             WESTBRAE NATURAL, INC. 
                             HAIN PURE FOOD CO., INC. 
                             NATURAL NUTRITION GROUP, INC. 
                             LITTLE BEAR ORGANIC FOODS, INC. 
                             WESTBRAE NATURAL FOODS, INC. 
                             HEALTH VALLEY COMPANY 
                             AMI OPERATING, INC. 
                             DEBOLES NUTRITIONAL FOODS, INC. 
                             DANA ALEXANDER, INC. 
                             MOUNTAIN CHAI COMPANY 
 
                             By: ____________________________________ 
                                      Name:    Gary M. Jacobs 
                                      Title:   Chief Financial Officer 
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                                            AMENDMENT AND WAIVER dated as of 
                                            July 17, 2001 (this "Amendment and 
                                            Waiver") to the Credit Agreement 
                                            dated as of March 29, 2001, as 
                                            amended by Amendment dated June 7, 
                                            2001, (as may be further amended, 
                                            restated, modified or otherwise 
                                            supplemented, from time to time, the 
                                            "Credit Agreement") by and among THE 
                                            HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC., a 
                                            Delaware corporation (the 
                                            "Company"), FLEET NATIONAL BANK, a 
                                            national banking association, as 
                                            Administrative Agent and as a 
                                            Lender, SUNTRUST BANK, a Georgia 
                                            banking corporation, as Syndication 
                                            Agent and as a Lender, HSBC BANK 
                                            USA, a New York banking corporation, 
                                            as Documentation Agent and as a 
                                            Lender, and the other Lenders party 
                                            thereto. 
 
WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the Lenders waive compliance with 
certain provisions of the Credit Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions 
set forth herein, and the Lenders have agreed to grant such Waivers. 
 
WHEREAS, the Company, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders have agreed, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, to amend certain 
provisions of the Credit Agreement as set forth herein; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual agreements 
herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1.       Waiver. 
         ------ 
 
         (a) Compliance by the Company with Section 7.01 (Indebtedness) of the 
Credit Agreement is hereby waived solely with respect to the Company having 
assumed certain foreign exchange contracts with The Bank of Nova Scotia (the "FX 
Contract") in connection with the Company's acquisition of the stock of Yves 
Veggie Cuisine Inc., a Canadian company, and related companies (the "Yves Veggie 
Acquisition"). 
 
         (b) Compliance by the Company with Section 7.02 (Liens) of the Credit 
Agreement is hereby waived solely with respect to the Company having pledged 
cash collateral in the amount of $447,000 to The Bank of Nova Scotia in order to 
secure the FX Contract which was assumed in connection with the Yves Veggie 
Acquisition. 
 
         (c) Compliance by the Company with the requirements of Section 
7.06(g)(iii) (Loans and Investments) of the Credit Agreement is hereby waived 
solely with respect to the Company's obligation to deliver the documents 
required to be delivered to the Lenders pursuant to such section fifteen (15) 
Business Days prior to the closing of the Yves Veggie Acquisition. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
2.       Amendments. 
 
         (a) The definition of "Hedging Agreement" in Section 1.01 of the Credit 
Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
                  "Hedging Agreement" shall mean any interest rate swap, collar, 
                  cap, floor or forward rate agreement or other agreement 
                  executed by the Company in connection with the hedging of 
                  interest rate risk exposure of the Company and any confirming 
                  letter executed pursuant to such agreement, all as amended, 
                  supplemented, restated or otherwise modified from time to 
                  time." 
 
 
 



 
 
 
         (b) Section 6.12 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by deleting 
the reference to "ten (10) days" in line 11 thereof, and replacing it with the 
words "fifteen (15) Business Days". 
 
     (c) Section  7.01(h) of the Credit  Agreement is hereby amended by deleting 
the phrase "arranged by any Lender" therefrom. 
 
         (d) Section 7.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby further amended by 
adding a new subsection (m), which subsection shall be and read in its entirety 
as follows: 
 
                  "(m) Indebtedness not otherwise provided for in Section 
         7.01(a) through Section 7.01(l) in an aggregate amount not to exceed 
         $2,500,000 at any time outstanding, which Indebtedness may be secured 
         by Liens permitted pursuant to Section 7.02(k) hereof." 
 
         (e) Section 7.02 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by adding a 
new subsection (k), which subsection shall be and read in its entirety as 
follows: 
 
                  "(k) Liens securing the Indebtedness permitted by Section 
         7.01(m) hereof, provided such Lien secures only such Indebtedness." 
 
     (f) Section  7.06(g)(iii)  of the Credit  Agreement  is hereby  amended and 
restated in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
         "(iii) with respect to each such acquisition, the Company shall have 
delivered to the Administrative Agent: 
 
         (A) on or before the sixth (6th) Business Day prior to the closing of 
such proposed acquisition, or, in the event that the consent of the Lenders to 
such acquisition is required pursuant to the definition of Acceptable 
Acquisition, the eleventh (11th) Business Day prior to the closing of such 
proposed acquisition: 
 
                   (1) a final report of the Company's Auditor, in form and 
                  substance satisfactory to the Lenders, which report shall set 
                  forth the EBITDA of the subject of the proposed acquisition, 
                  together with any and all adjustments thereto; 
 
                  (2) a certificate of the Chief Financial Officer, in form and 
                  substance satisfactory to the Lenders, demonstrating the 
                  Company's calculations with respect to clauses (c) and (d) of 
                  the definition of "Acceptable Acquisition" and demonstrating 
                  that upon consummation of such proposed acquisition, the 
                  Company will be in compliance with each of the financial 
                  covenants set forth in Section 7.13 hereof. 
 
                  (3) financial statements which shall include balance sheets, 
                  income statements and statements of cash flows of the Person 
                  being acquired, (a) in the same form and substance as those 
                  required to be delivered by the Company under Sections 6.03(a) 
                  and 6.03(b) hereof, to the extent such are available, or (b) 
                  if unavailable, in the form relied upon by the Company in 
                  connection with such transaction, together with the due 
                  diligence report prepared by the Company's Auditors, or 
                  another nationally recognized accounting firm, in connection 
                  with such transaction, in each case for the previous three (3) 
                  fiscal years; 
 
                  (4) pro forma balance sheet and income statements of the 
                  Company and its Subsidiaries (after giving effect to the 
                  proposed Acceptable Acquisition) as of the then most recent 
                  fiscal quarter ended demonstrating that upon consummation of 
                  such Acceptable Acquisition, the Company will be in compliance 
                  with the financial covenants contained in Section 7.13, such 
                  evidence of compliance to be in form and substance reasonably 
                  satisfactory to the Lenders; 
 
     (5) copies of the relevant  purchase  agreement and all schedules  thereto; 
and 
 
         (B) on or before the date of the Closing of such Acquisition, evidence 
         satisfactory to the Administrative Agent that the shares or other 
         interest in the Person, or the assets of the Person, which is the 
         subject of the related Acceptable Acquisition are free and clear of all 
         Liens, except those Liens permitted pursuant to Section 7.02, 
         including, without limitation, with respect to the acquisition of 
         shares or other equity interests, free of any restrictions on transfer 
         other than restrictions applicable to the sale of securities under 
         federal and state securities laws and regulations generally; provided 
         that, in the case of any Non-Domestic Acquisition, to the extent that 
         any such Liens secure aggregate Indebtedness of less than $5,000,000, 
         such evidence may be delivered to the Administrative Agent no later 
         than fifteen (15) Business Days following the consummation of such 
         Acceptable Acquisition." 
 
         The Administrative Agent shall provide copies to the Lenders of all 
         items delivered to the Administrative Agent pursuant to Section 
         7.06(g)(iii)(A) on the Business Day following receipt of such items by 
         the Administrative Agent. 
 
3.       Miscellaneous. 
 



Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
same meanings as defined in the Credit Agreement. 
 
Except as expressly waived hereby, the Credit Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect in accordance with the original terms thereof. 
 
The waivers and amendments set forth above are limited specifically to the 
matters set forth above and for the specific instances and purposes given and do 
not constitute directly or by implication a waiver or amendment of any other 
provision of the Credit Agreement or a waiver of any Default or Event of 
Default, whether now existing or hereafter arising, which may occur or may have 
occurred under the Credit Agreement. 
 
The Company hereby represents and warrants that (a) after giving effect to this 
Amendment and Waiver, the representations and warranties by the Company and each 
of its Subsidiaries pursuant to the Credit Agreement and the Loan Documents to 
which each is a party are true and correct in all material respects as of the 
date hereof with the same effect as though such representations and warranties 
have been made on and as of such date, unless such representation is as of a 
specific date, in which case, as of such date, and (b) after giving effect to 
this Amendment and Waiver, no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is 
continuing. 
 
This Amendment and Waiver may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original, but all of which when taken together shall 
constitute but one Amendment and Waiver. This Amendment and Waiver shall become 
effective when duly executed counterparts hereof which, when taken together, 
bear the signatures of each of the parties hereto shall have been delivered to 
the Administrative Agent. 
 
This Amendment and Waiver shall constitute a Loan Document. 
 
This Amendment and Waiver shall governed by, and construed in accordance with, 
the laws of the State of New York. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                      [the next page is the signature page] 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Administrative Agent, as authorized on 
behalf of the Lenders, have caused this Waiver to be duly executed by their duly 
authorized officers, all as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
                                             THE HAIN CELESTIAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
                                            By:_____________________________ 
                                                         Name: 
                                                         Title: 
 
 
                                               FLEET BANK NATIONAL BANK, 
                                                as Administrative Agent 
 
 
                                            By:_____________________________ 
                                                         Name: 
                                                         Title: 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
                                     CONSENT 
 
Each of the undersigned, not parties to the Credit Agreement but each a 
Guarantor under a Guaranty dated as of March 29, 2001 (and June 8, 2001 for 
Hain-Yves, Inc.), hereby acknowledges the terms of the Amendment and Waiver 
contained herein and confirms that its Guaranty is in full force and effect. 
 
 
                           CELESTIAL SEASONINGS, INC. 
                           ARROWHEAD MILLS, INC. 
                           KINERT FOODS CORPORATION 
                           WESTBRAE NATURAL, INC. 
                           HAIN PURE FOOD CO., INC. 
                           NATURAL NUTRITION GROUP, INC. 
                           LITTLE BEAR ORGANIC FOODS, INC. 
                           WESTBRAE NATURAL FOODS, INC. 
                           HEALTH VALLEY COMPANY 
                           AMI OPERATING, INC. 
                           DEBOLES NUTRITIONAL FOODS, INC. 
                           DANA ALEXANDER, INC. 
                           MOUNTAIN CHAI COMPANY 
                           HAIN-YVES, INC. 
 
 
                           By: ____________________________________ 
                                    Name:    Gary M. Jacobs 
                                    Title:   Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit 21 
 
 
 
                                                               Jurisdiction of 
          Subsidiary                                            Incorporation 
 
Celestial Seasonings, Inc.                                        Delaware 
Natural Nutrition Group, Inc.                                     Delaware 
Health Valley Company                                             California 
Arrowhead Mills, Inc.                                             Delaware 
AMI Operating, Inc.                                               Texas 
DeBoles Nutritional Foods, Inc.                                   New York 
Hain Pure Food Co., Inc.                                          California 
Kineret Foods Corporation                                         New York 
Westbrae Natural, Inc.                                            Delaware 
Westbrae Natural Foods, Inc.                                      California 
Little Bear Organic Foods, Inc.                                   California 
Dana Alexander, Inc.                                              New York 
Terra Chips, B.V.                                                 Netherlands 
Hain Celestial Europe                                             Netherlands 
Hain Yves, Inc.                                                   Delaware 
Hain Celestial Canada ULC                                         Nova Scotia 
Yves Veggie Cuisine, Inc.                                         Nova Scotia 
Yves Fine Foods, Inc.                                             Nova Scotia 
 
 



Exhibit 23 
 
Consent of Independent Auditors 
 
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement 
(Form S-8 No. 333-33828), Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration 
Statement (Form S-4 on Form S-8 No. 333-33830) and Post-Effective Amendment 
No. 1 to the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-38915) pertaining to 
The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 1994 Long Term Incentive and Stock Award 
Plan, and the Registration Statements (Form S-3 Nos. 333-59761, 333-77137 
and 333-65618) of The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. and in the related 
Prospectus of our report dated August 31, 2001, with respect to the 
consolidated financial statements and schedule of The Hain Celestial Group, 
Inc. and Subsidiaries included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the 
year ended June 30,  2001. 
 
 
                                                           /s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
 
 
 
 
Melville, New York 
September 26, 2001 
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Exhibit 23.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consent of Independent Auditors 
 
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement 
(Form S-8 No. 333-33828), Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration 
Statement (Form S-4 on Form S-8 No. 333-33830) and Post-Effective Amendment 
No. 1 to the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-38915) pertaining to 
The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. 1994 Long Term Incentive and Stock Award 
Plan, and the Registration Statements (Form S-3 Nos. 333-59761 and 333- 
77137) of The Hain Celestial Group, Inc. and in the related Prospectus of 
our report dated November 3, 1999, with respect to the consolidated 
financial statements of Celestial Seasonings, Inc. (none of which are 
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-k)) for the year ended September 30, 
1999. 
 
                                                     /s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 
 
 
 
 
Denver, Colorado 
September 27, 2000 
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Exhibit 23.2 
 
 
 
                                              INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 
 
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Celestial Seasonings, Inc.: 
 
 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Celestial 
Seasonings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of September 30, 1999 and 
for each of the two years in the period ended September 30, 1999 and have issued 
our reports thereon dated November 3, 1999. Our audits also included the 
consolidated financial statement schedule (which is not presented herein) of the 
Company, listed in Item 14. This consolidated financial statement schedule is 
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion based on our audits. In our opinion, such consolidated financial 
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated 
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects 
the information set forth herein. 
 
 
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Denver, Colorado 
November 3, 1999 
 
 
 
 


